
OTAY WATER DISTRICT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
DISTRICT BOARDROOM

2554 SWEETWATER SPRINGS BOULEVARD
SPRING VALLEY, CALIFORNIA

WEDNESDAY
September 6, 2006

3:30 P.M.

AGENDA

1. ROLL CALL

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

3. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE BOARD MEETINGS OF JUNE 7, 2006 AND
JULY 5,2006

5. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - OPPORTUNITY FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC TO
SPEAK TO THE BOARD ON ANY SUBJECT MATTER WITHIN THE BOARD'S
JURISDICTION BUT NOT AN ITEM ON TODAY'S AGENDA

CONSENT CALENDAR

6. ITEMS TO BE ACTED UPON WITHOUT DISCUSSION, UNLESS A REQUEST IS
MADE BY A MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR THE PUBLIC TO DISCUSS A PAR
TICULAR ITEM:

a) ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 4087 AMENDING POLICY NO.4, QUOTA
TIONS FOR FEES OR CHARGES, ESTABLISHING A PERIOD OF TIME
THAT WRITTEN QUOTATIONS ARE VALID

b) APPROVE A ONE-TIME PAYMENT OF $5,000 TO THE WATER CONSER
VATION GARDEN TO PROVIDE FUNDING FOR BOARD SECRETARY
SUPPORT

c) AWARD A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES CONTRACT TO REA & PARKER
RESEARCH AND DOUGLAS COE OF THE SOCIAL SCIENCE RESEARCH
LABORATORY TO CONDUCT THE 2006 CUSTOMER SERVICE, SATIS
FACTION, AND AWARENESS SURVEY FOR AN AMOUNT NOT TO EX
CEED $27,500

1



INFORMATION / ACTION ITEMS

7. ADMINISTRATION AND FINANCE

a) PRESENTATION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 4TH QUARTER EX
PENSES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2006 (PRENDERGAST)

b) RECEIVE THE INVESTMENT POLICY (BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY
NO. 27) AND ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 4088 AMENDING THE POLICY
AND RE-DELEGATING AUTHORITY FOR ALL INVESTMENT RELATED
ACTIVITIES TO THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CUDLlP)

8. ENGINEERING AND WATER OPERATIONS

a) CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM FISCAL YEAR-END 2006 UPDATE
(VAUGHN)

b) APPROVE THE EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT WITH CRICKET COM
MUNICATIONS, INC., A DELAWARE CORPORATION, FOR THE INSTAL
LATION OF A COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY AT THE 485-1 RESERVOIR
SITE (VAUGHN)

c) APPROVE THE EXECUTION OF AN AGREEMENT WITH CRICKET COM
MUNICATIONS, INC., A DELAWARE CORPORATION, FOR THE INSTAL
LATION OF A COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY AT THE 458-1&2 RESER
VOIR SITE (VAUGHN)

9. BOARD INFORMATION / ACTION ITEMS

a) DISCUSSION OF 2006 BOARD MEETING CALENDAR

b) CONSIDERATION TO CAST A VOTE TO ELECT A REPRESENTATIVE
TO THE CALIFORNIA SPECIAL DISTRICTS ASSOCIATION BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

REPORTS

10. GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT

a) UPDATE ON THE 30" RECYCLED WATER PIPELINE PROJECT (SEE AT
TACHMENT "A")

b) SAN DIEGO COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY UPDATE

11. GENERAL COUNSEL'S REPORT ON PROPOSITION 218

12. DIRECTORS' REPORTS; REQUESTS

2



13. PRESIDENTS REPORT / REQUESTS

14. ADJOURNMENT

All items appearing on this agenda, whether or not expressly listed for action, may be de
liberated and may be subject to action by the Board.

If you have any disability which would require accommodation in order to enable you to
participate in this meeting, please call the District Secretary at 670-2280 at least 24 hours
prior to the meeting.

Certification of Posting

I certify that on September 1, 2006, I posted a copy of the foregoing agenda near
the regular meeting place of the Board of Directors of Otay Water District, said time being
at least 72 hours in advance of the regular meeting of the Board of Directors (Government
Code Section §54954.2).

Executed at Spring Valley, California on September 1,2006.

3



AGENDA ITEM 4
MINUTES OF THE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
OTAYWATER DISTRICT

July 5, 2006

1. The meeting was called to order by Vice President Lopez at 3:40 p.m.

2. ROLL CALL

Directors Present:

Directors Absent:

Staff Present:

Breitfelder, Croucher, Lopez and Robak

Bonilla (handling pressing business matters and is unable
to attend)

General Manager Mark Watton, Asst. GM Administration
and Finance German Alvarez, Asst. GM Engineering and
Water Operations Manny Magana, General Counsel Yuri
Calderon, Chief of Information Technology Geoff Stevens,
Chief Financial Officer Joe Beachem, Chief of Engineering
Mehdi Arbabian, Chief of Operations Pedro Porras, Chief
of Development Services Rod Posada, Chief of
Administration Rom Sarno, District Secretary Susan Cruz
and others per attached list.

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

A motion was made by Director Breitfelder, seconded by Director Croucher and
carried with the following vote:

Ayes:
Noes:
Abstain:
Absent:

Directors Breitfelder, Croucher, Lopez and Robak
None
None
Director Bonilla

to approve the agenda.

5. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL BOARD MEETING OF MAY 30,
2006

A motion was made by Director Breitfelder, seconded by Vice President Lopez
and carried with the following vote:

Ayes:
Noes:
Abstain:
Absent:

Directors Breitfelder, Croucher, Lopez and Robak
None
None
Director Bonilla

1



to approve the minutes of the special board meeting of May 30, 2006.

6. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - OPPORTUNITY FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC
TO SPEAK TO THE BOARD ON ANY SUBJECT MATTER WITHIN THE
BOARD'S JURISDICTION BUT NOT AN ITEM ON TODAY'S AGENDA

No one wished to be heard.

CONSENT CALENDAR

7. ITEMS TO BE ACTED UPON WITHOUT DISCUSSION, UNLESS A REQUEST
IS MADE BY A MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR THE PUBLIC TO DISCUSS A

. PARTICULAR ITEM:

Director Breitfelder requested that items 6h, ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 4082
AMENDING POLICY 26, DISTRICT ADMINISTRATION OF REIMBURSEMENT
AGREEMENTS; 6j, ADOPT THE OTAY MESA VALUE ENGINEERING STUDY;
and 6k, ACCEPT MR. JOSE RODRIGUEZ'S REQUEST FOR A WAIVER OF
PENALTY FEES IN THE AMOUNT OF $4,617 FOR AN UNAUTHORIZED
SEWER CONNECTION; be pulled for discussion.

A motion was made by Director Croucher, seconded by Director Breitfelder and
carried with the following vote:

Ayes:
Noes:
Abstain:
Absent:

Directors Breitfelder, Croucher, Lopez and Robak
None
None
Director Bonilla

to approve the following consent calendar items.

a) ADOPT RESOLUTION INCORPORATING THE NATIONAL INCIDENT
MANAGEMENT SYSTEM AND INCIDENT COMMAND SYSTEM INTO
FUTURE DISTRICT EMERGENCY RESPONSE EFFORTS

b) REJECT ROSETE / DUCUT CLAIM

c) ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 4083 TO ESTABLISH THE TAX RATE FOR
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 27 AT $0.007 FOR FISCAL YEAR 2006
2007

d) APPROVE REVISIONS TO THE CERTIFICATE INCENTIVE PROGRAM;
RATIFY ONE MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING SIDE LETTER
FOR IN-RANGE ADJUSTMENTS; ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 4084 TO
REVISE THE DRUG FREE WORKPLACE BOARD POLICY NO. 22; AND,
ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 4086 TO REVISE THE EMPLOYEE
RECOGNITION BOARD POLICY NO.2

2



e) APPROVE UTILITY AGREEMENT NO. 31755 WITH CALTRANS FOR
SR 905 UTILITY RELOCATIONS

f) AWARD A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO ZONDIROS
CORPORATION IN THE AMOUNT OF $930,316 FOR THE
CONSTRUCTION OF THE SR 905 UTILITY RELOCATIONS, ALTA
ROAD VAULTS AND METER BYPASS PROJECT

g) AWARD A PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES CONTRACT TO
PBS&J IN THE AMOUNT OF $119,580 FOR THE REVISION OF THE
WASTE DISCHARGE PERMIT FOR THE DISTRICTS RECYCLED
WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM

h) AWARD A CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT TO BLAIR RASMUSSEN
CONSTRUCTION IN THE AMOUNT OF $60,747 FOR THE REMODEL
OF THE METER SHOP

INFORMATION / ACTION ITEMS

8. ENGINEERING AND WATER OPERATIONS

a) ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 4082 AMENDING POLICY 26, DISTRICT
ADMINISTRATION OF REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENTS

Director Breitfelder indicated that he wished to confirm his understanding of the
proposed revised policy. His understanding is that the board approves
reimbursement agreements at their inception and it is again presented to the
board prior to processing the reimbursement. He asked if this understanding
was accurate. Chief of Development Services Rod Posada indicated that that
was correct. He stated that additionally, if there are agreements that are older
than five years, they would also be presented for board consideration.

It was discussed that several staff members review the reimbursement requests
in detail and if staff disagrees with the amount requested, they contact the
developer and review areas with the developer where there is concerns. He
stated that many times, the developer agrees to a lower figure than originally
requested.

Director Breitfelder indicated that it seems that the District's staff has the process
pretty much handled. He indicated that he felt it appropriate that the board
approve the initial agreement and only if there were discrepancies or issue with
the requested reimbursement, otherwise he felt that it need not be brought back
for board approval as it may be perceived that the board is interfering with the
contracts (politicizing the action).

General Manager Watton indicated that some reimbursements are hundreds of
thousands or millions of dollars and he would like the board to be aware of the

3



amounts of the reimbursements that are being provided and that agreements are
being closed. He stated that he had not looked at it from the standpoint of the
board actually interfering with the contracts which is another matter. He stated
that it is brought back to expose the board to the reimbursements.

Director Croucher indicated that the Engineering and Water Ops Committee
reviewed this item and staff had brought to their attention the weaknesses in the
current policy. The committee had asked staff to recommend improvements to
the policy. They also asked staff to get input from the developers as well. He
stated that he felt that it was part of the board's job to improve the future and
identify weaknesses.

General Counsel Calderon indicated that there is no real involvement by the
board in reviewing the amount of the reimbursement. He stated that staff
reviews the reimbursement very thoroughly and the reimbursement request is
simply being presented for final approval as it exceeds the General Managers
authority. He indicated that many times the reimbursements are not requested in
the fiscal year in which they are expected and it is appropriate to present it to the
board so they are aware of the requests.

General Manager Watton indicated that the reimbursement is fact based and
would be difficult for board members to interfere or influence.

Director Breitfelder inquired what would stop a board member from utilizing the
implied threat of his/her power and also what happens if a board member votes
no on the reimbursement request. General Manager Watton indicated that the
developer would probably sue the district as, again, the reimbursement is fact
based. General Counsel Calderon indicated that there is a contract in place and
the District would be bound by the contract. The only thing that the District could
dispute is the actual charges which would need to be backed with factual data.

Director Breitfelder indicated that it would be naive for the board not to recognize
that there is at least an implied threat here. He indicated that he has stated his
position and is ready to vote.

A motion was made by Director Croucher, seconded by Director Robak and
carried with the following vote:

Ayes:
Noes:
Abstain:
Absent:

Directors Croucher, Lopez and Robak
Director Breitfelder
None
Director Bonilla

to approve staffs' recommendation.

b) ADOPT THE OTAY MESA VALUE ENGINEERING STUDY

4



Sr. Civil Engineer Randy Klaahsen indicated that the recycled system in the Otay
Mesa area was originally installed to serve a power plant. He stated that there
was currently 20 and 30-inch transmission pipelines installed in the area. He
stated that typically the District does not use less than 8-inch pipelines on
standard distribution networks and thus, if the zoning in the Otay Mesa area was
changed to residential, the current distribution and transmission system could
handle the needs without any problems. He stated that if the area should change
from industrial to residential there would be a slight increase in demand for
recycled water in the area. It was noted that the Otay Mesa study looked at both
scenarios; if the area remained industrial or was rezoned for residential.

Hi indicated that the value engineering's study goal was to:

• Promote a team approach
• Look at alternatives to reduce capital costs for servicing the Otay Mesa

860 zone with recycled water
• Address developer concerns constructing the local recycled water system

He indicated that the original plan was to serve the Otay Mesa area with recycled
water through a reservoir and pump station and to build a transmission network
from the west to the east. He indicated that a panel of 15 members from various
agencies and the City of San Diego came up with 32 different ideas that were
whittled down to 10 to 12 ideas. Harris and Associates reviewed the ideas and
calculated cost and benefit for each and identified the following key alternatives:

• Pipeline from the North along proposed Route 125
• Pipeline from North from La Media Road
• Pipeline from North along Wueste Road
• Downsizing Exaction Project Distribution System
• Eliminate recycled water use on demands under 1 acre foot a year

He stated that it was determined that the Wueste Road alternative provided the
same level of service at a lower cost and eliminated the need for the 450-2
reservoir and the 860-1 pump station along with the long-term maintenance
associated with such infrastructure.

He stated that ultimately the District would be required to meet approximately 18
MGD during the height of summer. The district plans to meet the supply with
100% recycled water.

Director Robak inquired what year staff expected demand to reach 18 MGD and
if the district would have the capacity to serve this demand. Sr. Civil Engineer
Klaahsen indicated in the year 2030. He indicated that the District currently has
7.1 MGD supply and the District will need to acquire additional supplies. He
stated that this is being addressed by the Integrated Water Resources Plan.
General Manager Watton indicated that current demand was peaking at over 8
MGD at the moment. He indicated that the City of San Diego allows the District

5



to take at peak if the water is available. If it is not, the system is supplemented
with potable water.

He stated the cost difference for the pipeline from the west alternative cost
approximately $20.5 million and the Wueste Road alternate cost approximately
$14.1 million with a difference of $6.4 million in capital cost savings. He noted
that the operation and maintenance cost will also go down (from $636,000/year
to $238,000/year as the original planned reservoir and pump station have been
eliminated.

He indicated they reviewed the distribution network and were able to reduce the
network from 240,000 linear feet to 150,000 linear feet while still getting good
overall coverage in the system. He stated that general counsel did not
recommend eliminating recycled water use on users that would have a demand
of less than 1 acre foot a year because of the sense of unfairness to adjacent
properties and the requirement for a nexus study under California Government
Code Section 66000.

Sr. Civil Engineer Klaahsen indicated that staff was asking the board to:

• Adopt the Otay Mesa Value Engineering Study
• Adopt the downsized distribution system network that will relieve some of

the burden on developers and save approximately $8.8 million dollars in
exaction pipelines

• Continue to require all new developments to install recycled water
distribution systems and irrigate landscaping with recycled water

Director Robak inquired with regard to the nexus of what has been and will be
installed and the need to acquire additional resources from the city, are the
developer paying their fair share. Sr. Civil Engineer Klaahsen indicated that the
District only has two capital improvement projects for the system; the main
transmission pipeline on Alta Road and a transmission pipeline on Airway Road.
He indicated that the developers are installing the rest of the system.

General Manager Watton indicated that developers also pay a meter fee for the
recycled system which is kept by the District. He stated that finance calculates
this fee on the whole recycled system, not just the Otay Mesa area. He indicated
that the fees are not unique to the Otay Mesa area.

Director Robak further inquired if the ratepayers who do not utilize recycled water
assist in paying for the cost of recycled water for those ratepayers who do or are
the developers paying for the full system. General Manager Watton indicated
that the way fees are set-up, all ratepayers are paying for the recycled system.
He indicated that the potable customers also receiving a benefit from a supply
standpoint. Chief Financial Officer Beachem indicated that the potable and
reclaimed capacity fee is a combined calculation. He indicated that it is the same
fee for both services. He indicated that in a sense, the potable customer is
paying for a portion of the reclaimed CIP system.

6



Director Robak indicated that he just wished to be sure that ratepayers are
paying equitably for potable, sewer and recycled services. General Manager
Watton indicated that the rate study several years ago had identified that the
sewer customers were not paying their fair share. This is when the District
determined what sewer rates should truly be to answer the nexus question.

Sr. Civil Engineer Klaahsen also added that there was a ripple effect depending
on where the supply would come from. If the supply came from the South Bay
Reclamation Plant, then staff would need to assure that the distribution systems
did not get over pressurized and that the pump stations can be upgraded without
requiring a full retrofit. It was determined that the District will need to add an
impeller to some pumps in the 680 pump station in 2015 and the pumps would
need to be changed out at the 944 pump station in 2025. Director Robak
inquired that in the future, if re-purified water was approved for consumption,
would the purple pipes still be required. General Manager Watton indicated that
new systems would no longer require dual piping and the potable system would
be sized to fit the new situation. However, in areas where dual piping exists, the
purple pipes would continue to be utilized for capacity purposes. General
Manager Watton added that studies indicate that the cost is less to continue
systems as they are now, rather than moving to re-purification.

Director Croucher indicated that the Engineering and Water Operations
Committee also discussed this item at length and the possibility of providing
reclaimed water south of the border, should there be a need, through the current
project. He stated that he was also happy that all current facilities would
continue to be utilized which is a change from discussions from three to four
years ago where some facilities would no longer be utilized. He stated that it was
encouraging to be able to work out, through brainstorming sessions with other
agencies, a solution to maximize the use of facilities already in the ground.

A motion was made by Director Croucher, seconded by Director Robak and
carried with the following vote:

Ayes:
Noes:
Abstain:
Absent:

Directors Breitfelder, Croucher, Lopez and Robak
None
None
Director Bonilla

to approve staffs' recommendation.

c) ACCEPT MR. JOSE RODRIGUEZ'S REQUEST FOR A WAIVER OF
PENALTY FEES IN THE AMOUNT OF $4,617 FOR AN UNAUTHORIZED
SEWER CONNECTION

Director Brietfelder indicated that there was discussion in the Engineering and
Water Operations Committee the desire to waive the $50 application fee. He
stated that items approved on the consent calendar is an approval of staffs'

7



recommendation. He stated by approving staffs' recommendation on this item,
the board would not be approving the committee's desire. He wished to discuss
this item so the committee's request can be acted upon.

Director Croucher indicated that the Engineering and Operations Committee
noted that the homeowner did not have anything to do with the illegal connection
and that he, in fact, had a legal connection. He stated that the homeowner
purchased the property approximately a month prior to the District's inspector
identifying that there was an illegal connection from the property. He stated that
the $50 application fee is charged to dissuade frivolous claims and it also covers
staffs' time to process the waiver. He stated in this particular case, because the
homeowner's request is true and valid and had the district acted upon the illegal
connection, it would have been prior to his ownership of the property, the
committee wished to also refund the application fee.

Vice President Lopez indicated that the recommendation to waive the application
fee of $50 is noted in the committee action attachment. General Counsel
Calderon indicated that this item is presented as all requests for penalty waivers
must be presented to the Board of Directors for approval.

Director Robak inquired where the illegal line was hooked to. It was indicated
that the illegal line was connected from the pool area to the storm drain.

Director Breitfelder indicated that he wished to note that the fee is to cover staffs'
time and a waiver of such a fee could set precedent for other issues which may
not be so convenient to the district. Vice President Lopez indicated that he felt
that it was appropriate in this particular case.

A motion was made by Director Breitfelder, seconded by Director Croucher and
carried with the following vote:

Ayes:
Noes:
Abstain:
Absent:

Directors Cro~cher, Lopez and Robak
Director Breitfelder
None
Director Bonilla

to approve staffs' recommendation with an amendment to also waive the $50
application fee.

9. ADMINISTRATION AND FINANCE

a) PUBLIC HEARING TO CONTINUE WATER AND SEWER AVAILABILITY
CHARGES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2006-2007

1) ADOPT RESOLUTION N0.4078 TO CONTINUE WATER AND
SEWER AVAILABILITY CHARGES FOR DISTRICT CUSTOMERS
FOR FISCAL YEAR 2006-2007 TO BE COLLECTED THROUGH
PROPERTY TAXES; TO ADOPT VERBIAGE CHANGES TO

8



CLARIFY PENALTY CHARGES WHEN A SIGNER TERMINATES
AN AVAILABILITY DEFERRAL AGREEMENT PRIOR TO ITS
EXPIRATION DATE; AND, CLARIFY THE PROCESS FOR A
PROPERTY OWNER TO GET A REDUCED RATE FOR LAND
THAT MEETS OR EXCEEDS A 30% SLOPE (HENDERSON)

Chief Financial Officer Joe Beachem indicated that each year the board must
open a public hearing to receive the public's comments on the District continuing
water and sewer availability fees. He indicated that the District contacted all new
customers to notify them that there is an availability fee that will appears on their
property taxes. He indicated that the fee funds capital expenditures and that the
District has been collecting the fee for over 30 years which authorized through
the State Code. General Counsel Calderon indicated that state law requires that
the District adopt a resolution annually to reassess the fee.

Vice President Lopez opened the public hearing at 4:34 p.m. No one wished to
be heard. The public hearing was closed at 4:34 p.m.

Director Robak inquired if there were areas in Jamul where owners are paying
fees, but were not within the CWA or MWD boundaries. General Manager
Watton indicated that there are a few thousand acres that are within Otay's
boundaries where the owners are paying the District's fees, but they are not
paying CWA or MWD fees. He stated that if the owners of these lands wish a
permanent water supply, they would need to annex into CWA and MWD
boundaries. He indicated that property owners who are paying availability fees
have the ability to submit an application and get water from the District, but there
was no guarantee, as some may also need to build a pipeline to receive the
water. Customers may not necessarily understand this. However, there is a
value to paying the fee if at some point the owner wishes to develop their parcel
of land and receive water from the district.

A motion was made by Director Breitfelder, seconded by Director Robak and
carried with the following vote:

Ayes:
Noes:
Abstain:
Absent:

Directors Breitfelder, Croucher, Lopez and Robak
None
None
Director Bonilla

to approve continuing water and sewer availability charges for FY 2006-2007.

10. ENGINEERING AND WATER OPERATIONS

a) APPROVE THE DISTRICT'S PARTICIPATION IN A JOINT WATER
RECYCLING FACILITY FEASIBILITY STUDY AT A COST NOT TO
EXCEED $80,000

9



Sr. Civil Engineer Klaahsen indicated that there would be three participants in the
feasibility study; Otay, Sweetwater Authority and the City of Chula Vista. He
stated that the City of Chula Vista will require an additional 5 MGD of wastewater
capacity from Metro or the new water recycling facility once the city is built out.
Sweetwater Authority recently completed a recycled water master plan and they
have an interest in the water recycling business. Unfortunately, one of their
biggest potential users will no longer require recycled water, LLS Power (Duke
Power Plant) and thus, they have approached Otay as it has a need for
additional recycled water supplies.

He indicated that there are two (2) potential sites that will studied:

• 4th Street and Main in the City of Chula Vista (Otay River Plant)
• Downstream of Sweetwater Authority's Dam in the Sweetwater River

Shed

He stated that the recycling facility would strip wastewater from the Spring Valley
sewer outfall and solids would be returned to the Metro System, similar to the
Chapman Treatment Plant. He stated the treated effluent would be pumped to
pond 1 and 4 in the Use Area where it would be distributed to the District's
recycled system.

Sr. Civil Engineer Klaahsen indicated that the treatment method, Membrane
Bioreactor (MBR), would be utilized at the proposed treatment plant. He stated
that this treatment method has been studied by CWA and costs about 85% of the
capital cost of a conventional treatment plant. He indicated that it also takes
approximately 50% less area than a conventional treatment plant and the effluent
quality is better. He noted that the solids would be returned to the Metro System
so the plant would not have to deal with solids handling.

He noted that the capital cost for the MBR is approximately $50 million and
operation and maintenance cost for 30 years is $13 million. He stated that the
cost to send the solids to the Metro System has not yet been estimated, but it
would be charged at a higher rate as the plant would send higher TSS (Total
Suspended Solids) and higher BOD of water. He also stated that the cost to
pump the effluent to the District ponds is not included in the estimates as well.
He stated that the present worth cost for the water is $700 per Acre Foot and this
figure did not include the CWA or MWD incentives. The facility would require
about a four acre site.

He indicated that there were some challenges to building the MBR facility. He
indicated that they would need to work with the City of San Diego on the solids
disposal and that there may be an opportunity to work with the Spring Valley
Sanitation District. There was also is an impact to losing the power plant as a
customer as they would have utilized 5 MGD of recycled water daily for cooling
purposes. He indicated that during low demand days in the winter, the unused
water would need to be stored somehow to avoid paying the City of San Diego
capacity fees for sending the unused water to their system. He indicated that

10



they are exploring ways in which the water can be stored; possibly injected into
groundwater, live-stream discharge, etc.

Sr. Civil Engineer Klaahsen indicated that staff is recommending that the District
participate in a joint study with the City of Chula Vista and Sweetwater Authority
as a 1/3 partner in the Recycling Facility Feasibility Study in an amount not to
exceed $80,000. He noted that Sweetwater Authority has received a $25,000
FAP Loan from the CWA to more forward with the study.

Director Brietfelder inquired when the study would be completed. Sr. Civil
Engineer Klaahsen indicated the study would not start for a couple month and
when it is started it would take approximately six to nine months. He indicated
that the study would probably take approximately one year to complete.

Vice President Lopez inquired why CWA would be administering the project. Sr.
Civil Engineer Klaahsen indicated that the Sweetwater Authority would
administer the study. CWA is involved as Sweetwater Authority received a loan
from CWA to do the study. If it is determined through the study that the recycling
facility is feasible, then the partners would need to pay back the $25,000 loan to
CWA. General Manager Watton further indicated that Sweetwater Authority
originally approach CWA as the project was more oriented toward the bay front.
The project has expanded and now two sites will be studied.

Director Robak inquired why it would make more sense at the outfall rather than
the Chapman Plant. Sr. Civil Engineer Klaahsen indicated that at the outfall
there would be much more wastewater available. He indicated that the
Chapman basin does not have potential for growth as there is no new supply
potential in its location. He indicated that there would be approximately 11 MGD
in the outfall pipe that will be studied.

Director Robak inquired how the cost of $700/ AF figure was determined. Sr.
Civil Engineer Klaahsen indicated that CWA had studied 11 different sites (CWA
MBR Study) in 2005 and this was the figure from their study. General Manager
Watton noted that the $700 / AF figure is for the plant itself, but that the figure did
not include the cost for the distribution facilities to the District's use area or the
increased solids disposal cost. Director Robak inquired what the cost was for AF
at the Chapman Plant. General Manager Watton indicated approximately
$1,100. Sr. Civil Engineer Klaahsen indicated that the economy of scales really
impacts the cost (5 MGD vs. 1.2 MGD).

General Manager Watton indicated that, per discussions at CWA, the MBR
process is not much cheaper for the product water. He stated that he was not
certain if this was improving, but his understanding was mainly the land area,
operations and maintenance cost was much less. Sr. Civil Engineer Klaahsen
indicated that the operations and maintenance cost was much less due to the
fact that there was much more automation with an MBR facility.

11



Director Robak inquired if the study would possibly take a look at treating the
effluent water from the Chapman Treatment Plant and treating it at the proposed
MBR plant. Sr. Civil Engineer Klaahsen indicated that, yes, that would also be
part of the study.

A motion was made by Director Croucher, seconded by Director Robak and
carried with the following vote:

Ayes:
Noes:
Abstain:
Absent:

Directors Breitfelder, Croucher, Lopez and Robak
None
None
Director Bonilla

to approve committee recommendation with the amendment that the District may
wish to be partner under both location alternatives if it is financially beneficial to
the District.

11. BOARD

a) DISCUSSION OF 2006 BOARD MEETING CALENDAR

There were no changes to the calendar.

b) ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 4085 CONCURRING IN THE NOMINATION
OF MS. JO MACKENZIE TO CALIFORNIA SPECIAL DISTRICT
ASSOCIATION'S BOARD OF DIRECTORS

A motion was made by Director Croucher, seconded by Director Breitfelder and
carried with the following vote:

Ayes:
Noes:
Abstain:
Absent:

Directors Breitfelder, Croucher, Lopez and Robak
None
None
Director Bonilla

to adopt Resolution No. 4085 concurring in the nomination of Ms. Jo MacKenzie
to the California Special District Association's Board of Directors.

c) AUTHORIZE OTAY DELEGATES TO THE SAN DIEGO COUNTY
WATER AUTHORITY TO TAKE AN APPROPRIATE POSITION ON
PROPOSITION 84, CAVES BOND INITIATIVE

General Manager Watton indicated thatthat he had attached to his report some
arguments against Proposition 84 prepared by Olivenhain and arguments in
favor prepared by the Californians for Clean Water, Parks and Coastal
Protection. He stated that the issue was to be agendized by CWA at the end of
July, but he is hearing that it may be delayed. He indicated that Director

12



Croucher and he (Otay WD's CWA delegates) are, at this time, leaning toward
opposing the proposition. He stated, however, there is more information being
developed and he is requesting that the board permit the district's delegates to
decide on a position on Proposition 84 at CWA's meeting scheduled later in the
month.

Director Brietfelder inquired what type of information would change their stance
on the proposition. General Manager Watton indicated that there could be some
developments on how these bonds will be administered relative to the regional
master plans. If Mr. Caves were involved, that could be a benefit and the district
may wish to lean toward a neutral stance. He stated that there could also be
some issues with regard to the Governor's bond that could develop, though he is
not anticipating any, but he wished to request that they have enough flexibility to
consider any changes prior to making their final decision on this matter at CWA's
board meeting. He noted that he is fairly confident that the decision would be to
oppose for the reasons outlined in his staff report. General Manager Watton
indicated that he was not opposed to the bond itself, but to the fact that the public
may believe it is a water bond. He indicated, as a water agency, the district
should make it clear to the public that they are voting on a Park and Recreation
bond rather than a water bond. He indicated that there was billions of dollars in
bond initiatives this year, and he felt that the public may be mislead into thinking
this $5.3 billion bonds was a "water" bond and not be open to approving another
water bond when the Governor's bond is presented for approval.

Director Croucher indicated that there was an ACWA Region 10 meeting at
Vallecitos WD to discuss Proposition 84 on July 6, 2006. He felt that the District
should not determine the district's stance on this issue prior to other major
institutions to whom we align the District with (ie., ACWA). He stated that they
request that they have the opportunity to decide on a position at CWA's board
meeting later this month should the vote on this issue not be postpone.

Director Robak inquired if ACWA is in favor or against Proposition 84 as it was
not clear in the information provided. General Manager Watton indicated that
they had favored the proposition until they met with the Region 10
representatives and other agencies.

He indicated that $1 billion was earmarked for the Integrated Regional Water
Management Plans and $91 million was earmarked for San Diego. He indicated
that Mr. Caves indicates that there was a billion planned for water projects, but
the actual monies were going toward watershed restorations and environmental
issues and water would take a smaller role.

A motion was made by Director Robak, seconded by Director Croucher and
carried with the following vote:

Ayes:
Noes:
Abstain:

Directors Breitfelder, Croucher, Lopez and Robak
None
None

13



Absent: Director Bonilla

to authorize the District's delegates to CWA to take an appropriate position on
Proposition 84, Caves bond initiative.

d) REPORT FROM AD HOC COMMITTEE REGARDING GENERAL
MANAGER SALARY REVIEW

Director Croucher indicated that the committee had reviewed the compensation
of the General Managers for surrounding agencies (Helix WD and Sweetwater
Authority; Padre Dam was not included as their current General Manager has
retired). They also looked at the vehicle allowances provided to the General
Managers. Currently, General Manager Watton receives an $800/month vehicle
allowance which the committee wished to move over into salary.

Director Croucher indicated that the committee recommends that the General
Manager's salary be increased to $188,141.86 to bring his compensation in
parity with the District's surrounding agencies. The increase would include the
vehicle allowance and 3% cost of living (COLA) increase provided to all district
employees.

Director Breitfelder inquired what the General Manager's compensation was at
Sweetwater Authority and Helix. Director Croucher indicated the following:

Sweetwater
Helix

$180,177 plus a bonus of $5,165
$173,250 plus a $10,000 car allowance

He noted that the figure for Sweetwater was last years salary and that they have
not yet negotiated salary increases for this fiscal year. Director Croucher
indicated that if the COLA increase of 3% was not included, General Manager
Watton's salary would be $182,662 which is in-line with neighboring agencies.
He stated that they did check the current COLA rate which was 4.5%, but it was
felt that they should stay with the 3% increase negotiated by employees.
General Manager Watton also agreed.

Director Lopez indicated that the committee looked at what has been
accomplished since General Manager Watton was appointed along with his
experience and felt that they should bring his salary in parity with surrounding
agencies.

Director Breitfelder indicated that he wished a good methodology that was
reasonably consistent with what is being done throughout the organization as a
whole and that he was satisfied.

Director Robak indicated that he was in agreement with the comments that have
been made concerning the General Manager's effectiveness. However, he had
expected a report and not necessarily an action item. He indicated that he would
have liked to see a spreadsheet and a little more detail. He stated that he did not

14



doubt the figures the committee reviewed, but he was only expecting an update
and did not expect to vote on this issue. He did not disagree, but was not
prepared to vote at this time.

Director Breitfelder indicated that he felt that this was a reasonable request.

Director Croucher indicated that by putting the vote off, he did not want any
Gonfusion as to the board's support for the General Manager. He stated that the
committee's recommendation concerning the General Manager's salary was
based on fact and he felt that it was important that the board not table this item to
the next meeting.

Director Robak indicated that he was not in disagreement, however, he had only
expected a report and had not anticipated on voting on this item. He had
expected that the item would be discussed further in closed session.

It was noted that wages could not be discussed in closed session and the reason
the process seemed a little different from the year before is the General Manager
declined an increase last year. Thus, there was no discussion on the increase.

Director Breitfelder indicated that they felt the committee did a very good job in
reviewing and making recommendation on this issue. He stated that, however,
as part of standard operating procedure, he felt a board member had the right to
request documentation to review the information in advance prior to an important
decision. He stated on this basis alone he is making a motion to table the issue
until the next board meeting.

Vice President Lopez indicated that he would like to see a 5-0 vote on this matter
and would like the President of the board to have an opportunity to vote. He
stated in this respect, he would agree to table this item until the next board
meeting.

A motion was made by Director Breitfelder, seconded by Director Robak and
carried with the following vote:

Ayes:
Noes:
Abstain:
Absent:

Directors Breitfelder, Lopez and Robak
Direct Croucher
None
Director Bonilla

to table this item until the next board meeting.

REPORTS

12. GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT

General Manager Watton indicated that Chief of Operations, Pedro Porras,
accepted the District's award in a ceremony held in Los Angeles from the State

15



of California for excellence in energy savings. He stated that the District was one
of two water district's (EI Dorado MWD) who received the award along with
numerous industrial organizations. He indicated that the award was primarily for
the work operations has done to utilize electrical power off-peak which has saved
millions of kilowatt hours. The program was part of the State of California's plan
to encourage the use of energy during off-peak hours rather than during the day
when energy demand is high.

He noted that the 30" recycled water pipeline, reservoir and pump station project
was on schedule. He also indicated that the Firewise landscape groundbreaking
ceremony held on June 6th was a very nice event and it had brought new people
to the garden. He stated that the San Miguel Fire Consolidated District had
obtained Prop 50 grant funding for the new firewise landscape and he felt the
new display would be useful to the community.

He indicated that at the May 30, 2006 Budget Workshop, the board had a
number of questions. He stated that a document has been attached to his report
responding to the board's questions. He noted that if the board had questions
after reading the attachment, to please contact him and staff would be happy to
provide any additional information the board may require.

He noted that the Interactive Voice Response system would be coming on line
soon. It was verified that a caller could always default to a live operator
whenever they wish to.

General Manager Watton indicated that staff will be preparing a Request for
Proposal (RFP) for a financial advisor to assist the district with its pending debt
issuance. He stated that the district would be working with the rating agencies to
provide them a very good understanding of what the District does, its strengths
and the community that it serves, with the idea that it would help improve our
credit rating and save the district money on the bond issuance.

He also shared that the District had a pre-proposal meeting on June 8, 2006 for
the 36" pipeline project which received an excellent response. He lastly noted an
update on the Jamul Indian Village (JIV). He stated that the JIV has submitted
their Sub-Area Master Plan for the casino development and have distributed a
notice to the residents of Jamul of the Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the
project. He stated a copy of the EIR is attached to his report.

Director Robak inquired if there was a difference between a tribal EIR versus a
regular EIR that the District would prepare. General Manager Watton indicated
that it is the same format, but under the autonomy of the Indian government, they
can set up their own EPA and issue their own environmental impact statements.
He noted that they are guided by the EPA, but they can set up their own Jamul
Indian Village EPA which is what they will be doing. He stated that this was very
common among the Indian nations.

16



He noted that Brandon DiPietro was awarded an On-the-Spot Award of $100 for
freeing a nine year old boy from under a truck following a traffic accident on
Proctor Valley Road in Chula Vista. He indicated that Mr. DiPietro had lifted a
truck off the child with a gate key from his district vehicle. He stated that the child
was severely injured but survived the accident. The District wished to recognize
Mr. DiPietro's willingness to go beyond the call of duty and provide assistance to
the public.

General Manger Watton indicated that the construction on the interconnect with
Helix WD has commenced on Sweetwater Springs Blvd. near Loma Elementary
School. He indicated that the Monte Vista High and Loma Elementary have been
very appreciative that the District delayed construction until the close of the.
school year. He stated that the contractor was doing a good job and was a little
ahead of schedule.

Director Robak inquired if the District was continuing to move forward with the
annexation of the balance of the Monte Vista High School site from Helix WD.
General Manager Watton indicated that it was. Chief of Development Services
Rod Posada indicated that Monte Vista has submitted their official request for
annexation to the District. LAFCO must approve the annexation and staff
anticipates forwarding the annexation for board approval in either August or
September 2006.

13. SAN DIEGO COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY UPDATE

Director Croucher indicated that CWA postponed the EIR report for the Carlsbad
desalination plant. He noted that the budget increase of $1.28 million has been
transferred into the budget for the water conservation programs. He indicated
that the funds were transferred from reserves.

He stated that the Mission Hills pipeline break repair cost was $3.5 million. He
indicated that this figure does not include the water lost from the break. He
stated that the demand on the Skinner Water Treatment Plant has gone over
100% production capacity a couple of times in the last month. He stated that this
shows the importance for the District to pursue additional resources through
agreements with the City of San Diego, Helix WD, Padre MWD and Sweetwater
Authority as it will only get worse. He stated that Mr. Ben Haddad will be retiring
from the CWA board and that a decision was made in the All American Canal
Lining project litigation in favor of CWA with no injunctions. A report should be
forwarded by CWA some time soon.

Director Robak inquired when construction would commence on the lining
project. General Manager Watton indicated that the 110 is set to award the
contract this month and expect that construction would begin in October.

14. DIRECTORS' REPORTS/REQUESTS

17



Director Robak thanked staff, in particular Communications Officer Armando
Buelna, who were involved in the 50th Anniversary Open House held on June 17,
2006. He stated that it had gone very well and the people who attended from the
community seemed to be very pleased with what the District had shared with
them.

He also shared that he along with representatives from the WCG met with
Sweetwater Authority to discuss their joining the JPA. He stated that the matter
is expected to go before their committee and board this month and that we
should hear soon the outcome of discussions.

He thanked staff for the implementation of the Blue Cross Health Care program.
He indicated that he had requested in past a quarterly report on the District's
consultants and their fees and a quarterly report on legal matters and fees for on
going matters. He asked if staff might focus on providing these reports at the
end of each quarter and that he would very much appreciate it.

Director Lopez thanked General Manger Watton for the good work that he is
accomplishing at the District. He stated that he also appreciated his approach in
working with the directors.

15. ADJOURNMENT

With no further business to come before the Board, Vice President Lopez
adjourned the meeting at 5:48 p.m.

President

ATTEST:

District Secretary

18



AGENDA ITEM 4
MINUTES OF THE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING
OTAY WATER DISTRICT

June 7,2006

1. The meeting was called to order by President Bonilla at 3:31 p.m.

2. ROLL CALL

Directors Present: Bonilla, Croucher, Breitfelder, Lopez and Robak

Staff Present: General Manager Mark Watton, Asst. GM Administration
and Finance German Alvarez, Asst. GM Engineering and
Water Operations Manny Magana, General Counsel Yuri
Calderon, Chief of Information Technology Geoff Stevens,
Chief Financial Officer Joe Beachem, Chief of Engineering
Mehdi Arbabian, Chief of Operations Pedro Porras, Chief
of Development Services Rod Posada, Chief of
Administration Rom Sarno, District Secretary Susan Cruz
and others per attached list.

3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

A motion was made by Director Breitfelder, seconded by Director Lopez and
carried with the following vote:

Ayes:
Noes:
Abstain:
Absent:

Directors Bonilla, Breitfelder, Croucher, Lopez and Robak
None
None
None

to approve the agenda.

5. SPECIAL ORDERS OF THE DAY

a) PRESENTATION OF OTAY WATER DISTRICTS SCHOLARSHIP
AWARD

Director Croucher presented the District's $1,000 scholarship award to Mr.
Michael Ramirez, a student from Monte Vista High School. He stated that the
scholarship was awarded once a year to a student within the District's service
area who is selected based on an essay they submit on how special districts
serve the community and their importance to the community. Director Croucher
congratulated Mr. Ramirez and indicated that Mr. Ramirez planned on attending
UCSD where he will major in biology.

1



Mr. Ramirez indicated that he was happy to receive the scholarship as it will
certainly help him with his school expenses.

6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF MAY 3,2006

Director Breitfelder indicated that he had wished to clarify his comments as he
was not very clear on the information concerning elections that he wished
published for the public. He asked that the first full paragraph on page 12 of the
May 3 minutes be amended as follows:

He indicated that he wished to advise the public that the position of
director was an elected position, indicate when they could file to run for a
seat on the board, and a post a map of the District and the division
boundaries on the District's V'lebsite "Pipeline" newsletter.

A motion was made by Director Croucher, seconded by Director Lopez and
carried with the following vote:

Ayes:
Noes:
Abstain:
Absent:

Directors Bonilla, Breitfelder, Croucher, Lopez and Robak
None
None
None

to approve the minutes of the regular board meeting of May 3, 2006 as amended.

7. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - OPPORTUNITY FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC
TO SPEAK TO THE BOARD ON ANY SUBJECT MATTER WITHIN THE
BOARD'S JURISDICTION BUT NOT AN ITEM ON TODAY'S AGENDA

No one wished to be heard.

CONSENT CALENDAR

8. ITEMS TO BE ACTED UPON WITHOUT DISCUSSION, UNLESS A REQUEST
IS MADE BY A MEMBER OF THE BOARD OR THE PUBLIC TO DISCUSS A
PARTICULAR ITEM:

A motion was made by Director Croucher, seconded by Director Breitfelder and
carried with the following vote:

Ayes:
Noes:
Abstain:
Absent:

Directors Bonilla, Breitfelder, Croucher, Lopez and Robak
None
None
None

to approve the following consent calendar items.

2



a) APPROVE A REIMBURSEMENT AGREEMENT WITH MCMiLLIN
ROLLING HILLS RANCH, LLC, AS THE SUCCESSOR IN INTEREST
(PACIFIC BAY HOMES), FOR CIP NO. W081 IN THE AMOUNT OF
$298,192.13

b) AWARD A PROFESSIONAL ON-CALL ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES
CONTRACT TO MOONEY, JONES & STOKES FOR AN AMOUNT NOT
TO EXCEED $100,000 FOR FISCAL YEAR 2007

c) APPROVE FIVE HUMAN RESOURCES POLICIES, PROCEDURES AND
PROGRAMS AND ADOPT RESOLUTION NO. 4081 TO REVISE THE
RECRUITMENT AND SELECTION POLICY, EMPLOYMENT BOARD
POLICY NO. 24, AND REPEAL APPOINTMENT OF TEMPORARY AND
CONTRACT EMPLOYEES BOARD POLICY NO. 36

Director Robak inquired with regard to Item 8b, the on-call environmental
services contract, if the district had recently approved a yearly contract with the
same firm. General Manager Watton indicated that the district had done so and
this was an extension of the existing contract. Chief of Development Services
indicated that the board had approved last year an option for staff to extend the
contract for another year if they were in good standing with the District.

A motion was made by Director Croucher, seconded by Director Breitfelder and
carried with the following vote:

Ayes:
Noes:
Abstain:
Absent:

Directors Bonilla, Breitfelder, Croucher, Lopez and Robak
None
None
None

to approve the consent calendar items.

INFORMATION / ACTION ITEMS

9. ENGINEERING AND WATER OPEATIONS

a) CIP UPDATE REPORT FOR THE 3rd QUARTER OF FISCAL YEAR 2006

Engineering Manager Ron Ripperger indicated that staff had prepared a six-year
rolling CIP at the end of fiscal year 2005. The CIP report contains information
about budget, sources and allocations of funds, project costs, locations,
descriptions, justifications and schedules of the projects within the six-year rolling
CIP.

He stated that the approved budget for the fiscal year 2006 budget consisted of
101 projects that total $36 million. He stated that the projects are broken down
into four categories:

3



• Capital Facilities
• Developer Reimbursement
• Maintenance
• Capital purchase

Total:

$25.6 million
$ 5.9 million
$ 1.8 million
$ 2.7 million

$ 36 million

Engineering Manager Ripperger indicated that expenditures through the end of
the 3rd Quarter totaled approximately $24.5 million which is 92% of forecasted
expenditures through the third quarter. He stated that the overall expenditures to
date are above the yearly targeted goal of 70 to 80 percent of planned
expenditures. He presented a slide with a map showing the location of the
district's projects and their status. He reviewed the status of various flagship
projects (see attached copy of presentation).

He also reviewed the status of consultant contracts and indicated that change
orders are at a negative 1.1 % (-$478,582) dropping the original construction
contract total for the fiscal year from $43,845,028 to $43,337,426. He stated
overall, the district has spent approximately 68% of the total expenditures
planned for fiscal year 2006.

General Manager Watton added that the District is on target to meet the planned
expenditures of $36 million by fiscal year-end.

10. ADMINISTRATION AND FINANCE

a) PRESENTATION OF BOARD OF DIRECTOR'S EXPENSES FOR 3RD

QUARTER OF FISCAL YEAR 2006

Finance Supervisor Sean Prendergast indicated that Board of Directors Policy 8
requires that staff present the expenses and per diems for the board members on
a quarterly basis. He indicated that this item was also reviewed by the Finance
and Administration Committee at a meeting held on May 24, 2006. He presented
slides showing in detail each director's expenses for the third quarter of fiscal
year 2006 (January to March 2006) and total expenses for each. He indicated
that the total board of director expenses and per diems for the third quarter of
fiscal year 2006 was $8,592.93 and fiscal year to date was $21,875.21. Finance
Supervisor Sean Prendergast also shared that staff projects that total Directors'
expenses through the end of the fiscal year would total approximately $28,604.

Director Breitfelder noted meetings listed on Directors per-diem forms which
were attended, but were not requested for a reimbursement. He indicated that
he felt the meetings were all in the performance of duty and led to Directors
becoming stronger and a more valuable asset to the District and should. merit
compensation. He stated that he felt that it would be appropriate for the board to
have an explicit understanding that meetings attended consequent to a director's
role, either as an elected official or appointee of the board, should be applicable

4



under Policy 8, Directors Compensation, Reimbursement of Expenses and
Group Insurance Benefits. He stated that alternates are necessary and valuable.
However, because they do not attend the meetings regularly, they do not have
the background or relationships when they are needed to attend. He indicated
that he felt that it would add an element of balance if Policy 8 allowed/supported
a stipend for alternates to attend such meetings. He stated that he felt that the
District would benefit by putting such a strategy in place.

Director Robak indicated that he and President Bonilla have discussed Policy 8
and per diems and they had agreed that the board had a policy and they would
work within the policy. He indicated that the policy would be agendized for
discussion at the board retreat to be scheduled later this year.

Director Breitfelder indicated that this discussion was not about changing Policy
8, but rather their understanding of the policy and what their consensus was as a
board.

General Counsel Calderon indicated that Policy 8 is very specific on this issue
and if there will be changes along the lines of the discussion today, the policy
would need to be taken up as a separate item on the agenda to adopt revisions
to the policy. He stated that the President has the discretion to pre-approve
stipends for meetings that are outside those designated in the Policy. He stated
that if the board wished to change that authority or broaden the types of meetings
that would be pre-approved under the policy, then this would require a change to
the policy.

Director Croucher indicated that he wished to acknowledge that the Directors
expenses and per-diems for this fiscal year, if it comes in as projected at
approximately $28,000, would be the lowest amount over the last 10 years.

b) APPROVE ISSUING A PURCHASE ORDER TO LOGICALIS FOR
$385,000 TO COVER THE COSTS OF UPGRADING THE DISTRICTS
DATA CENTER

Chief Information Officer Geoff Stevens indicated that the existing data center is
at the end of its useful life and must be replaced. He stated that staff will also
take this opportunity to create a redundant system (a production and test
system). He stated that by having redundant systems, it would allow staff to do
full testing during the day. He stated that if the production system failed, it would
fail over to the redundant system. He stated that another advantage of a
redundant system is that staff can test new applications or new releases of
enterprise software on one system, while running production on the other
system. He stated that there are different levels of testing: 1) unit testing where
the application is tested; and 2) regression testing where users are hitting the
application at the same time. This would provide the District an industry standard
database structure and would also improve the reliability of the data center and
allows staff to provide reliable 7/24 support.

5



He noted that the hardware for this project was competitively bid and the firm
selected was the lowest responsive bidder. He stated that the project would take
approximately two to three months to implement. He stated the design and
quality of the equipment has been improved and the number of servers have
been reduced through consolidation.

A motion was made by Director Robak, seconded by Director Lopez and carried
with the following vote:

Ayes:
Noes:
Abstain:
Absent:

Directors Bonilla, Breitfelder, Croucher, Lopez and Robak
None
None
None

to approve staffs' recommendation.

c) APPROVE ISSUING PURCHASE ORDERS TO: 1) SOFTCHOICE FOR
$315,000 FOR A THREE YEAR ENTERPRISE AGREEMENT FOR ALL
MICROSOFT SOFTWARE LICENSES; 2) EDEN SYSTEMS FOR
REGULAR MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT FOR $105,000; 3) AT&T /

'SBC FOR $88,000 FOR COMMUNICATIONS SERVICES; AND 4)
NETWORK INSIGHT FOR $119,000 FOR 7/24 NETWORK
MONITORING SERVICES AND DATA CENTER SERVICES

Chief Information Officer Stevens indicated that the Asst. GM of their
department asked that IT sync contracts required to maintain the data center with
the fiscal year. He stated that staff reviewed all data center contracts and
identified four contracts that exceeded the General Manager's authority. These
contracts are being presented for the board's approval:

• Three-year Microsoft Software Agreement (Softchoice)
- Cost of $315,000 and would cover all Microsoft software
- The agreement would save the District $224,000 over the next three

years.
- The District also received a credit of $70,000 for purchasing last year

200 licenses of an individual software
• Eden Systems Maintenance Agreement:

- Cost of $1 05,000/year and will cover enterprise software (Financial,
Customer Information, Permitting and Human Resources)

• AT&T / SBC Telecommunications Services
- Cost of $88,000 covers AT&T, SBC, T1 and Cell Phone Support

• Network Insight for DataCenter Monitoring and Technical Services
- Cost of $119,000/year and would provide 7/24 hour monitoring of the

District's data center and technical consulting services for assistance in
maintaining the network technical environment.

He indicated that if the board approves these contracts, the renewal/expiration
dates will be in-line with the fiscal year.

6



A motion was made by Director Robak, seconded by Director Breitfelder and
carried with the following vote:

Ayes:
Noes:
Abstain:
Absent:

Directors Bonilla, Breitfelder, Croucher, Lopez and Robak
None
None
None

to approve staffs' recommendation.

d) APPROVE ISSUING PURCHASE ORDERS TO GTC SYSTEMS, INC.
FOR TABLET PC HARDWARE FOR $99,000 AND DCSE, INC. FOR
SOFTWARE LICENSES IN THE AMOUNT OF $84,000 TO SUPPORT
TABLET PC's

Chief Information Officer Stevens indicated that the District has implemented its
Infrastructure Management System which brings Work Orders to the operations
staff in the field. He stated a major component of this system is the mobile
wireless Tablet PC which brings the Work Order System into the field. He stated
that Tablet PC will allow field staff to utilize GIS maps, Engineering As Builts,
SCADA, Customer Information as well as email. He noted that there was a lot of
security built into the Tablet PC and they have been password protected. He
indicated that the major corporate applications are made available from a "Cytrix"
environment which only transmits a "picture" of the data stored in our data center.
He stated, thus, there is no actual data stored on the Tablet PCs. If one of the
units was stolen or lost, there would be no chance of loosing customer data. He
stated the Tablet PC's would increase the productivity of the field workers and
would allow the District to start to automate the business processes in the field.

He stated that staff still needs to work on areas where staff may have trouble
receiving the on-line signal in the field. Currently, if a user cannot reach the on
line data, they can access the second set of applications available on the tablet
itself which includes the GIS maps and engineering as-builts. The user can also
make route changes on the PC and forward the changes to the "home" base
once they receive a signal and update the District's data.

He indicated that 39 Tablet PC's have been ordered and would cover all the
needs in operations, customer service and meet some of the needs of
Engineering. Two Tablets will also be utilized in the Information Technology
Department. He stated that as the technology is rolled out in Development
Services, more Tablet PC's may be ordered.

Chief Information Officer Stevens also shared that the units come with a 3-year
"bumper to bumper" warrantee. Should something happen to a tablet, it would
be replaced at no charge. He noted that the units have been field tested by
operations and they have approved the selection of the chosen tablet.

7



Director Robak indicated that the Finance and Administration Committee
reviewed this item at their meeting held on May 24, 2006. He stated that it was
reviewed in detail and the tablets would provide efficiency and save money which
is a win-win situation. He indicated that he was please to hear that the
operations staff had road tested the tablets and were very happy with them and
that they are looking forward to utilizing them in the field.

A motion was made by Director Robak, seconded by Director Croucher and
carried with the following vote:

Ayes:
Noes:
Abstain:
Absent:

Directors Bonilla, Breitfelder, Croucher, Lopez and Robak
None
None
None

to approve staffs' recommendation.

11. BOARD

a) DISCUSSION OF 2006 BOARD MEETING CALENDAR

There were no changes to the calendar.

REPORTS

12. GENERAL MANAGER'S REPORT

General Manager Watton indicated that the District has had discussions with the
Jamul Indian Village regarding the District possibly handling the wastewater from
their proposed casino. He stated that the District presented them some
alternatives and they would be speaking with their financing group and getting
back to the district. He noted that their request was being handled similar to
other customers with the same request.

He indicated with regard to the Jamul property which had fallen out of escrow
that the District has received the forfeited deposit from the potential buyers and it
was officially out of escrow. The property is now unencumbered and staff will be
reviewing current market conditions and next steps with the property.

General Manager Watton noted that the Special District Risk Management
Authority had contracted an independent contractor to conduct an audit of the
District's safety and liability management programs. He stated that during the
contractors visit he had commented that the District was one of the top agencies
that he has reviewed. The contractor indicated that he cannot indicate this in his
report (the District will receive a "standard" report), but he wished to note to
management that staff was doing an outstanding job with its safety, construction
and office practices.

8



General Manager Watton indicated that the bank change over was almost
complete. He stated that staff was happy with Union Bank. He noted that staff
has asked the District's auditors to review the legitimacy of the backdated
Workers' Compensation billing and the auditors indicated that the bills were
legitimate. He indicated that staff is very happy with the District new Workers'
Compensation Carrier (SDRMA) as they are very interactive with the District and
work with staff to resolve claims. He stated that it is very clear that changing
insurance carriers was a great move for the District, not only financially, but
operationally as well.

He also shared that the District hosted a WateReuse meeting (May 17, 2006)
and shared updates on the District's projects. He stated that the meeting went
very well and was well attended.

He indicated that the City of San Diego has submitted the Principles of
Understanding for the planned pump station at the city's Alvarado WTP. He
indicated that this is an additional possible source of treated water from the city
from either their Alvarado WTP or Miramar. He indicated that this was a very key
project to our treated water reliability and staff will be working on this item over
the next year. He noted that monies have been included in the budget for this
project.

He noted that the Sweetwater Springs Interconnect construction has
commenced. He stated that it was requested by Directors Croucher and Robak
that the construction be delayed until the close of the school year. He indicated
that this was also another important interconnection project which will provide a
million gallons a day from Helix Water District.

He shared that the 803-4 Reservoir (Vista Grande) is on-line and has been filled.
He stated that there is some site work that needs to be finished, but it is
essentially a completed and an accepted project. He stated that the reservoir
also meets the deficit the District had in the area for fire fighting.

Director Robak noted that the General Manager's report states that three
managers attended the East County Supervisor's Academy. He asked who
hosts the training academy. General Manager Watton indicated that the Centre
for Organization Effectiveness provides the training. Human Resources Manager
Kelli Williamson indicated that a sub-committee of the Water Utilities Human
Resources Committee coordinates the training events and that this particular
training was hosted on by Helix Water District. Helix invited other agencies
within the county to participate and Otay sent approximately eight employees to
attend the training. She stated that the District has sent approximately 25
employees throughout the year to various training events held by this
organization. General Manager Watton indicated that feedback has been very
positive on the trainers and materials.

13. SAN DIEGO COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY UPDATE

9



Director Croucher indicated that the additional funding (approximately $700,000)
to the Water Conservation budget was approved by CWA's board. He stated the
funding includes $25,000 to help off-set schools costs for conservation classes
and $75,000 for artificial turf programs. They are also discussing ending the low
flush toilet voucher program as the only toilet available on the market is the low
flush toilets. General Manger Watton indicated that this was adequate for this
year, but they hope to do more next year.

Director Croucher indicated that the two water audits that Otay conducted for the
correctional facilities in the Otay Mesa area were recognized as very successful.
He noted that the success of such audits were important for conservation,
however, it does cost the District money in lost water sales. He stated the more
we conserve the less we have in sales. He indicated that though the conserved
water is a benefit, he felt that the burden of the conservation program should be
shared throughout the county and the agencies really need to invest in the water
conservation efforts along with Otay.

He indicated with regard to the Caves initiative, though it is publicized as a water
bond, most of the funding would go to parks and recreation. He indicated that
they will be reviewing in the next month how the initiative would affect the water
agencies and how much monies they can expect to receive through the initiative.
He noted that desalination was discussed in closed session and they expect to
see some activity on this issue in the next couple months. He indicated that the
water line break in the Mission Hills area has been repaired, however, they have
noticed another area which is showing signs of weakening and CWA may need
to shutdown more of the lines. He stated that the agreements that staff has with
the City of San Diego and Helix will serve the district well during the shutdowns
and he congratulated staff on their work in securing such agreements. He lastly
noted that the CWA committee which wa tasked with reviewing project cost
overruns will be meeting again next month and hopefully he will have information
to report on their recommendations on how to prevent further significant cost
overruns.

14. DIRECTORS' REPORTS/REQUESTS

Director Breitfelder commended Ortiz construction on their good work on the 36"
recycled pipeline project. He indicated they are obviously doing a terrific job in a
number of ways which has included keeping the obstruction of traffic within his
neighborhood to a minimal and he wished note that he and his neighbors greatly
appreciate this. He shared that though there are some absentee ballots to be
counted, it appears that Joel Anderson and Mary Salas have been elected to
State Legislature. He stated that this is certainly a big deal as there will be
additional understanding of special district and infrastructure in the legislature.
He stated that he wished to commend Sweetwater Authority for their foresight in
employing an individual who has declared candidacy for office. He stated that he
felt that it was a shrewd move on their part and their insight deserves some
recognition. He indicated that at the last meeting, he concluded that there was a
communication gap with regard to committees. He stated that he wished to

10



clarify for the record that he believes that the primary mission of the committees
are to review action items in detail and make recommendation to the board as a
whole to vote "yes" or "no" on staff recommendations. He wished to convey that
in the future, he would very much like to see those explicit recommendations for
either a "yes" or "no" vote from all committees on action items. He stated that he
is not expressing dissatisfaction with the current process, he just wished to
clarify.

Director Breitfelder also indicated that he attended the Council of Water Utilities
and CSDA meetings. He stated that the opinion among most agencies is to
move away from scholarships and more toward internship programs. He stated
that he would like to see the San Diego Region Water/Wastewater Internship
Program through CWA handled on a bigger scale with more participation from
the South Bay educational community. He indicated the Conservation Action
Committee discussions were centered on the upcoming Summit. He stated that
there has been discussion that legislation could be adopted by the County of
Supervisors regarding conservation that would apply countywide. He stated that
apparently it does not work that way and their jurisdiction would not apply to all
municipalities, thus, the legislation will need to be taken to one city at a time. He
also noted that he met with Mayor Padilla and they discussed the high level of
staff cooperation between the City of Chula Vista and the District. He stated they
also talked about having more communications with the senior staff of the district
and elected officials of the city.

He lastly shared that he participated in a student tour led by the District's Water
Conservation Specialist, Pam Rega. He stated that he was very impressed with
the tour and the information taught and he felt the children would retain much of
what they learned into adulthood. He encouraged the directors to attend the tour
if they have some time.

Director Croucher indicated that he was thanked by Monte Vista High School and
Loma Elementary and believed the District also received a thank you for working
around the schools schedule with regard to the interconnect project with Helix.
He commended staff for working with the schools.

Director Lopez apologized for missing the Finance and Administration Committee
meeting, but was called for duty and could not attend. He also congratulated
Chief Financial Officer Joe Beachem on the birth of his new son.

Director Robak asked that if staff could provide a copy of the CIP report either in
hard or electronic copy for future meetings. He noted that the Spring Garden
Festival event held on May 20, 2006 was very successful. He stated that there
were over 6,000 people in attendance of the festival which is a record for the
event and the Garden has received over $21,000 in sponsorships. He also noted
that the District's Open House was scheduled on June 17 and encouraged
attendance of the event. He stated that there were many events scheduled
which includes a tour of the District Chapman Treatment Plant.

11



Director Robak indicated that they had a meeting with the County in Supervisor
Dianne Jacob's office to discuss recycled water in the Rancho San Diego /
Spring Valley Area. He stated that the discussion received a positive reception
from Supervisor Jacob and CalTrans. He stated that if everything fell into place,
this project would provide a nice opportunity to bring recycled water to the east
county within the district's service area.

Director Croucher noted that KFMB, Channel 8, will be visiting the San Vincente
Pipeline Project and will broadcast the story at 6:00 p.m. this evening and KUSI,
Channel 51, will broadcast their story at 10:00 p.m.

President Bonilla indicated that Otay Water District hosted the Joint Agency
Board meeting on May 5,2006. He stated that Helix WD, Sweetwater Authority,
Padre Dam MWD, Lakeside WD and Riverview WD attended. He reviewed the
various presentations made at the meeting by the various agencies. He stated
that on May 11, 2006 he and staff met with the Jamul Indian Village
representatives and discussed the district possibly handling the wastewater or
recycled water from their proposed casino and the various options available in
the handling of that water. On May 17, 2006 he met with General Manager
Watton to discuss committee agenda items that would be reviewed during the
month of May. He stated that on May 18, 2006 he attended with directors and
staff the 980-2 Pump Station Dedication Ceremony and the Chula Vista Chamber
Mixer. He stated it was a successful event and congratulated Communications
Officer Armando Buelna for his work on the event. President Bonilla indicated
that on May 26, 2006 General Manager Watton, General Counsel Calderon and
he met with the Salt Creek Golf Course representatives and discussed their
proposal. He stated that they presented what they felt the performance of the
golf course may be with or without the proposed clubhouse. They also discussed
the potential for residential development around the golf course. He stated that
on May 30, 2006 he met with General Manager Watton and General Counsel
Yuri Calderon to discuss the agenda matters for the June 7, 2006 board meeting
and the Special Board meeting to discuss the Fiscal Year 2007 budget. He
indicated that on June 5, 2006 he met with Director Breitfelder and discussed
Board Policy 8 and the staff report presented today with regard to the Directors'
expense projection through the end of the fiscal year. He asked if staff could
explain how the projections were determined, specifically his (President Bonilla's)
expense projection.

Chief Financial Officer Joe Beachem indicated that typically to project out
expenses for the year, accounting would divide the total expense by the current
number of months passed in the fiscal year and multiply it by 12 to project the
total expense for the year. He stated that in President Bonilla's case, it was felt
that this typical projection model would not fit his situation as President Bonilla
does not submit expenses. Staff decided to not project out any further expenses
based on his expense history.

Director Breitfelder indicated that he had felt that this was certainly the case and
he appreciated staff explaining the process.

12



President Bonilla indicated that he wished to comment on Board Policy 8 and
that this particular policy has gone through many revisions. He stated that he
wanted to note that the Board had agreed and voted on the policy. He indicated
that it was agreed that until the policy was presented again, all would agree to
follow the policy. He stated that he recommends that the policy be presented at
the next board retreat for discussion.

Director Breitfelder indicated that he felt that the board's basic outlook on the
policy at its core is the same. He stated that he agrees that the board should
follow the policy.

RECESS TO CLOSED SESSION

15. CLOSED SESSION

The board recessed to closed session at 4:30 p.m. to discuss the following item:

a) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANC EVALUATION [GOVERNMENT
CODE §54957.6

TITLE: GENERAL MANAGER

RETURN TO OPEN SESSION

16. REPORT ON ANY ACTIONS TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION. THE BOARD
MAY ALSO TAKE ACTION ON ANY ITEMS POSTED IN CLOSED SESSION

The board reconvened from closed session at 5:48 p.m. and General Counsel
Calderon indicated that no reportable actions were taken in closed session.

17. ADJOURNMENT

With no further business to come before the Board, President Bonilla adjourned
the meeting at 5:48 p.m.

President

ATTEST:

District Secretary

13



AGENDA ITEM 6a

STAFF REPORT

TYPE MEETING:

SUBMITTED BY:

APPROVED BY:
(Chief)

APPROVED BY:
(Asst. GM):

SUBJECT:

Regular Board MEETING DATE: September 6, 2006

David Charles,~ W.O.lG.F. NO: DIV. NO. All
Public Services Manager

Rod Posada, ~~o~
Chief, Engineering

Manny Magana~
Assistant General~anager, Engineering and Operations

Adopt Resolution No.4087 Amending Policy 4 - Quotations for
Fees or Charges

GENERAL MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board adopt Resolution No. 4087 Amending Policy 4 
Quotations for Fees or Charges.

COMMITTEE ACTION:

Please see Attachment A.

PURPOSE:

To amend the requirement of Policy 4 - Quotation for Fees or
Charges, concerning the period of time during which written
quotes are honored. The proposed revisions are intended to
establish that written quotations given for fees and charges
(including annexation fees) shall be firm only within the
calendar quarter within which the quote is given.

ANALYSIS:

It is District practice to adjust capacity fees quarterly in
January, April, July, and October ·of each year to reflect
fluctuation in construction costs as measured by the Engineering
News Record Construction Cost Index. It is also District
practice to notify Developers of the quarterly adjustments.
Policy No. 4 was last modified on September 20, 1995. This
Policy currently provides that writen quotations remain in
effect for 30-calendar days from the date the quote is given.



If the 30-day period overlaps two quarters, the capacity fees
are adjusted before developer pays the quoted fees. In this
situation, staff has to manually override the then current
capacity fees already programmed into the system and enter the
quoted capacity fees. This practice is time-consuming and may
lead to errors because staff must remember to alter the fees in
all parts of the system that have been automatically updated to
the new capacity fees.

Staff is requesting Board consideration to amend Policy No. 4 to
establish a period of time that written quotations for capacity
fees or charges will be valid during either the lesser of (i)
30-calendar days from the date of issuance or (ii) until the end
of the quarter in which the quote is given. All new quotation
forms will clearly state that OWD capacity fees and charges will
be adjusted as necessary to comply with any increase or decrease
in meter fees at time of purchase This practice is very
similar to County Water Authority's existing policy concerning
adjustment of their capacity fee increases.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None.

STRATEGIC GOAL:

None.

LEGAL IMPACT:

None

DC/RP:vm

Attachments:
A. Committee Action
B Policy 4 (Final & Strikethrough)
C. Resolution No. 4087
P: \Public-s\STAFF REPORTS\BD 09-06-06, Amendment to Policy q - Staff Report (DCI.doc

2



PROJECT:

ATTACHMENT A

[sc::(jl'I:ISIEC,'iIIIIt''ipR:OJ-II=E:ICCTT::rAA2dl~0;~p;;t~·········RR.~e·;s;~0;ll:u;;t-ti ;··~0;;n~iN00~:. L4iiO)i8~"'77iA:~m;~e~n;~;d~ii';;n"~g;it~;0;pp;20;jl::iC;c~··y; 44.··········~~······,Q8·~u··~01·tt~·~a~it~··.li' o~;;n s
for Fees or Charges
W.O. No.

COMMITTEE ACTION:

The Finance and Administration Committee reviewed this item
at a meeting held on August 21, 2006. The following
comments were made:

• District fees are adjusted once a quarter in the
months of January, April, July and October per the
Engineering News Records Construction Cost Index. On
the 1st of these months, the system automatically
adjusts fees and charges;

• Currently, quotes are honored 30-days from the date
that they are written. If a quote is valid into the
next quarter, the fees and charges in the system have
been updated so staff would need to manually adjust
each fee and charge throughout the system. This could
cause errors and also causes issues in the finance
side as the actual fee paid must be tracked;

• The committee discussed that the system could be
changed, however, the District is trying to get away
from customizing programs. It was felt that it is
better to change business practices rather than
customize systems for each situation. It was also
noted that, while there were not many of these
situations (on average about four a year), it is
something that could be missed.

• It was also discussed that developers are forwarded
advanced notice of the new fees prior to the change
each quarter;

• The committee requested that staff also notify
developers of new policy change on quotes.

3



Upon completion of the discussion, the Committee supported
staff's recommendation and forwarding to the Board of Directors
on the consent calendar.

4



ATTACHMENT B
I

OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

I Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

I
QUOTATIONS FOR FEES OR CHARGES 04 10/15/84 9/20/95

9/6/06

Purpose.---=

To provide that quotations given for fees and charges (including
annexation fees) shall be firm for a fixed period of time
following the date of issuance.

Background

The District frequently receives requests for information
regarding fees or charges for (i) annexation of land to the
District or to an Improvement District, or (ii) connection to
District facilities. On occasion, after giving a quotation, the
fees or charges have been increased before the property owner or
developer could complete arrangements for financing. This created
an unforeseen hardship.

Policy.

Responses to requests for information concerning fees or charges
will be furnished by the District in writing.

The amount of such fees, or charges shall be determined in
accordance with District Ordinances and District Policies.

Written quotations furnished by the District for fees or charges
shall remain in effect for the lesser of (i) a period of 30~

calendar days from the date of the written quote, or (ii) until
the end of the calendar guarter within which the gyote is
issuedance _by the District. Written quotations shall advise the
customer of any potential increase in the fees or charges quoted
which are expected to occur within the 30-day period. Verbal
quotations shall immediately be confirmed in writing by Staff.

Page 1 of 1



ATTACHMENT B

OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

QUOTATIONS FOR FEES OR CHARGES 04 10/15/84 9/6/06

Purpose.

To provide that quotations given for fees and charges (including
annexation fees) shall be firm for a fixed period of time
following the date of issuance.

Background.

The District frequently receives requests for information
regarding fees or charges for (i) annexation of land to the
District or to an Improvement District, or (ii) connection to
District facilities. On occasion, after giving a quotation, the
fees or charges have been increased before the property owner or
developer could complete arrangements for financing. This created
an unforeseen hardship.

Policy.

Responses to requests for information concerning fees or charges
will be furnished by the District in writing.

The amount of such fees, or charges shall be determined in
accordance with District Ordinances and District Policies.

Written quotations furnished by the District for fees or charges
shall remain in effect for the lesser of (i) a period of 30
calendar days from the date of the written quote, or (ii) until
the end of the calendar quarter within which the quote is issued
by the District. Written quotations shall advise the customer of
any potential increase in the fees or charges quoted which are
expected to occur within the 30-day period. Verbal quotations
shall immediately be confirmed in writing by Staff.

Page 1 of 1



Attachment C

RESOLUTION NO. 4087

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE
OTAY WATER DISTRICT

APPROVING AMENDMENTS TO POLICY 4/ QUOTATIONS
FOR FEES AND CHARGES

WHEREAS/ the District staff routinely evaluates and makes

recommendations to update and revise Board policies/ in order to

ensure that the policies are maintained to reflect current

information/ and

WHEREAS/ Policy Number 4/ Quotations for Fees and Charges/

was last revised on September 20/ 1995/ and

WHEREAS/ the Development Services staff evaluated Board of

Directors Policy Number 4, Quotations for Fees and Charges, and

identified the need to update the policy with regard to the

period of time during which written quotes are honored.

NOW/ THEREFORE/ BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Directors of

the Otay Water District that Board of Directors Policy 4/

Quotations for Fees and Charges/ be amended to explain the

period of time during which written quotes will be honored/ and

that the language in the policy be amended as follows:

Policy:

Written quotations furnished by the District for fees or
charges shall remain in effect for the lesser of (i) a
period of 30-calendar days from the date of the written
quote/ or (ii) until the end of the calendar quarter within
which the quote is issued by the District. Written
quotations shall advise the customer of any potential

1



Attachment C

increase in the fees or charges quoted which are expected
to occur within the 30-day period. verbal quotations shall
immediately be confirmed in writing by Staff.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of

the Otay Water District at a regular meeting held this 6th of

September 2006.

President

ATTEST:

Secretary

2



AGENDA ITEM 6b

TYPE MEETING: Regular Board

SUBMITTED BY: Mark Watton,

General Manager

APPROVED BY:
(Chief)

APPROVED BY:
(Ass!. GM):

STAFF REPORT

MEETING DATE:

W.O./G.F. NO:

September 6, 2006

DIV. NO.

SUBJECT: Water Conseration Garden Board Secretary Support

GENERAL MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board approve a one time payment of $5,000 to the Water
Conservation Garden (WCG) to provide funding for Board Secretary
support.

COMMITTEE ACTION:

Please see Attachment A.

PURPOSE:

To present for board consideration the approval of a one time
payment of $5,000 to the Water Conservation Garden to provide
funding for Board Secretary support.

ANALYSIS:

The WCG has historically been supported financially and by the
staff of the Otay Water District and Helix Water District. Over
the years, this financial and staff support has been reduced to
an annual contribution of $75,000 from Otay WD and Helix WD with
Helix maintaining the logistical and staff support for the Board
Secretary function.

Helix indicates that they desire to terminate their support of
the board secretary function to the WCG. The WCG approached the
Otay WD and inquired if it intended to take over this function
due to the fact that a District board member, Mark Robak, is the
current President of the WCG. Otay does not have staff
resources to support this function. In discussions with Ms.
Eberhardt, it is proposed that Otay WD provide a one~time

payment of $5000 to the WCG to retain support for the board
secretary function. This will mitigate the cost of the WCG



taking on this duty and allow a smooth budget transition. It
will also assist the WCG in becoming more self-supporting It
is anticipated that in future budget years, the WCG will fully
fund this activity

FISCAL IMPACT:

This item was not budgeted in the FY07 operating budget. The
District anticipates savings in the General Manager's "Outside
Services" and Administration's "Travel" account that will offset
this expenditure.



ATTACHMENT A

SUBJECT/PROJECT: Water Conservation Garden Board Secretary Support

COMMITTEE ACTION:

The Finance and Administration Committee reviewed this item at a
meeting held on August 21, 2006. The following comments were
made:

• The Water Conservation Garden (WCG) Board Secretary
function is generally shared from agency to agency based
on which agency's director is the current president of the
WCG;

• Director Robak is the current President of the WCG and he
has been approached by the garden if the Otay WD would be
providing the Board Secretary support as Helix WD
indicated that they desire to terminate their support of
this function on November 1, 2006;

• Otay WD does not have the personnel resources to support
this function and in discussion with Ms. Marty Eberhardt,
the Otay WD proposed that the District provide a one-time
payment of $5,000 to the WCG so they may retain Board
Secretarial support;

• It was discussed that the $5,000 would assist the Garden
with its budget to cover the cost of the board secretary
function. It is anticipated that the WCG will fully fund
this activity in future budget years;

• It was noted that by the WCG taking over this function it
would also help them to become more self-supporting which
is the direction the district would like to see the WCG
move toward;

• It was discussed that Helix WD indicated that their cost
to support this function was much more than $5,000 per
year and this was certainly more cost effective;

Upon completion of the discussion, the Committee supported
staff's recommendation and forwarding to the Board of Directors
on the consent calendar.



STAFF REPORT

AGENDA ITEM 6c

TYPE MEETING:

SUBMITTED BY:

APPROVED BY:

Regular Board AI'~

Armando Buelna,~

Communications Officer

MEETING DATE:

W.O.lG.F. NO:

September 6, 2006

DIV. NO. All

SUBJECT: 2006 Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys

GENERAL MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION:
That the Board of Directors support retaining Rea & Parker
Research and Douglas Coe of the Social Science Research
Laboratory to conduct the 2006 Customer Service, Satisfaction,
and Awareness Surveys.

PURPOSE:
The 2006 Strategic Performance Plan calls for implementing a
standardized potable and recycled water customer survey. It
also emphasized expanding quality control in Finance Customer
Service to ensure outstanding Call Center interaction with
customers. To accomplish these Strategic Plan obj ectives, staff
recommends retaining Rea & Parker Research and Douglas Coe of
the Social Science Research Laboratory to conduct the 2006
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys.

BACKGROUND:
In 2005, the District retained Rea & Parker Research and Douglas
Coe of the Social Science Research Laboratory to perform a
customer survey to establish baselines for assessing overall
customer satisfaction and awareness of District programs and
services. In this survey, customers were called at random from
the District's customer base. The 2006 Strategic Plan envisioned
conducting a follow.-up telephone survey to build upon the 2005
study and inquire into topics not covered in that survey.

The 2006 Strategic Plan also calls for expanding quality control
in the Finance Department with the goal of ensuring quality Call
Center customer service. To address this goal, staff is
recommending a separate element of 2006 study which will include
a survey of customers who have interacted with the District's
Call Center wi thin the past six months. This portion of the
survey will focus specifically on interactions with the Call
Center.



Because these Strategic Plan goals seek to survey different
populations within the District's service area, staff is
recommending that two related but separate surveys be conducted.

As noted, Survey I will contact customers at random to assess
general attitudes and opinions about overall awareness and
satisfaction with District programs and services. Survey II, on
the other hand, will only contact those customers who have
called' within the past six months. This survey will focus
primarily on the courtesy, knowledge, and general quality of
service delivered by the District's Call Center.

In accordance with District procedures, staff solicited bid
proposals from ten local and one national research firm to
conduct the surveys. Four responses to the Invitation to Bid
were received. Proposals were received from Godbe Research, Luth
Research, Rea & Parker Research, and Zogby International.

Zogby International was the low bidder at $19,750, followed by
Rea & Parker Research ($27,500), Luth Research ($31,700), and
Godbe Research ($33,520 to $40,485 depending upon the length of
the interview) .

It is important to note that Zogby International did not include
any onsite meetings with staff, board committees, or a site
presentation of the survey findings to the Board of Dir~ctors, ,
though a minimum of three site presentations were specified in
the Invitation to Bid. Zogby International would be available to
meet via teleconference and present the results via video
conference. If an onsite meeting or a presentation were desired,
the District would pay actual travel costs for a polling/
research editor to be present, which they conservatively
estimate at approximately $1,000 per meeting.

Upon review of the four proposals, staff recommends the
selection of Rea & Parker Research in conjunction with the
Social Science Research Laboratory to develop and conduct the
surveys. In contrast with Zogby International, Rea & Parker
recommend a minimum of five onsite meetings be held with Dr.
Richard Parker and Douglas Coe and the Otay Water District in
order to develop and finalize the survey instrument, procedures,
and final report format and guidelines.

Staff supports retaining Rea & Parker Research and the Social
Science Research Laboratory based on their expertise, the
timeliness, professionalism, quality of their work, and their



level of personalize service, as well as staff's positive
experience working with this firm on the 2005 study.

Rea & Parker Research and the Social Science Research Laboratory
also have extensive experience performing surveys for public
agencies including the San Diego County Water Authority, local
public water districts, and local government throughout San
Diego County. As noted above, they also conducted the 2005 OWD
customer survey.

FISCAL IMPACT :~_'_"'_:;~~Z7~
,/ ~

The cost of conducting the surveys is $27,500. Due to a broader
scope of work, this is $7,500 more than the approved $20,000
budget (during the development of the scope of work, the project
changed from performing a single survey to conducting two
independent but related surveys) Appropriations of $20,000 is
included in the General Manager's Fiscal 2007 Outside Services
budget (GL 11-1211-5261). The $7,500 will be funded through
savings from public relations, advocacy, consultant services,
and 50 th anniversary programs.

STRATEGIC GOAL:
This project is consistent with the following OWD 2006 Strategic
Plan goals

1.A.1 Implement a standardized Potable and Recycled Water
Customer Survey.
1.A.3 Expand a Quality Control/Audit program to ensure
quality customer service.

LEGAL IMPACT:
None.

Attachments:

A - Commmittee Statement
B - Rea & Parker Research - OWD 2006 Customer Service, Satisfaction, and

Awareness Surveys
C - Invitation to Bid
D - Summary of proposal rankings by panel members



ATTACHMENT A

SUBJECTIPROJECT: 2006 Customer Service, Satisfaction, & Awareness Surveys

COMMITTEE ACTION:

The Communications Committee reviewed this item at a meeting held
on August 8, 2006. The following comments were made:

• The 2006 Customer Survey ·will differ from the survey conducted
In 2005 in that there will be two surveys performed:

o A follow-up survey to build upon the 2005 study and to
inquire into topics not explored in first survey; and

o A survey of customers who have had contact with the
District's Call Center within the past six months.

o The Call Center survey will focus specifically
on feedback concerning customer interaction with the
Call Center.

• Eleven firms were invited to bid and 4 proposals were
received.

• Staff reviewed the proposals and recommends that the District
retain Rea & Parker Research for the following reasons:

o Zogby International was the lowest bidder. However,
their proposal did not include any face-to-face
meetings with staff, board committees, or a
presentation of the survey's findings to the Board,
though a minimum of three site presentations were
specified in the Invitation to Bid;

o Zogby is willing to conduct onsite meetings, however,
the District would have to pay the travel expenses of a
polling/research editor. It is estimated the cost for
each onsite visit is approximately $1,000;

o This could bring their bid to $24,750, which is close
to Rea & Parker Research's bid of $27,500.

o Rea & Parker Research's proposal includes a minimum of
five onsite meetings with principals of the firm to
develop the survey tools and to present survey
findings. Rea & Parker Research also has the advantage
of having knowledge of the previous survey.

o Rea & Parker Research is based in San Diego County and
affiliated with the San Diego State University campus.

o Rea & Parker Research is well respected in San Diego
County, very knowledgeable of local water issues,

K:\Customer Survey\Customer Survey Committee Statement 2006.doc



performs high quality work, and the District has a good
working relationship with the firm.

• While the Committee supported retaining Rea & Parker Research,
they also saw advantages to retaining an internationally known
research firm with the reputation of Zogby .

• The Call Center survey's (Survey II) sample size is 200 with a
margin of error of ± 6.9%. It is felt that the sample size
will provide good baseline data (Survey I's sample size is 300
with a margin of error ± 5.7%).

• The follow-up survey will include topics and comments
received from the Board at its meeting held on January 4,
2006, including direction to:

o Survey OWD sewer customers on their thoughts about the
District's sewer ratesj

o Survey customers of their satisfaction of the District
as a whole (i.e., rates, customer service, etc.) j

o Explore customer views of utilizing recycled water for
drinking purposesj

o Explore the variance between CWA and OWD customer's
concerning having heard conservation messages.

• It is expected that the survey questions would be presented to
the Board for review in Octoberj the changes to the survey
questions would be completed in November/December 2006j in
December/January, the survey would be performedj and
February/March, 2007, the results of the survey would be
presented.

NOTE:

Upon completion of the discussion, the Committee supported
staff's recommendation and forwarding to the Board of Directors
on the consent agenda.



Otay Water District
2006 Customer Service,
Satisfaction, Awareness

Surveys

Proposal to

Mr. Armando Buelna
Communications Officer

Otay Water District
2554 Sweetwater Springs

Blvd.
Spring Valley, CA 91978

Prepared by

Rea & Parker Research
P.O. Box 421079

San Diego, CA 92142-1079

858-279-5070
www.rea-parker.com

June 2, 2006



Table of Contents

Proposal Letter

Project Objectives

Qualifications and Related Experience

Qualifications

Experience

References

Resumes

Scope of Services

Proposed Project Schedule

Price and Cost Proposal

Commitment from Rea & Parker Research

ii
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Otay Water District

Page

iii

1

3

3

7

l5

16

26

34

34

34

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006



June 2, 2006

Mr. Armando Buelna
Communications Officer
Otay Water District
2554 Sweetwater Springs Blvd.
Spring Valley, CA

Re: Otay Water District Survey Research Proposal
Survey I: General Customer Survey
Survey II: Customer Service Survey

Dear Mr. Buelna:

Rea & Parker Research is a survey/market research and economic consulting firm based in San
Diego, California, with facilities in Los Angeles and Orange County. It was founded by its
present owners, Louis M. Rea, Ph.D., and Richard A. Parker, Ph.D., in 1984 and has grown into a
well-respected, financially stable, and substantial research organization with clients throughout
the State of California and the Southwest who will attest to the firm's ability to deliver a very high
quality product to its clients, with practical recommendations and valuable, actionable findings.

Dr. Parker and Dr. Rea are professors in the School of Public Administration and Urban Studies
at San Diego State University. Dr. Rea has also been Director of the School for 23 years. Dr.
Parker and Dr. Rea are co-authors of a highly successful book, Designing and Conducting Survey
Research: A Comprehensive Guide, published by Jossey-Bass Publishers of San Francisco in
1992, with a second edition published in 1997, and a third edition in 2005.

Drs. Parker and Rea have extensive experience in public and urban affairs regarding the
collection of primary demographic, attitudinal, and market-related data through survey research
and focus group analysis, particularly regarding transportation research and water research.
Water related surveys have been conducted for the Otay Water District (baseline 2005 customer
satisfaction survey), the San Diego County Water Authority (2000, 2003, 2004, and 2005 public
opinion polls, 2003 and 2005 member agency surveys, and 2005 economic climate survey), the
City of San Diego Water Department (2004 customer satisfaction survey), North County Co
Permittees Watershed survey (2004), and the San Diego County unincorporated watershed
surveys (2004), among others that are detailed in the proposal.

Rea & Parker Research has a significant history of success in deriving marketing data from ethnic
minority groups. Further, Dr. Parker and Dr. Rea and are highly regarded economic consultants,
particularly in the areas of fiscal impact analysis, urban economic development, and site specific
commercial, retail, and residential evaluation.

111

Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Otay Water District

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006



Mr. Armando Buelna
Otay Water District
page 2

Rea & Parker Research possesses significant expertise in issues pertaining to· transportation and
growth, along with vast experience in survey research and analysis, focus group research, data
collection, and sampling design, all of which are detailed in the Proposal enclosed with this letter
of interest.

In association with Douglas Coe, Director of San Diego State University' s Social Science
Research Laboratory and to meet the objectives of this project, Rea & Parker Research and
Douglas Coe propose to:

design sampling plans and survey instruments,
coordinate all field data-collection activities
edit, code, weight, expand, and analyze survey data
prepare written report of findings
prepare graphical presentations of the data
provide final computerized data files

Rea & Parker Research is pleased to respond to this Request for Proposals and to submit this
Proposal and Statement of Qualifications in an effort to be selected as the consultant for the Otay
Water District 2006 Customer Surveys.

Rea & Parker Research and Douglas Coe (SSRL) are committed to keeping the lines of
communication open as the project moves forward. To that end, Rea & Parker Research will
provide the Otay Water District Project Manager with frequent progress reports. By using key
senior staff members to implement the tasks described above, Rea & Parker Research promises to
provide consistent and efficient consulting services to its clients in general, and to Otay Water
District, in particular, for this project.

We thank you for the opportunity to propose our services and sincerely hope that our response to
your Request for Proposals meets with your satisfaction and approval.

Sincerely,

Richard A. Parker, Ph.D.
President

IV
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Dtay Water District

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006





PROJECT OBJECTIVES

In 1956, the Otay Water District was authorized by the State Legislature and gained its
entitlement to imported water. Today, the District serves the water and/or sewer needs of
approximately 186,000 people by purchasing their water from the Metropolitan Water District of
Southern California through the San Diego County Water Authority. The District takes delivery
of the water through several connections to large pipelines owned and operated by the San Diego
County Water Authority. Since its inception, the Otay Water District has also collected and
reclaimed wastewater generated within the Jamacha drainage basin and pumped the reclaimed
water south to the Salt Creek basin where it is used for irrigation and other non-potable uses.

The Otay Water District wishes to conduct a statistically reliable customer satisfaction and
customer awareness telephone survey among residential customers. The purpose of the survey is
twofold - first, to provide a baseline for measurement of customer satisfaction. Secondly, to
provide information concerning customer awareness of and reaction to the communications,
utility rates and costs, conservation activity, field service and overall opinions of quality and
reliability.
The Otay Water District requests that consultants propose to conduct two distinct surveys, as
follows:

Survey I: 300 customers of the Otay Water District will be randomly sample surveyed.

The primary areas of interest are:
• Overall customer satisfaction
• Awareness of rates
• Awareness of formal/written communications
• Awareness of conservation activities/programs
• Awareness of water recycling activities
• Attitudes toward conservation
• Concerns about water supply
• Quality of water supply
• Reliability of supply
• Awareness of sewer operations
• Demographic measures
• Areas of interest concerning water or district issues (open end)
• Other areas as may occur in planning discussions

Survey II: 200 randomly selected customers of Otay Water District who have contacted the
District for information and/or customer service during the most recent 6 months.

The primary areas of interest are:
• Call Center interaction-specific instances
• Courtesy of staff
• Clarity and accuracy of responses from staff
• Level of knowledge displayed by Call Center staff
• Experience with field staff

1
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Otay Water District

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006



• Quality of service received
• Overall satisfaction with service received
• Use of online services
• Quality of online services
• Demographic measures

Richard A. Parker, Ph.D., Professor, School of Public Administration and Urban Studies
San Diego State University, Louis M. Rea, Ph.D., Professor and Director of the School of
Public Administration and Urban Studies-San Diego State University -and Douglas Coe,
Director of the Social Science Research Laboratory (SSRL)-San Diego State University
are pleased to respond to the Otay Water District Request for Proposal to be the consultant
selected to perform both of the surveys, including the overall development, implementation
and ensuing analysis of the knowledge, attitudes, and behaviors of the subject population, as
more fully described in the Scope of Services section of this proposal that follows
Qualifications and Related Experience.

This proposal applies to both surveys, with distinctions made, where appropriate
throughout the proposal, and, in particular, with regard to the cost and price component of
the proposal.

2
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Otay Water District

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006



QUALIFICATIONS.AND RELATED EXPERIENCE

RICHARD> A. PARKER, Ph.D. and LOUIS M..REA, Ph.D. (Rea &
Parker Research and San Diego State University), AND DOUGLAS COE
(Director, Social Science Research Laboratory-San Diego State
University)

Qualifications

Rea & Parker Research is a survey and market research and economic consulting firm based in
San Diego, California, with facilities in Los Angeles and Orange County. Rea & Parker Research
has been a significant research firm in public transportation for many years. It was founded by its
present owners, Louis M. Rea, Ph.D., and Richard A. Parker, Ph.D., in 1984 and has grown into a
well-respected, financially stable, and substantial research organization with clients throughout
the State of California and the Southwest who will attest to the firm's ability to deliver a quality
product within the originally designated budget and in accordance with the contracted time
schedule.

Dr. Parker and Dr. Rea are professors in the School of Public Administration and Urban Studies
at San Diego State University. Dr. Rea is also the Director of that School. Dr. Parker and Dr.
Rea are co-authors of a highly successful book, Designing and Conducting Survey Research: A
Comprehensive Guide, published by Jossey-Bass Publishers in 1992, with a second edition
published in 1997, and a third edition in 2005.

Drs. Parker and Rea have extensive experience in public and urban affairs regarding the
collection of primary demographic, attitudinal, and market-related data through survey research
and focus group analysis. Rea & Parker Research has conducted San Diego region water
related awareness and satisfaction surveys for the Otay Water District, San Diego County
Water Authority, Imperial Irrigation District, San Diego County, City of San Diego, City of
Oceanside, Sweetwater Authority, and San Luis Rey Indian Water Authority-all of which
are detailed in the attached letter of transmittal and list of clients and projects that follow.

Rea & Parker Research has a significant history of success in deriving marketing data from ethnic
minority groups. Further, they are highly regarded economic consultants, particularly in the areas
of fiscal impact analysis, urban economic development, and site specific commercial, retail, and
residential evaluation. Rea & Parker Research has conducted surveys and market research for a
significant list of clients, including:

State of California--Senate Rules Committee
State of California--Senate Special Committee on Border Issues
State of California--Office of the Auditor General
State of California--Office of the Attorney General
California Department of Transportation (CALTRANS)
San Diego County Sheriffs Department

3
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Otay Water District

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006



San Diego County Water Authority
Otay Water District
San Diego Gas & Electric
Imperial Irrigation District
County of San Diego
County of Orange
City of San Diego
City of San Diego Housing Commission
City of Escondido
City of Carlsbad
City of Oceanside
City of Poway
City of Davis
City of St. Helena
City of Dana Point
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority
Southern California Regional Rail Authority (Metrolink)
Orange County Transportation Authority
Bay Area Rapid Transit
Metropolitan Transit Development Board (San Diego Transit)
Riverside Transit Authority
Southern California Association of Governments
SANDAG
Sweetwater Authority
Santa Clarita Transit
Alhambra Community Transit
Culver City Bus Lines
Commerce Transit
Pasadena ARTS
Cerritos-On-Wheels (COW)
Santa Monica Big Blue Bus
Los Angeles Commuter Express
Torrance Transit
Carson Circuit
EI Monte Trolley
Foothill Transit
San Diego County Taxpayers Association
San Diego County Law Library
City Heights Community Development Corporation (City of San Diego)
Centre City Development Corporation (City of San Diego)
North Park Main Street Association (San Diego)
San Luis Rey Indian Water Authority
La Jolla Band of Mission Indians
Viejas Enterprises
Wallace, Roberts and Todd--Planners and Architects (San Francisco)
Westec Services, Inc. (Salt Lake City)
Joint LaborlManagement Committee-Retail Food Industry
San Diego/Imperial Counties Labor Council AFL-CIO
Sweetwater Authority
PRC Engineering

4
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Otay Water District

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006



RECON, Incorporated
Christiansen and Wallace
Stevens Planning Group
Brian Mooney and Associates--Urban Planners
Ault, Deuprey, Jones, Danielsen, & Gorman--Attorneys at Law
Higgs, Fletcher & Mack--Attorneys at Law
O'Neill, Huxtable & Abelson--Attorneys at Law
Seyfarth Shaw-Attorneys at Law

Richard A. Parker, Ph.D. is a professor in the School of Public Administration and Urban
Studies at San Diego State University where he teaches graduate and undergraduate
courses in statistics, survey research, urban economic development, finance, and real estate.
Dr. Parker possesses extensive analytical experience in statistical survey research, market
analysis, land use, real estate development and valuation, and transportation issues. He will serve
as the co-Project Director.

Dr. Parker has been a consultant to both the public and private sectors for almost 30 years. He
has specialized in sample survey research for various governmental agencies and market research
for retail, commercial, residential, and recreational development. Particular emphasis has been
placed upon market research conducted in the field of transportation, with a myriad of rider/on
board surveys, intercept surveys, telephone surveys, and focus group projects having been
performed for several transportation agencies. Dr. Parker has further established his reputation
with regard to fiscal impact studies, urban redevelopment, and environmental
impact/socioeconomic and demographic analyses. Dr. Parker has also been involved on a
consultative basis with a number of issues concerning economic and population growth impacts
in Southern California and has published a variety of articles, monographs, and books on these
subjects. He has further participated in various panel discussions, delivered expert testimony to
legislatures and courts, and appeared on several radio and television programs on behalf of his
clients. Dr. Parker is a graduate of Brown University, the University of California at Berkeley,
and UCLA. He possesses degrees in Business Administration from those institutions (B.S.,
MBA, and Ph.D.) plus a further graduate degree in City Planning (MCP) from San Diego State
University.

Louis M. Rea, Ph.D. is a professor of City Planning and Director of the School of Public
Administration and Urban Studies at San Diego State University. Dr. Rea will be co-Project
Director. He has taught graduate courses in statistical analysis, transportation planning, survey
research, and urban/fiscal problems. He has published a variety of articles, participated in panel
discussions, and delivered numerous papers at professional conferences throughout the United
States. He has extensive experience as a researcher and consultant in the San Diego area for the
past 25 years.

Dr. Rea has conducted surveys in numerous consulting and research assignments for municipal
jurisdictions and private businesses throughout Southern California. He has prepared
environmental impact reports and market analyses for various commercial/recreational
developments. He has analyzed the feasibility of assessment districts and direct benefit
financing, and prepared demographic and economic profiles and projections for numerous
projects.

5
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Otay Water District

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006



Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006

Dr. Rea is a graduate of Colgate University in New York, with a M.A. and Ph.D. from Syracuse
University in Regional Planning.

Douglas Coe has served as Director of the Social Science Research Laboratory (SSRL) at San
Diego State University since 1990. SSRL has been the Archivist for the California (Field) Poll
since 1985. Mr. Coe will supervise the programming and computerization of the data and
statistical data output. Mr. Coe has extensive experience in computer programming project
design, instrument development, data collection and analysis. He has over 30 years experience in
research project management and the use of computational systems. Mr. Coe has proven his
research capabilities through completed project contracts with government agencies, community
organizations, private enterprises in coordinating community surveys, policy evaluations,
satisfaction studies and program evaluations. Mr. Coe holds a Bachelor's Degree from the
University of California at Riverside and a Master's Degree from San Diego State University.
Besides working with Rea & Parker Research on many of the projects referenced listed above and
detailed below, additional clients of Douglas Coe and SSRL include:

Aetna Government Health Plans, CHAMPUS Division
American College of Preventive Medicine
California Department of Parks and Recreation
California State Department of Conservation, Division of Recycling
California State Department of Health
Child Abuse Prevention Foundation
City of Chula Vista Human Services Council
City of San Diego
Computer Economics, Incorporated
The Field Institute, San Francisco
Girard Foundation
I Love a Clean San Diego County, Incorporated
San Diego County, Solid Waste Division
Industrial Environmental Association of San Diego
Oceanside Unified School District
The Office of the Chancellor, California State University
Office of the Civil Rights Monitor
Pacific Institute for Research and Evaluation
Paradise Valley Hospital, National City
San Diego Association of Governments (SANDAG)
San Diego Community Foundation
San Diego Convention and Visitor's Bureau
San Diego County Department of Health Services
San Diego County Office of Education
San Diego County Water Authority
San Diego Environmental Health Coalition
San Diego Fluoridation Coalition
Sweetwater Authority
The San Diego Union-Tribune and NBC 7/39 Television
Scripps Memorial Hospitals
South Bay Union Elementary School District
The Stevens Cancer Center - Scripps Memorial Hospitals
Sweetwater Union High School District
Twenty Second District Agricultural Association, State of California

6
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Otay Water District



UCSD School of Medicine, Dept. of Family and Preventive
Medicine
U.S. National Park Service
U.S. Navy Health Research Center
U.S. Navy Special Warfare Group

Selected Sample Survey Research Projects of Rea & Parker Research-references
at end of section

Otay Water District

2005 customer satisfaction survey of 350 residential customers concerning
behavior, opinion, customer service, desalination, water reclamation, and
conservation practices.

San Diego County Water Authority

2003 San Diego County Water Authority Telephone Public Opinion Survey
conducted among 600 telephone respondents in order to assess knowledge,
behavior, opinions, and willingness to pay regarding water issues, including
reliability.

2004 Member Agency Survey was prepared, administered and analyzed
regarding customer satisfaction. Project included a total revision of the
instrument that had been used for many previous years in order to successfully
discern possibilities for improved service by the Water Authority to its member
agencIes

2004 San Diego County Water Authority Telephone Public Opinion Survey: 710
respondents concerning behavior, opinion, future needs assessment issues,
desalination, water reclamation, and conservation practices.

2005 San Diego County Water Authority Public Opinion Survey: 725
respondents concerning behavior, opinion, future needs assessment issues,
desalination, water reclamation, and conservation practices.

2004 Engineering Department Employee Satisfaction Survey

2005 Member Agency Survey: On-line survey of general managers, division
managers, operating heads regarding SDCWA policies and programs

2005 Survey of 400 San Diego County public works contractors to identify issues
pertaining to project labor agreements and other public works contracting issues,
including satisfaction with working in association with SDCWA.

7
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Otay Water District

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006



Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006

State of California (Senate Rules Committee, Senate Select Committee on Border
Issues, and Office of the Auditor General)

Analysis of fiscal impact of undocumented immigrants on public services in San
Diego County, including criminal justice system, education, and public health.
Further identified estimated number of undocumented residents and their
contributions to State and local tax revenues. Also included in the analysis were
federal revenues, false documentation issues, and macro economic impacts.
Study included substantial primary data gathering techniques, including direct
interviews with undocumented immigrant workers and INS returnees. Prepared,
administered, and analyzed sample surveys of undocumented immigrants in San
Diego County for purposes of determining employment characteristics, revenue
generation, demographics, and migration patterns. Research included extensive
face-to-face interviews and structured roundtable discussions.

City of Carlsbad

Prepared, implemented, and analyzed citywide sample telephone survey of 600
respondents concerning future urban commercial development in this fast
growing Northern San Diego County city. Extensive analysis of underlying
values through conjoint analytical techniques was featured.

County of Orange

Prepared, implemented, and analyzed 1,040 person telephone survey of
unincorporated area (North Tustin) in order to assess level of service satisfaction
issues and potential annexation/sphere of influence adjustments.

City of San Diego

.• Prepared, implemented, and analyzed 400 person telephone survey of residents of
three low income San Diego communities concerning issues such as crime,
economic development, city services, and the success of the City's "Weed and
Seed Program."

Prepared, administered, and analyzed sample survey of San Diego County
residents for purposes of assessing utilization and demand factors for Mission
Bay Park in San Diego. This survey of 850 persons served to inform the revision
of the Park's Master Plan.

Analysis of market for existing condominium developments in downtown San
Diego. Detailed analysis included extensive survey and corresponding statistical
and qualitative analysis including recommendations for future market
composition.

Consultant for the revitalization of an older commercial retail area in mid-city
San Diego seeking to rejuvenate its retail base. Three surveys and a series of key

8
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Otay Water District



participant discussions were performed in conjunction with this effort--existing
retailers, potential retailers, and residents of the area--plus corresponding
statistical and qualitative analysis. Final report included a recommended retail
structure for the community that would be realistic, implementable, and sensitive
to the diversity of ethnicity in this community.

Conducted 600 person telephone survey in mid-city for purposes of establishing
need for community court in the area populated by myriad low-income minority
and immigrant groups. Also in-person interviews/surveys of 100 local business
owners.

Conducted 400 person customer satisfaction survey for City Water Department,
with emphasis, in particular, on water recycling.

San Diego County

Public awareness survey of 1300 County residents regarding water quality and
watershed protection, including level of knowledge, behavior, and opinion
components.

San Diego County Sheriff's Department

• Established sampling methodology for analysis by station (11) of workload and
availability for calls for service among Sheriffs patrol deputies. Over 3,000
samples drawn and analyzed to establish manpower needs.

• Sample of Communications Center 911 and administrative calls to determine
optimal workload shifts and total personnel required.

• Utilized scientific sample to analyzed time savings applicable to the conversion
of arrest data to laptop computers from manual entry. Final report included
specific determination of manpower hours saved and recommendations for
software and operational policy changes in order to maximize technological
advantages.

Orange County Transportation Authority

• Marketing program consultant including two 600 person surveys among Latino and
senior residents of Orange County and 12 focus groups to identify market-enhancing
opportunities for transit service.

Conducted CenterLine Customer Profile for the Orange County Transportation
Authority involving intercept surveys of 8,800 potential urban light rail users and
1,500 telephone survey interviews. Final analysis assessed likely ridership, preferred
destinations, trip purposes, demographic and psychographic profiles of potential light
Metro Rail ridership.

Conducted 2,000 person rider/on-board bus survey for the Orange County
Transportation Authority regarding monthly, weekly, and daily bus pass sales.

9
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Dtay Water District

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006



Prepared questionnaire, administered survey, analyzed data in order to assess
potential for expanding bus pass sales.

Prepared Multi-Cultural Market Assessment Study for transportation services in
Orange County. Formulated baseline data and marketing strategies for long- and
short-term transportation related issues facing Orange County's diverse multi-cultural
communities, with particular emphasis upon Hispanic and Vietnamese communities.
Administered three different statistical surveys including intercept and rider/on-board
formats, each in English, Spanish, and Vietnamese.

Conducted Vietnamese ridership study, including in-person intercept survey,
telephone sample survey, and focus group among Vietnamese community leaders
regarding current bus service and future transit needs in the Vietnamese areas of
Orange County.

Sample survey of 400 bicycle commuters.

Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority (MTA)

Rider/on-board 2002 Bus survey for Los Angeles County Metropolitan
Transportation Authority, including 40,000 rider/on-board surveys, 2,500 follow-up
telephone interviews, and 10 focus groups. Includes additional surveys for
Alhambra Community Transit, Culver City Bus Lines, Commerce Transit,
Pasadena ARTS, Cerritos-On-Wheels (COW), Santa Monica Big Blue Bus, Los
Angeles Commuter Express, Santa Clarita Transit, Torrance Transit, Carson
Circuit, El Monte Trolley, and Foothill Transit.

Rider/on-board 2002 Rail survey for Los Angeles County Metropolitan
Transportation Authority, including 15,000 rider/on-board surveys, 1,000 follow-up
telephone interviews, and 3 focus groups.

Southern California Regional Rail Authority (Metrolink)

• Obtained precise counts of passenger boardings and alightings at each station for
each train in the Metrolink train system and conducted a 3,500 person rider/on-board
sample survey regarding customer satisfaction for the Southern California Regional
Rail Authority (Metrolink). Analysis included comparative data analysis of trends
from the 1997 rider/on-board survey (also conducted by Rea & Parker Research) and
from 1995.

Computerized, analyzed, prepared final report, and presented findings for 6000
rider/on-board rail passenger surveys for the Southern California Regional Rail
Authority (Metrolink) regarding customer satisfaction. Analysis included
comparative data analysis of trends from previous rider/on-board surveys.

• Determined the requisite two-stage sample for Federal Transportation Agency
requirements for annual passenger and mileage calculations.

10
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Gtay Water District

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006



California Department of Transportation

• On-Line Survey and focus groups with CALTRANS engmeers concernmg
internal job issues.

Riverside Transit Agency

On-board customer satisfaction survey, passenger count, and ride check of
100% of system-weekdays and weekends

Southern California Association of Governments

• 800 person survey and 6 focus groups to determine desired route for high
speed rail from Northern California between Los Angeles and San Diego

• 5,000 respondent cross-border transportation survey at 3 Imperial County border
checkpoints-24 hours (weekends and weekdays)

University of California-Berkeley

Panel based survey of participants in pilot study of commute by rail with pooled
rental car available at work location and rail station.

• Survey of riders of Metrolink between Riverside and Los Angeles re: location of
new station and potential bus connection routes

North Park Main Street Association

Conducted two intercept surveys--business owners and shoppers in San Diego
Main Street National Historic Preservation Area in order to determine shopping
needs and level of improvement or decline in area since the implementation of
the Main Street program.

City of Davis

Prepared, administered, and analyzed sample survey of 833 residents of Davis,
California for purposes of assessing utilization, demand, and tax allocation
factors for City of Davis Department of Parks and Recreation in concert with the
preparation of the Master Plan.

City of St. Helena

Prepared, administered, and analyzed sample survey of City of St. Helena,
California residents for purposes of General Plan revisions.

11
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Dtay Water District

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006



City of Poway

Prepared, administered, and statistically analyzed a mail survey of 800 Poway
businesses regarding their needs and opinions concerning Poway's business
climate and future opportunities. Final report included detailed analysis and
exposition, including recommendations where appropriate.

Prepared, administered, and statistically analyzed a mail survey of 6,000 Poway
households concerning their opinions regarding a variety of issues of importance
to the City for future planning. Final report included fully tabulated results with
accompanying statistical reports.

City of Dana Point

Prepared recreation and parks needs assessment survey for administration to
general public.

City of Oceanside

Public awareness survey of 800 Carlsbad and San Luis Rey watershed residents,
including level of knowledge, behavior, and opinion components.

Sweetwater Authority

Public awareness survey of 400 residents of the water agency, including level of
knowledge, behavior, and opinion components.

Imperial Irrigation District

Statistical modeling of power demand

• Instructed employees of Energy Supply and Trading division III statistical
techniques

San Luis Rey Indian Water Authority

Prepared and supervised administration of detailed census and opinion survey of
2,500 members of five Indian tribes. Particular emphasis was given to issues of
importance to the tribes' members such as job opportunities, education, cultural
issues, economic development opportunities and transportation access issues.
Focus group sessions with each tribe were utilized to complement the survey
findings. Final report included both census data and fully tabulated and
statistically analyzed summary of the opinions of reservation residents.

City of Escondido

Prepared, administered, and statistically analyzed telephone survey of 425
residents concerning library facilities.

12
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Otay Water District

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006



Stoorza, Ziegaus & Metzger - Public Relations

• Conducted city-wide (San Diego) survey of voter optnlon (850 participants)
concerning the initiative to change the name of Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr. Way
to Market Street and related issues.

MNA Consulting, Inc.

Prepared, administered, and analyzed sample survey of City of Poway, California
citizens in order to assess demand factors for new public library facility.

San Diego Housing Commission

In accordance with the City of San Diego SRO Preservation Ordinance, a
survey/inventory of all existing guest rooms in the City of San Diego was
performed in order to retroactively identify rooms that qualified as single room
occupancy hotel rooms as of December 1985, December 1987 and May 1988.
The purpose of this survey was to identify a baseline number of such units for
presentation purposes. Prepared survey instrument, SRO identification
methodologies, computerization formats, statistical analyses, and final report
with room-by-room breakdown.

San Diego County Department of Planning and Land Use

Evaluated the San Diego Community Planning Process as viewed by planning
group participants and informed parties (developed questionnaire, analyzed data,
and prepared a final report).

San Diego County Law Library

Prepared and implemented 5 specific survey research projects among law library
course attendees, librarians, and non-attendees.

Stevens Planning Group, Inc.

Conducted economic/marketing analysis of proposed 2500-acre resort
development in East San Diego County. Analysis included examination of
comparable projects plus administration of surveys to target Services groups of
potential users of proposed resort activities. Surveys were tabulated and
statistically analyzed and then combined with reconnaissance of comparable
projects in formal report to client.

Higgs, Fletcher & Mack

Analyzed and testified as expert witness regarding statistical survey concerning
appraisal of commercial real estate subject to condemnation.

13
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Dtay Water District

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006



Seyfarth Shaw

Testified as expert witness regarding adequacy of statistical survey sampling of
employees in class action lawsuit

14
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Dtay Water District

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006



References:

Mr. John Liarakos, Media Relations
Mr. Paul Lanspery, Deputy General Manager
Mr. Dennis Cushman, Asst. General Manager
San Diego County Water Authority
4677 Overland Ave.
San Diego, CA 92123

Tel. 858-522-6703 (Liarakos)
Tel. 858-522-6783 (Lanspery)
Tel. 858-522-6785 (Cushman)

Commander Robert J. Apostolos
Gail Larsen, Communications Coordinator
San Diego County Sheriff's Department
9621 Ridgehaven Court
P.O. Box 429000
San Diego, CA 92142 Tel. 858-974-2319 (Cmdr. Apostolos)

Tel. 858-565-5498 (Larsen)

Ms. Lisa Briggs
Policy Advisor to Mayor Jerry Sanders, City of San Diego
202 C Street
San Diego, CA 92101 Tel. 619-236-6330

Mr. Nigel Blampied
Director of Operations
State of California
Department of Transportation (Caltrans)
1120 N Street
Sacramento, CA 95814

15
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Dtay Water District

Tel. 916-654-5266

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006



Richard A. Parker, Ph.D.
Education

Ph.D.

M.B.A.

M.C.P.

B.S.

University of California, Los Angeles (Los Angeles, California)
Doctor of Philosophy

University of California, Berkeley (Berkeley, California)
Master of Business Administration
Teacher Certification - Lifetime Secondary Credential

(Business, Social Studies, English)

San Diego State University (San Diego, California)
Master of City Planning

Brown University (Providence, Rhode Island) and
University of California, Berkeley (Berkeley, California)

Bachelor of Science - Business Administration
(Phi Beta Kappa)

Selected Related Professional Experience

1985- Professor, School of Public Administration and Urban Studies, San Diego State
University, San Diego, California. Courses taught:

Seminar in Urban Planning Methodologies (graduate)
Issues in Financing Urban Development (graduate)
Quantitative Methods (Statistics) (graduate)
Seminar in Quantitative Approaches to Public Administration (graduate)
Quantitative Techniques in Urban Planning (graduate)
Methods of Analysis in City Planning (upper division undergraduate)
Contemporary Urban Issues (upper division undergraduate)
The Metropolitan Area (upper division undergraduate)
Public Policy (upper division undergraduate)
Decision Making in the Public Sector (upper division undergraduate)
Public Finance (graduate and upper division undergraduate)
Seminar in Economics of Urban and Regional Planning (graduate)

1982- President/Project Director, Rea & Parker Research

Research Clients include:

• State of California--Senate Rules Committee
• State of California--Senate Special Committee on Border Issues

State of California--Office of the Auditor General
State of California--Office of the Attorney General

• California Department of Transportation (CALTRANS)
San Diego County Sheriffs Department
San Diego County Water Authority
San Diego Gas & Electric

16
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Gtay Water District

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006



Richard A. Parker, Ph.D.

Otay Water District
Imperial Irrigation District
County of Orange
County of San Diego
City of San Diego
City of San Diego Water Department
City of San Diego Housing Commission
City of Escondido
City of Carlsbad
City of Oceanside
City of Poway
City of Davis
City of St. Helena
City of Dana Point
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority

• Southern California Regional Rail Authority (Metrolink)
• Orange County Transportation Authority
• Bay Area Rapid Transit
• Metropolitan Transit Development Board (San Diego Transit)

Southern California Association of Governments
Santa Clarita Transit
Riverside Transit Agency
Sweetwater Authority
San Diego County Taxpayers Association
San Diego County Law Library
City Heights Community Development Corporation (City of San Diego)
Centre City Development Corporation (City of San Diego)
North Park Main Street Association (San Diego)
San Luis Rey Indian Water Authority
La Jolla Band of Mission Indians
Wallace, Roberts and Todd--Planners and Architects (San Francisco)
Westec Services, Inc. (Salt Lake City)
Joint Labor/Management Committee-Retail Food Industry
San Diego/Imperial Counties Labor Council AFL-CIO
PRC Engineering
RECON, Incorporated
Christiansen and Wallace
Stevens Planning Group
Brian Mooney and Associates--Urban Planners
MNA Consulting Services
Stoorza, Ziegaus, & Metzger--Public Relations
Ault, Deuprey, Jones, Danielsen, & Gorman--Attorneys at Law
Higgs, Fletcher & Mack--Attorneys at Law
O'Neill, Huxtable & Abelson--Attorneys at Law
Seyfarth Shaw-Attorneys at Law

2

17
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Gtay Water District

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006



Richard A. Parker, Ph.D.

1971-1982 Director of Real Estate Operations, David Capell & Co., Beverly Hills, CA
Directed the real estate operations of a large entertainment industry business
management firm. Functions included researching, investigating, analyzing and
selecting for investment millions of dollars of real estate annually plus accounting, tax
and estate planning specifically tailored to each client's needs. Shopping centers, office
buildings, apartment complexes, and unimproved investment property were all
transacted. Negotiated purchases, sales, refinancing, and restructuring and supervised
the ongoing management of these investments.

Selected Publications

Books
Designing and Conducting Survey Research: A Comprehensive Guide (with Louis M.
Rea, Ph.D., 1992 (2nd edition I997_3rd edition 2005). Jossey-Bass, Inc., Publishers,
San Francisco.

Monographs/Research Reports
Cost Benefit Analysis: A Case Study of the Berkeley Park Marina Shopping Center,
University of California, Berkeley, California, 1971, 168 pp.

The Economics of Environmental Restrictions on the Use of Urban Land, Institute of
Urban and Regional Development, University of California, Berkeley, California (with
Leonard Merewitz, Ph.D.), 1973,79 pp.

Back to the City: The Middle Income Housing Market in Centre City San Diego, San
Diego State University, San Diego California, 1984,258 pp.

The Fiscal Impact of Undocumented Immigrants Residing in San Diego County, State of
California, Office of the Auditor General, 1992, 129 pp.

Illegal Immigration in San Diego County: An Analysis of Costs and Revenues, State of
California, State Senate Office of Reproductions, 1993, 172 pp.

Articles
"Water Supply for Urban Southern California: An Historical and Legal Perspective,"
Glendale University Law Review, Vol. 8, Nos. 1-2, 1988.

"The Retail Commercial Strip in Transition: A Case Study in San Diego," The Western
Governmental Researcher (with Louis M. Rea, Ph.D.), Fall, 1989.

3

18
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Otay Water District

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006



Louis M. Rea, Ph.D.
Education

Ph.D. Social Science, The Maxwell School, Syracuse University, 1975

M.R.P. Department of Regional Planning, The Maxwell School, Syracuse University, 1973

B.A. Economics, Colgate University, Hamilton, New York, 1971
(Phi Beta Kappa, cum laude, honors in economics)

Professional Experience

Professor and Director: School of Public Administration and Urban Studies, San Diego State
University, 1975-present. Manage an academic department with a budget of $1 million;
responsible for resource allocation and the purchase of supplies and equipment; supervise 20
full-time faculty and several staff personnel; responsible for hiring part-time faculty from the
professional community.

Vice-President/ Project Manager: Rea & Parker Research, 1982-present

Research Clients include:

• State of California--Senate Rules Committee
• State of California--Senate Special Committee on Border Issues

State of California--Office of the Auditor General
State of California--Office of the Attorney General

• California Department of Transportation (CALTRANS)
San Diego County Sheriffs Department
San Diego County Water Authority
San Diego Gas & Electric
County of San Diego
County of Orange
City of San Diego
City of San Diego Housing Commission
City of Escondido
City of Carlsbad
City of Oceanside
City of Poway
City of Davis
City of St. Helena
City of Dana Point
Los Angeles County Metropolitan Transportation Authority

• Southern California Regional Rail Authority (Metrolink)
• Orange County Transportation Authority
• Bay Area Rapid Transit
• Metropolitan Transit Development Board (San Diego Transit)

Southern California Association of Governments
Santa Clarita Transit
Sweetwater Authority

19
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Dtay Water District

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006



Louis M. Rea, Ph.D

San Diego County Taxpayers Association
San Diego County Law Library
City Heights Community Development Corporation (City of San Diego)
Centre City Development Corporation (City of San Diego)
North Park Main Street Association (San Diego)
San Luis Rey Indian Water Authority
La Jolla Band of Mission Indians
Wallace, Roberts and Todd--Planners and Architects (San Francisco)
Westec Services, Inc. (Salt Lake City)
Joint Labor/Management Committee-Retail Food Industry
San Diego/Imperial Counties Labor Council AFL-CIO
PRC Engineering
RECON, Incorporated
Christiansen and Wallace
Stevens Planning Group
Brian Mooney and Associates--Urban Planners
MNA Consulting Services
Stoorza, Ziegaus, & Metzger--Public Relations
Ault, Deuprey, Jones, Danielsen, & Gorman--Attorneys at Law
Higgs, Fletcher & Mack--Attorneys at Law
O'Neill, Huxtable & Abelson--Attorneys at Law

Selected Publications

2

Books
Designing and Conducting Survey Research: A Comprehensive Guide (with Richard A.
Parker), Ph.D., 1992 (2nd edition 1997-3rd edition 2004). Jossey-Bass, Inc.,
Publishers, San Francisco.

Monographs/Research Reports
The Fiscal Impact of Undocumented Immigrants Residing in San Diego County, State of
California, Office of the Auditor General, 1992, 129 pp.

Illegal Immigration in San Diego County: An Analysis of Costs and Revenues, State of
California, State Senate Office of Reproductions, 1993, 172 pp.

An Arts Plan for the San Diego Region - Region 1: An Inventory of Artists,
Organizations, Facilities, and Economic Impact
Louis M. Rea, Ph.D. & James A. Clapp, Ph.D.
State-Local Partnership of the San Diego Region, August 1982

Articles
"The Retail Commercial Strip in Transition: A Case Study in San Diego," The Western
Governmental Researcher (with Richard A. Parker, Ph.D.), Fall, 1989.

"Urban Forestry: Some Preliminary Research"
Western Governmental Research Journal, Vol. 1, No.2, 1984.

20
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Dtay Water District

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006



Louis M. Rea, Ph.D

"A Quantitative Comparison of Second Generation Rent Control Ordinances"
Louis M. Rea, Ph.D. and Dipak K. Gupta, Ph.D.
Urban Affairs Quarterly, Vol. 19, No.3, March 1984.

"Direct Benefit Financing: An Opportunity for Local Government"
Louis M. Rea, Ph.D., Glen W. Sparrow, Ph.D., and Dipak K. Gupta, Ph.D.
Public Administration Quarterly, Vol. 7, No.3, Fall 1984.

3

21
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Dtay Water District

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006



Douglas S. Coe

Education:

1986 M.A. San Diego State University
1968 B.A. University of California, Riverside

Professional Experience:

1990 - present

1982 - 1989

1977 - 1982

Director
Social Science Research Laboratory
San Diego State University
Associate Director
Social Science Research Laboratory
San Diego State University
Coordinator of Instructional Services
Social Science Research Laboratory
San Diego State University

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006

Douglas Coe is the Director of San Diego State University's Social Science Research Laboratory.
Coe has thirty years of experience in designing and conducting social research studies and in
administering programs that support academic computing. As Director, Coe administers
programs that support social research and computing at the University and in the greater
community. These programs are provided through the six units described below.

Research Services offers a complete range of public opinion polling and survey research services,
including sample design, data collection, data reduction, graphic presentation of data, statistical
analysis and data archiving. The section maintains computer systems to support faculty research.
Undergraduate internships and research assistant positions are available. Typical research clients
include units of government, community groups, SDSU faculty research projects, and University
administrative units.

Instructional Services works closely with faculty to assimilate technological resources into the
curriculum and to support academic computing among students and faculty. This is
accomplished through four programs: (1) Social Science 201 A through D courses on the use of
the Statistical Package for the Social Sciences, Database, Spreadsheet, and Internet Resources, (2)
non-credit workshops on the use of selected software applications, (3) class presentations at the
request of facuIty to support computer-related instructional assignments, and (4) on-demand
consultation for individual users of open-access computing laboratories.

Data Resources assists faculty and students in the use of archived research, datasets from a
variety of on-line information resources, and provides database programming services for specific
applications. Principal sources of archived and electronically accessible information include the
Inter-University Consortium for Political and Social Research (ICPSR), the Social Science
Database Archive (SSDBA), the U.S. Census, Field Institute California Polls, the Roper Center
for Public Opinion Research and Lexis/Nexis. Assistance is provided for locating, downloading,
installing, and subsetting datasets for instructional or research use.

Systems Support Group provides network administration and technical infrastructure support for
22

Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Otay Water District



College of Arts and Letters computing systems. Services include managing computer
classrooms, network design, implementation and administration, installing software applications,
electronic mail, Internet related software, interfacing peripherals, virus diagnosis, file recovery,
disk management, operating systems, and procurement advice. Faculty and staff requests for
assistance are initiated and tracked through an on-line work order system.

South Coastal Information Center (SCIC) contracts with the California Office of Historic
Preservation (OHP) to provide information management for all cultural resources in San Diego
County. SCIC is a source of valuable research data for archaeologists, historians, and architects.
Databases in historic resources and prehistoric and historic archaeology are maintained and
constantly updated. Site data and building information are electronically stored, and over 3,000
historical and archaeological reports are available. Geographic information system software
provides accurate mapping of archaeological site data. Student interns master the basics of
historic preservation laws and regulations, while learning effective cultural resource information
management.

Research Contracts

Community and Governmental Organizations:

Aetna Government Health Plans, CHAMPUS Division
Survey of CHAMPUS Beneficiaries (1995)
Survey of CHAMPUS Medical/Surgical Providers (1995)

American College of Preventive Medicine
National Survey ofPhysician Compensation (1989)

California Department of Parks and Recreation
South Coastal Information Center (/987 through present)

California State Department of Conservation, Division of Recycling
Redondo Beach Community Survey on Recycling (/996)
Santa Cruz Community Survey on Recycling (1996)
Pacific Beach Community Survey on Recycling (1995)
Pacific Beach Business Improvement Association Survey on Recycling (1995)

California State Department of Health
State-wide Survey of Childhood Immunization Issues Among African-American

Households (1997)
Child Abuse Prevention Foundation

Evaluation ofAlcohol Related Birth Defects Prevention Malia Campaign (1991)
City of Chula Vista Human Services Council

Chula Vista Human Needs Assessment Survey (1992)
City of San Diego

Citizens' Satisfaction with City Services (1996)
Computer Economics, Incorporated

National Survey of Corporate Information Systems Managers (1997; 1998; 1999)

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006

The Field Institute, San Francisco
Archivistfor the California Field Poll (1985-1999)

Girard Foundation
Evaluation Study of the Girard Foundation Technology Assistance Program

I Love a Clean San Diego County, Incorporated
23

Customer Service, Satisfaction, andAwareness Surveys
Gtay Water District

(1997)



Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006

San Diego County, Solid Waste Division
Attitudes and Perceptions Regarding the Recycling of Used Motor Oil (1997; 1998)

Industrial Environmental Association of San Diego
Perceptions ofExposure to Industrial Hazardous Materials (1995)

Oceanside Unified School District
Survey ofDistrict Parents and Community Members (1998)

The Office of the Chancellor, California State University
Public Perceptions ofSan Diego State University (1999)
Public Perceptions of California State University, Los Angeles (1999)
Public Perceptions of California State University, Stanislaus (1999)

Office of the Civil Rights Monitor
National Testing Project (1997-1999)

Pacific Institute for Research and Evaluation
Evaluation ofEfforts to Reduce Cross-Border Binge Drinking (1998-2001)

Paradise Valley Hospital, National City
Mammography Follow-up Study (1994)
Mammography Baseline Study (1992)

San Diego Association of Governments (SANDAG)
Interstate 15 Congestion, Pricing, Monitoring and Evaluation Project (1996-1999)

San Diego Community Foundation
Give Five Community Survey (1990; 1992)

San Diego Convention and Visitor's Bureau
Membership Study (1999)

San Diego County Department of Health Services
Alcohol Use and Alcohol Problems Among San Diego County

Residents with Special Emphasis on Women (1989)
San Diego County Office of Education

Utilization of Instructional Television Programming Among Educational
Professionals (1997)

Viewership Survey for San Diego County Office ofEducation's
Instructional Television Station, 1. T. V. (1994; 1996)

San Diego Environmental Health Coalition
Navy Nuclear Ship Basing Study (1996)
Safe Substitutes Survey, San Diego County (1992)
Household Hazardous Wastes Survey, City of Coronado (1992)

San Diego Fluoridation Coalition
Attitudes Regarding Fluoridation (1997)

The San Diego Union-Tribune and NBC 7/39 Television
Library Special Election Study (1999)
1998 General Election Study (1998)
Proposition C Padres Ballpark Study (1998)
Health Care Study - Survey of Physicians (1997)
Health Care Study - Survey ofAdult San Diego County Residents (1997)
Jack Murphy Stadium Expansion Controversy (/997)
Presidential/General Election Studies (1996)
California Primary Election Study (1996)

Scripps Memorial Hospitals
HealthPlus55 Survey (/991; 1993)

South Bay Union Elementary School District
Community Views ofSouth Bay Union Elementary School District (1994)

24
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Otay Water District



Parent Views ofSouth Bay Union Elementary School District (1994)
The Stevens Cancer Center - Scripps Memorial Hospitals

Sun Exposure Index Awareness Survey (1996)
Sweetwater Union High School District

Community Survey Regarding Graduation and Promotion Requirements (1999)
Community Views ofSweetwater Union High School District (1995; 1996)
Parent Views ofSweetwater Union High School District (1995; 1996)

Twenty Second District Agricultural Association, State of California
Del Mar Fair Regional Study (1993; 1994)
Del Mar Fair Attendees Survey (1992)

UCSD School of Medicine, Dept. of Family and Preventive Medicine
"Por La Vida" Intervention Model in Cancer Education (1995-2000)
Interstitial Cystitis Prevalence (1993)

U.S. National Park Service
National Archaeological Database Project (1991)

U.S. Navy Health Research Center
The Seabee Health Survey (1999)

U.S. Navy Special Warfare Group
Navy SEALS Foreign Language Acquisition

25
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Otay Water District

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006



SCOPE OF SERVICES

As indicated in the previous section, the Scope of Services that is presented below outlines the
methodology to be used for each survey. Where there is a difference between them, this
difference will be clearly elaborated.

TASK 1: FINALIZE PROJECT
MANAGEMENT PLAN

WORK PROGRAM AND DEVELOP

Subtask 1.1: Kickoff Meeting with the OTAY WATER DISTRICT Project Team

Rea & Parker Research will meet with the Otay Water District Project Manager and other Otay
Water District team members to: 1) review project objectives; 2) review the preliminary work
program and make revisions recommended by the Otay Water District; 3) clarify and address any
outstanding technical issues; 4) establish formal lines of communication between the Otay Water
District and Rea & Parker Research; 5) determine content and format of routine progress reports; and
6) discussion of draft survey questions submitted by the Authority.

At this initial project (kick-off) meeting Rea & Parker Research will be interested in discussing
the final use of the data in order to ensure that it is collected to achieve the overall objectives of
the Otay Water District.

One of the primary purposes of the initial meeting is to guarantee that all parties fully understand
all decisions and analyses that will be undertaken using the final data. Rea & Parker Research
then will suggest which charts, tables, and analytical documentation would contribute to making
these decisions and analyses and will design the specifics of the research process accordingly.
This approach ensures that Otay Water District will receive from Rea & Parker Research
actionable findings and recommendations that address all research objectives.

There will be at least 5 meetings between Rea & Parker Research and Otay Water District, of which
this is to be the first. Subsequent meetings will include submittal of resulting draft questions for both
surveys prepared by Rea & Parker Research and preliminary review of findings for each as a prelude
to final report writing.

Subtask 1.1 Deliverable: (1) Conduct project kick-off meeting and provide written
summary for Otay Water District Project Manager review
within three days ofthe meeting

Subtask 1.2: Complete formal work plan within 5 days of initial meeting

Within 5 calendar days of the initial project meeting, Rea & Parker Research will make agreed upon
changes to the work program (tasks, subtasks, and deliverables) and submit to Otay Water District
Project Manager for review.

Subtask 1.2 Deliverables: (I) Final work program (project objectives tasks, subtasks,
and deliverables)

26
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Otay Water District

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006



Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006

Subtask 1.3: Review Background Materials

As detailed in the qualifications section of this proposal, Rea & Parker Research is extensively
familiar with public and private market research, market segmentation, customer satisfaction, and
attitude and awareness analyses, and, in particular, within the water utilities industry.

Rea & Parker Research will bring to bear upon the tasks at hand this knowledge and practical
experience, beginning with a detailed review of the previous public awareness study/studies.

Subtask 1.3 Deliverable: (1) Technical Memorandum outlining key ideas and understanding of the
project derived from these background materials.

Subtask 1.4: Sampling Plan for Public AwarenesslPublic Opinion Research

It has been initially suggested by the Otay Water District that one random sample telephone
survey with an overall sample size of 300 qualified residents of the district (age 18 or
older/suggestion: also screen for one year residence within district)-simply referred to as
"qualified residents" for the balance of this proposal) be conducted (margin of error +/- 5.7% @

95% confidence), the objective of which will be to determine public awareness and public
opinions of water issues. A second sample survey is to be conducted with an overall sample size
of 200 is to be conducted among customers who have contacted the Otay Water District within
the past 6 months. Assuming approximately 15% of customers have been in contact with the
District in this timeframe (based upon 2005 survey showing L9% in 12 months), the 200 person
sample would represent a margin of error of +/- 6.9%. These samples will be randomly drawn
from clean, current, and comprehensive lists of all Otay Water District customers and customers
who have contacted the District within the most recent 6 months. These lists will be provided to
Rea & Parker Research by the Otay Water District.

Subtask 1.4 Deliverable: Within 7 days of the execution of an Agreement and Project Kick-Off
between Rea & Parker Research and Otay Water District, formal
sampling plans will be prepared by Rea & Parker Research.

TASK 2: DESIGN SURVEY INSTRUMENTS

Subtask 2.1: Design Survey Instrument for Qualified Residents

Richard Parker, Louis Rea, and Douglas Coe have strong professional and academic-related
backgrounds in survey design, including the publication of a very successful textbook on the
subject, Designing and Conducting Survey Research (authors: Richard Parker and Louis Rea), in
L992, 1997, and 2005.

Rea & Parker Research will work with Otay Water District staff in preparing the survey
instruments. Rea & Parker Research is very conversant in all forms of survey instruments,
including reasons for success and drawbacks. Rea & Parker Research will utilize this knowledge
working with Otay Water District staff to prepare instruments that will facilitate computerization
and will capitalize upon the key elements and findings from the baseline survey. The

27
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Otay Water District



questionnaire will include questions sufficient to compare the results of the baseline survey with
the current ones while simultaneously improving upon the previous survey in terms of
information derived. To the maximum feasible extent, Rea & Parker Research will identify the
methods necessary to measure changes from the baseline survey and to identify the causes of
such changes.

Otay Water District and Rea & Parker Research are seeking to gain information from qualified
district residents in order to specifically identify knowledge and opinions concerning:

Survey I: 300 customers ofthe Otay Water District will be randomly sample surveyed.
The primary areas of interest are:

• Overall customer satisfaction
• Awareness of rates
• Awareness of formal/written communications
• Awareness of conservation activities/programs
• Awareness of water recycling activities
• Attitudes toward conservation
• Concerns about water supply
• Quality of water supply
• Reliability of supply
• Awareness of sewer operations
• Demographic measures
• Areas of interest concerning water or district issues (open end)
• Other areas as may occur in planning discussions

Survey II: 200 randomly selected customers of Otay Water District who have contacted the
District for information and/or customer service during the most recent 6 months.
The primary areas of interest are:

• Call Center interaction-specific instances
• Courtesy of staff
• Clarity and accuracy of responses from staff
• Level of knowledge displayed by Call Center staff
• Experience with field staff
• Quality of service received
• Overall satisfaction with service received
• Use of online services
• Quality of online services
• Demographic measures

Other areas that may occur in planning discussions, including the possibility of:
• Knowledge about sources of water
• Environmental considerations
• Statewide water issues
• Major sources, uses and users of water in San Diego County
• Drinking water safety issues
• Desalination
• Willingness to pay

28
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Otay Water District

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006



Rea & Parker Research will prepare draft questionnaires, according to the above criteria, that will
entail approximately 10-12 of interview time and submit them to the Otay Water District Project
Manager for tentative approval.

A minimum of five meetings will be held among Rea & Parker Research and Otay Water District,
including the Kick-Off meeting, in order to finalize the survey instrument, procedures, and final
report format and guidelines.

Subtask 2.1 Deliverable (1) Draft copies of Otay Water District preliminary telephone
surveys within 21 days ofexecution ofAgreement

Subtask 2.2: Pre-Test Survey Instrument and Procedures and Recommend Changes

Rea & Parker Research will prepare draft questionnaires according to the above criteria and
submit them to Otay Water District staff for tentative approval. Once each draft survey instrument
is approved, Rea & Parker Research will pre-test the survey instruments in the field among
qualified customers. Rea & Parker Research will translate the surveys into Spanish and conduct
additional pretests. The minimum sample sizes for the pretests are to be 20.

During the pre-testing phase of the project, Rea & Parker Research will ensure that the survey
instruments and data collection procedures gather statistically valid knowledge, behavioral, and
demographic data. The questionnaire design process and pre-test will seek to eliminate difficult
levels of wording, non-specific and vague words and phrases, multi-purpose questions,
inappropriate emphasis, and biasing words and phrases.

As part of this phase, Rea & Parker Research will I) refine interview procedures and logistics; 2)
highlight potential changes to question wording, sequencing, and formatting. Rea & Parker
Research will make recommendations to improve the survey instrument or procedures based upon
the results of the pre-test; 3) analyze survey length and respondent willingness to participate; 4)
compare alternative approaches to gathering specific data needs; and 5) identify unexpected
responses and respondent behavior. The ultimate objective is a clear, comprehensive, and
realistically implementable survey instrument.

An Otay Water District representative will attend the pretest session in order to help assess the
achievement of these objectives if it so chooses. In the alternative, Rea & Parker Research will
also have the capability to allow Otay Water District personnel to monitor calls, at the Otay
Water District discretion, from a remote location.

Rea & Parker Research uses the CATI (Computer Aided Telephone Interviewing) system for
telephone interviewing (Sawtooth WinCATI, CI3). Telephone survey research facilities for Rea
& Parker Research consist of 30 interviewing stations, equipped with a state-of-the-art CATI
system. CATI increases interviewing accuracy, quality, and performance. CATI selects and dials
telephone numbers from a randomly drawn sample of telephone numbers, tracks and tallies
outcomes, captures response data, processes complex question skip patterns automatically,
schedules and tracks call-back appointments, and screens invalid response codes.

Subtask 2.2 Deliverable: (1) Rea & Parker Research will provide a technical
memorandum documenting results of pre-test and
recommending changes, ifappropriate.

29
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Otay Water District

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006



TASK 3: CONDUCT TELEPHONE
CUSTOMERS

SURVEYS AMONG QUALIFIED

Subtask 3.1: Select Representative Sample of Residents

Rea & Parker Research will use random statistical sampling methods to obtain final samples of at
least 300 qualified residents/customers in the Otay Water District region using random telephone
numbers that have been cleaned and made current for the general survey (Survey I) and 200
qualified customers for the customer service survey (Survey II).

Subtask 3.1 Deliverable: (1) Technical memorandum detailing methods used to select
telephone samples and validating that samples are representative
ofcustomer base.

Subtask 3.2: Conduct the Telephone Surveys

Once the final telephone survey instruments have been tested and approved, Rea & Parker
Research will complete a minimum of 300 telephone surveys among qualified customers of the
District and another 200 telephone surveys among customers who have contacted the District in
past 6 months. Both of these surveys will be completed within a period not to exceed one month
after survey approval by the Otay Water District.

Responses will be input directly into the computer data base, and these data be provided in
frequency distributions to the Otay Water District Project Manager and staff by Rea & Parker
Research.

Interviewers are selected for each project from a pool of approximately 50 experienced
interviewers. Each interviewer is trained in proper techniques, obtaining respondent
partIcIpation, accurately recording responses, and is further trained in the importance of
confidentiality. A minimum of four callback attempts is made in the case of a busy signal, an
unanswered phone, or an answering machine. These callbacks are made on different days and at
different times to maximize the chance of reaching an eligible respondent. All telephone
interviews are conducted with a supervisor present at all times. Interviews are normally
conducted from 4:00 to 9:00 p.m. on weekdays, and from 12:00 to 5:00 p.m. on Saturdays and
Sundays.

Rea & Parker Research employs bilingual (Spanish/English) and (Vietnamese/English)
interviewers because of the significant proportion of Latinos and Vietnamese residing within
California. Bilingual Tagalog, Chinese, Mung, and Korean interviewers are also employed, as
necessary.

Quality control procedures are employed throughout the interviewing and data reduction phases.
Custom data entry screens are created that filter valid code ranges and accommodate automatic
skip and fill patterns. Interviews in progress are selectively and unobtrusively monitored by
supervisors using a special digital telephone system. Ten percent of completed interviews that
are not directly monitored are selected for verification by recontacting the respondents. Rea &
Parker Research will also have the capability to allow Otay Water District personnel to monitor
calls, at the Otay Water District discretion, from a remote location.

30
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Otay Water District

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006



Subtask 3.2 Deliverables: (1)
(2)

"Raw" frequencies from the telephone survey
Final report on disposition ofall call attempts and sample
characteristics

TASK 4: CODE, ANALYZE, AND WEIGHT SURVEY DATA

Subtask 4.1: Code all numeric and string survey data

Survey questions will be pre-coded into pre-defined categories for ease of data input and will be
post-coded into these or other numerically defined categories when responses require such
additional consideration. Survey data will be statistically compiled for analysis by the Statistical
Package for the Social Sciences (SPSS) software. Each survey will be entered as its own
individual record after it is thoroughly checked for inconsistent entries and omissions of key
survey questions. For the purposes of this study, a valid survey will be one that is defined as
"completed"-suggested to be at least 90% complete (with the exception of screened/filtered
questions) and including all questions identified by Otay Water District and Rea & Parker
Research as critical to the study. The data will be input in such a manner as to assure Otay Water
District that invalid responses will be identified and corrected. Rea & Parker Research will
provide to Otay Water District a detailed list of all codes and coding instructions in addition to
the survey data in the electronic formats discussed above.

Rea & Parker Research will code all categorical data using numeric coding to facilitate
subsequent analyses using SPSS. Rea & Parker Research will code any (non-address) open
ended responses to a given question into a discrete set of categories. Rea & Parker Research
will input address and other alphabetic (string) data in a readable format.

Subtask 4.1 Deliverables: (1) "Cleaned", fully coded data set within 7 days offieldwork
completion.

Subtask 4.2: Weight/Expand Survey Data

The data collected as part of the surveys may be expanded to the universe from which the
samples were drawn, depending upon the ultimate sample population distribution and analytical
requirements agreed upon by Rea & Parker Research and Otay Water District. The weights will
consist of a determination of the proportionate sample size per characteristic chosen for weighting,
divided by the actual sample size achieved per characteristic and will be applied to the unweighted
data in SPSS.

Subtask 4.2 Deliverable: (1) Technical memorandum documenting data expansion
methods 'used to create sample weights including the
actual sample weights that were developed

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006

Subtask 4.3: Analyze Data from Telephone Surveys

Rea & Parker Research will analyze the data compiled during the telephone surveys. Rea &
Parker Research will consider the appropriateness of regression analysis, factor analysis, various
statistical significance procedures (Chi-Square, Independent Samples t-test, Analysis of Variance),
and measures of association to model these determinants and draw defensible, policy-oriented
conclusions about the knowledge, opinions, and behaviors of District residents.

31
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Otay Water District



Initial analysis of the data will be completed within 20 working days of survey interview
completion. Analysis will continue throughout report preparation as additional issues arise from the
reporting process itself or from questions/requests from the Otay Water District.

Subtask 4.3 Deliverable: (1) Technical memorandum documenting methods used to
analyze the survey data within 20 working days of
completion ofinterviews.

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006

TASK 5: PREPARE FINAL REPORTS OF FINDINGS

Subtask 5.1: Prepare Final Reports Summarizing Opinions, Satisfaction, Water-Related
Behavior, Demographics, and Other Characteristics

Commencing simultaneously with data analysis, Rea & Parker Research will begin preparation of
the final reports concerning the telephone surveys that will combine, contrast, and compare such
information as demographics, awareness, behavior, and opinions for the samples of qualified
customers. The data are to be weighted and presented in the form of frequency distributions,
crosstabulations, factor analyses, regression and correlation. Key issues and characteristics that
require attention AND that can significantly enhance Otay Water District policies will be identified
through the use of the above referenced techniques. "Stand-alone" executive summaries will also
be included. Spanish language interviews will be separately tabulated and combined into the
overall data presentations, including copies of both the Spanish and English language versions of
the surveys.

The analysis will include not only basic crosstabulations but also segmentation analysis that will
identify, with specificity, those groups that represent the greatest deviations from the norm. The
reports will include color graphical presentations of the findings. A tabulation of the outcome of all
calls made during the course of both surveys (number of refusals, business and disconnected
numbers, numbers that were busy or not answered after four attempts and language and age
problems) shall be part of the overall report to the Otay Water District.

Initially, draft reports for each survey will be prepared and submitted for review. The draft reports
will include all components of the final reports including full methodological section, description of
survey administration, and an elaboration of analytical techniques utilized and findings resultant
therefrom. The project team will review the draft reports and will suggest edits to Rea & Parker
Research.

Rea & Parker Research will incorporate the suggestions and produce final reports that will include
the color graphical components. Rea & Parker Research will provide ten (10) bound, "hard" copies
of the report and frequency tables to the Otay Water District, and electronic copies of the reports
and data, using Microsoft WordlExcel and SPSS for Windows formats.

Subtask 5.1 Deliverable: (I) Ten copies of the completed research report and
frequency tables will be submitted. plus 1 electronic copy including data.

Subtask 5.2: Delivery of Data Sets and Key Crosstabulations

Once the data sets have been coded, weighted, and verified, Rea & Parker Research will
recommend banner points to be used in preparing crosstabulations in SPSS format. Rea & Parker

32
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Otay Water District

Ii
Ii
fi



Research will provide data dictionaries and glossaries, coding handbooks, field configurations,
and file layouts for the data set. The District may also request several data printouts, with various
questions crosstabulated by other items

Subtask 5.2 Deliverable: (1)
(2)

SPSS case file containing telephone survey results
Requested copies of data and agreed upon
crosstabulations ofsurvey questions

Subtask 5.3: Presentation of Survey Findings

Richard A. Parker, Ph.D. will be available to personally make 3 formal presentations of the findings
and recommendations from the surveys to the Otay Water District board, management, and other
interested parties using PowerPoint visual presentation aids and written handout materials derived
from the PowerPoint slides.

Subtask 5.3 Deliverables: (J)

(2)

PowerPoint presentation aids in electronic and "hard
copy" formats
In-person presentations by Dr. Richard A. Parker

33
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Otay Water District

Rea & Parker Research
June2,2006



PROPOSED PROJECT SCHEDULE

Task/Subtask Commencement Date Completion Date
1. Kick-Off Meeting WeekI WeekI

Formal Work Plan WeekI WeekI
Review Back~round Materials WeekI WeekI
Sampling Plans WeekI WeekI

2. Desi~n Surveys (incl. approval) WeekI Week 3
Pretest Surveys Week 4 Week 4

3. Select Telephone Samples Week 3 Week 4
Conduct Telephone Surveys Week 4 WeekS

4. Code Survey Data WeekS Week 9
Weight Survey Data Week 9 Week 9
Analyze Survey Data Week 9 Week 11

5. Draft Reports Week 9 Week 12
Final Reports Week 13 Week 14
Presentations Week 15 Week 16

COST AND PRICE PROPQSAL

Rea & Parker Research proposes to perform all tasks described in the Scope of Work
(questionnaire design, sample design, data input, analysis, presentation of findings and various
consultations) for each survey for full, fixed prices of $15,000 for Survey I (general) and
$12,500 for Survey II (customer service). This price includes 10-12 minute telephone surveys
with interviews of 300 and 200 qualified customers and customer service contacts, respectively,
of the Otay Water District (+/-5.7% @ 95% confidence and +/- 6.9% @ 95% confidence,
respectively), including Spanish version.

COMMITMENT FROM REA & PARKER RESEARCH

Rea & Parker Research is committed to keeping the lines ofcommunication open as the project
moves forward. To that end, Rea & Parker Research will provide the Otay Water District
Project Manager with frequent progress reports. By using key senior staff members to
implement the tasks described above, Rea & Parker Research promises to provide consistent
and efficient consulting services to its clients in general, and to the Otay Water District, in
particular, for this project.

34
Customer Service, Satisfaction, and Awareness Surveys
Otay Water District

Rea & Parker Research
June 2,2006



MEMORANDUM

File No.
TO: Marketing Research Vendors

FROM: Armando Buelna, Communications Officer Date 5/23/06

SUBJ: Invitation to Bid - Survey Research

The Otay Water District (the district) wishes to conduct two
statistically reliable telephone surveys of residential
customers. The purpose of the surveys will be to build upon
baseline data from a 2005 customer survey.

Survey I - N=300, to be selected from a random sample of
customers. The primary areas of interest are:

• Overall customer satisfaction
• Awareness of rates
• Awareness of formal/written communications
• Awareness of conservation activities/programs
• Awareness of water recycling activities
• Concerns about water supply
• Reliability of service
• Reliability of supply
• Awareness of sewer operations
• Demographic measures

Survey II - N=200, selected from customers who have contacted the
within the last 6 months. Areas of interest include:

• Specific Call Center interaction
• Courtesy of staff
• Clarity and accuracy of responses from staff
• Knowledge of Call Center staff
• Experience with field staff
• Quality of service received
• Overall satisfaction with service received
• Use of online services
• Quality of online services

The successful vendor will be responsible for questionnaire
development, fieldwork, data tabulation, and presentation of
topline results.



The vendor should expect to consult with the district regularly
on the questionnaire development and be prepared to provide up to
three site presentations of the results.

Bids should include costs for all services and fieldwork
(including translating surveys into Spanish and conducting some
of the survey to Spanish speaking customers) and any and all
miscellaneous expenses.

The district would like 10 copies of both the data and the
report.

The district may also request several data printouts with various
questions cross-tabbed by other items.

The district can provide names, telephone numbers, zip codes of
survey respondents. All data and questionnaires should be
returned to the district upon completion of the survey.

Please submit your proposals by June 5, 2006, via mail or e-mail
to:

Armando Buelna, Communications Officer
Otay Water District
2554 Sweetwater Springs Blvd.
Spring Valley, CA 91978
abuelna@otaywater.gov

Questions about this project may be directed to
abuelna@otaywater.gov or (619) 670-2256.



SUMMARY OF PROPOSAL RANKINGS BY PANEL MEMBERS

[2006 Customer Survey]

WRITTEN

Qualifications. TOTAL AVERAGE
CommentsExperience Knowledge of

experience of
relevant to

Proposed
jurisdictional

Completeness,
Ability to complete SCORE SCORE

Consultant's
type of project

method to
agencies or local

Proposed Fee addressed requested
projects on schedule

assigned accomplish work information
personnel

being considered area

SCORE 15 20 15 15 10 15 10 100 A former MWD analyst would

Godbe
Geoff Stevens 9 10 12 7 5 11 6 60 77 be co-project manager, but ha~

Research Elaine Henderson 13 15 13 13 5 15 10 84 limited water experience.

Armando Buelna 13 18 13 13 5 14 10 86 Good level of analysis.

Luth
Geoff Stevens 8 14 12 10 6 9 9 68 Vague presentation. Panel

49
Research Elaine Henderson 1 3 8 3 6 1 1 23 scores were low for this

Armando Buelna 10 10 10 7 5 6 8 56 reason.

Geoff Stevens 12 18 13 14 8 12 9 86 Good experience working

Rea & Parker Elaine Henderson 13 18 15 15 8 13 6 88 88 working with them.

Armando Buelna 15 18 13 14 8 14 8 90 Good product.

Geoff Stevens 8 12 10 8 8 12 8 66 Not much local expo Great

Zogbylnt. Elaine Henderson 10 10 13 5 8 8 1 55 65 reputation/expertise. Onsite

Armando Buelna 15 15 10 8 8 10 9 75 meetings not addressed.



AGENDA ITEM 7a

STAFF REPORT

TYPE MEETING:

SUBMITTED BY:

Regular Board

Sean Prendergast,

MEETING DATE:

W.O.lG.F. NO:

September 6, 2006

DIV. NO. All

APPROVED BY:
(Chief)

APPROVED BY:
(Asst. GM):

SUBJECT:

paYr~ll~ Supervisor

Josepi . Beachem, Chief Financial Officer

Germ n ~ASsistant General Manager

Director's Expenses for the 4th Quarter of Fiscal Year 2006

GENERAL MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION:

This is an informational item only.

COMMITTEE ACTION:

Please see Attachment A.

PURPOSE:

To inform the Board of the Director's expenses for the 4th
quarter of Fiscal Year 2006.

ANALYSIS:

The Director's expense information is being presented in order
to comply with State law. (See Attachment B for Summary and C-H

for Details.) ~.

FISCAL IMPACT :------=----=---
~

None.

STRATEGIC GOAL·

Prudently manage District funds.

LEGAL IMPACT:

State law.

General Manager



Attachments:
A) Committee Action Form
B) Director's Expenses and per Diems
C-H) Director's Expenses Detail



ATTACHMENT A

SUBJECTIPROJECT: Director's Expenses for the 4th Quarter of Fiscal Year 2006

COMMITTEE ACTION:

This item was reviewed by the Finance and Administration
Committee on August 21, 2006 and the committee supported
presentation to the full Board.

NOTE:

The "Committee Action" is written in anticipation of the
Committee moving the item forward for board approval. This
report will be sent to the Board as a committee approved item,
or modified to reflect any discussion or changes as directed
from the committee prior to presentation to the full board.

Y:\Board\CurBdPkg\FINANCE\CommMtgDirExp090606.doc



Attachment B

BOARD OF DIRECTORS'

EXPENSES AND PER-DIEMS

BOARD OF DIRECTORS' MEETING

SEPTEMBER 6, 2006



Policy 8 requires that staff present the Expenses and
Per-Diems for the Board of Directors on a Quarterly
basis:

• Fiscal Year 2006, 4th Quarter

• The expenses are shown in detail by Board
member, month and expense type.

• This presentation is in alphabetical order.

• This information was presented to the Finance and
Administration Committee on August 21, 2006



Board of Directors' Expenses and Per-Diems
Fiscal Year 2006 Quarter 4 (Apr 06- Jun 06)

• Director Bonilla

• Director Breitfelder

• Director Croucher

• Director Lopez

• Director Robak

• Total

0.00

$1,196.31

$1,625.00

$853.40

$2,388.24

$6,062.95



Director Bonilla
Fiscal Year 2006 Quarter 4

Apr 06 May 06 Jun06 Qtr4

• Mileage Business

• Mileage Commute

• Conference

• Travel

• Director's Fees

•
• Monthly Totals 0.00 0.00 0.00

• Meetings Attended Director Bonilla does not request
• Meetings Paid Per-Diem reimbursements.

• Quarterly Total
• Fiscal Year-to-Date 2006 (JuI05-Jun06) 1,814.63



Director Brietfelder
Fiscal Year 2006 Quarter 4

Apr 06 May 06 Jun 06 Qtr4

• Mileage Business 37.38

• Mileage Commute 13.35 40.05 13.35

• Business Meetings 20.00 52.00 20.00

• Seminars & Travel
• Director's Fees 200.00 600.00 200.00

• Monthly Totals 233.35 692.05 270.73

• Meetings Attended 15 13
• Meetings Paid 2 6
• Quarterly Total
• Fiscal Year-to-Date 2006 (JuI05-Jun06)

10
2

1,196.13
7,405.21



Director Croucher
Fiscal Year 2006 Quarter 4



Director Lopez
Fiscal Year 2006 Quarter 4

Apr 06 May 06 Jun06 Qtr4

• Mileage Business

• Mileage Commute 26.70 26.70

• Travel

• Director's Fees 400.00 400.00

• Conference

• Monthly Totals 426.70 426.70

• Meetings Attended 5
• Meetings Paid 4
• Quarterly Total
• Fiscal Year-to-Date 2006 (JuI05-Jun06)

4

4
853.40

5,326.46



Director Robak
Fiscal Year 2006 Quarter 4

Apr 06 May 06 Jun06 Qtr4

• Mileage Business 51.62 64.53 63.19

• Mileage Commute 5.34 3.56

• Travel
• Director's Fees 600.00 800.00 800.00

• Conference

• Monthly Totals 651.62 869.87 866.75

• Meetings Attended 9 13
• Meetings Paid 6 8

Quarterly Total
• Fiscal Year-to-Date 2006 (JuI05-Jun06)

12
8

2,388.24
10,516.43



Board of Directors' Expenses and Per Diems
Fiscal Year 2006 to Date (Jul 05- Jun 06)

• Director Bonilla

• Director Breitfelder

• Director Croucher

• Director Lopez

• Director Robak

• Total

$1,814.63

$7,405.21

$4,420.22

$5,326.46

$10,516.43

$29,482.95



Board of Directors' Expenses and Per Diems
Fiscal Year 2006 to Date (Jul 05- Jun 06) Projected

• Director Bonilla

• Director Breitfelder

• Director Croucher

• Director Lopez

• Director Robak

• Total

$1,680.00

$8,278.00

$3,727.00

$5,797.00

$9,122.00

$28,604.00



ATTACHMENT C
SECTIONC

OTAYWATERDISTRICT
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES - BOARD

July 1,2005 - June 30, 2006

Jul-05 Oct-05 Nov-65 D«-65 J.0-66 Fel>-06 Mar-66 Juo'06 TOTAL
JAIME BONILLA (DETAILED IN SECTION D):

5211 Mileage - Payroll

5211 Mileage - Accounts Payable

5212 Travel 1,560.81 1,560.81
5214 Business meetings

5114 Director's fees

5241 Telephone

5213 Seminars and conferences 253.82 253.82
Total 1,814.63 1,814.63

LARRY BREITFELDER (DETAILED IN SECTION E):

5211 Mileage - Payroll 36.45 43.65 43.65 29.10 14.55 14.55 26.70 13.35 40.05 13.35 275.40
5211 Mileage - Accounts Payable 34.02 16.49 154.23 45.59 64.27 71.78 55.18 50.73 37.38 529.67
5212 Travel 593.14 593.14
5214 Business meetings 66.00 20.00 20.00 82.00 20.00 20.00 40.00 20.00 20.00 52.00 20.00 380.00
5114 Director's fees 400.00 400.00 700.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 400.00 200.00 200.00 600.00 200.00 4,300.00
5241 Telephone

5213 Seminars and conferences 592.00 150.00 585.00 1,327.00
Total 536.47 460.14 2,103.02 644.69 1,145.82 506.33 501.88 290.73 20.00 233.35 692.05 270.73 7,405.21

GARY D. CROUCHER (DETAILED IN SECTION F):
5211 Mileage - Payroll 4.86 4.86 3.88 7.76 3.88 25.24
5211 Mileage - Accounts Payable 14.55 18.43 32.98
5212 Travel

5214 Business meetings 32.00 32.00
5114 Director's fees 300.00 400.00 200.00 400.00 300.00 300.00 200.00 200.00 200.00 300.00 500.00 300.00 3,600.00
5241 Telephone

5213 Seminars and conferences 205.00 525.00 730.00
Total 304.86 451.41 203.88 407.76 300.00 527.31 200.00 200.00 200.00 300.00 SOO.OO 825.00 4,420.22

JOSE LOPEZ (DETAILED IN SECTION G):
5211 Mileage - Payroll 35.60 26.70 26.70 26.70 26.70 142.40
5211 Mileage - Accounts Payable

5212 Travel 1,560.81 1,560.81
5214 Business meetings

5281 Director's fees 400.00 300.00 500.00 300.00 500.00 400.00 400.00 2,800.00
5241 Telephone

5213 Seminars and conferences 150.00 375.00 298.25 823.25
Total 150.00 775.00 300.00 535.60 326.70 2,385.76 426.70 426.70 5,326.46

MARK ROBAK (DETAILED IN SECTION 11):

5211 Mileage - Payroll 3.24 3.24 11.64 5.82 3.88 1.94 1.78 1.78 3.56 5.34 3.56 45.78
5211 Mileage - Accounts Payable 34.43 20.86 22.31 92.69 41.23 33.95 49.84 66.75 104.96 51.62 64.53 63.19 646.33
5212 Travel 1,421.59 1,421.59
5214 Business meetings

5114 Director's fees 700.00 400.00 600.00 700.00 600.00 600.00 600.00 500.00 600.00 600.00 800.00 800.00 7,500.00
5241 Telephone

5213 Seminars and conferences 50.00 150.00 395.00 307.72 902.72
Total 737.67 424.10 683.95 948.51 1,040.11 635.89 651.62 568.53 2,437.83 651.62 869.87 866.75 10,516.43

TOTALS:

5211 Mileage - Payroll 44.55 51.75 59.17 42.68 18.43 20.37 64.08 28.48 30.26 13.35 72.09 43.61 488.82
5211 Mileage· Accounts Payable 68.45 51.90 176.54 138.28 105.50 124.16 105.02 117.48 104.96 51.62 64.53 100.57 1,208.99
5212 Travel 593.14 4,543.21 5,136.35
5214 Business meetings 66.00 32.00 20.00 20.00 82.00 20.00 20.00 40.00 20.00 20.00 52.00 20.00 412.00
5114 Director's fees 1,400.00 1,200.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 1,700.00 1,600.00 1,700.00 1,200.00 1,300.00 1,100.00 2,300.00 1,700.00 18,200.00
5241 Telephone
5213 Seminars and conferences 642.00 450.00 1,355.00 205.00 859.79 525.00 4,036.79

Total 1,579.00 1,335.65 2,990.85 2,150.96 3,260.93 1,969.53 1,889.10 1,385.96 6,858.22 1,184.97 2,488.62 2,389.18 29,482.95
F:/YTD JUNE 06SUMMARY YTD JUNE 06 Pnnted Dale8f2312006



IDIRECTORS NAME

OTAY WATER DISTRICT
SUMMARY - BOARD OF DIRECTORS EXPENSES

FOR THE PERIOD JULY 1, 2005 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2006

IJAIME BONIlLA I

3/22/2006

REGISTRATION FEE - WORLD WATER FORUM (3/16-19/06)
FOREIGN TRANSACTION FEE

ATTACHMENT D
SECTION D

$ 244.86
8.96

FNTD JUNE 06Jaime-Div 2

3/14/2006

HOTEL-WORLD WATER FORUM IN MEXICO CITY (3/16-19/06)
3/22/2006

AIRFARE - MEXICO CITY, MEXICO
3/19/2006

FEE TO CHANGE RETURN FLIGHT

1 of 1

813.69

622.11

125.01

Prinled Dale:8/23/2006



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
SUMMARY - BOARD OF DIRECTORS EXPENSES

FOR THE PERIOD JULY 1, 2005 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2006

ATTACHMENT E
SECTION E

IDIRECTORS NAME ILARRY BREITFELDER

7/8/2005

FIRST FRIDAY BREAKFAST - TO WELCOME BOB FILNER
7/19/2005

COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES MONTHLY MEETING
7/21/2005

WATER AGENCY ASSOCIATION
9/20/2005

It ttl IIJIlitklHM d 1!!liHIIJlAi1 n !1iI:1JiiL

COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES MONTHLY MEETING
10/18/2005

COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES MONTHLY MEETING
11/15/2005

COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES MONTHLY MEETING
11/17/2005

CSDA QUARTERLY MEETING
12/20/2005

COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES MONTHLY MEETING
11/16/2005

SAN DIEGO COUNTY WATER WORKS GROUP
1/17/2006,

COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES MONTHLY MEETING
2/16/2006

CALIFORNIA SPECIAL DISTRICT ASSOCIATION
2/21/2006

1m

COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES MONTHLY MEETING
3/16/2006

" COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES MONTHLY MEETING
4/18/2006

COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES MONTHLY MEETING
5/16/2006

Im!Bm

COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES MONTHLY MEETING
5/18/2006

lJ 3M L I1ilk !iI:Ill [

CSDA QUARTERLY MEETING
6/20/2006

Il"m$

COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES MONTHLY MEETING

S
9/27/2005

CSDA ANNUAL CONFERENCE (9/27-9/29/05)
10/14/2005

15th ANNUAL ECONOMIC SUMMIT

$ 11.00

20.00

35.00

20.00

20.00

20.00

32.00

20.00

30.00

20.00

20.00

20.00

20.00

20.00

20.00

32.00

20.00

592.00

150.00
11/29/2005-
7/12/2005

7/19/2005

7/21/2005

F:/YTD JUNE 06Larry-Div 1

ACWA FALL CONFERENCE (11/29 - 12/02/05)
ASSOCIATION OF CA WATER AGENCIES

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES MONTHLY MEETING

WATER AGENCY ASSOCIATION

1of4

375.00
210.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

Printed Date:8/23/2006



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
SUMMARY - BOARD OF DIRECTORS EXPENSES

FOR THE PERIOD JULY 1, 2005 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2006

IDIRECTORS NAME ILARRY BREITFELDER

ACWA SEAWATER DESALINATION PROGRAM 100.00
8/3/2005

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 100.00
8/8/2005

CWA CONSERVATION COMMITTEE 100.00
8/11/2005

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 100.00
8/23/2005

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 100.00
9/7/2005

m
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 100.00

9/12/2005
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 100.00

9/20/2005
COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES MONTHLY MEETING 100.00

9/27/2005
CSDA CONFERENCE 100.00

9/19/2005
OTAY WATER DISTRICT TOUR OF INFRASTRUCTURE 100.00

9/26/2005
CSDA CONFERENCE 100.00

9/28/2005
CSDA CONFERENCE 100.00

10/9/2005
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 100.00

10/17/2005
SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 100.00

10/18/2005
COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES MONTHLY MEETING 100.00

10/24/2005
"" OTAY WATER DISTRICT GROUND BREAKING 100.00

11/7/2005
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 100.00

12/1/2005
ASSOCIATION OF CA WATER AGENCIES 100.00

12/7/2005
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 100.00

11/4/2005
FIRST FRIDAY BREAKFAST 100.00

11/15/2005
COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES MONTHLY MEETING 100.00

11/17/2005
CSDA CONFERENCE 100.00

12/12/2005
CWA CONSERVATION COMMITTEE 100.00

12/20/2005
ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING 100.00

1/4/2006
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 100.00

1/17/2006
COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES MONTHLY MEETING 100.00

1/19/2006

F:/YTO JUNE 06Larry-Oiv 1 2 of 4 Prinled Oale:8/23/2006



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
SUMMARY - BOARD OF DIRECTORS EXPENSES

FOR THE PERIOD JULY 1, 2005 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2006

IDIRECTORS NAME ILARRY BREITFELDER

WATER CONSERVATION GARDEN JPA MEETING
2/28/2006

CSDA QUARTERLY MEETING
2/1/2006

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
4/5/2006

:!ii

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
4/18/2006

COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES MONTHLY MEETING
5/3/2006

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
5/5/2006

~ r

JOINT AGENCY MEETING
5/16/2006

t l!l

COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES MONTHLY MEETING
5/18/2006

CSDA QUARTERLY MEETING
5/22/2006

WATER RESOURCE AND SECURITY COMMITTEE MEETING
5/23/2006

ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING
6/7/2006

t!1!lt1U B t 11 t t

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
6/20/2006 '"

POWAY COUNCIL OF WATER UTILITIES

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

7/19/2005
MEETING- 7/19/2005

8/8/2005
MEETING - 8/8/2005

34.02

16.49
9/3012005

F:NTO JUNE 06Larry-Oiv 1

10/18/2005

11/30/2005

12/31/2005

1(30(2006

2(28/2006

6(20£2006

7(30/2005

8/31(2005

9(30/2005

10(31(2005

MEETING - 9/20, 9/26, 9/27 & 9/28/05

MEETING - 10/18 & 10/24/05

MEETING - 11/15, 11/17/05 & 11/30

MEETING - 12/1, 12/12/05 & 12/20/05

MEETING - 1/17 & 1/23/06

MEETING - 2/16 & 2/21/06

MEETING - 6 20 2006

MEETING - 7/12, 7/21 & 7/25/05

MEETING - 8/3, 8/11 & 8/23/05

MEETING - 9/7,9/12 & 9/19/05

MEETING - 10/11 & 10/17

3 of 4

154.23

45.59

64.27

71.78

55.18

50.73

37.38

36.45

43.65

43.65

29.10

Printed Oate:8/23/2006



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
SUMMARY - BOARD OF DIRECTORS EXPENSES

FOR THE PERIOD JULY 1, 2005 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2006

IDIRECTORS NAME ILARRY BREITFELDER

MEETING - 11/7/05 14.55
12/7/2005

MEETING - 12/7/05 14.55
1£30/2006

MEETING - 1/4 & 1/19/06 26.70
4/30£2006

MEETING - 4/5 & 4/18/06 13.35
5£31{2006

MEETING - 5/3, 5/5, 5/16, 5/18, & 5/22/06 40.05
6[7/2006

MEETING - 6 7 2006 13.35

9£30£2005
CSDA CONFERENCE (9/25, 9/26 & 9/27/05)
HOTEL - CSDA CONFERENCE 9/25,9/26 & 9/27/05

F:/YTD JUNE 06Larry-Div 1 4of4 Printed Date:8/23/2006



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
SUMMARY - BOARD OF DIRECTORS EXPENSES

FOR THE PERIOD JULY 1, 2005 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2006

ATTACHMENT F
SECTION F

IDIRECTORS NAME IGARY CROUCHER

8/18/2005

11/29/2005

ACWA FALL CONFERENCE (12/1 - 12/02/05)

$ 32.00

205.00
6/3/2006...-

SPECIAL DISTRICT AND LOCAL GOVERNMENT INSTITUTE 525.00

7/12/2005

7/21/2005

7/27/2005
ii! J1

8/3/2005

8/11/2005
lli ~

8/18/2005

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING

WATER RESOURCE AND SECURITY COMMITTEE MEETING

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING

CSDA QUARTERLY MEETING

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00
8/23/2005

ill Ji

9/20/2005
'"

9/27/2005

10/17/2005

10/10/2005

10/11/2005

10/25/2005

11/7/2005

12/1/2005

12/7/2005

12/20/2005
=

11/14/2005

11/28/2005

1/4/2006

1/24/2006,

..

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING

WATER RESOURCE AND SECURITY COMMITTEE MEETING

ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING

WATER RESOURCE AND SECURITY COMMITTEE MEETING

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

ASSOCIATION OF CA WATER AGENCIES

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING

WATER RESOURCE AND SECURITY COMMITTEE MEETING

ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

F:/YTD JUNE 06Gary-Div 3 1 of 2 Printed Date:8/23/2006



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
SUMMARY - BOARD OF DIRECTORS EXPENSES

FOR THE PERIOD JULY 1, 2005 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2006

IDIRECTORS NAME IGARY CROUCHER

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
2/2/2006

•
ANNUAL EMPLOYEE APPRECIATION EVENT

3/13/2006

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
3/27/2006

ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING
4/5/2006

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
4/18/2006

tlU 1M ill

ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING
5/3/2006

1% JPJU

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
5/5/2006

SEMIANNUALINTERANGENCY
5/31/2006

WATER RESOURCE AND SECURITY COMMITTEE MEETING
5/23/2006

ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING
5/30/2006

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING
6/7/2006

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
6/21/2006

WATER RESOURCE AND SECURITY COMMITTEE MEETING
6/23/2006

3 U 1m ill r l!WfB£

ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING
4/24/2006

WATER RESOURCE AND SECURITY COMMITTEE MEETING

8/18/2005
""""" MEETING - 8/18/2005

12/31/2005

MEETING - 12/1/05

7/31/2005

MEETING - 7/12, 7/21 & 7/25/05
8/31/2005

" MEETING - 8/3, 8/11 & 8/23/05
9/30/2005

MEETING - 9/20 & 9/27/05
10/31/2005

rill !f&3111!l1

MEETING - 10/10, 10/11, 10/17 & 10/25
12/31/2005

MEETING - 12/7 & 12/20/05

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

14.55

18.43

4.86

4.86

3.88

7.76

3.88

F:/YTD JUNE 06Gary-Div 3 2 of 2 Printed Date:8/23/2006



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
SUMMARY - BOARD OF DIRECTORS EXPENSES

FOR THE PERIOD JULY 1, 2005 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2006

ATTACHMENT G
SECTION G

IDIRECTORS NAME IJOSE LOPEZ I

10/14/2005

15th ANNUAL ECONOMIC SUMMIT
11/29/2005

ACWA FALL CONFERENCE (11/29 - 12/02/05)
3/22/2006

REGISTRATION FEE - WORLD WATER FORUM (3/16-19/06)

11/2/2005

NOVEMBER AGENDA BRIEFING
11/7/2005

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
11/23/2005

FINANCE & ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
11/30/2005

DECEMBER AGENDA BRIEFING
12/1/2005

FALL CONFERENCE
12/7/2005

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
12/16/2005

FINANCE & ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
1/4/2006

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
1/19/2006

OTAY DEVELOPERS LUNCHEON MEETING
1/20/2006

FINANCE & ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
1/23/2006

ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING
1/24/2006

CHULA VISTA TASK FORCE (INTERAGENCIES MEETING)
2/3/2006

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
2/15/2006

FINANCE & ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
2/22/2006

ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING
3/13/2006

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
3/27/2006

ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING
3/17/2006

WORLD WATER CONFERENCE
3/18/2006

WORLD WATER CONFERENCE
3/24/2006

FINANCE & ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE MEETING
5/3/2006

REGULAR BOARD MEETING

$ 150.00

375.00

298.25

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

F:/YTD JUNE 06Jose-Div 4 1 of 2 Prinled Dale:8/23/2006



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
SUMMARY - BOARD OF DIRECTORS EXPENSES

FOR THE PERIOD JULY 1, 2005 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2006

ATTACHMENT G
SECTION G

IDIRECTORS NAME IJOSE LOPEZ I

5/5/2006

JOINT AGENCY MEETING
5/23/2006

ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING
5/30/2006

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING
6/7/2006

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
6/20/2006

SDC - SUPERVISORS 50TH PROCLAMATION
6/23/2006

OPERATIONS MEETING
6/19/2006

FINANCE & ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE MEETING

6/30/2006
IIlUllitl mtl1!'m&

MEETING -6/7, 6/23, & 6/19/06

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

26.70

1/31/2006

MEETING - 1/4,1/19,1/20,1/23 & 1/24/06
2/28/2006

MEETING - 2/3, 2/15, & 2/22/06
3/31/2006

MEETING - 3/13, 3/24 & 3/27/06
5/31/2006

MEETING - 5/3, 5/5 & 5/30/06

3/14/2006
2tiI!l!tti1iiiZl3£J

HOTEL-WORLD WATER FORUM IN MEXICO CITY (3/16-19/06)
3/22/2006

AIRFARE - MEXICO CITY, MEXICO
3/19/2006

~ §

FEE TO CHANGE RETURN FLIGHT

35.60

26.70

26.70

26.70

813.69

622.11

125.01

F:NTD JUNE 06Jose-Div 4 2 of 2 Printed Date:8/23/2006



IDIRECTORS NAME

OTAY WATER DISTRICT
SUMMARY - BOARD OF DIRECTORS EXPENSES

FOR THE PERIOD JULY 1, 2005 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2006

IMARK ROBAKI

9/15/2005

ATTACHMENT H
SECTION H

REGISTRATION FEE - ACWA DESALINATION PRESENTATION
10/14/2005

15th ANNUAL ECONOMIC SUMMIT
11/29/2005

ACWA FALL CONFERENCE (11/29 - 12/02/05)
3/22/2006

REGISTRATION FEE - WORLD WATER FORUM (3/16-19/06)
FOREIGN TRANSACTION FEE

7/7/2005

METRO COMMISSION
7/12/2005

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
7/13/2005

WATER CONSERVATION GARDEN JPA MEETING
7/20/2005

BOARD REPRESENTATIVE ON RECYCLING ISSUES
7/21/2005

ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING
7/26/2005

FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE
8/3/2005

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
8/4/2005

METRO COMMISSION
8/22/2005

WATER CONSERVATION GARDEN JPA MEETING
8/23/2005

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING
9/1/2005

METRO COMMISSION
9/7/2005

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
9/12/2005

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING
9/15/2005

ACWA SEAWATER DESALINATION PROGRAM
9/20/2005

WATER CONSERVATION GARDEN JPA MEETING
9/27/2005

ENGINEERING AND OPERATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING
7/14/2005

AMERICAN ASSEMBLY II WORKSHOP (METRO COMMISSION)
10/17/2005

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING
10/14/2005

SOUTH COUNTY ECONOMIC SUMMIT - CONVENTION CENTER
10/10/2005

WATER RESOURCE AND SECURITY COMMITTEE MEETING
10/11/2005

REGULAR BOARD MEETING
10/25/2005

$ 50.00

150.00

395.00

298.76
8.96

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

100.00

F:/YTD JUNE 06Mark-Div 5 1 of 4 Printed Date:8/23/2006



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
SUMMARY - BOARD OF DIRECTORS EXPENSES

FOR THE PERIOD JULY 1, 2005 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2006



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
SUMMARY - BOARD OF DIRECTORS EXPENSES

FOR THE PERIOD JULY 1, 2005 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2006

ATTACHMENT H
SECTION H

IDIRECTORS NAME IMARK ROBAKI

FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 100.00

REGULAR BOARD. MEETING 100.00
5/3/2006

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 100.00
5/5/2006

JOINT AGENCY MEETING 100.00
5/16/2006

WATER CONSERVATION GARDEN JPA MEETING 100.00
5/31/2006

WATER RESOURCE AND SECURITY COMMITTEE MEETING 100.00
5/30/2006

SPECIAL BOARD MEETING 100.00
5/4/2006

&tZIiItL

METRO COMMISSION 100.00
5/24/2006

FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 100.00

L
5/26/2006

AD HOC AULD GOLF COURSE COMMITTEE 100.00
6/7/2006

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 100.00
6/20/2006

AD HOC AULD GOLF COURSE COMMITTEE 100.00
6{21/2006 ..

WATER RESOURCE AND SECURITY COMMITTEE MEETING 100.00
6{23/2006

WATER RESOURCE AND SECURITY COMMITTEE MEETING 100.00
6{1{2006

METRO COMMISSION 100.00
6{5{2006

COMMUNICATIONS COMMITTEE 100.00
6{14{2006

WATER CONSERVATION GARDEN JPA MEETING 100.00
6/19{2006

FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 100.00
2£8{2006

WATER CONSERVATION GARDEN JPA MEETING 100.00
2{9/2006

METRO COMMISSION 100.00
2£17£2006

COMMUNICATIONS COMMITTEE 100.00
3{30{2006

COMMUNICATIONS COMMITTEE 100.00
4/7£2006

AD HOC AULD GOLF COURSE COMMITTEE 100.00
4{12/2006

WATER CONSERVATION GARDEN JPA MEETING 100.00
4£13{20OG

METRO COMMISSION 100.00
4{20/2006

FINANCE & ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 100.00
4£24£2006

WATER RESOURCE AND SECURITY COMMITTEE MEETING 100.00

7£7£2005
MEETING -7/7, 7/12, 7/13, 7/21, 7/26/05 34.43

8/31il,005
MEETING - 8/3, 8/4, 8/22, & 8/23/05 20.86

F:NTD JUNE 06Mark-Div 5 3 of 4 Printed Date:8/23/2006



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
SUMMARY - BOARD OF DIRECTORS EXPENSES

FOR THE PERIOD JULY 1, 2005 THROUGH JUNE 30, 2006

ATTACHMENT H
SECTION H

MEETING - 2/1, 2/3, 2/8, 2/9, 2/14, 2/15, 2/17, 2/21, 2/23 & 2/27/ 66.75

MEETING - 5/3, 5/4, 5/5, 5/16, 5/18, 5/20, 5/24, 5/26, 5/30 & 5/3: 64.53

1.78

1.94

5.82

3.88

3.24

3.24

63.19

11.64

56.96
48.00

49.84

51.62

22.31

41.23

33.95

MEETING - 10/11, 10/17 & 10/25

MEETING - 9/7, 9/12, 9/15, 9/20 & 9/27/05

MEETING - 8/3 & 8/23/05

MEETING - 7/12 & 7/26/05

MEETING - 6 1,6/5,6/7, 6/14,6 19,6/20,6/21,6 23/06

MEETING - 4/5, 4/7, 4/12, 4/13, 4/20 & 4/24/06

MEETING - 1/4, 1/5, 1/9, 1/11, 1/19, 1/20 & 1/28/06

MEETING - 3/13,3/16,3/17,3/24,3/27 & 3/30/06
PARKING - 3/14 & 3/19/06

MEETING - 12/1, 12/7, 12/9, 12/13, 12/14 & 12/20/05

MEETING - 11/1, 11/3, 11/7, 11/14, 11/28, & 11/30

MEETING - 10/10, 10/11, 10/12, 10/14, 10/17, 10/20, 10/24 & 10/2 74.69
PARKING - 10/19 & 10/20/05 18.00

MEETING - 9/1,9/7,9/12,9/20 & 9/27

MEETING - 11/7 & 11/14
12'31£2005.....

MEETING - 12/7/05
2/28£2006"",,

MEETING - 2/1/06

4{30{2006

5/30£2006

6/30/2006

11/30/2005

12/31/2005

2/28/2006

1/31/2006

3/31/2006

10/31/2005

7£31£2005

" 8£31£2005

9£30£2005

10£31£2005

11£30£2005

IMARK ROBAK IIDIRECTORS NAME

1£31£2006

4(3,,2L2006

5£31£2006

.. 6£30£2006

MEETING - 1/4/06

MEETING - 4/5 & 4/20/06

MEETING - 5/3, 5/24 & 5/30/06

MEETING - 6/7 & 6/19/06

1.78

3.56

5.34

3.56

3£14£2006

3/22£2006
HOTEL-WORLD WATER FORUM IN MEXICO CITY (3/16-19/06) 813.69

F:NTD JUNE 06Mark-Div 5 4 of 4 Printed Date:8/23/2006



30· X

0-445=

13-315*

,
.'

". I~'" :

." ::.\

~ ':: : : . .

- ..... '",

.. :: :":.:

.. ',:'.

. "'. ~., '.~ ~

..' ... ::.' ..~ ..,.'.

'.: . '. ,~.

Q ....
... ;.:.:-.....

I
~

.~.

HC?-:m~.·"·.::,~·::. 'r. . ".~". ..
Ow.t! .t.O..: liiiiiilioiill............

Period Covered: .' '. l·· '.,;
From y- 1 .to ~-'·.?2.~i~~:~:.

'. • "~<' ::~:~:.

-?:-t':..-

Discu~sed

Purpose l IS8ues

7013

INSTRUCTIONS O~ RBVBRSB

I

Number:

OTAY WATER DISTRICT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PER-DIEM AND MILEAGE CLAIM FORM

to: LarrY Breitfelder

~
;

4;d~,

'.,
i .....

. pi"oval Date:
.5': 7' .
···f:I. ~.

'~tri~t: .USE; TOTAL MILEAGE REIMSURSEMENT • $ _
:~ ::. .

MAV~2e-06 03:52 PM BREITFELDER



90'
0·44:~

40·0:

o

I
.:.

Discussed

%NSTRUCTIONS ON RBVBRSB

(D~t!bi~
Date:~ --.,~ft,-",,+-/~ _

I I

OTAY WATER DISTRICT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PER-DIEM AND MILEAGE CLAIM FORM

Purpose I Issues

USE: TOTAL MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT • $ _

Number: 7013

11:44 AM BREITFE~~~~

to: lam Breitfelder

·... 'i\(..,..t w
, VOl-v -(\ ~, J"
'.' .'l . V n" l W' ..'Y\ 1\.'1 ~
':.: ~ETING PER DIEM: $ 1000. o~
5 per meeting)

MiLsAGE CLAIMED: ':l. \i Lmiles



".. "

. '.' ~.~.

"':.J'.::

:"'. \ .

. ;'.

""tfIG
. ",.:: .\.... ",'

. ;." ~..:~ .: .. :-'..

30

619 421 969!5

<RBao- 1b/ooo- ;;VtJ;:l ~li;»/i;l.-:·':';
" :

I)-I/J)·-S;;J// <,"
'. ~ . :

DiscuSsed

INSTRUCTIONS ON REVERSE

Date, k_1-r'te~Cl....lo:- _

Purpose / Issues

USE: TOTAL MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT .. $ _

. ' l-1S£'l'~NG PER DIEM: $ :l I) ~ .;;."
5' pe'r 'inee t:.l.ng'

MXLSAGE CLAIMED:

."
! OTAY WATER DISTRICT

BOARD OF OlRECTORS

to, Larry Broit~~:R-DI7"IL~E::i~::ered'
:fi:t6~ z;:£, ~67 From (1- ~ to,"oy".r~ef10 4/4/1 c;3~.

JUL-19-06 03:01 PM BREITFELDER
$
ij)

i= "
r'
I'\:J
J:;;,.



Pay To: Gary Croucher

OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PER-DIEM AND MILEAGE CLAIM FORM

Period Covered:

EXHIBIT 8

Employee Number: 7011----------- From: 04/01106 To: 04/30/06

Total Mileage Claimed: 0 miles-------

Total Meeting Per Diem: .-;..$3_0_0 _
(5100 per meeting)

ITEM DATE MEETING PURPOSE 1 ISSUES MILEAGE MILEAGE
DISCUSSED HOME to OWD OTHER

OWD to HOME LOCATIONS

I 1 04/05 Board Regular Board Meeting

04/07 Event Sweetwater Authority Dam Historical Dedication

j 2 04/18 Committee Engineering and Operations Committee

'-
j 3

'.

04/24 Committee Water Resource and Security Committee

4129 Community Grossmont Cuyamaca College Foundation Event

~~-o
AII~ (DlreCbi'r'! Signature)

GM Approval:~'S'~()Ip__________ Date: ---:;S~'_6_~_"O_b~, _

FOR OFFICE USE: TOTAL MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT: S, _

I

'-



Pay To: Gary Croucher

OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PER-DIEM AND MILEAGE CLAIM FORM

Period Covered:

EXHffiITB

Employee Number: 7011------------
From: 05/01/06 To: 05/31/06

ITEM DATE MEETING PURPOSE / ISSUES MILEAGE MILEAGE
DISCUSSED HOMEtoOWD OTIIER

OWDtoHOME LOCATIONS

VI Board Regular OWD Board Meeting
,/ 05/03

d'+. AftA .A

J 2 05/05 Board OWD Board Meeting / Semi Annualln:ter~en~;

05/12 GM Meeting with President and GM

j 3 OS/23 Committee Engineering and Operations Committee meeting

I 4 5/30 Board Special Board - Budget Review Workshop

5/31 Community Meeting with Supervisor Jacob ref: Reclaimed Water ;
,\0,

j Water Resource and Security Committee
,
r5 5/31 Committee

Total Meeting Per Diem: ----"-$5:.....:0:...:;0 _
($100 per meeting)

GM Appro...]: ~/f?
I

Total Mileage Claimed: ° miles

Date: _

FOR OFFICE USE: TOTAL MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT: $, _

f06 JUN 26 Pt'j 4=44



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PER-DIEM AND MILEAGE CLAIM FORM

EXHIBITB

Pay To: Gary Croucher Period Covered:

Employee Number: 7011
------------

From: 06/01106 To: 06/30/06

ITEM DATE MEETING PURPOSE / ISSUES MILEAGE MILEAGE
DISCUSSED HOMEloOWD OTHER

OWDtoHOME LOCATIONS

06/01 Seminar Special Districts Training Institute - Admin

06/02 Seminar Special Districts Training Institute - Admin

(/ 1 06/07 Board Regular Board Meeting

~Vi 06/21 Committee Resource and Security Committee Meeting

vV; 06/23 Committee Engineering and Operations Committee Meeting

06/23 Committee Negotiations Ad Hoc Committee ;
.~
r
"

Total Meeting Per Diem: ----=-$3:....:0:....:0'-- _
($100 per meeting)

miles°Total Mileage Claimed:

GM Approval: _--IIjlNJ~--=-~#C~ _

FOR OFFICE USE: TOTAL MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT: $ _
I

~

'06 JUL 18 AM 9:48



EXHIBIT B

OTAY WATER DISTRICT

BOARD OF DIRECTORS
PER-DIEM AND MILEAGE CLAIM FORM

Pay to: Jose Lopez

Employee Number: 7010

peri~ered' d? ..
From / to /'/4Y

Meeting Name

TOTAL MEETING PER DIEM: $
($145 per meeting)

TOTAL MILEAGE CLAIMED:

GM Approval Date:

Purpose / Issues

400·-

010

Mileage
Home to OWD Other

to Home Locations

FOR OFFICE USE: TOTAL MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT $
-----~

INSTRUCTIONS ON REVERSE I
;c



08/15/2006 14:28 SDFD SP EVENTS ~ 96600829 NO. 755 [;102

I
AbOOD - rDL+OOQ·J.IO I--Sd-,g 101 4$ Joo _00

MOOD· f~t+OOO --JI 0 1-5J./1 01 d..LP. 10

OTAY WATER DISTRICT #b. '-I J.(g .10
BOARD OF DIRECTORS ..

PER-DIEM AND MILEAGE CLAIM FORM

EXHIBIT B

Peri"od Covered:
From .' Ode -01 to t')(, - ;8()'~2I:IOk,

Pay to: Jose L10ez
Employe.e Number; __....:.-_7_0_1_0 _

r

. I
Purpose I !SBues Milea.ge

Rome to ow Ol:h.er
Date MeetJ.ng ),tame Discussed own to Home Locations

1d~1 (9wl ~~.-J ~ ,:uP- ~

6-;;'3 lOA)~ Eno \r~:t~~We~lD~ /l1~ ~,

;;8 ~ttJ~ ':J ' ;;-,4IAII/(II- &IY/.~V""'- p;r,..,
l ..JtJ 8IJelJ11/L" A i~~ • 'kJc.itl1lt2b,/tI ~~J /?f

I ~

-.

.-

I

r

TOTAL MEET1NG PER Dt~M: $
($145 per meet.ing) I,

TOTAL MILEAGE CLAI

400,

~o

GM Approval Date, • ~l~-.Io'~'---' _

FOR OFFICE USE; TOT MIl.2AGE REIMBURSEMENT ~ ~-----
INSTRUCTIONS ON REVIRSE I



4-30-06To: ----=.....::...::-.::..::..-.._-

OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PER-DIEM,AND MILEAGE CLAIM/ORM

8:J./7 r~~~ fteriod Covered:

~JJ~7Jf M:1 Q;11f'From: 4-1-06Employee Number: 7014

Pay To: Mark Robak

-11 06-t-

, D91-

, I 6 ;<

-'r ' ':):::

·06+
,))+

ITEM DATE MEETING PURPOSE I ISSUES MILEAGE MILEAGE
DISCUSSED HOMEtoOWD OTHER

OWDtoHOME LOCATIONS

1 4-4 Water Conservation Garden Executive Committee - NO CHARGE 0 0

2 4-5 Padre Dam MWD Open Opening of their new administrative office 0 0
House -NO CHARGE l

'~

Monthly Otay Board Meeting General District Business 4
,..

3 4-5 6 .
4 4-7 Ad Hoc Auld Golf Course Meeting with buyers of golf course to 0 2~

Committee discuss leasehold improvements
,..

[

5 4-12 Water Conservation Garden Monthly Meeting I General Business 0 9 I D

(See Exhibit A - Agenda) I ()

r
[)

6 4-13 Metro Commission Annual workshop and monthly meeting - 0 58
U

(See Exhibit B - Agenda)
I

i 0
7 4-20 Finance & Administration Monthly meeting involving finance & 4 6 I ()

Committee administration issues I
I
I

I8 4~24 Water Resources & Security Meeting involving water resources & 0 9 I
!

Committee security issues !

9
I

4-29 Cuyamaca College Foundation Annual fundraising event for the College's 0 0
Dinner foundation - NO CHARGE

fl- :

I 5i
f}e ~CO,-" /85 ;?i00- t9)t!J::?- cS;;;;; )/t ~J 8 116

Total Meeting Per Diem: $600 ;/-11/1-5;)))

I

I

($100 per meetmg)

Total Mileage Claimed: 124 miles

GM Approval: -fJJk;-_--.:- _
I

Date: _-1--+ _

'9·... ~1At- tt I '( 3PM 3!!Hf OFFICE USE: TOTAL MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT: $, _

I
.:.

I
.:.



OTAYWATERDISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PER-DIEM AND MILEAGE CLAIM FORM

Pay To: Mark Robak Period Covered:

Employee Number: --=-70.:..:1=--4=-- _ From: 5-1-06

ITEM DATE MEETING PURPOSE / ISSUES MILEAGE MILEAGE
DISCUSSED HOME 10 OWD OTHER

OWD 10 HOME LOCATIONS

5-1 Water Conservation Garden Monthly Meeting / General Business - 0 0
Foundation NO CHARGE

/ 2 4 6

/ 3 0 22

/ 4 0 12

I 5 0 Q
.\..

,-

6 5-18 Otay 980-2 Pump Station Opening of new facility and celebration of 0 35
Dedication 50th anniversa of District with Chamber'

7 5-19 Lunch with Director Croucher Discuss partnership between Garden and 0 0
San Miguel Fire Dept. on new Fire Wise
Garden-NO CHARGE

8 5-20 0 9

j 10 4 6

j 11 0 28

j 12 5-3 4 6

13 5-31 0 0

J 14 0 12

~9IfJq,oor
12 145

Total Meeting Per Diem: $l.&6'0 O'A
($100 per meeting)

}

1UJ~Total Mileage Claimed: 157 mile! 8·x
100':::

.:s.~

/lA»M 800'00* (Director's Signature)....-1..
telt~/o~

-.-I
-.-I
:s::: GM Approval: Date:.0:; , 12' Xos'

N O· ,Vf5= (:z
:::t FOR OFFICE USE: TOTAL MILEAGE REIMBUR 5-34-*-.::a
':.D
t:S:l...



Pay To: Mark Robak

OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS

PER-DIEM AND MILEAGE CLAIM FORM

Period Covered:

Employee Number: ---'-70.:..:1.:..:4'-"-0...:...60...:...6 _

3217 Fair Oaks Lane, Spring Valley, CA 91978

From: 6-1-06 To: 6-30-06

ITEM DATE MEETING PURPOSE / ISSUES MILEAGE MILEAGE
DISCUSSED HOME to OWD OTHER

OWD to HOME LOCATIONS

1/1 6-1 Metro Commission Monthly Meeting /General Business 0 22
/ (See Exhibit A - Agenda)

1/2 6-5 Communications Committee Monthly meeting involving 0 13
communication issues

3 6-6 Fire Wise Garden Dedication of new garden at the Water 0 0
Groundbreaking Conservation Garden - NO CHARGE

il 4
r

6-7 Monthly Otay Board Meeting General District Business 4 7.~
!
r

5 6-8 Water Conservation Garden Dinner at the Garden to honor docent 0 0
Docent's Dinner volunteers - NO CHARGE

V6 6-14 Water Conservation Garden Monthly Meeting / General Business 0 35
(See Exhibit B - Agenda)

7 6-17 Otay Open House 50th Anniversary Open House at Otay 0 0
Administrative Office - NO CHARGE

18 6-19 Finance & Administration Monthly meeting involving finance & 4 7
Committee administration issues

/9 6-20 Ad Hoc Auld Golf Course Lunch meeting to discuss proposal from 0 30
Committee golf course lessee

/10 6-21 Water Resources & Security Meeting involving water resources & 0 13
Committee security issues

~"/11 6-23 Water Conservation Garden Meeting with Sweetwater Authority to 0 15
O~ discuss possible JPA membership

12 6-30 Augie Caires Retirement Party Retirement party for Padre Dam GM - 0 0
at Santee Lakes NO CHARGE,

8 142

Total Meeting Per Diem: $800

GMAppmvah~

($100 per meeting)

Total Mileage Claimed: 150

Date: _(D_/_1~1-7-/t_~-Irf-~-S-ig-n-at-u-r-e)--
I

FOR OFFICE USE: TOTAL MILEAGE REIMBURSEMENT: $ ~

'06 JUL 18 AM :3=48



AGENDA ITEM 7b

TYPE MEETING: Regular Board

SUBMITTED BY: James D. Cudlip,

STAFF REPORT

MEETING DATE:

W.O./G.F. NO:

September 6, 2006

DIV. NO. All

APPROVED BY:
(Chief)

APPROVED BY:
(Asst. GM):

SUBJECT:

Finance Manager~

Joseph R. Bea~~e~ Chief Financial Officer

German Alvarez,~tantGeneral Manager

Annual Review of Investment Policy (Board of Directors Policy
No. 27) and Adoption of Resolution No. 4088 Amending the
Policy and Re-Delegating Authority for All Investment Related
Activities to the Chief Financial Officer

GENERAL MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board review the Investment Policy (Board of Directors
Policy No. 27) and adopt Resolution No. 4088 amending the policy
and re-delegating authority for all investment related
activities to the Chief Financial Officer in accordance with
California Government Code Section 53607.

COMMITTEE ACTION:

See Attachment A.

PURPOSE:

Government Code Section 53646 requires that the District's
Investment Policy be presented to the Board for review on an
annual basis. In addition, Government Code Section 53607
requires that for the delegation of authority to remain in
effect on an annual basis, the governing board must re-delegate
authority over investment activities.

ANALYSIS:

The proposed Investment Policy (Attachment C) revises and
expands upon the existing Policy (Attachment D) which was
approved by the Board on September 7, 2005.

The primary goals of the Investment Policy are to assure
compliance with the California Government Code, Sections 53600
et seq, and to protect the investments of the District. The
State Code provides a range of conservative investment options



for local agencies, including Federal Treasuries, Federal
Agencies, the State Pool, the County Pool, high-grade corporate
debt, and others.

As a part of the review of the existing Investment Policy, we
compared our policy to a recommended format that is considered
"best practice" by several national accounting and finance
organizations. While our current policy always met the minimum
requirements mandated by California Government Code, the model
policy for best practices expands upon the investment guidance
to address areas such as Delegation of Authority, Ethics and
Conflicts of Interest, Authorized Financial Dealers and
Institutions, Internal Control, and Performance Standards, as
well as additional clarification in sections already in place.

To assure the Board that the currently proposed policy meets
best practice standards, it was submitted to the Association of
Public Treasurers of the United States & Canada (APT US&C) for
review and certification. We recently received notification
that this policy was approved in all of the 18 areas addressed
and a copy of APT US&C's congratulatory letter on obtaining the
Investment Policy Certificate of Excellence Award is attached
(Attachment E) .

FISCAL IMPACT:

The policy is consistent with the current
objectives of the policy are being met.

_~

.~

law and the overall

Section 14.0 of the revised Investment Policy directs the CFO to
establish an annual process of independent review by an external
auditor, to provide internal control by assuring compliance with
policies and procedures. By including this as a part of the
District's annual financial audit and review of internal
controls, the fiscal impact is estimated to be no more than
$500.

STRATEGIC GOAL:

Demonstrate financial health through formalized policies,
prudent investing, and efficient operations.

LEGAL IMPACT:

None.



General Manager

Attachments:
A) Committee Staff Report
B) Resolution No. 4088
C) Proposed Investment Policy No. 27
D) Existing Investment Policy No. 27 Strike-thru
E) APT US&C Investment Policy Certification Letter
F) Portfolio Management: Portfolio Summary, June 30, 2006
G) Copy of Investment Policy Presentation



ATTACHMENT A

Annual Review of Investment Policy (Board of Directors
Policy No. 27) and Adoption of Resolution No. 4088 Amending
the Policy and Re-Delegating Authority for All Investment

SUBJECTIPROJECT: Related Activities to the Chief Financial Officer

COMMITTEE ACTION:

The Finance and Administration Committee reviewed this item at a
meeting held on August 21, 2006. The following comments were
made:

• The Investment Policy is presented to the board for
review annually in compliance with Government Code
Section 53646;

• Staff ~s proposing a revised Investment Policy in a
format that is considered "best practice" in the
industry;

• The proposed Investment Policy was submitted to the
Association of Public Treasurer's of the United States
and Canada (APT US&C) where it received a Certificate
of Excellence Award. Comments received from the APT
US&C that will help the District in the bond market
are as follows:

The Investment Policy was nicely written.
The policy received one of the highest scores they
have ever given.

• The District's current policy has always met the
minimum requirements mandated by the California
Government Code. The model policy for best practices
expands upon the investment guidance and now addresses
areas such as Ethics and Conflicts of Interest,
Authorized Financial Dealers and Institutions,
Investment Pools/Mutual Funds, Collateralization,
Maximum Maturities, Internal Control, and Performance
Standards, as well as additional clarification in
sections already in place;

• The committee reviewed in detail the authorized
investment vehicles within the policy:

U.S. Treasury Bills
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
Government Agency Bonds
CDs
Commercial Paper
Medium Term Notes



Money Market Mutual Funds
San Diego County Pool

• The following investment vehicles were deleted from
the policy:

C. Time Deposits, non-negotiable and collateralized
F. Collateralized Repurchase Agreements
o These types of investments require a lot of time

to administer and are more suited to larger
agencies that have full-time personnel dedicated
to investment activities like the City of Los
Angeles.

• The committee reviewed the Investment Portfolio report
which will be provided to update the board on the
status of the District's investments. The committee
requested that staff incorporate graphical charts
within the report representing the percentage of the
District's investment in the various investment
vehicles;

• The committee discussed the board's personal
responsibility with regard to assuring compliance
requirements are being met when the District issues
debt. It was noted that the board has a fiduciary
responsibility to review the documentation. It was
also noted that there is a check list of items which
staff utilizes that should be reviewed prior to going
to the bond market.

• Staff expects to issue debt sometime before the end of
Fiscal Year 2007;

Upon completion of the discussion, the committee supported
staff's recommendation and forwarding this to the Board of
Directors as an action item.



Attachment B

RESOLUTION NO. 4088

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
OTAY WATER DISTRICT AMENDING INVESTMENT
POLICY NO. 27 OF THE DISTRICT'S CODE OF

ORDINANCES

WHEREAS, the Otay Water District Board of Directors have

been presented with an amended Investment Policy No. 27 of the

District's Code of Ordinances for the management of the

District's investments; and

WHEREAS, the Investment Policy has been reviewed and

considered by the Board, and it is in the interest of the

District to adopt the revised Investment Policy; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, DETERMINED AND ORDERED by

the Board of Directors of the Otay Water District that the

Investment Policy for the District, as attached, is hereby

adopted as the District's Investment Policy.

PASSED, APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of

Otay Water District at a regular board meeting held this 6th day

of September 2006, by the following vote:

Ayes:
Noes:

Abstain:
Absent:

President
ATTEST:

District Secretary
Page 1 of 1



ATTACHMENT C

OTAYWATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/6/06

1.0: POLICY

It is the policy of the Otay Water District to invest public funds in
a manner which will provide maximum security with the best interest
return, while meeting the daily cash flow demands of the entity and
conforming to all state statues governing the investment of public
funds.

2.0: SCOPE

This investment policy applies to all financial assets of the Otay
Water District. The District pools all cash for investment purposes.
These funds are accounted for in the District's audited Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) and include:

2.1) General Fund
2.2) Capital Project Funds

2.2.1) Designated Expansion Fund
2.2.2) Restricted Expansion Fund
2.2.3) Designated Betterment Fund
2.2.4) Restricted Betterment Fund
2.2.5) Designated Replacement Fund

2.3) Other Post Employment Fund (OPEB)
2.4) Debt Reserve Fund

Exceptions to the pooling of funds do exist for tax-exempt debt
proceeds and deferred compensation funds. Funds received from the
sale of general obligation bonds, certificates of participation or
other tax-exempt financing vehicles are segregated from pooled
investments and the investment of such funds are guided by the legal
documents that govern the terms of such debt issuances.

3.0: PRUDENCE

Investments should be made with judgment and care, under current
prevailing circumstances, which persons of prudence, discretion and
intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for
speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of
their capital as well as the probable income to be derived.

Page 1 of 17



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/6/06

The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be
the "Prudent Person" and/or "Prudent Investor" standard (California
Government Code 53600.3) and shall be applied in the context of
managing an overall portfolio. Investment officers acting in
accordance with written procedures and the investment policy and
exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal responsibility
for an individual security's credit risk or market price changes,
provided deviations from expectations are reported in a timely fashion
and appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments.

4.0: OBJECTIVE

As specified in the California Government Code 53600.5, when
investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling and
managing public funds, the primary objectives, in priority order, of
the investment activities shall be:

4.1) Safety: Safety of principal is the foremost objective of
the investment program. Investments of the Otay Water
District shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to
ensure the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio.
To attain this objective, the District will diversify its
investments by investing funds among a variety of securities
offering independent returns and financial institutions.

4.2) Liquidity: The Otay Water District's investment portfolio
will remain sufficiently liquid to enable the District to
meet all operating requirements which might be reasonably
anticipated.

4.3) Return on Investment: The Otay Water District's investment
portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining
a benchmark rate of return throughout budgetary and economic
cycles, commensurate with the District's investment risk
constraints and the cash flow characteristics of the
portfolio.

Page 2 of 17



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/6/06

5.0 DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY

Authority to manage the Otay Water District's investment program is
derived from the California Government Code, Sections 53600 through
53692. Management responsibility for the investment program is hereby
delegated to the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) , who shall be
responsible for all transactions undertaken and shall establish a
system of controls to regulate the activities of subordinate officials
and their procedures in the absence of the CFO.
The CFO shall establish written investment policy procedures for the
operation of the investment program consistent with this policy. Such
procedures shall include explicit delegation of authority to persons
responsible for investment transactions. No person may engage in an
investment transaction except as provided under the terms of this
policy and the procedures established by the CFO.

6.0: ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall
refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with the
proper execution and management of the investment program, or that
could impair their ability to make impartial investment decisions.
Employees and investment officials shall disclose to the General
Manager any material financial interests in financial institutions
with which they conduct business. They shall further disclose any
personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the
performance of the investment portfolio. Employees and officers shall
refrain from undertaking personal investment transactions with the
same individual with whom business is conducted on behalf of the
District.

7.0: AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL DEALERS AND INSTITUTIONS

The Chief Financial Officer shall maintain a list of financial
institutions authorized to provide investment services. In addition,
a list will also be maintained of approved security broker/dealers who
are authorized to provide investment services in the State of
California. These may include ~~primary" dealers or regional dealers
that qualify under Securities & Exchange Commission Rule 15C3-1

Page 3 of 17

I



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/6/06

(Uniform Net Capital Rule). No public deposit shall be made except in
a qualified public depository as established by state laws.

All financial institutions and broker/dealers who desire to become
qualified bidders for investment transactions must supply the District
with the following, as appropriate:

• Audited Financial Statements.

• Proof of National Association of Security Dealers (NASD)
certification.

• Proof of state registration.

• Completed broker/dealer questionnaire.

• Certification of having read the District's Investment
Policy.

• Evidence of adequate insurance coverage.

As annual review of th~ financial condition and registrations of
qualified bidders will be conducted by the CFO. A current audited
financial statement is required to be on file for each financial
institution and broker/dealer in which the District invests.

8.0: AUTHORIZED AND SUITABLE INVESTMENTS

From the governing body perspective, special care must be taken to
ensure that the list of instruments includes only those allowed by law
and those that local investment managers are trained and competent to
handle. The District is governed by the California Government Code,
Sections 53600 through 53692, to invest in the following types of
securities, as further limited herein:

8.01) United States Treasury Bills, Bonds, Notes or those
instruments for which the full faith and credit of the United
States are pledged for payment of principal and interest. There
is no percentage limitation of the portfolio which can be
invested in this category, although a five-year maturity
limitation is applicable.

Page 4 of 17



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/6/06

8.02) Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) I which is a State
of California managed investment pooll may be used up to the
maximum permitted by State Law (currently $40 million). The
District may also invest bond proceeds in LAIF with the same but
independent maximum limitation.

8.03) Bonds I debentures I notes and other evidence of
indebtedness issued by any of the following government agency
issuers:

• Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB)

• Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC or "Freddie
Mac" )

• Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA or "Fannie Mae")

• Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA or "Ginnie
Mae 'I)

• Student Loan Marketing Association (SLMA or "Sallie Mae")

• Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB)

There is no percentage limitation of the portfolio which can be
invested in this categorYI although a five-year maturity
limitation is applicable.

8.04) Interest-bearing demand deposit accounts and
Certificates of Deposit (CD) will be made only in Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insured accounts. For deposits in
excess of the insured maximum of $100 1 000 1 approved collateral
shall be required in accordance with California Government Code l

Section 53652. Investments in CD's are limited to 15 percent of
the District's portfolio.

8.05) Commercial paper, which is short-term, unsecured
promissory notes of corporate and public entities. Purchases of
eligible commercial paper may not exceed 10 percent of the
outstanding paper of an issuing corporation, and maximum
investment maturity will be restricted to 270 days. Investment is
further limited as described in California Government Code,
Section 53601(g). Purchases of commercial paper may not exceed 15
percent of the District's portfolio.

Page 5 of 17



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/6/06

8.06) Medium-term notes defined as all corporate debt
securities with a maximum remaining maturity of five years or
less, and that meet the further requirements of California
Government Code, Section 5360l(j). Investments in medium-term
notes are limited to 15 percent of the District's portfolio.

8.07) Money market mutual funds that invest only in Treasury
securities and repurchase agreements collateralized with Treasury
securities, and that meet the further requirements of California
Government Code, Section 53601(k). Investments in money market
mutual funds are limited to 15 percent of the District's
portfolio.

8.08) The San Diego County Treasurer's Pooled Money Fund,
which is a County managed investment pool, may be used by the
Otay Water District to invest excess funds. There is no
percentage limitation of the portfolio which can be invested in
this category.

8.09) Under the provisions of California Government Code
53601.6, the Otay Water District shall not invest any funds
covered by this Investment Policy in inverse floaters, range
notes, interest-only strips derived from mortgage pools, or any
investment that may result in a zero interest accrual if held to
maturity. Also, the borrowing of funds for investment purposes,
known a leveraging, is prohibited.

9.0: INVESTMENT POOLS/MUTUAL FUNDS

A thorough investigation of the pool/fund is required prior to
investing, and on a continual basis. There shall be a questionnaire
developed which will answer the following general questions:

• A description of eligible investment securities, and a
written statement of investment policy and objectives.

• A description of interest calculations and how it is
distributed, and how gains and losses are treated.

Page 6 of 17



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/6/06

• A description of how the securities are safeguarded
(including the settlement processes), and how often the
securities are priced and the program audited.

• A description of who may invest in the program, how often,
and what size deposits and withdrawals are allowed.

• A schedule for receiving statements and portfolio listings .

.• Are reserves, retained earnings, etc., utilized by the
pool/fund?

• A fee schedule, and when and how is it assessed.

• Is the pool/fund eligible for bond proceeds and/or will it
accept such proceeds?

10.0 COLLATERALIZATION

Collateralization will be required on certificates of deposit. In
order to anticipate market changes and provide a level of security for
all funds, the collateralization level will be 102% of market value of
principal and accrued interest. Collateral will always be held by an
independent third party with whom the entity has a current custodial
agreement. A clearly marked evidence of ownership (safekeeping
receipt) must be supplied to the entity and retained. The right of
collateral substitution is granted.

11.0: SAFEKEEPING AND CUSTODY

All security transactions entered into by the Otay Water District
shall be conducted on a delivery-versus-payment (DVP) basis.
Securities will be held by a third party custodian designated by the
District and evidenced by safekeeping receipts.

12.0: DIVERSIFICATION

The Otay Water District will diversify its investments by security
type and institution, with limitations on the total amounts invested
in each security type as detailed in Paragraph 8.0, above, so as to
reduce overall portfolio risks while attaining benchmark average rate
of return. With the exception of u.S. Treasury securities, government
agencies, and authorized pools, no more than 50% of the District's

Page 7 of 17



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/6/06

total investment portfolio will be invested with a single financial
institution.

13.0: MAXIMUM MATURITIES

To the extent possible, the Otay Water District will attempt to match
its investments with anticipated cash flow requirements. Unless
matched to a specific cash flow, the District will not directly invest
in securities maturing more than five years from the date of purchase.
However/ for time deposits with banks or savings and loan
associations/ investment maturities will not exceed two years.
Investments in commercial paper will be restricted to 270 days.

14.0: INTERNAL CONTROL

The Chief Financial Officer shall establish an annual process of
independent review by an external auditor. This review will provide
internal control by assuring compliance with policies and procedures.

15.0: PERFORMANCE STANDARDS

The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of
obtaining a rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles/
commensurate with the investment risk constraints and the cash flow
needs.

The Otay Water District's investment strategy is passive. Given this
strategy, the basis used by the CFO to determine whether market yields
are being achieved shall be the State of California Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF) as a comparable benchmark.

16.0: REPORTING

The Chief Financial Officer shall provide the Board of Directors
monthly investment reports which provide a clear picture of the status
of the current investment portfolio. The management report should
include comments on the fixed income markets and economic conditions,
discussions regarding restrictions on percentage of investment by
categories/ possible changes in the portfolio structure going forward

Page 8 of 17



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/6/06

and thoughts on investment strategies. Schedules ln the quarterly
report should include the following:

• A listing of individual securities held at the end of the
reporting period by authorized investment category.

• Average life and final maturity of all investments listed.

• Coupon, discount or earnings rate.

• Par value, amortized book value, and market value.

• Percentage of the portfolio represented by each investment
category.

17.0: INVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION

The Otay Water District's investment policy shall be adopted by
resolution of the District's Board of Directors. The policy shall be
reviewed annually by the Board and any modifications made thereto must
be approved by the Board.

18.0: GLOSSARY

See Appendix A.

Page 9 of 17



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/6/06

APPENDIX A: GLOSSARY

ACTIVE INVESTING: Active investors will purchase investments and

continuously monitor their activity, often looking at the price
movements of their stocks many times a day, in order to exploit
profitable conditions. Typically, active investors are seeking short
term profits.

AGENCIES: Federal agency securities and/or Government-sponsored

enterprises.

BANKERS' ACCEPTANCE (BA): A draft or bill or exchange accepted by a

bank or trust company. The accepting institution guarantees payment
of the bill, as well as the issuer.

BENCHMARK: A comparative base·for measuring the performance or risk

tolerance of the investment portfolio. A benchmark should represent a
close correlation to the level of risk and the average duration of the
portfolio's investments.

BROKER/DEALER: Any individual or firm in the business of buying and

selling securities for itself and others. Broker/dealers must register
with the SEC. When acting as a broker, a broker/dealer executes
orders on behalf of his/her client. When acting as a dealer, a
broker/dealer executes trades for his/her firm's own account.
Securities bought for the firm's own account may be sold to clients or
other firms, or become a part of the firm's holdings.

CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT (CD): A short or medium term, interest bearing,

FDIC insured debt instrument offered by banks and savings and loans.
Money removed before maturity is subject to a penalty. CDs are a low
risk, low return investment, and are also known as "time deposits",
because the account holder has agreed to keep the money in the account
for a specified amount of time, anywhere from a few months to several
years.

COLLATERAL: Securities, evidence of deposit or other property, which a

borrower pledges to secure repayment of a loan. Also refers to
securities pledged by a bank to secure deposits of public monies.

Page 10 of 17



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/6/06

COMMERCIAL PAPER: An unsecured short-term promissory note, issued by

corporations, with maturities ranging from 2 to 270 days.

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT (CAFR): The official annual

report for the Otay Water District. It includes detailed financial
information prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP). It also includes supporting schedules necessary to
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal and contractual
provisions, extensive introductory material, and a detailed
statistical section.

COUPON: (a) The annual rate of interest that a bond's issuer promises

to pay the bondholder on the bond's face value. (b) A certificate
attached to a bond evidencing interest due on a set date.

DEALER: A dealer, as opposed to a broker, acts as a principal in all

transactions, buying and selling for his own account.

DEBENTURE: A bond secured only by the general credit of the issuer.

DELIVERY VERSUS PAYMENT: There are two methods of delivery of

securities: delivery versus payment and delivery versus receipt.
Delivery versus payment is delivery of securities with an exchange of
money for the securities. Delivery versus receipt is delivery of
securities with an exchange of a signed receipt for the securities.

DERIVATIVES: (1) Financial instruments whose return profile is linked

to, or derived from, the movement of one or more underlying index or
security, and may include a leveraging factor, or (2) financial
contracts based upon notional amounts whose value is derived from an
underlying index or security (interest rates, foreign exchange rates,
equities or commodities) .

DISCOUNT: The difference between the cost price of a security and its

maturity when quoted at lower than face value. A security selling
below original offering price shortly after sale also is considered to
be at a discount.

Page 11 of 17



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/6/06

DISCOUNT SECURITIES: Non-interest bearing money market instruments

that are issued at a discount and redeemed at maturity for full face
value, e.g., u.S. Treasury Bills.

DIVERSIFICATION: Dividing investment funds among a variety of

securities offering independent returns.

FEDERAL CREDIT AGENCIES: Agencies of the Federal government set up to

supply credit to various classes of institutions and individuals,
e.g., S&L's, small business firms, students, farmers, farm
cooperatives, and exporters.

FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION (FDIC): A federal agency that

insures deposits in member banks and thrifts, currently up to $100,000
per deposit.

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK (FFCB): The Federal Farm Credit Bank system

supports agricultural loans and issues securities and bonds in
financial markets backed by these loans. It has consolidated the
financing programs of several related farm credit agencies and
corporations.

FEDERAL FUNDS RATE: The rate of interest at which Fed funds are

traded. This rate is currently pegged by the Federal Reserve through
open-market operations.

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK (FHLB): Government sponsored wholesale banks

(currently 12 regional banks), which lend funds and provide
correspondent banking services to member commercial banks, thrift
institutions, credit unions and insurance companies.

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORPORATION (FHLMC or Freddie Mac): A

stockholder owned, publicly traded company chartered by the United
States federal government in 1970 to purchase mortgages and related
securities, and then issue securities and bonds in financial markets
backed by those mortgages in secondary markets. Freddie Mac, like its
competitor Fannie Mae, is regulated by the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD).

Page 12 of 17



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/6/06

FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION (FNMA or Fannie Mae): FNMA, like

GNMA was chartered under the Federal National Mortgage Association Act
in 1938. FNMA is a federal corporation working under the auspices of
the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). It is the
largest single provider of residential mortgage funds in the United
States. Fannie Mae is a private stockholder-owned corporation. The
corporation's purchases include a variety of adjustable mortgages and
second loans, in addition to fixed-rate mortgages. FNMA's securities
are also highly liquid and are widely accepted. FNMA assumes and
guarantees that all security holders will receive timely payment of
principal and interest.

FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM: The central bank of the United States created

by Congress and consisting of a seven member Board of Governors in
Washington, D.C., 12 regional banks and about 5,700 commercial banks
that are members of the system.

GOVERNMENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION (GNMA or Ginnie Mae): A

government owned agency which buys mortgages from lending
institutions, securitizes them, and then sells them to investors.
Because the payments to investors are guaranteed by the full faith and
credit of the u.s. Government, they return slightly less interest than
other mortgage-backed securities.

INTEREST-ONLY STRIPS: A mortgage backed instrument where the investor

receives only the interest, no principal, from a pool of mortgages.
Issues are highly interest rate sensitive, and cash flows vary between
interest periods. Also, the maturity date may occur earlier than that
stated if all loans within the pool are pre-paid. High prepayments on
underlying mortgages can return less to the holder than the dollar
amount invested.

INVERSE FLOATER: A bond or note that does not earn a fixed rate of

interest. Rather, the interest rate is tied to a specific interest
rate index identified in the bond/note structure. The interest rate
earned by the bond/note will move in the opposite direction of the
index. An inverse floater increases the market rate risk and modified
duration of the investment.

Page 13 of 17



OTAYWATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/6/06

LEVERAGE: Investing with borrowed money with the expectation that the

interest earned on the investment will exceed the interest paid on the
borrowed money.

LIQUIDITY: A liquid asset is one that can be converted easily and

rapidly into cash without a substantial loss of value. In the money
market, a security is said to be liquid if the spread between bid and
asked prices is narrow and reasonable size can be done at those
quotes.

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND (LAIF): The aggregate of all funds from

political subdivisions that are placed in the custody of the State
Treasurer for investment and reinvestment.

MARKET VALUE: The price at which a security is trading and could

presumably be purchased or sold.

MASTER REPURCHASE AGREEMENT: A written contract covering all future

transactions between the parties to repurchase/reverse repurchase
agreements that establish each party's rights in the transactions. A
master agreement will often specify, among other things, the right of
the buyer-lender to liquidate the underlying securities in the event
of default by the seller borrower.

MATURITY: The date upon which the principal or stated value of an

investment becomes due and payable.

MONEY MARKET: The market in which short-term debt instruments (bills,

commercial paper, bankers' acceptances, etc.) are issued and traded.

MUTUAL FUNDS: An open-ended fund operated by an investment company

which raises money from shareholders and invests in a group of assets,
in accordance with a stated set of objectives. Mutual funds raise
money by selling shares of the fund to the public. Mutual funds then
take the money they receive from the sale of their shares (along with
any money made from previous investments) and use it to purchase
various investment vehicles, such as stocks, bonds, and money market
instruments.

Page 14 of 17



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/6/06

MONEY MARKET MUTUAL FUNDS: An open-end mutual fund which invests only

in money markets. These funds invest in short term (one day to one
year) debt obligations such as Treasury bills, certificates of
deposit, and commercial paper.

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF SECURITIES DEALERS (NASD): A self-regulatory

organization of the securities industry responsible for the operation
and regulation of the NASDAQ stock market and over-the-counter
markets. Its regulatory mandate includes authority over firms that
distribute mutual fund shares as well as other securities.

PASSIVE INVESTING: An investment strategy involving limited ongoing

buying and selling actions. Passive investors will purchase
investments with the intention of long term appreciation and limited
maintenance, and typically don't actively attempt to profit from short
term price fluctuations. Also known as a buy-and-hold strategy.

PRIMARY DEALER: A designation given by the Federal Reserve System to

commercial banks or broker/dealers who meet specific criteria,
including capital requirements and participation in Treasury auctions.
These dealers submit daily reports of market activity and positions
and monthly financial statements to the Federal Reserve Bank of New
York and are subject to its informal oversight. Primary dealers
include Securities and Exchange Commission registered securities
broker/dealers, banks, and a few unregulated firms.

PRUDENT PERSON RULE: An investment standard. In some states the law

requires that a fiduciary, such as a trustee, may invest money only in
a list of securities selected by the custody state--the so-called
legal list. In other states the trustee may invest in a security if
it is one which would be bought by a prudent person of discretion and
intelligence who is seeking a reasonable income and preservation of
capital.

PUBLIC SECURITIES ASSOCIATION (PSA): A trade organization of dealers,

brokers, and bankers who underwrite and trade securities offerings.

QUALIFIED PUBLIC DEPOSITORIES: A financial institution which does not

claim exemption from the payment of any sales or compensating use or
ad valorem taxes under the laws of this state, which has segregated

Page 15 of 17



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

SUbject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/6/06

for the benefit of the commission eligible collateral having a value
of not less than its maximum liability and which has been approved by
the Public Deposit Protection Commission to hold public deposits.

RANGE NOTE: An investment whose coupon payment varies and is dependent

on whether the current benchmark falls within a pre-determined range.

RATE OF RETURN: The yield obtainable on a security based on its

purchase price or its current market price. This may be the amortized
yield to maturity on a bond the current income return.

REGIONAL DEALER: A securities broker/dealer, registered with the

Securities & Exchange Commission (SEC), who meets all of the licensing
requirements for buying and selling securities.

REPURCHASE AGREEMENT (RP OR REPO): A holder of securities sells these

securities to an investor with an agreement to repurchase them at a
fixed price on a fixed date. The security "buyer" in effect lends
the "seller" money for the period of the agreement, and the terms of
the agreement are structured to compensate him for this. Dealers use
RP extensively to finance their positions. Exception: When the Fed is
said to be doing RP, it is lending money that is increasing bank
reserves.

SAFEKEEPING: A service to customers rendered by banks for a fee

whereby securities and valuables of all types and descriptions are
held in the bank's vaults for protection.

SECONDARY MARKET: A market made for the purchase and sale of

outstanding securities issues following their initial distribution.

SECURITIES & EXCHANGE COMMISSION: Agency created by Congress to

protect investors in securities transactions by administering
securities legislation.

SEC RULE 15C3-1: See Uniform Net Capital Rule.

STRUCTURED NOTES: Notes issued by Government Sponsored Enterprises

(FHLB, FNMA, SLMA/ etc.) / and Corporations/ which have imbedded
options (e.g./ call features/ step-up coupons/ floating rate coupons/

Page 16 of 17



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/6/06

derivative-based returns) into their debt structure. Their market
performance is impacted by the fluctuation of interest rates, the
volatility of the imbedded options and shifts in the shape of the
yield curve.

STUDENT LOAN MARKETING ASSOCIATION (SLMA or Sallie Mae): A federally

established, publicly traded corporation which buys student loans from
colleges and other lenders, pools them, and sells them to investors.

TREASURY BILLS: A non-interest bearing discount security issued by the

U.S. Treasury to finance the national debt. Most bills are issued to
mature in three months, six months, or one year.

TREASURY BONDS: Long-term coupon-bearing U.S. Treasury securities

issued as direct obligations of the U.S. Government and having initial
maturities of more than 10 years.

TREASURY NOTES: Medium-term coupon-bearing U.S. Treasury securities

issued as direct obligations of the U.S. Government and having initial
maturities from two to 10 years.

UNIFORM NET CAPITAL RULE: Securities and Exchange Commission

requirement that member firms as well as nonmember broker-dealers in
securities maintain a maximum ratio of indebtedness to liquid capital
of 15 to 1; also called net capital rule and net capital ratio.
Indebtedness covers all money owed to a firm, including margin loans

"and commitments to purchase securities, one reason new public issues
are spread among members of underwriting syndicates. Liquid capital
includes cash and assets easily converted into cash.

YIELD: The rate of annual income return on an investment, expressed as

a percentage. (a) INCOME YIELD is obtained by dividing the current
dollar income by the current market price for the security. (b) NET
YIELD or YIELD TO MATURITY is the current income yield minus any
premium above par or plus any discount from par in purchase price,
with the adjustment spread over the period from the date of purchase
to the date of maturity of the bond.

Page 17 of 17



ATTACHMENT D

OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/4/02
9/6/06

PURPOSE

This policy is intended to provide a guideline for the prudent
investment of cash receipts, tax revenue, and restricted moneys and to
outline a procedure for maximi:zdng the efficiency of the cash
management system. Ultimate investment goals include the enhancement
of economic status and the protection of pooled cash investments.

1.0: POLICY

It is the policy of the Otay Water District to invest public funds in
a manner which will provide maximum security with the best interest
return, while meeting the daily cash flow demands of the entity and
conforming to all state statues governing the investment of public
funds.

2.0: SCOPE

This investment policy applies to all financial assets of the Otay
Water District. The District pools all cash for investment purposes.
This policy is applicable, but not limited to all funds listed below:
These funds are accounted for in the District's audited Comprehensive
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) and include:

2.1) General Fund
2.2) Capital Project Funds

2.2.1) Designated Expansion Fund
2.2.2) Restricted Expansion Fund
2.2.3) Designated Betterment Fund
2.2.4) Restricted Betterment Fund
2.2.5) Designated Replacement Fund

2.3) Other Post Employment Fund (OPEB)
2.4) Debt Reserve Fund
Customer Deposits
Replacement Reserve
Water Conservation Fund
Tax Revenue
Interest Income
Betterment Funds

Page 1 of 7Page 1 of 21



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/4/02
9/6/06

Capital Improvement Funds

Exceptions to the pooling of funds do exist for regarding tax-exempt
debt proceeds and deferred compensation funds. Funds received from
the sale of general obligation bonds, certificates of participation or
other tax-exempt financing vehicles are segregated from pooled
investments and the investment of such funds are guided by the legal
documents that govern the terms of such debt issuances.

3.0: PRUDENCE

Under all circumstances, the "prudent investor rule" shall apply.
Investments shall should be made with judgment and care, under current
prevailing circumstances, then prevailing, which persons of prudence,
discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own
affairs, not for speculation, but for investment, considering the
probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be
derived.

The standard of prudence to be used by investment officials shall be
the "Prudent Person' I and/or "p-Prudent -i-Investor" standard (California
Government Code ~53600.3) and shall be applied in the context of
managing an overall portfolio. Investment officers acting in
accordance with written procedures and the investment policy and
exercising due diligence shall be relieved of personal responsibility
for an individual security's credit risk or market price changes,
provided deviations from expectations are reported in a timely fashion
and appropriate action is taken to control adverse developments.

4.0: OBJECTIVE

The cash management system of the District is designed to accurately
monitor and forecast expenditures and revenues, thus insuring the
investment of moneys to the fullest extent possible.

As specified in the California Government Code ~53600.5, when
investing, reinvesting, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling and
managing public funds, the primary objectives, in priority order, of
the investment activities shall be:

Page 1 of 7Page 2 of 21



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/4/02
9/6/06

4.1~) Safety: Safety of principal is the foremost objective
of the investment program. Investments of the Otay Water
District shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to
ensure the preservation of capital in the overall portfolio.
To attain this objective, diversification is required in
order that potential losses on individual securities do not
exceed the income generated from the remainder of the
portfolio. the District will diversify its investments by
investing funds among a variety of securities offering
independent returns and financial institutions.

4.2~) Liquidity: The Otay Water District's investment
portfolio will remain sufficiently liquid to enable the~
Water District to meet all operating requirements which
might be reasonably anticipated.

4.3~) Return on Investmente: The Otay Water District's
investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of
attaining a market benchmark rate of return throughout
budgetary and economic cycles, taking into account
commensurate with the District's investment risk constraints
and the cash flow characteristics of the portfolio.

5.0 DELEGATION OF AUTHORITY

Under authority granted by the Board of Directors, the Department Head
of Finance is responsible for investing cash in excess of the
District's operating needs.

The authority governing investments for municipal governments is set
forth in the Government Code, Sections 53601 through 53659.
Authority to manage the Otay Water District's investment program is
derived from the California Government Code, Sections 53600 through
53692. Management responsibility for the investment program is hereby
delegated to the Chief Financial Officer (CFO) , who shall be
responsible for all transactions undertaken and shall establish a
system of controls to regulate the activities of subordinate officials
and their procedures in the absence of the CFO.

Page 1 of 7Page 3 of 21



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/'±/O2
9/6/06

The CFO shall establish written investment policy procedures for the
operation of the investment program consistent with this policy. Such
procedures shall include explicit delegation of authority to persons
responsible for investment transactions. No person may engage in an
investment transaction except as provided under the terms of this
policy and the procedures established by the CFO.

6.0: ETHICS AND CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

Officers and employees involved in the investment process shall
refrain from personal business activity that could conflict with the
proper execution and management of the investment program, or that
could impair their ability to make impartial investment decisions.
Employees and investment officials shall disclose to the General
Manager any material financial interests in financial institutions
with which they conduct business. They shall further disclose any
personal financial/investment positions that could be related to the
performance of the investment portfolio. Employees and officers shall
refrain from undertaking personal investment transactions with the
same individual with whom business is conducted on behalf of the
District.

7.0: AUTHORIZED FINANCIAL DEALERS AND INSTITUTIONS

The Chief Financial Officer shall maintain a list of financial
institutions authorized to provide investment services. In addition,
a list will also be maintained of approved security broker/dealers who
are authorized to provide investment services in the State of
California. These may include "primary" dealers or regional dealers
that qualify under Securities & Exchange Commission Rule 15C3-1
(Uniform Net Capital Rule). No public deposit shall be made except in
a qualified public depository as established by state laws.

All financial institutions and broker/dealers who desire to become
qualified bidders for investment transactions must supply the District
with the following, as appropriate:

• Audited Financial Statements.

Pags 1 of 7Page 4 of 21



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/4/02
9/6/06

• Proof of National Association of Security Dealers (NASD)
certification.

• Proof of state registration.

• Completed broker/dealer questionnaire.

• Certification of having read the District's Investment
Policy.

• Evidence of adequate insurance coverage.

As annual review of the financial condition and registrations of
qualified bidders will be conducted by the CFO. A current audited
financial statement is required to be on file for each financial
institution and broker/dealer in which the District invests.

8.0: AUTHORIZED AND SUITABLE INVESTMENTS

From the governing body perspective, special care must be taken to
ensure that the list of instruments includes only those allowed by law
and those that local investment managers are trained and competent to
handle. The District is governed by the California Government Code,
Sections 53600 et seqthrough 53692, to invest in the following types
of securities, Within the context of the limitations, the following
investments are authori~ed, as further limited herein:

~8.01) United States Treasury Bills, Bonds, Notes or those
instruments for which the full faith and credit of the United
States are pledged for payment of principal and interest. There
is no percentage limitation of the portfolio which can be
invested in this category, although a five-year maturity
limitation is applicable. No more than 30 percent of the
portfolio shall exceed t'a'O years to maturity.

~8.02) Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), which is a State
of California managed investment pool, may be used up to the
maximum permitted by State Law (currently $~40 million). The
District may also invest bond proceeds in the Local ~gency

Investment Fund. LAIF with the same but independent maximum
limitation. Liquidity for bond proceeds, per fund regulations,

Page 1 of 7Page 5 of 21

I



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/4/02
9/6/06

is thirty calendar day increments from the date of the initial
deposit.

C. Time deposits, non negotiable and collateralized in
accordance \Jith the California Government Code, may be purchased
through commercial banks or savings and loan associations that
have a Hoody's Investor Service rating or Standard & Poor's
Corporation rating of at least "A". A written depository
contract is required \o'ith all institutions that hold District
deposits. Since time deposits are not liquid, the ma]dmum
maturity of one year may be purchased. The institution must
secure deposits by pledging government securities equal to at
least 110% of deposits or first trust deed mortgage notes in
mecess of 115% of deposits. }'tll banks providing the District with
collateralized time deposits are required to provide the District
with a regular statement of the pooled collateral held, the
market value of the collateral,an accountability of the deposits
secured by the pool and a statement that the 110% or 115%
collateral rule is met.

~8.03) Bonds, debentures, notes and other evidence of
indebtedness issued by any of the following government agency
issuers:

• Farm Credit Consolidated System,

• Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLB),

• Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC or "Freddie
Mac") ,

• Federal National Mortgage Association (FNMA or "Fannie
Mae") ,

• Government National Mortgage Association (GNMA or "Ginnie
Mae")

• Student Loan Marketing Association (SLMA or "Sallie Mae")

• Federal Farm Credit Bank (FFCB), Tennessee Valley }\,uthority
and Federal Land Bank. Investments in federal agency
securities are limited to 70 percent of the District's

Page 1 of 7Page 6 of 21



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/4/02
9/6/06

portfolio and no more than 70% in callable securities. The
maturity of these securities shall not exceed five years.

There is no percentage limitation of the portfolio which can be
invested in this category, although a five-year maturity
limitation is applicable.

8.04) Interest-bearing demand deposit accounts and
Certificates of Deposit (CD) will be made only in Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (FDIC) insured accounts. For deposits in
excess of the insured maximum of $100,000, approved collateral
shall be required in accordance with California Government Code,
Section 53652. Investments in CD's are limited to 15 percent of
the District's portfolio.

F. Collaterali3ed Repurchase .7\,greements '/dth banks and primary
dealers on the Federal Reserve reporting dealer list \:hich are
rated !lAI' or better by Standard & Poor I s Corporation and ~qoody' s
Investors Service. The repurchase agreement provider must enter
into a master repurchase agreement with the District of standard
industry form, currently the Public Securities ~ssociation master
repurchase agreement. The collateral provided by the repurchase
agreement provider must be delivered directly to a third party
bank which holds an account in the name of the District and the
District will maintain a first perfected security interest in the
collateral. The District shall have a contractual right to
liquidate the collateral securities upon the bankruptcy,
insolvency or other default of the repurchase agreement provider.
Collateral will be marked to market at least weekly and the
market value of collateral \:ill be maintained at or above 102
percent of the value of the repurchase agreement if Treasury
securities are posted as collateral or 104 percent of the value
of the repurchase agreement if agency securities permitted by
this policy are posted as collateral. The term of any repurchase
agreement entered 'dill not mweed 1 year and investments in
repurchase agreements are limited to 15 percent of the District's
portfolio.

Page 1 of 7Page 7 of 21



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/1/02
9/6/06

Ho8.05) Commercial paper, which is short-term, unsecured
promissory notes of corporate and public entities. Investment is
limited to eommercial paper of "prime" quality of the highest
ran]cing as provided by Moody's Investors Service or Standard and
Poor's Rating Services. 8ligible paper is issued only by
corporations that are organized and operating \Jithin the United
States and having total assets in elwess of $500 million. The
c6rporation must also have an "A" rating or higher for the
issuer's debt, other than commercial paper, as provided by
~qoody's Investors Service, or Standard and Poor's Rating
Services. Purchases of eligible commercial paper may not exceed
10 percent of the outstanding paper of an issuing corporation,
and maximum investment maturity will be restricted to ~270

days. Investment is further limited as described in California
(reference: Government Code, Section 53601(g)+. Purchases of
commercial paper may not exceed 15 percent of the District's
portfolio.

~8.06) Medium-term notes defined as all corporate debt
securities with a maximum remaining maturity of five years or
less, and that meet the further requirements of California
Government Code, Section 53601(j). issued by corporations that
are "A" rated or higher, as rated by Moody's Investors Service
and Standard & Poor's Rating Services. Maldmum investment
maturity is restricted to tHO years for "Pr" and "}"rl"r" rated notes
and five years for "Prl'rl'r" rated notes. Investments in medium-term
notes are limited to 15 percent of the District's portfolio-at
the time of purchase.

~8.07) Money market mutual funds that invest only in Treasury
securities and repurchase agreements collateralized with Treasury
securities, and that have the highest ratings by Moody's
Investors Service and Standard & Poor's Corporation meet the
further requirements of California Government Code, Section
53601(k). Investments in money market mutual funds are limited to
15 percent of the District's portfolio.

~8.08) The San Diego County Treasurer's Pooled Money Fund,
which is a County managed investment pool, may be used by the
Otay Water District to invest excess funds. There is no

Page 1 of 7Page 8 of 21



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/4/02
9/6/06

percentage limitation of the portfolio which can be invested In
this category.

~8.09) Under the provisions of California Government Code
~53601.6 and §53631.5, the Otay Water District shall not invest
any funds covered by this Investment Policy in inverse floaters,
range notes, interest-only strips derived from mortgage pools, or
any investment that may result in a zero interest accrual if held
to maturity. Also, the borrowing of funds for investment
purposes, known a leveraging, is prohibited.

9.0: INVESTMENT POOLS/MUTUAL FUNDS

A thorough investigation of the pool/fund is required prior to
investing, and on a continual basis. There shall be a questionnaire
developed which will answer the following general questions:

• A description of eligible investment securities, and a
written statement of investment policy and objectives.

• A description of interest calculations and how it is
distributed, and how gains and losses are treated.

• A description of how the securities are safeguarded
(including the settlement processes), and how often the
securities are priced and the program audited.

• A description of who may invest in the program, how often,
and what size deposits and withdrawals are allowed.

• A schedule for receiving statements and portfolio listings.

• Are reserves, retained earnings, etc., utilized by the
pool/fund?

• A fee schedule, and when and how is it assessed.

• Is the pool/fund eligible for bond proceeds and/or will it
accept such proceeds?

10.0 COLLATERALIZATION

Collateralization will be required on certificates of deposit. In
order to anticipate market changes and provide a level of security for

Page 1 of 7Page 9 of 21



OTAYWATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/1/02
9/6/06

all funds, the collateralization level will be 102% of market value of
principal and accrued interest. Collateral will always be held by an
independent third party with whom the entity has a current custodial
agreement. A clearly marked evidence of ownership (safekeeping
receipt) must be supplied to the entity and retained. The right of
collateral substitution is granted.

11.0: SAFEKEEPING AND CUSTODIAL ARRANGEMENTS CUSTODY

To protect against potential losses in the event of bankruptcy or
insolvency of a security dealer or bank, all book entry securities
owned by the District, including repurchase agreement collateral, will
be kept in safekeeping by a third party custodial agreement.

All security transactions entered into by the Otay Water District
shall be conducted on a delivery-versus-payment (~DVP~) basis.
Securities will be held by a third party custodian designated by the
District and evidenced by safekeeping receipts.

12.0: DIVERSIFICATION

The Otay Water District will diversify its investments by security
type and institution, with limitations on the total amounts invested
in each security type as detailed in Paragraph 8.0, above, so as to
reduce overall portfolio risks while attaining benchmark average rate
of return. With the exception of u.S. Treasury securities, government
agencies, and authorized pools, no more than 50% of the District's
total investment portfolio will be invested with a single financial
institution. It is the policy of the Otay Water District to diversify
its investment portfolio. ~ssets shall be diversified to eliminate
the risk of loss resulting from over concentration of assets in a
specific maturity, a specific issuer or a specific class of
securities. Diversification strategies shall be determined and
revised periodically. In establishing specific diversification
strategies, the follo~Jing general policies and constraints shall
apply:

(a) Portfolio maturities shall be matched versus liabilities to
avoid undue concentration in a specific maturity sector.

Page 1 of 7Page 10 of 21



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

SUbject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/1/02
9/6/06

(b) P4aturities selected shall provide for stability of income
and liquidity.

13.0: MAXIMUM MATURITIES

To the extent possible, the Otay Water District will attempt to match
its investments with anticipated cash flow requirements. Unless
matched to a specific cash flow, the District will not directly invest
in securities maturing more than five years from the date of purchase.
However, for time deposits with banks or savings and loan
associations, investment maturities will not exceed two years.
Investments in commercial paper will be restricted to 270 days.

14.0: INTERNAL CONTROL

The Chief Financial Officer shall establish an annual process of
independent review by an external auditor. This review will provide
internal control by assuring compliance with policies and procedures.

15.0: PERFORMANCE STANDARDS

The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of
obtaining a rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles,
commensurate with the investment risk constraints and the cash flow
needs.

The Otay Water District's investment strategy is passive. Given this
strategy, the basis used by the CFO to determine whether market yields
are being achieved shall be the State of California Local Agency
Investment Fund (LAIF) as a comparable benchmark.

16.0: REPORTING

The Department Head Finance will submit a monthly investment report to
the Board of Directors. This report will include all cash of the
District, e)ccept for deferred compensation funds. The report shall
include a complete description of the portfolio, the type of
investments, the issuers, maturity dates, and par values. The report
shall contain the average weighted yield and percent distribution to
each type of investment. The report must also include a certification

Page 1 of 7Page 11 of 21



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/4/02
9/6/06

that (1) all investment aotions exeouted sinoe the last report have
been made in full oomplianoe with the Investment Polioy, and (2) the
Otay Water Distriot will meet its expenditure obligations for the next
six months as required by California Government Code §S3646(b) (2) and
(3), respeotively. The Department Head Finanoe shall maintain a
oomplete and timely reoord of all investment transaotions.

In aooordanoe '"rith California Government Code §S3646 (b) (1), the
Department Head Finanoe shall submit to eaoh member of the Board of
Direotors a quarterly investment report that inoludes the ourrent
market values of eaoh oomponent of the portfolio as well as the souroe
of the portfolio valuation.
The Chief Financial Officer shall provide the Board of Directors
monthly investment reports which provide a clear picture of the status
of the current investment portfolio. The management report should
include comments on the fixed income markets and economic conditions,
discussions regarding restrictions on percentage of investment by
categories, possible changes in the portfolio structure going forward
and thoughts on investment strategies. Schedules in the quarterly
report should include the following:

• A listing of individual securities held at the end of the
reporting period by authorized investment category.

• Average life and final maturity of all investments listed.

• Coupon, discount or earnings rate.

• Par value, amortized book value, and market value.

• Percentage of the portfolio represented by each investment
category.

17.0: POLICY REVIEWINVESTMENT POLICY ADOPTION

The Otay Water District's investment policy shall be adopted by
resolution of the District's Board of Directors. The investment policy
shall be reviewed and submitted annually te-by the Board of Direotors
in order to ensure its oonsistenoy with the overall objeotives of
preservation of prinoipal, liquidity and yield, and its relevanoe to
ourrent law and finanoial and eoonomio trends and any modifications
made thereto must be approved by the Board.

Page 1 of 7Page 12 of 21



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/4/02
9/6/06

18.0: GLOSSARY

See Appendix A.

APPENDIX A: GLOSSARY

ACTIVE INVESTING: Active investors will purchase investments and

continuously monitor their activity, often looking at the price
movements of their stocks many times a day, in order to exploit
profitable conditions. Typically, active investors are seeking short
term profits.

AGENCIES: Federal agency securities and/or Government-sponsored

enterprises.

BANKERS' ACCEPTANCE (BA): A draft or bill or exchange accepted by a

bank or trust company. The accepting institution guarantees payment
of the bill, as well as the issuer.

BENCHMARK: A comparative base for measuring the performance or risk

tolerance of the investment portfolio. A benchmark should represent a
close correlation to the level of risk and the average duration of the
portfolio's investments.

BROKER/DEALER: Any individual or firm in the business of buying and

selling securities for itself and others. Broker/dealers must register
with the SEC. When acting as a broker, a broker/dealer executes
orders on behalf of his/her client. When acting as a dealer, a
broker/dealer executes trades for his/her firm's own account.
Securities bought for the firm's own account may be sold to clients or
other firms, or become a part of the firm's holdings.

CERTIFICATE OF DEPOSIT (CD): A short or medium term, interest bearing,

FDIC insured debt instrument offered by banks and savings and loans.
Money removed before maturity is subject to a penalty. CDs are a low
risk, low return investment, and are also known as "time deposits",
because the account holder has agreed to keep the money in the account
for a specified amount of time, anywhere from a few months to several
years.

Page 1 of 7Page 13 of 21



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/4/02
9/6/06

COLLATERAL: Securities, evidence of deposit or other property, which a

borrower pledges to secure repayment of a loan. Also refers to
securities pledged by a bank to secure deposits of public monies.

COMMERCIAL PAPER: An unsecured short-term promissory note, issued by

corporations, with maturities ranging from 2 to 270 days.

COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT (CAFR): The official annual

report for the Otay Water District. It includes detailed financial
information prepared in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP). It also includes supporting schedules necessary to
demonstrate compliance with finance-related legal and contractual
provisions, extensive introductory material, and a detailed
statistical section.

COUPON: (a) The annual rate of interest that a bond's issuer promises

to pay the bondholder on the bond's face value. (b) A certificate
attached to a bond evidencing interest due on a set date.

DEALER: A dealer, as opposed to a broker, acts as a principal in all

transactions, buying and selling for his own account.

DEBENTURE: A bond secured only by the general credit of the issuer.

DELIVERY VERSUS PAYMENT: There are two methods of delivery of

securities: delivery versus payment and delivery versus receipt.
Delivery versus payment is delivery of securities with an exchange of
money for the securities. Delivery versus receipt is delivery of
securities with an exchange of a signed receipt for the securities.

DERIVATIVES: (1) Financial instruments whose return profile is linked

to, or derived from, the movement of one or more underlying index or
security, and may include a leveraging factor, or (2) financial
contracts based upon notional amounts whose value is derived from an
underlying index or security (interest rates, foreign exchange rates,
equities or commodities) .

DISCOUNT: The difference between the cost price of a security and its

maturity when quoted at lower than face value. A security selling

Page 1 of 7Page 14 of 21



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/4/02
9/6/06

below original offering price shortly after sale also is considered to
be at a discount.

DISCOUNT SECURITIES: Non-interest bearing money market instruments

that are issued at a discount and redeemed at maturity for full face
value, e.g., u.S. Treasury Bills.

DIVERSIFICATION: Dividing investment funds among a variety of

securities offering independent returns.

FEDERAL CREDIT AGENCIES: Agencies of the Federal government set up to

supply credit to various classes of institutions and individuals,
e.g., S&L's, small business firms, students, farmers, farm
cooperatives, and exporters.

FEDERAL DEPOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION (FDIC): A federal agency that

insures deposits in member banks and thrifts, currently up to $100,000
per deposit.

FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK (FFCB): The Federal Farm Credit Bank system

supports agricultural loans and issues securities and bonds in
financial markets backed by these loans. It has consolidated the
financing programs of several related farm credit agencies and
corporations.

FEDERAL FUNDS RATE: The rate of interest at which Fed funds are

traded. This rate is currently pegged by the Federal Reserve through
open-market operations.

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK (FHLB): Government sponsored wholesale banks

(currently 12 regional banks), which lend funds and provide
correspondent banking services to member commercial banks, thrift
institutions, credit unions and insurance companies.

FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORPORATION (FHLMC or Freddie Mac): A

stockholder owned, publicly traded company chartered by the united
States federal government in 1970 to purchase mortgages and related
securities, and then issue securities and bonds in financial markets
backed by those mortgages in secondary markets. Freddie Mac, like its

Page 1 of 7Page 15 of 21



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/4/02
9/6/06

competitor Fannie Mae, is regulated by the United States Department of
Housing and Urban Development (HUD).

FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION (FNMA or Fannie Mae): FNMA, like

GNMA was chartered under the Federal National Mortgage Association Act
in 1938. FNMA is a federal corporation working under the auspices of
the Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD). It is the
largest single provider of residential mortgage funds in the United
States. Fannie Mae is a private stockholder-owned corporation. The
corporation's purchases include a variety of adjustable mortgages and
second loans, in addition to fixed-rate mortgages. FNMA's securities
are also highly liquid and are widely accepted. FNMA assumes and
guarantees that all security holders will receive timely payment of
principal and interest.

FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM: The central bank of the United States created

by Congress and consisting of a seven member Board of Governors in
Washington, D.C., 12 regional banks and about 5,700 commercial banks
that are members of the system.

GOVERNMENT NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOCIATION (GNMA or Ginnie Mae): A

government owned agency which buys mortgages from lending
institutions, securitizes them, and then sells them to investors.
Because the payments to investors are guaranteed by the full faith and
credit of the u.S. Government, they return slightly less interest than
other mortgage-backed securities.

INTEREST-ONLY STRIPS: A mortgage backed instrument where the investor

receives only the interest, no principal, from a pool of mortgages.
Issues are highly interest rate sensitive, and cash flows vary between
interest periods. Also, the maturity date may occur earlier than that
stated if all loans within the pool are pre-paid. High prepayments on
underlying mortgages can return less to the holder than the dollar
amount invested.

INVERSE FLOATER: A bond or note that does not earn a fixed rate of

interest. Rather, the interest rate is tied to a specific interest
rate index identified in the bond/note structure. The interest rate
earned by the bond/note will move in the opposite direction of the

Page 1 of 7Page 16 of 21



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/4/02
9/6/06

index. An inverse floater increases the market rate risk and modified
duration of the investment.

LEVERAGE: Investing with borrowed money with the expectation that the

interest earned on the investment will exceed the interest paid on the
borrowed money.

LIQUIDITY: A liquid asset is one that can be converted easily and

rapidly into cash without a substantial loss of value. In the money
market, a security is said to be liquid if the spread between bid and
asked prices is narrow and reasonable size can be done at those
quotes.

LOCAL AGENCY INVESTMENT FUND (LAIF): The aggregate of all funds from

political subdivisions that are placed in the custody of the State
Treasurer for investment and reinvestment.

MARKET VALUE: The price at which a security lS trading and could

presumably be purchased or sold.

MASTER REPURCHASE AGREEMENT: A written contract covering all future

transactions between the parties to repurchase/reverse repurchase
agreements that establish each party's rights in the transactions. A
master agreement will often specify, among other things, the right of
the buyer-lender to liquidate the underlying securities in the event
of default by the seller borrower.

MATURITY: The date upon which the principal or stated value of an

investment becomes due and payable.

MONEY MARKET: The market in which short-term debt instruments (bills,

commercial paper, bankers' acceptances, etc.) are issued and traded.

MUTUAL FUNDS: An open-ended fund operated by an investment company

which raises money from shareholders and invests in a group of assets,
in accordance with a stated set of objectives. Mutual funds raise
money by selling shares of the fund to the public. Mutual funds then
take the money they receive from the sale of their shares (along with
any money made from previous investments) and use it to purchase

Page 1 of 7Page 17 of 21



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/'1/02
9/6/06

various investment vehicles, such as stocks, bonds, and money market
instruments.

MONEY MARKET MUTUAL FUNDS: An open-end mutual fund which invests only

in money markets. These funds invest in short term (one day to one
year) debt obligations such as Treasury bills, certificates of
deposit, and commercial paper.

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF SECURITIES DEALERS (NASD): A self-regulatory

organization of the securities industry responsible for the operation
and regulation of the NASDAQ stock market and over-the-counter
markets. Its regulatory mandate includes authority over firms that
distribute mutual fund shares as well as other securities.

PASSIVE INVESTING: An investment strategy involving limited ongoing

buying and selling actions. Passive investors will purchase
investments with the intention of long term appreciation and limited
maintenance, and typically don't actively attempt to profit from short
term price fluctuations. Also known as a buy-and-hold strategy.

PRIMARY DEALER: A designation given by the Federal Reserve System to

commercial banks or broker/dealers who meet specific criteria,
including capital requirements and participation in Treasury auctions.
These dealers submit daily reports of market activity and positions
and monthly financial statements to the Federal Reserve Bank of New
York and are subject to its informal oversight. Primary dealers
include Securities and Exchange Commission registered securities
broker/dealers, banks, and a few unregulated firms.

PRUDENT PERSON RULE: An investment standard. In some states the law

requires that a fiduciary, such as a trustee, may invest money only in
a list of securities selected by the custody state--the so-called
legal list. In other states the trustee may invest in a security if
it is one which would be bought by a prudent person of discretion and
intelligence who is seeking a reasonable income and preservation of
capital.

PUBLIC SECURITIES ASSOCIATION (PSA): A trade organization of dealers,

brokers, and bankers who underwrite and trade securities offerings.

Pago 1 of 7Page 18 of 21



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/4/02
9/6/06

QUALIFIED PUBLIC DEPOSITORIES: A financial institution which does not

claim exemption from the payment of any sales or compensating use or
ad valorem taxes under the laws of this state, which has segregated
for the benefit of the commission eligible collateral having a value
of not less than its maximum liability and which has been approved by
the Public Deposit Protection Commission to hold public deposits.

RANGE NOTE: An investment whose coupon payment varies and is dependent

on whether the current benchmark falls within a pre-determined range.

RATE OF RETURN: The yield obtainable on a security based on its

purchase price or its current market price. This may be the amortized
yield to maturity on a bond the current income return.

REGIONAL DEALER: A securities broker/dealer, registered with the

Securities & Exchange Commission (SEC), who meets all of the licensing
requirements for buying and selling securities.

REPURCHASE AGREEMENT (RP OR REPO): A holder of securities sells these

securities to an investor with an agreement to repurchase them at a
fixed price on a fixed date. The security "buyer" in effect lends
the "seller 'l money for the period of the agreement, and the terms of
the agreement are structured to compensate him for this. Dealers use
RP extensively to finance their positions. Exception: When the Fed is
said to be doing RP, it is lending money that is increasing bank
reserves.

SAFEKEEPING: A service to customers rendered by banks for a fee

whereby securities and valuables of all types and descriptions are
held in the bank's vaults for protection.

SECONDARY MARKET: A market made for the purchase and sale of

outstanding securities issues following their initial distribution.

SECURITIES & EXCHANGE COMMISSION: Agency created by Congress to

protect investors in securities transactions by administering
securities legislation.

SEC RULE 15C3-1: See Uniform Net Capital Rule.

Pago 1 of 7Page 19 of 21



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/4/02
9/6/06

STRUCTURED NOTES: Notes issued by Government Sponsored Enterprises

(FHLB! FNMA, SLMA! etc.)! and Corporations, which have imbedded
options (e.g.! call features! step-up coupons! floating rate coupons!
derivative-based returns) into their debt structure. Their market
performance is impacted by the fluctuation of interest rates, the
volatility of the imbedded options and shifts in the shape of the
yield curve.

STUDENT LOAN MARKETING ASSOCIATION (SLMA or Sallie Mae): A federally

established! publicly traded corporation which buys student loans from
colleges and other lenders! pools them! and sells them to investors.

TREASURY BILLS: A non-interest bearing discount security issued by the

U.S. Treasury to finance the national debt. Most bills are issued to
mature in three months! six months! or one year.

TREASURY BONDS: Long-term coupon-bearing U.S. Treasury securities

issued as direct obligations of the U.S. Government and having initial
maturities of more than 10 years.

TREASURY NOTES: Medium-term coupon-bearing U.S. Treasury securities

issued as direct obligations of the U.S. Government and having initial
maturities from two to 10 years.

UNIFORM NET CAPITAL RULE: Securities and Exchange Commission

requirement that member firms as well as nonmember broker-dealers in
securities maintain a maximum ratio of indebtedness to liquid capital
of 15 to 1; also called net capital rule and net capital ratio.
Indebtedness covers all money owed to a firm! including margin loans
and commitments to purchase securities! one reason new public issues
are spread among members of underwriting syndicates. Liquid capital
includes cash and assets easily converted into cash.

YIELD: The rate of annual income return on an investment, expressed as

a percentage. (a) INCOME YIELD is obtained by dividing the current
dollar income by the current market price for the security. (b) NET
YIELD or YIELD TO MATURITY is the current income yield minus any
premium above par or plus any discount from par in purchase price!

Page 1 of 7Page 20 of 21



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
BOARD OF DIRECTORS POLICY

Subject Policy Date Date
Number Adopted Revised

DISTRICT INVESTMENT POLICY 27 9/15/93 9/4/02
9/6/06

with the adjustment spread over the period from the date of purchase
to the date of maturity of the bond.

Page 1 of 7Page 21 of 21



ATTACHMENT E

,1
00

Association of Public Treasurer's of
UNITED STATES & CANADA

Investment Policy Certification

August 10, 2006

Otay Water District, CA
James Cudlip, Treasurer
2554 Sweetwater Springs Blvd.
Spring Valley, CA 91978-2004

Dear Mr. Cudlip:

Re: Investment Policy Certification Approval

Congratulations on your successful completion of the Investment Policy Certification
process through the Association ofPublic Treasurer's-United States & Canada.
A team comprised of three (3) reviewers from the Investment Policy Certification
Committee reviewed your Investment Policy and have now approved your municipalities
policy for the APT-US&C Investment Policy Certificate ofExcellence Award.

You are invited to attend the APT-US&C Annual Conference which will be held in San
Diego, CA in 2007 to receive your plaque. Your plaque will be presented by the
President ofAPT-US&C and the Investment Policy Certification Chairman. You will
receive further information about the annual conference in the upcoming months

Once again, congratulations on ajob well done and creating an excellent policy and
attaining this award.

Sincerely,

~~
Dennis L. Habedank
Investment Policy Certification Chairman
dhabedank@garfield-twp.com



ATTACHMENT F

OTAY WATER DISTRICT
INVESTMENT PORTFOLIO REVIEW

JULY 31,2006

INVESTMENT OVERVIEW & MARKET STATUS:

In accordance with California State Code and District Investment Policy, our investment objectives, in priority order, have been 1)
safety, 2) liquidity, and 3) return on investment. To accomplish this, our strategy has been (and continues to be) to invest primarily in
Federal Agency obligations (FHLB, FHLMC, FNMA), followed by United States Treasury notes, the California State investment pool
(LAIF), and the San Diego County investment pool. Although other types of investments are authorized (commercial paper, corporate
debt securities, etc.), we have not chosen these due to the increased time required for adequate research and the increased level of risk.

For the last two years interest rates have been steadily rising due to the Federal Reserve Board's repetitive increases in the federal
funds rate, from 1.0% in Jun-04 to 5.25% in Jun-06. During the extended period when rates were low, Otay's investment strategy was
to lock in the highest interest possible for periods of 18to 24 months, with yields ranging from 1.7% to 3.0%. As interest rates have
increased beyond 3% our investment strategy has changed to shorten the investment periods from 9 to 18 months, with yields ranging
from 3.5% to 5.5%.

The Federal Reserve Board did not raise the federal funds rate beyond 5.25% at their last meeting (Aug-06) and interest rates have
now stabilized, at least temporarily. Investment analysts currently believe the Feds will increase rates at least once more this year, to
5.5% by year-end. Based on this assessment we plan to maintain our current strategy of investing in short-term Federal Agency
securities, in an attempt to avoid having prevailing interest rates overtake those of our current investment holdings for any extended
period of time.

PORTFOLIO COMPLIANCE: July 31,2006

Investment
8.01: Treasury Securities
8.02: Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
8.03: Federal Agency Issues
8.04: Certificates of Deposit
8.05: Short-Term Commercial Notes
8.06: Medium-Term Commercial Debt
8.07: Money Market Mutual Funds
8.08: San Diego County Pool
12.0: Maximum Single Financial Institution

State Limit
100%
$40 Million
100%
30%
25%
30%
20%
100%
100%

OtayLimit
100%
$40 Million
100%
15%
15%
15%
15%
100%
50%

Otay Actual
12.75%
$7.3 Million
76.59%
0.11%
o
o
o
0.14%
2.1%

------------_.- -----



Performance Measure F-12
Return on Investment

Target: Meet or Exceed 1000/0 of LAIF

6 -r----------------------------,

4.85
4.52

4.05

5 --- ----

4

3.18

3 --- 2~-oT - 2.83

2-

o

1

-!- 2nd Qtr FY06 t 3rd Qtr FY06 _ 4_th_C2!~_FY06 ---+--_J_Ul_-O~

r- Otay_ t-- 2.63__;_ 2.83 J 3.25 4.02 ..._. __ . 4._35__
1

I__ LAIF _ 3.18 3.64 --L- _4.05 4.52 4.85 ~

o Difference 0.55 0.81 0.79 0.50 0.50
----'

Month

U)...
c:
CD
E...
U)
CD
>c:-co
c:
~

::s...
CD
a:

I

Otay • LAIF D Difference - Linear (Difference) i
I _ .__ .. _ __• ~ _ --'



75.00%

Otay Water District
Investment Portfolio

2.20%

o Banks (Passbook/Checking/CD) Pools (LAIF & County) 0 Treasuries 0 Agencies

12.50%



OTAY
Portfolio Management

Portfolio Summary
JUly 31,2006

Investments

Federal Agency Issues- Callable

Treasury Securities - Coupon

Certificates of Deposit· Bank

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

San Diego County Pool

Investments

Par Market Book %of Days to TIM TIM
Value Value Value Portfolio Term Maturity 360 Equiv. 365 Equiv.

54,000,000.00 53,751,036.99 53,941,786.94 76.59 541 270 4.471 ":533

9,000,000.00 8,950,312.50 8,977,863.67 12.75 351 166 4.460 4.522

79,108.00 79,108.00 79,108.00 0.11 730 539 3.880 3.934

7,327,443.44 7,314,150.15 7,327,443.44 10.40 1 1 4.783 4.849

99,091.73 98,617.16 99,091.73 0.14 1 1 4.212 4.271

70,505,643.17 70,193,224.80 70,425,293.78 100.00% 460 229 4.501 4.563

Cash

Passbook/Checking
(not included in yield calculations)

Total Cash and Investments

Total Earnings

Current Year

Average Daily Balance

Effective Rate of Return

1,495,289.19

72,000,932.36

July 31 Month Ending

477,970.32

75,210,445.54

4.35%

1,495,289.19

71,688,513.99

Fiscal Year To Date

277,970.32

75,210,445.54

4.35%

1,495,289.19

71,920,582.97 460 229

0.257

4.501

0.260

4.563

I hereby certify that the investments contained in this report are made in accoraance with the District Investment Policy Number 27 adopted by the Board of Directors on January 19, 2000. The market
value information provided by Interactive Data Corporation. The investments provide sufficient liquidity to meet the cash flow requirements of the District for the next six months of expenditures.

~~ fj'~/b-c!2GJOOaZic~
, .

Run Dale: 08/1612006 - 09:15

Portfolio OTAY

AP
PM (PRF_PM1) SymRepI6.41.200

Report Ver. 5.00



Run Date: 08/1612006 • 09:15

Portfolio OTAY
AP

PM (PRF_PM2) SymRept 6.41.200

Report Ver. 5.00



OTAY
Portfolio Management

Portfolio Details - Investments
JUly 31, 2006

Page 3

Average Purchase Stated YTM Days to Maturity
CUSIP Investment # Issuer Balance Date Par Value Market Value Book Value Rate Moody's 360 Maturity Date

San Diego County Pool

SD COUNTY POOL 9007 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 07/01/2004 99,091.73 98,617.16 99,091.73 4.271 4.212

Subtotal and Average 99,091.73 99,091.73 98,617.16 99,091.73 4.212 '"
Total and Average 75,210,445.54 70,505,643.17 70,193,224.80 70,425,293.78 4.501 229

Run Dale: 08/1612006 - 09:15

Portfolio OTAY

AP
PM (PRF_PM2) SymRepI6.41.200



'r

OTAY
Portfolio Management
Portfolio Details - Cash

JUly 31, 2006

Page 4

Average Purchase
CUSIP Investment # Issuer Balance Date Par Value

Union Bank

UNION BANK 9002 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 07/01/2004 179,955.69
PETTY CASH 9003 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 07/01/2004 2,800.00
CALIF BANK & TR 9004 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 07/01/2004 1,229,954.29
PAYROLL 9005 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 07/01/2004 51,823.75
UNION IOC 9008 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 05/01/2006 30,755.46

Average Balance 0.00

Total Cash and Investmentss 75,210,445.54 72,000,932.36

Run Date: 08/1612006 - 09:15

Market Value

179,955.69

2,800.00

1,229,954.29

51,823.75

30,755.46

71,688,513.99

Stated YTM Days to
Book Value Rate Moody's 360 Maturity

179,955.69 1.400 1.381

2,800.00 0.000
"

1,229,954.29 0.000

51,823.75 0.000

30,755.46 4.460 4.399

71,920,582.97 4.501 229

Portfolio OTAY

AP
PM (PRF_PM2) SymRept 6.41.200



\,

OTAY
Activity Report
Sorted By Issuer

July 1, 2006 - July 31, 2006

CUSIP Investment # Issuer

Percent
of Portfolio'

________ Par \f~~_

Beginning
Balance

Current
Rate

Transaction
Date

Purchases or

Deposits

Par Value

Redemptions or

Withdrawals

Ending
Balance

Issuer: STATE OF CALIFORNIA

SUbtotal and Balance

Subtotal and Balance

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

LAIF 9001 STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Union Bank

UNION BANK

CALIF BANK & TR

PAYROLL

UNION IOC

9002

9004

9005

9008

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

1,033,493.75

12,567,520.35

1AOO

4A60

4.849

3,125,812_41 3,000,875.00

333,870.72 0.00

2,924.82 0.00

117A9 55.00

3,462,725.44 3,000,930.00

1,359,923.09 6,600,000.00

1,359,923.09 6,600,000.00

1,495,289.19

7,327,443.44

San Diego County Pool

Subtotal and Balance

Issuer Subtotal 12.391%

Issuer: California Bank & Trust

Certificates of Deposit - Bank

Subtotal and Balance

99,091.73

13,700,105.83

79,108.00

4,822,648.53 9,600,930.00

99,091.73

8,921,824.36

79,108.00

Issuer Subtotal

Issuer: Federal Home Loan Bank

0.110% 79,108.00 0.00 0.00 79,108.00

Federal Agency Issues- Callable

31~3X5ZG6 1977

3133XGCU6 2008

Federal Home Loan Bank

Federal Home Loan Bank

2.510

5A50

07/28/2006

07/28/2006

0.00

3,000,000.00

3,000,000.00

0.00

Subtotal and Balance

Issuer Subtotal 54.166%

Run Date: 08116/2006 - 09:16

39,000,000.00

39,000,000.00

3,000,000.00

3,000,000.00

3,000,000.00

3,000,000.00

39,000,000.00

39,000,000.00

Portfolio OTAY

AP
DA (PRF_DA) SymRept 6.41_200

Report Ver_ 5.00



I

t;

CUSIP Investment # Issuer
Percent

of Portfolio

OTAY
Activity Report

July 1,2006-July31,2006

___________Par V.!!IJ.~_

Beginning Current Transaction
Balance Rate Date

Page 2

Par Value._._---_._---.__._._...._--.-_....__..,-_._-------_._-_.._...._---_......._------_..._-_ .._-------_..__._-

Purchases or Redemptions or Ending
Deposits Withdrawals Balance

Issuer: Federal Home Loan Mortgage

Federal Agency Issues- Callable

SUbtotal and Balance

Issuer Subtotal 16.666%

Issuer: Federal National Mortage Assoc

Federal Agency Issues- Callable

SUbtotal and Balance

12,000,000.00

12,000,000.00

3,000,000.00

0.00 0.00

12,000,000.00

12,000,000.00 - -

3,000,000.00

Issuer Subtotal

Issuer: US TREASURY

Treasury Securities· Coupon

SUbtotal and Balance

4.167% 3,000,000.00

9,000,000.00

0.00 0.00 3,000,000.00

9,000,000.00

Issuer Subtotal 12.500%

Total 100.000%

Run Dale: 0811612006 - 09:16

9,000,000.00

76,779,213.83

0.00

7,822,648.53

0.00

12,600,930.00

9,000,000.00

72,000,932.36

Portfolio OTAY
AP

DA (PRF_DA) SymRepI6.41.200
Report Ver. 5.00



Run Dale: 0611612006 - 09:17 Page 1

Portfolio OTAY
AP

DU (PRF_DU) SymRepI6.41.200
Report Ver. 5.00



ATTACHMENT G

DISTRICT INVESTMENT
POLICY

Policy # 27

September 6, 2006



POLICY REVIEW

• Goal: To Improve Financial
Policies, Procedures, and
Reports

• Requirement: Annual Review

---- -- - - ~- -------'--_. __ .. _...._._------~~~----,_ ..--~-----



INVESTMENT POLICY GUIDELINES

A. California Government Code:
~ Sections 53600 through 53692

B. Professional Finance Organizations:
~ Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA)
~ Association of Public Treasurers of the United

States & Canada (APT US&C)
~ California Municipal Treasurers Association (CMTA)
~ California Society of Municipal Finance Officers

(CSMFO)

~~- ~~~--~---~--- -- ~--~---~-----~-- ---------- ---------- - ---~~



INVESTMENT CODE CHANGES

• New Sections
~ 6.0: Ethics and Conflicts of Interest

~ 7.0: Authorized Financial Dealers & Institutions

~ 9.0: Investment Pools/Mutual Funds

~ 10.0: Collateralization

~ 13.0: Maximum Maturities

~ 14.0: Internal Control

~ 15.0: Performance Standards

~ 18.0: Glossary



INVESTMENT CODE CHANGES

· Authorized Investments
~ 8.01: u.s. Treasury Bills

~ 8.02: LAIF
~ 8.03: Government Agency Bonds

~ 8.04: CDs

~ 8.05: Commercial Paper

~ 8.06: Medium Term Notes

~ 8.07: Money Market Mutual Funds

~ 8.08: San Diego County Pool

~ 8.09: Restrictions

- ~~------------------



INVESTMENT CODE CHANGES

· Deleted Investments

~ C. Time Deposits, non negotiable and
collateralized

~ F. Collateralized Repurchase Agreements



INVESTMENT POLICY
CERTIFICATION

APT US&C Certificate of
Excellence

• "Nicely Written"

• "One of the highest scores
we've ever given"



REQUESTED BOARD ACTION

The Finance and Administration Committee
review the Investment Policy (Board of
Directors Policy No. 27) and recommend
adoption of Resolution 4088 amending the
policy and re-delegating authority for all
investment related activities to the Chief
Financial Officer in accordance with
California Government Code Section

. 53607.



STAFF REPORT

AGENDA ITEM 8a

TYPE MEETING: Regular Board

SUBMITTED BY: Pat Vaughan-j~:rTU.&:""'~~...z-_

APPROVED BY: Rod Posada ~~
(Chief)

MEETING DATE:

PROJECT:

September 6, 2006

P2210 DIV.NO. ALL

APPROVED BY:
(Asst. GM):

SUBJECT:

Manny Magan~~

Informational Item - FY 2006 Year-End eIP Report

GENERAL MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board accept the FY 2006 Year-End eIP Report for review
and receive a summary via PowerPoint presentation.

COMMITTEE ACTION:

Please see Attachment A.

PURPOSE:

To update the Board about the status of all eIP project
expenditure highlights, significant issues, progress, and
milestones on major projects.

ANALYSIS:

To keep up with growth and to meet our ratepayers' expectations
to adequately deliver safe, reliable, cost-effective, and
quality water, each year Otay WD staff prepares a five-year
rolling eIP that identifies the Otay WD infrastructure needs.
The eIP is comprised of five categories consisting of backbone
capital facilities, maintenance projects, developer's
reimbursement projects, non-operating expenses, and capital
purchases

The quarterly update is intended to provide a detailed analysis
of progress in completing these projects within the allotted
time and budget Staff continues to strive to achieve the
targeted goal of at least 70 to 80% of the total fiscal year
budget amount. Overall expenditures in this Fiscal Year totaled
36.3 Million, which is 92%, with elP backbone facilities at
107%.



FISCAL IMPACT:

None.

STRATEGIC GOAL:

The CIP supports the mission of providing the best quality of
water and wastewater service to the customers of the Otay Water
District in a professional, effective, efficient, and sensitive
manner, in all aspects of operation, so that public health,
environment, and quality of life are enhanced.

LEGAL IMPACT:

None.

I /l

General Manager ~{)

MA

P:\ENGRSEC\REPORTS\CIP Qtrly Report\2006\BD 08-23-05, FY 2006 Year-End CIP Report.doc



ATTACHMENT A

r·S~::IUIIBRJIEC;TljpROiJ'E~:lcciT::rTl··n~,ff:;o~r:r;m~;attii····~o~·~n~,a~ll Tl:tt:~e~;m~········=FF~~Y(2006 Year-End ClP Report
(Project P2210)

COMMITTEE ACTION:

The Engineering & Water Operations Committee reviewed this item
in detail on August 23, 2006. The Committee made suggestions
for improvements to the presentation and recommended
presentation to the full board.



• • y. ~

Fiscal Year 2006
Year,·End Report

Jthroygh;June 30,2006)

CAPI A
IMPROVEMENT

PROG AM



• -~. }

Ba,ckgr,o~nd,

• To keep up with growth and 'to mee,t,our c'ustome.,s'
expectations, District· staff prepared:ia six-yeartoJUng CIP. T:he
'PiP report contains information about budget, allocations of
funds, project cost$, I()cations, descriptions, justifications and
schedules.

2.7 million

5.9 million
',"; ",,'

$ 28.9 miIlion

$ 1.8 million

$

$

Th.e approved CIPbudget for FY06'consisted 01'101 project$that
totaled $39.3 million. These pr,oJec~s are broken down into four
categories:

1. Capital facilities:

2. Maintenance:

3~ Capital purchase:

4. D.eveloper reimbu,rsement:

•



• -=---. ~

,(continued)

• Overall expenditures in this_ fiscal yeartotal~(Japproximatel-y
$36.3mUUon, whiCh is 920/0 of Qur f9recast exp~!Jditute. _

• The FY06 overall expenditures met our targeted goal of 750/0
or great~r.



• . ,.~ -. . -

FY06 Year.End, Report
(through June 30, :~q<06.)

.($OOO)

FY06
%

CIP FY06 %FY06 Total Total
Prol~<;t·

Description ~~dget .Project Project Budget
Cat Budget Expenditures S'p~nt Budget * Expenditures * Spent

1 capital Facility projects 28,937 31,051 107% 135,397 60,906 45%

2 Maintenat:lce·l?rojects 1,766 1,150 65% 11,998 4,200 35%

3 capital Purchase
Projects 2,680 1,471 55% 16,292 11,736 72%

"
4 Developer

Reimbursement
5,897 44%Projects 2,605 24,105 8,609 36%

c
Total: 39,280 36,277 92% 187,792 85,451 46%

* Six year rollingCIP



MAJOR CIP PROJECTS

N

'd""~~rE
.~I).

I'
s

N.T.S.

P:'DRAf11NG OEPARTMENl\tAaps\EXl1blt.s-mehCll\CIP.lnXd

District Boundary

PROJECT STATUS

PLANNING

DESIGN

CONSTRUCTION

COMPLETED IN USE

PS - Rolling Hills Hydro Pump Station
(950 GPM)

PL - 36" CWA I Helix to oWD Regulatory
Site

PL - 30-lnch, Hunte Pkvvy to 980
Reservoirs

City of S. D. Otay Water Treatment Plant
26 MGD Capacity

Res - 1296-3 Reservoir 2.0 MG

()

•o
•o

R2022 RecPL - 30-lnch. 450 Zone, Dairy Mart
Road to 450-1 Reservoir

Res - 850-4 Reservoir 2.2 MG

o P2008 980-2 Pump Station

e P2028 Res -1485-2 Reservoir 1.3 MG

e P2037 Res - 980-3 Reservoir 15.5 MG

@ P2129 Ground Water Exploration Program

G P2168 Res - 803-4 Reservoir 6.0 MG

(j P2185 Res - 640-1 & 2 Reservoirs 20.0 MG

@ R2001 RecRes - 450-1 Reservoir 12.0 MG

R2004 RecPS - 680-1 Pump Station (11,500 GPM)

MEXICO

LOWEROTAY
RESERVOIR

LeMON
GROVe



• • I. --

Flags:hip CIP Projects Completed

803-4,6 MG
Reservoir
This project is
complete and
was accepted
into the
District's
system in
June 2006.

980-2 Pump
Station
This project is

_ complete and
was accepted
into the
District's
system in
June 2006.

3D-Inch Pipeline,
980 Pressure Zone

This is an important
project due to
increasing demand in
Eastern Chula Vista,
980 Zone. Project
was designed in
house and accepted
by the District in May

~~----=,-----=-------=~--:__:.-..-., 2006.

1485-2, 1.6 MG
Reservoir
This project is
complete and was
accepted into the
District's system
in May 2006.



• -, .. -

Flagship CIP Projects in- Co'nstructi()n
and Ahead of~ Schedul~e

30" Recycled Water Pipeline Project

Project was awarded to Ortiz for construction in May 2005. This
pipeline will deliver recycled water from South Bay to the 450 / 680

, ..,
Reservoir and Pump Station. Project is expected to be completed

, in the Fall of 2006.

,
" ).

,..... ~.,

450-1 Reservoir /680-1 Pump Station
Reservoir and the Pump Station are under
construction. Project is expected to be
complete in the Spring of 2007.



/

Progress on Major Proj~cts

• 980-2 Pump Station:
Key 25,000 G~M',{36 MGD,} pump station delivering water to

Component: the 980 potable water pressure zQne.

Schedule: Board approved award of construction 'contraCI.:ig
September20Q4. Construction began in October 2004.
Completed June 2006.

Cost: Budget was 1000/0 spent.

Significant APWA MOl;lgr.Award will. be,given on Septe;~ber14, 2006.
Issues:

Warranty items,being worked on at no ~ost to tile
District. , .

- One pump has been pUlled:forwarranty'repair.
- ATS in pro~ess of il1s,tallati,on., "

• 3D-Inch Pipeline, 980 Pressure Zone:,

Key 7,900 Unear feet of 30-i~ch CML&C ste~1 pipeline, from ~unte

Component: ParkWay to the 980· Reservoirs and 5,000 feet of access' road~

Schedule: Not,ice to proceed dated April 20,:2005. Completed May 2006.

Cost: Budget was 1000/0 spent.



• . -.. ~

APWA Honor Award

JI" A ft~A~ San D;ego & Imperial Countie5 Chapter

~,_~__.~_.A.M.EiiiRiii/CiiiAiiiN.P.U.BL./.CiiW.O.R.KS.A.S.S.OC.I.AT./O.N.--.-.
August 22, 2006

Ms. Barlma Bartholomae
Boyle Engineering Corporation
7807 Convoy Coun. Suite 200
San Diego, CA 92111

11('!o:;cmRl~"'i!lt:fl!in::::-.;.2111

("i;\ufS,Yln"!'I1

n'il'\\'Jr,:".10<1j,JtS.:'SII,7}-55U.':;'
T.lr:aT.-.:h.ln.,·

Reference: APWAAWARD

Dear l\.:ls. Bartholomac:

It is my pleasure [Q inform you that the 980·2 Pump Station Projcct was sdecred far an Honor Award.

"Ilte a~rds probonm is Oil ThutSwy, Sc:prcmbcr 14, 2006 ar [he Ass0ci2rioo's monthly meeting at me
.Four Point~ Hotel, 8110 Aero Dri\.-c. San Diego. Registration will begin at 1t:3O a.m.:with lunch a.nd
awards program starting at 12:00p.m. \'\!c request that you designate a representative from your
org.tab-arioll co attend the meeting, receive the awatd, and have a complimentary lunch -with our
members. You truly invite others to attend the. awards pr~cntation however; they will be responsible
for me cost of tbcir lunch. Lunch reservations can be made by (:mailing Mati Mclean at
madean@mms-inc.ncr by dose of business on M<m<!ay, Seprember t 1, 2006.

A picture of rOW' project will be included in me award. p1aq~ Please send 3. high quality horizonWly
orientated 4" .x6"bardcopy picture to my attention ac .

Tom Frank, PE
APWA Awards Chair
C/O,
JnfrastroCN.!e Engineering CoTor"rion
717 Pier View Way
Oceansid<, CA 92024

..'\ slide presentation highlighting all winning projects is included.in the afternoon's program. Please:
email me NrO or three decttonic copy project photO:l no later than Augu.·.;t 30. 2006, My e-mail
address j~ tfrank@iccorporation.

Congratulations on your aw.ud. If you have any questi'ons or need additional infonuaribn. please
con!:let me at (760) 529-0795 ext 203.

Sin=dy,

APWA ChaptCl' Awards Committee Chairman

me

1'.>111 B.:~J.;!lnr (~I~ 123{>·(,n~
Cllyof5;Jr,mqw

F.dW:lllflllll!I'JI;\!~·i:l5

Cily"rC'lf<»Wl'

TR[\:'TKUt

Slll\nie H(1Jl<C(biY!2~.i-':~'J1

URSCl',fflV1<llillti

·It-rn:\''':~;:6J'II.u''''·5~8J

('il~ \'''OIt1I~ ViSla

TO-'ll rrJr,J,; e601 ~2'J-l)79~

JQfrJ.tru>.1lH't"En);in,:~'l'in:

TiJn (,;;prtl:l:-fnljl,191 Z'll..oJ''17
l\id:t"n;illcerinll·('lllllp~r,~

.11ln:1I,h.mSl'lljlhl.;~SI~&-~fl:!1

(·il}·.\1r!'u\\,:t)'

Cb:1lI.;!rJW~I;'-,(S5Sl6':\J.2125

Cotllll~ r.fS,)(L lJiego

I\llicl3M<1m:"rI7!~Iil!J""-lQl8

c'I}'.·rE~'!ltlJ~

T'.\ST PRESIDE;..'!"

C11:lf:~.'!(., Spinks (6IQl)J+(J~::

l\illll~)"·!I<lrll ..'(: A»\lI.i~!~

1I00'S[{)fD£lJ(G.nt:.... 4~O
C\UFOY.~il_~ PIlBlICWOn...."
COl:;\C!I. RF.PRfSI:."T.\1"1"£

I\,,!ielna.~ III~~J ';:'6·'J1~'tXi

l')llltUs

Jt;!il , FlJ(.lIi~'S-i()\l)1 S3';'JI)'{~

Cil)",ll"S,lnDi<::;n
Alr~rllii\C

JU:(;IO~"IIII)/l{£{T(l1t

,\nnUurn.·"1j
(t;19ItH~W



• ~

II ,~

(continued)

• ,803-4 Reservoir:
Key Rem,ovean ,existing 1 ~G reser'!oir'and con~tructanew-6

Component: MG above-9round steel ,reseQfolr.

Schedule: Bo.ard approved the co'nstruction contract in Octol),er
2004. Completed June 2006.

Cost: This project came in $390,000 under budget.

-1,.485-2 Reservoir:
Key Con'strllction of: a new 1.6 I\1IG steel reservo'ir.

Component: Rehabilitation of th~ existing 0~3MG steel reserv()ir.

Schedule~ Board ClPpr9.~ed the con$t~yctloncontract ilJ May 2004.
Constn,iCUon began in June'2004. The n~w1485-2,Reservoir'

was completed in November"2005, and the rehabilitation of the
existing 1485-1 Reservoir wa§i~Ori1pleted in~ay 2006.

Cost: This project came in $80,000 under budget.



(continued)

• 30" Recycled Water Pipeline Project:
Key" Appro~irnateIY' 6 ~nes~f 30~' pipeline. for recycled w:~~er

Component: from City of ~an Diego's So~th Bay Water Re~lamatlon
. Plant (SBWRP)to Ot~y's 450-1 Reservoir and 680-1 Pu~p

Station.

Schedule: Full notice to,proceed given on September.,~8,2005.

Contract completion date is November 21, 2006~

Cost: The overall project budget is 69°k spent -$15.53miUion
outof a total budgetof $22.6 million.

Significant Project is progressing well. 'Construction contract is on
Issues: schedule and 750/0 complete as of June 30, 2006.

• 450-1 Recycled Reservoi'/680~1Recvc/~d'jPumpStation::
Key12~QOO GPM (17.3MGD) pumpstatiolJ delivering

Component: recycled water from 450-1 Reservoir' to the 680:and94;4
recycledwatQr pressure ,zof:1eS.

Schedule: Construction started in'l,ate November 2005. Contract
compl~tion date is March 14, 2007.

Cost: The overall project budget is 51 % spent - $9.36' million
out of a total b...dget of $18.2 mHlign.

Significant ;Construction contra~t is on schedule and 57% complete
Issues: as of June 30, 2006.



• ]II . -
..

(continuedJ

.. 980-3-15MG Reservoir:

Key
Component:

Schedule:

Cost:

Significant
Issues:

Otay Engineering staff is designing a 15 million gallon
pre-stressed, circular, concrete res.ervoir adjacent to our
two existing r,eservoirsin thei~se area.

900/0 design completed. Co'n'struction to begin inFY1 O.

The overall project budget is 70/0 spent.

Project- has been resched~led in order to complete other
higher priority projects. Add'iti~nally,o~hersystem
improvements,:.have allowed this project cO.mpl~tiondate

,.to be extended. Remaining design work will'be.completed
t()ward the end of.FY09 ~ith construction s~arti>ng,inearly
FY10. . ,



(continued)
.• East County Regional Trea.tedWa'ter Imiirovement Program (ECRTWIP):

• • ._" •• • ._, - • ','J .. - , • ",~.;.• - -.

" .. '::"

Key
Component:

Acquire aI). additional 4 MGO of local treatment capacity for a total
of 12 MGD'onpeak capacity: and 16.MGDoff peak cCipacity from
Helix Wa.ter District through the San Diego County Water Authority
(CWA).

Olay's portionh; the constructton of a 36"pipeUh~.
"",

Schedule: ECRTWIP Agreement-fully executed ~n April 27, 2006.

FCF #14 to be completed by December 2007' (CWA).

The 36" pipeline is exp'ected to. be completed by January 2010
(OWO).

Cost: FYO.6 budget was·expended.

Significant Four'Water Districts Involved (Otay, Padre, Lakeside and Heli~)
Issues: with CWA. ., . ;. ",.

Each Agency to pay for infrastructure.

.CWA to contribute $4.2 million toward construction the new: 36"
p.ipeline by OtClyfrom FCF #14~0 regulatgry sit~. .'

OWO in process of hiring d~~i>gn consultant ror the pipeli~e.

Total budget: $12.68 million OWO"'s share: $8.28 million

/' JI1~ IJWJ f7vO~~



(continued)

• Qi1Y of San Diego's ~TP, CapiJcitr.;.
Key Acquire at,least 30 MGD of local treatmentcapacity'frol1lCity of

Component: San Diegt?:'(City). '

SchedUle: Staff continues discussions wi~h City and SDCWA staffs.

Cost: Only staff .lime has been b~dgeted; project cost is depe,ndent;
upon negotiations outcome. '

• The City will supply "~,~rpllJ.sWater" fr,omOtay WTP to Otay per the current 1999
agreement.

•• '<'Re~established 'negotiations with the City with~thenew staff appointed recently I)'y
the Mayor.

.,The City bas ~n,()pportunlty of cL~10',000,000 grarJt for a pump station at the
Alvarado WTP tO"pump into CWA Pipeline NO'.'4.

• Draft Principles of Understanding (POU) with the,:,'City have been prepared related;
to the AlvaradoWTP pump stati,on.

,. <Deal Points of~ 1;999 Agreement:
• Water treatment capacity of 10 million gallons per day (MGD) available immediately ~o

Otay from the existing. Lower Otay ,Reservoir Treatment Plant capc;lcitY'i,8S av~ilable.

• Otay will be'able to take morethan 10 M'GD fro,m tt,le treatment plant,8s long as combiraed
demands of Otay Water District/and the City do notexceed the treatment plant capacity.

• Otaywill pay CWA directly for raw"water at the prevailing melded rate.
• Otay'will pc:-y the City for the treatment cost.
• The term of the agreementis for 50 years.



Consultant -Contract Status
(through June 30, 2,006)

OPENED
ORIGINAL TOTAL REVISED APPROVED

%C?HANGE % CONTRACT
EST.

CIPN0. PROJECT TITLE CONTRACT CHANGE CONTRACT PAYMENT COMPo
DATE

AMOUNT ORDERS AMOUNT TO DATE
ORDERS COMPLETE

DATE
PLANNING

R2001l 450-1 Rec Reservoir /-680-
11/112003 1,030,000 106,000 1,136,000 1,068,079 10% 94% 06/30/07 -

R2004 1 Pump Station

Pl000
OWDSCADA

1/26/2005 420,000 0 420,000 354,816 0% 84% 11/30/06
Documentation

P1210 Integrated Flesources Plan 2126/2006 225,000 0 0 96,919 0% 0% 03/30/07

P2008 980-2 ,Pump Station 3/1/2003 682,400 18,318 700,718 700,718 3% tOO% 05/31/06

P2185 640-1 and 2 R~~ryoirs 1111/2005 722,000 120,000 842,000 738,960 17% 88% Q9/01/08

PLANNING TOTALS $3,079,400 $244,318 $3,098,718- $2,959,492 8% 96%

DESIGN

PJ043 Cathodic Protection 1/16/2002 133,460 44,110 177,570 168,386 33% 95% 07/30/06

Pl043 Cathodic Protection 1212012005 162,418 2,500 164,918 47,013 2% 29% 06/30/07

P2028 1485-2 Reservoir 5/1011999 132,700 158,215 290,915 246,890 119% 85% 09/29/06'

P2028
1485~2 Reservoir-

812912003 5-,000 6,800 11,800 9,110 136% 77% 09/29/06
Landscape

- P2037 980-3 Reservoir 10/31/2005 49,700 0 49,700 33,713 0% 68% 04/01/07

P2037
980-3 Reservoir -

2116/2006 5,000 0 5,000 .2,292 0% 46%
Construct.ion Review

P2037
980-3 Reservoir - Electrical

3113/2006 13,220 0 13,220 6,325 0% 48%
Services

P2038
12-lnch Pipeline

9/23/2005 9,200 0 9,200 9;158 0% 100% 12131/05
Replacement

P~168-
803-4 Reservoir-

4/14/2003 8,300 9,990 18,290 15,155 120% 83% 09/29/06
Landscape



(continued)

OPENED
ORIGINAL TOTAL REVISED APPROVED

% CHANGE % CONTRACT
EST.

CIPNO. PROJECT TITLE CQNTRACT CHANGE CONTRACT PAYMENT COMPo
DATE

AMO,UNT ORDERS AMOUNT TO DATE
ORDERS COMPLETE

.DATE
DESIGN (cont.)

P2168 803-4 Reservoir - Electrical 4129/2004 16,660 0 16,660 ·12,120 0% 73% 09/29/06

P2191 850-4 Reservoir 1217/2005 15,695 0 15,695 4,185 0% 27% 03/24/06

P1291 850-4 Reservoir 6/9/2006 8,500 0 .8,500 0 0% 0% 09/04/06

P2416
Staff Extension, SR-125

1211/2004 45,000 25,000 70,000 69,976 56% 100% 12131/05
Projects

P2416
Staff Extension, SR-125

2123/2006 5,000 ° 5,000 ° 0% 0% 12131/06
Projects

P2440 SR-905 Utility Relocatic)ns 7/9/2004 200,000 26,900 226,900 215,815 13% 95% 09/29/06

P2022
30" Recycled Water

9/2212003 1,585,000 245,136 1,830,136 1,769,316 15% 97% 06/06/06
Pipeline

P2053
RWCWRF - A.O. Building

1/4/2006 t2 j 250 0 12,250 6,41;3 0% 52% 03/30/06
Remodel

DESIGN TOTALS $2,407,103 $518,651 $2,925,754 $2,615,867 22% 89%

PUBLIC SERVICES
Recycled Water Irrigation

P2258 Plancheck & I~~pectidn 3/36/03 250,000 30,000 280,000 ~59,474 12% 93% 12131/06
(Ph. 1)

P2258
Value Eng. For RIW in

5110/2004 49,147 23,900 73,047 57,124 49% 78% 10/31/05
Otay Mesa

Recycled Water Irrigation
P2258 Plancheck 'Bt Inspection 12120/2004 230,000 40,000 270,000 185,645 ':H% 69% 12131/06

(Ph. 2)
Recycled Water Irrigation

P2258 Plancheck and Inspection, 10/11/2005 250,000 0 250,000 59,412 0% 24% 06/30/07
Ph. 1

PUBLIC SERVICES TOTALS $779j147 93,900 $873,047 $561,655 12% 64%



• •. "

(continue~)

OPENED
ORIGINAL TOTAL REVISED

PAYMENT TO % CHANGE % CONTRACT EST.COMP.
CIPNO. PROJECT TITLE

DATE
CONTRACT CHANGE CONTRACT

DATE ORDERS COMPLETE DATE
AMOUNT ORDERS 'AMOUNT ,

CONSTRUCTION /
INSPECTION

1'2008 980-2 Pump Station 12114/2004 444,675 0 444,675 443,649 0% 100% 02101/06

Various Inspection Services 10/29/2003 85,300 14,000 99,300 56,155 16% 57% Ongoing

Various On-Call CM ~nd Inspection .811/2005 200,000 0 200,000 f8,351 0% 14% 08iol/06

R2022
30" Recycled Pipeline CM

6/28/2005 1,244,201 0 1,244,201 541,477 0% 44% 01116/07
Services

1=12001/ 450-1 Rec Reservoir /680-
12115/2005 825,000 0 825,000 164,101 0% .20% 04/0V07R2004 1 Pump Station

CONSTRUi;TIONIINSP. TOTALS $2,799,176 $14,000 $2,813,176 $1,233,733 1% 44%

ENVIRONMENTAL

1'2037 980-3 Reservoir 9/30/2004 54,000 7,319 61,319 56,908 14% 93% 03/31106

Bur. Of Reclamation Title
XVI Funding Prog. 1111212004 49,800 0 49,800 34,952 0% 70% 11101/05

Environ. Asmt.

1'1253
HMA& Interconnect

3/9/2005 228,572 0 228,572 228,549 0% 100% Complete
Pipeline MaintlMonitor
On-Call Environmental

100,000 0 100,000 37,106 0% 37% 06/30/06
Services

1'1253
HMA & Associated

4/20/2006 566,444 a 566,444 5,022 0% 1% 03/0'1/08
Mitigation Projects

1'2143 1296-3 Reservoir 5/8/2006 125,000 0 1~.5;000 6,672 0% 5% 09/30/07

ENVIRONMENTAL TOTALS $1,123,816 $7,319 $1,131,135 $369,209 1% 33%

IGRAND TOTAL 10,188,642 878,188 10,841,830 7,739,956 9% 71%
I



• . - ..
•

Construction, Oontract Statu~s'

(through June 30, 2006)

ORIGINAL TOTAL REVISED TOTAL % %,
CIP CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT' CHANGE CONTRACT, EARNED TO OFC,HANGE CONTRACT ',EST.COMP.
NO. PROJECT TITLE CONTRACTOR AMOUNT ORDERS AMOUNT DATE ORDERS * COMPLETE DATE

P2008 980-2 Pump Station
Spiess

6,053,800 23,964 6,077,764 6,077;764 0.4% 100% June 2006
Construction

803-4 Reservoir (64,945)
,

P2168 CB&I 3,265,562 " 3,200,617 ! 3,200,617 -2.0% 100% June 2006

P2028 1485-2 Reservoir OB&I 1,772,066 ' (47,818) 1,724,248 1,724,248 -2.7% ,100% May 2006

..
P2399 980 Pipeline TCConstruction 2,266;000 14,077 2,280;077 2,280,077 0.6% 100% May 2006

':
" " •

R2022 30" Recycled Water Ortiz Corp. 14,747,600 (2,412) 14,745,188 11,897,943 -0.02% 75% Nov 2006

P2359 Mete,r Shop Remodel Blair Rasmussen 60,747 ° 60,747 ° 0.0% 0% Dec 2006
.. " ~.

450-1 Recycled ,

R20011 'Reservoir I 680-1
TC Construction 14,740,000 (571,305) 14,168,695 8,014,706 -3.9%

.>
57% March 2007

R2004 Recycled Pump
Station . .

TOTAL: $42,905,775 (648,439) $42,257,336 $33,195,355 -1.5% 79%
~

* Change orders for projects this fiscal year continue to be below the
industry average()f 5-120/0, which is an oUlstanding accompli,shment.



Fiscal Y$ar 2006
YEAR END REPORT

(Expenditures through Jun~ 30, 2006)
($000)

F~~;;.er Current
No. CIP No.

,De.scription Pl""oject
Manager

FY06
Budget

Total
Proje_Ct
Budget

Total
Project

Expenses

Total
Percent
Project 
Budget
5Dent

Remaining
cTo~I"

. Pr·oject
Balance

CommentS

--- ---- ---+----__t--
Total budget was increased by the

__--,-~20,~~!!r!Li!,May;'2Q_Q§--,~y.-t!i.5~,00~_9Q!L flg_Q.~__1'~_::_!!!I_Q:~I'!Jl!!(J~t!'.!!.~r_ L2!?,(J()() (;I'_"!) -Yi!!'gJtCl_~ 42.~ fJ,_()_5_~T"c__• __t;l,()~§_i__!.()_O~(!,

PL - 36-Inch; SDCWA Otay FCF No•. 14 to [I iStaff prepared RFP and advertised
009 P2009 R.eaulatorv Site Juybari 2 12 6001 141, 10/0 12 459!for design consultant.

___..Q.~l!__P2_Cl..=?:t;l _!!~~!.~~_~::.=?:_!!~!;~!~_0.lr_!'§_!"19.... Vi'.!J.9!!CI_o:t~_-,-+ !r?~()_ _ __ ~l?5()1 ~,001.l ~_~~<?_f-- 2~~5=om(JI~~",-, ; ---,--:~

037 P2037 Res - 980-3 Reservoir 15.0 MG Alex 325 77001 5361 70/0 7 164!prOject rescheduled for Fv,io.

-AlexP2040 Res - 1655-1 Reservoir 0.5 MG040

PL - 12-Inch, 978 Zone, Jamacha and I IPotholing complete .and PDR. draft
038 J'..?_()38. Hi<!~en_"!"'~i!..!!9'!!!.~"'-~_~~..CI.!!'<!_--'!"'(J!~~" fR=ie......n",d..e,.,a",u,"---------;- --=20 1.I.9.0.9_r--'- --~-~-1- 5°&_ ·955 complete. . _

9 1- 5001 473i 320/0 :I: 027~project is developer dependent.

129 P2129 Groundwater Exploration Program Peaslev
I Otay' River Demineralization
. ,Feasibility Concept Proposition 50

150 25301 551 220/0 1 9791Grant Award. -
143 P2143 Res - 1296-3 Reservoir 2.0 MG Padilla 65 25251 104 40/0 2 421Con1pleted preliminarv desian.

172 P2172 PS - 1485-1 Pump Station Replacement Alex

~?~§' 4,~§'§_;__ _~&~(J ---~00{'!---------.:-8751~~~~~:·onschedule and

85 1880' 123 7% 1757;budaet.

IFY06 budget &-total budget was
!increased by the Board in $ept &
,Dec 2005 by $900;000 &

4 000 -5333 000 respectively.

7 074 Proiect-ahead of schedule.

3%

90%

69%

.'
Consultant finished design three

__JJ--"!.!' :!'_~1:()6 months ah",ad~!schedule. __ . _
Developer driven_ - currently on

117.hold.

4071'

4233

15526.

Project complete•.
_-!,~.~~_-_~()~{'! ~~.§.Z. !!~i.!!'E_....~~men!...p-,"a,-"-id=. ------'-1

I
8233!

400

3233

IProject_comp!ete andacce-pted.
--'9oc4"----'0"-"0'-j ---,,--2=3"'9'+'C"'I"'aim 'from contractor.

- IProj.;ci-i~-complete--andth.;-CIP--
40Iwill be closed. -'

Total budget was incre~sed by the
Board in Sept & Dec 2005 by
$900,000 & $567,000,

__~,~? ------ _?A!~~7_+I___,----"~,:!,-2~,_-_~~{'!----- --~L~~~~:~~~eimbu;;;,-..;;~;;i-----t
!agreement being negotiated. with

429!.Eastlake. ..'

350 ~ ~~!?Q~-~,~:!,L-
Vacla_v~e~~k,~_~ 4~ --.!.~_--- 149

Vauqhan

Vaucihan

R2003 RecRes.- 680~1 Reservoir·3.4 MGR003

R004 R2004 RecPS_- 680-1 Pump Station (11,500_GPMl Vauahan
RecPL·- 20-Inch, 944 Zone, SDCWA R/W -

-~~,M-Q!~ 944-1 Pump Stati~_'!L~stLak~___ _ _ --rY-i1~--"--~
_ RecPL - 30_Inch, 450 Zone, Otay Valley -

R022 R2022 Dairy Mart/450_1 Reservoir

624-1_Reservoir Disinfection Facility,
Inlet/Outlet/Bypass a-nd 613-1 Reservoir

_:?9~ P2295 [?-oe"m=o.".'=-=-=-------:-----:, ---c:-------:-----:-__---,-----,-------=_--::----+V-"i!!'.9ha!!
Dis - 1200-1 Pump Station Disinfection

299 ,=,2299 Faci~ _

---.!~ ?-~.!.~.§. Re_~_::_~~Q-=--1 Re~er~_Qi!" _?Q..Q._M...~ .. _
PL - 10-Inch,1485 Zone, Jamul Highlands

190 P2190 Road to Presilla Drive .



• • •

(c-ontinued)

'-f-- _~ -CAPITA_L FACIUTY PRO~ECTS (con't)
RWCWRF - R.O. Building RemodeLand

R053 RZ053 Office _Furniture '

Fo~~er Curr:~nt'
No. Cl:~~No.

Comments

!- -. .--
I
ProJect'_w,1I be- acceleratecL1st

1591.0uarter_'of FY07.
fMultiple projects are' contained
!withint.... is CIP. Two of.rl.any are

I
,complete, accepted and '"
reimbursed. This is ;i{developer

1 6811 reimbursement.

Remaining
~ 'Total
'Project
Balance

16%

Total
Percent
Project
Budget

-, Soent

Total
Project
E~penses

I

2-:1 721

I
,

i
I

2000:
I

3191

Total
Project
Budget

61

150

FY 06
Budget

Project
Manager

Vauahan

i---.------+-------t---

Riooeraer

Description

RecPL .. 16-Inch, 8'60' Zone, Airway Road 
R2058 Otav Mesa/AltaR058

R086
.
L'Completed PDR,fit!lld i".specti9n

RWCWRF Force 'Main AirVac Replacements ' ,I~f existing valves and 300/0-
R2086 and Road Imorovements Padilla 50 6001 98. 160/0 502idesign. '.

PL - 8-Inch, Russel Square Sewer Lift I I

S001 SZ001 Station to'Citv of EI Caion System Alex 10 385,. 37: 100/0 ,.348Iproiect cancelled. PDR comolete.

132 Comolete.
,Commenced planning,
jenvironmental. Completed

___~~Jpotholing'!.. _

51%

_:I.'o'0".~1",01i<>0'-1- ..:~",2",0><+,c""..0",m,-,ID~lle=te..-,-. ..::-' j

~~.li I------l,~~_~ -,,1",·-...9,,4:o:7.,-~_
Padilla /
Klaahs_en _

PL - 8-Inch, Hidden Mou'ntainSewer Lift 'I'" .
_§.QQ~... _~Z_002_ ~~!i~I1_!Q_~i~_v.,QL!;J::~!!lc;m-.~y:~.t •._e..m"-"-___ .~!.~.xL 1,.o+ ,~~Q.~ :3_3)Z3(.'! ~~?CL!'!"Qj~~tc~_I1~!.!.~_~.,..J~DR~c;:omolete.

!;,-~Q1~ -~iJ~'i~~l:f.;~;!'iti~~-i~:;c;:~~:f;e Drive-::-~J~x- -i-.....,..----2'""-51------~~Q.! 4Zt-I-_.:L.~.o...'!._ _ ~~j.!"!:Qj~£1:.~11 schedule an~.p..!,I~_g.~t!~
~~~:3. _~!!'!'..P.91Presilla_. padilt"- ._!Q -"6"'9:.:3"',r _4 ._:I.-'?!'!.._ 689Ipro~1:.~~!'~!:!"_~~ to futur~~ar!>.~_.__

Additional environm'ental review
i andea,si!inent andmitigatlon

W_191. P2191 Res- 850-4 Reservoir 2.Z MG .!'!!~!!.~'-__f-_~~_~7c_5"+----:3~~~--_ 4Z41 ~ . _.~;571 license ag.!:~~!!!~.I1!acquisition.
~~-~-------4 Board authorized expenditures'for

a portable pump in the amo.unt-of_
$500,000 in' December. 2004.
Muc... ·of the. work was performed

___~~ -'5=5"-",3,""8 c!!!_FY06.
PS - Lower Otay Pump Station i>hase 1

W258 P2Z~_~_{~_900GPM) _
, PL - ZO-Inch, 711 Zone, Proctor Valley

~~ ."-~Z91 Road - Lane/I,,~9.J?_. .,__c--_l.Y..iH!.9.!:E•.rr-_t----~f----=1 'Lz...~Q.J-__
PL .. 16-Inch, .711 Zone, East H Street ..

W29Z ..P2~92 LooJ>.L~stLake_Q.rl~!L _ .Va~_g.t:!.~r:!__--~Q.f--- ...:..:?.zQ~ :!-_:3..!3t-

PL - 20-Inch, 657 Zone,..summit Cross-Tie i[ .'
W318 PZ3_~ and 36-Inch Main- Conn~~ion..!" . Padilla 5 ~OO 2liJ_----~~-

PL - 12-Inch, 803 Zone, Jamul Drive ' r
W356_PZ3~~~rm~~ran ~!.P-.t!l.!!.!!!L~lacement . Rl!m~lJti!.u 17 600t- 25: 9_0~_. .. 545!PDR draft com~t",e"'.'--~ l

Res -'Dorchester Re'servoir and Pump .. 1
W370 PZ370 Station Demolition' . Padilla 10 1001 13; 130/0 87: Staff chanoe.

PL - 12-Inch, 83;2 zone, Steele Canyon . I'·
W387 P2387. Road - Via CalienteICamao Riendeau 10 2501 37 150/0 213 PDRdraft comolete.

Helix WD'LevyWTP and System Capacity !I i ECRTWIP Agreement approved'.
W394 P2394 Acauisition (8 MGD)' Pe'asleY Z5 80 49: 61 0/0 31 Project comDlete. .

PL - 30-Inch, 980 Zone, 980 Reservoirs to 1 2 736 I,!

W399 P2399 Hunte Parkwav Vauahan Z 340 27401 1000/0 4 Comolete.

Infol'mation 'Technology' Facilities i"
_~~~_ c!'~~-~ TechnoIQ.!nc!!I?9..LClI~~. +'$.!~.Y-~!1L~-----10.;!

W447 PZ447 Information,Technoloov Meter Routing Stevens 40
, . Total Capital Fa'cilitie's Projects Total: 28,937

95Stevens
Information Technology Business

W441 P2449 Continuitv .

~
I x rcontractor ahead of sche,d,.J1e on

W422 P2422 Ag,encv Interconnections __ ' K_ta_ClIhseri 50 .258 160!, 6...2.__0/0__ ,98 construction. .

.-::~. '~-~~~-~~:~~~~o~:p-~~-itv-'>~-;:-~h~;-; Ag;eement 'p:a~levi!-~-~- 100 . 401 '40% ---·--.. ------:ci~;~~~~~~l:~~~~;:::---
i I I' : Data Center upgrades a rei ...

, iPl'ogress. Project will be ..
320, 46' 140/0 274ieomolete in F'I'07.



(continued)
Comments

-+._---+------------....,.-.-

Total Remaini'ng'
'Percent "T~tal
Project .
Budget Project
Spent Balance,
.--.._-..- .----..-~-.-- -.'-' -------'------.,------1

FY 06
Budget

Project
Manager

Description'

i
Total, I T9tal

Project ,ptOj'i!ct

!iudget I,r-_E_x_p_e_n'_se_s_

MAINTENANCE PROJECTS ..... ~ i
SVS[)'Outfaii-;;"dRsDRepla~e-;';t-:-:a-n-d:-'--1-'-'----+-----I-- I

S012 S2012 OM Reimbursem=e",n"t'c'~ -+,-p",e."a."s",le"';L...V_+_-:-_=3",7-=4,+-__ .._~18671 !59J__---'4".0-"Y,~0+_____'_c__"3".,-'~17 Countv o(S.D. invoice aooroved.
~ j Equipment not needed due to

. Riooerger , 100 365lc 1391 38% co- 226 different ooeratinqorocedures.S013 S2013 RWCWRF Imorovements

Former
CIP Current

CIP'·No.
No.

:i=li! This project is on schedule to
36~Inch M.ain Pumpouts and Air/Vacuum I begin work in November during a

~67 P2267 Ventilation Installations Hendeison~Q1 ~8_~t ..~~L 67% 27 shutdown. ..~
Operations EOC and Meter Sl:Iop Remodels ...--- _ COl)tractor was selected. Work to

.cW35J!, ~~~~J! .!l.....~_I:.Q.~.~~. . Ripperg.~. 5Q ...!IJ.QL._..__~J>J__ A.~9/'!._.__ 85 begin in lst.Qtr•..Qf.£Y07. .__
. . I" " IEngine #1 retrofitsnearl\i'

W366 P236.6 APCD Engine Reolacementsand Retrofits Scholl '0' 150 2,188! 1352: 620/0 836icomolete.

_w.~~_.1'~~~~.sA·ad·!mE!!YI'nl.astnr~a-t··~I:-o~nC;!Ja·!ni.tdY.-oImp'"·ePr.ra·!»tVI'oen·.~s-eBnut.§I'I"d·-I'n··-gs-··~!I"P'i!."·I,!.··-~~~. .1.,~1.zf- ~~.!i.L__..Z!:~(o"-I ·~~~I~~:tll!rm~~7~::ee~~~~:.!:;:~~s··-·-
I I ·ar!!complete. Please close··out

W384 P2384 EnnlmcementS . Stalker 65 5981 5971 .. 99.8% 1 this CIP;number.

I
Bills not'issued. Ttiosereceived
were incorrect or'had:' i~cidequate

W416.P2416 SR-125 Utility Relocations Riendeau I 300 7001 457 1 65% '·243 informa.tion. .
W440' P2440. I-90S Utility Reloc·atio.-,s:..... -c- .~R=ie...n..d,.·",·e."a"u:_ ' _~~ ~zQQ.L. ~.!!!l. 1,~6...;OA."o'+_--'--.i1281 Construction bids reg·uested ..

Total Maint~nanceProjects Total: T ·1,766 11,9981 4,2001 35 0/0 7,79.8
,.' I . -"- - ....... -·----r----·-·..·--,-----··· ....----=.L:...='+------------------J

CAPITAL PURCHASE PROJECTS ! --- 1--

W285 P2285

vO-ef..fl1l.-ci.ce~E·-qCUa·l.pi·mtael nPtU.arCnhd~Fs. u~.rsnl.tu··r-e·····c···a-p···I: ..t-a-I··--~~ ..!'!.!>··-I' l,Z~ _. 2,..!72~-J...t:l-4Q,,!.--- .. 52c>(~.. __!J9~ ~1.L~06 vel1t~~.!!.!!_P!lrChas~d•..
o I ". All FY06 office andfurnit'Lfr;e

Purchases Dobrawa, 142 .698 1 392: 56% 306 capital purchases comp.lete.
'c

W286 P2286
" I' "AII FY06 field equipment capital

Field Equipment Capital Purchases Dobrawa 65 1 17.6, 524' 45% 6521 purchases complete. ",

'~;353 P2353

W361 P2361

Information Technology. System I i
Enh~ncementS and Repiacements' Stevel!§__J 1.3_~f-__~~1~l 21538i 74% 874i'Dat~ Ci!nter upg~ades in pr4?ce~._
Information Technology GIS . I . , i' "",...,=o,~--=,--"q-------" ..'-'-"'-1I-""C':'>· " .

EnhancementS Stevens! 154 1630! 11721 72% '45SISystemupgradesin progress.

Stevens

Information Technology Utility Billing,
_W363 P2363 Data Management, and Finan~!...1 System ~~v,-e.~~n,,-s..__+-__

Information Technology
W442 P2442 Telecommunications

..82_~ §J'-"0,-'1'-.6---:!__--'5=,5'--37...I'--.?20!.!'. .. 484J~YJ>tem upgrades in progress.
i,PBX replacement com.plete. I~R

340 340 275, 81% . 65!'implementatio'n in progress. "

W443' ·P2443 Information TechnoloQY"Mobile Services , Stevens '338 338
I

! ,
;Hardware a'n'd,software received.

1331 39% ' -205! FY06 receiots' Drocessed'in,fY07.

Information Technologyltecords
_W_"l:44.~~4.~_~anA9!'!~.~!.. . ~tE!..,,~ns.

Infonnation' Technology Terrorism I

Infrastruct~r~~Aiert Syc:s'_'t"'e:.:.m'-'-__-:- ~S"-t,c:e'-'v'-:e"'~ _
Total Capi'talcPurchase Projects . Total:

.1 ,,;isystem ..~quiremenfs metyliit:hout
_.!.~ __.!~~~ ~~~iadditional sof~~~..e expenditures.
!. ... !Al"ternative,lower cost'solution

$15.0 150 14j· g%" 136 imolemented.

-,1----U.Q .1...1....O.
I

StevensInformation Technoloqv. UPS Data'Center,W446 P2446

W448 P2448



• -. ' ..

(c,ontinued)
"

Comments

This project is accepted' and will
77 be reimbursed FY07.

Remaining
Total

Project
Balance

93%

Total
Percent
Project
Budget
SDent

-I
1023!

'Total
.,~,~o~~ct
E~p,enses

1100,

"Total i
Prt:)ject:
Budget

50

FY 06
Budget

p-roject
Manager

VauQhan

Description
FOi:-er Current

No. CIP No.

_'__'__-i,~D,~E,,-,V,-,E_LQ~E~~EIM_~lJI:t~~MENT1~I!Q.1_~_g.~__.-----1--
PL - 20-lnch, 850 Zone, Jamacha I

026 P2026 Boulevard ~ Regulatory Site/Trace Road

RecPL - 20-Inchr 680 Zone, Olympic I
R008 R2008 Parkway - La Media/680-1 Reservoir VauQhan 8 2861, 2272, 79%

The projects wlthin.this,CIP'have
589 beenacceoted and reimbursed.

_R016 R2016 ::~~~~y1~ir~~:;;a~r~c;~~~:~tL_a_k_e ViI~I:!-C!_+_~!!~_ _'W51 ~_~~~__50~0 2481~;::~~~:~:ed~~~nr~:;j~s::~e
RecPL - 12-Inch, 680 Zone, l:a Media Road ~ I fComplete, accepted, and

R025 R2025 Olympic/Birch • . VauQhan ' 100 5801- 78! 130io 502ireimbursed. :

Two separate projectswithin'thls
CIP. One project is complete and
accepted, the second project is

195 75% complete.0%195,10
RecPL - 12-Inch, 944 Zone, EastLake

R2031 Parkway - Olvmoic/Birch ,VaughanR031

RecPL - 12-Inch 944 Zone Otay Lakes i iComplete, accepted, and
-!!.Q~~,_~.2.~~~J!.()CI.c!:.Ii!:!!!.!~t.~~~.tLak~y:!~~.~___._ _ .. y.a gJ1~!!_1---__.15.Q 15Q:.1,10! __.._..Z.~~ _.. ~4.:.=0'+·".re=i,m,-".I!!,_r~~!!~_"'''''_~''''''_--: '_~-i

_BQ~Q... .~~Q;!Q_~1~:~~k~~;~~;;:~ Zone, EastLake Vistas . V.~.LJgh'!.'!...~ .1,.Q m2.JiQ; '2~?I.__._?.~Of!'..__.... 131~~:~~;:~:.ccePted, and .._. _

J
Complete, accepted, 'an'd

251 reimbursed. ' . "._
Three separ-ate.projects within
this CIP. The first two are 80%
complete; the third is 50%

630 comolete.
Three'separate projects within
this CIP. One. is complete, the

.·:second is 750/0.complete, an,d the
J!QQj.thirdJ,,;,_~()~!o complete;

240 This project Is 75% complete.0%

74L 23%

j

0, 0%

I
I

_~ Ql ().·,!..... _

63030VauQhan
RecPL - 12-Inch, 944 Zone, Birch Road - La

R2033 Media/EastLakeR033

RecPL - 12-Inch, 680 Zone, Hunte Parkway I
-.I!~~Q .R20.".Q. -ii~~}'E~!~!i~~~,L,~~zon'e;Ea-s-t-Lake-- "'~lI.9~n,- ~Q-().-- !,)()()!

R041 R2041 Parkway - Birch/Rock Mountain VauQhan 2 2401 0:

RecPL - 12-Inch, 944 Zone, La Media Road _ I
I--"R.o-O..,3=2+R,-"=2,,,0,",,~~ Olympic/Blrc!:,_. vaug~__--",5.=0+- ,_.~25

RecPL,- 8-Inch, '944 Zone, Rock Mountain ,

~ R2042 Road -SR 125/EastLak~,---:,.-_:--::c:-__.,.._:- yall.gha_n___ -..:!1----_-..·2=10~0Q.-['------Q.-.:
RecP.... - 8-Inch, 944' Zone, Rock Mountain

R043 R2~3 Road - La Media/SR 125 ' _~~~ughan-,-- 1=-f'_ _ .-=Ol ()~ ~ThiS ~.ect iS750/o-'~oni~iet_~~_
RecPL - 12-Inch, 680 Zone, La Media Road I I '

R047 R2047 Birch/Rock Mountain VauQhan 1 370. 0, 0% 370 This oroiect has not vet started.

0°/0

RecPL - 24-Incl1, 680 Zone, Olympic I "0,,1 00'0
R082 R2()~:;l' Parkwcry'.:..Y.lli~9~/He.!!!~g~ __~---,.---~~ugha~n,,-- ,-,1 f- -!r.~~11-_-----'=1'---"_!.~'--

ReCPL - 20-Inch, 680 Zone, Heritage Road
R083 , R2083 Village 2/0lympic VauQhan 1 289!. 0 1

~ This P!"~ject ,-,as not yet started.

, 289 This oroiect has not vet started.
RecPL - 20-Inch, 680 Zone, Village 2 -

R084 R2084 HeritaQe/La Media Vauahan 1

,
I

825' 0.1% 824,!This project .has. not yet started.

__--+'v~a"'ug..h...a...n"'.. ..,1..,0,1_-

RecPL - 20-Inch, 680 Zane, Village 2 - High
R085 R2085 School/Olympic VauQhan

01

PL - 24-Inch, '980.Zone,. Otay Lakes Road -
W062 P2062 Salt Creeki'tV,,-=u=e,=s:t~=e _

PL - 16-Inch, 980,Zone, Pacific Bay Homes
W070 P2070 Road- Proctor Valley/1296 Hvdro PS . VauQhan

1

1

359'

c>.1~

I
I

414i '

01 0% 359 This project has not yet started.
I Icomptete, accept.~d,and

.__ ~~~':.'.._~~% ~3""'3~.!:l!!lmbu..sed. . _
, iThls project Is operationally

complete. Waiting for.,

I
;reimbursement,requ~st~rom the

414,developer. 'c.



(continued)
Total Remaining

Former Total Total Percent
CIP Current

Description
Project FY06

Project Project Project Total
CommentsCIP No. Manager Budget ProjectNo. Budget: Expenses Budget Balance

Spent

DEVELOPER REIMBURSEMENT PRO.JECTS contt
,

PL - 16-Inch, 711 Zone, La Media Road- Complete, accepted, and
W079 P2079 OlvmDic/Birch Vaughan 140 40'0 155 39% 245 reimbursed.

PL - 24-Inch, 980 Zone, Otay Lakes Road,- Complet.e, accepted, and
W080 P2080 Hunte/Salt. Creek Vaughan 20 350 131 37% 219 reimbursed.

PL - 36-Inch, 980 Zone, Proctor Valley Complete, accepted, and
W081 P2081 Road - PB Road/PB Bndy Vaughan 452 452 299 66% 153 reimbursed.

PL - 16-Inch, 711 Zone, Birch Road - La Three separate projects lNithin
W101 P2435 Media/SR 125 Vauahan 12 45,2 0 0% 452 this CIP. 750/0 complete.

PL - 12-Inch, 711 Zane, La Media Road-
W104 P2104 Birch/Rock Mountain Vauahan 10 750 0 0% 750 This proiect has not yet started.

PL - 12-Inch, 711 Zone, Rock Mountain
W107 P2107 Road- La Media/SR 125 Vauahan 10 650 0 0% 650 This project has not yet started.

Three separate prOjects.lNithin
this CIP. One is complete, the

PL - 16-Inch, 711 ZQne, Hunte ParklNay- second is 750/0 complete, and the
W121 P2121 OlYmpiC/EastLake VaUGhan 10 998 0 00/0 998 third is 50% complete.

PL - 24-Inch, 711 Zone, EastLake ParklNay Complete, accepted, and
W131 P2131 Trinidad/OlYmpic V.auahan 530 550 301 55 0/0 249 reimburs'ed.

TW'o separate projects \Nithin this
CIP. One project is complete and

PL - 16-Inch, 711 ,Zone, EastLake ParklNay accepted, the second project is
W133 P2'133 OlvmDic/Birch Vauahan 300 600 0 0% 600 750/0 comDlete.

PL - 16-Inch, 711 Zone, Birch Road - SR
W134 P2134 125/EastLake Vauahan 50 350 0 0% 350 This Droject is 750/0 comDlete.

PL - 20-Inch, 980 Zane, EastLake ParklNay Complete, accepted, and
W158 P2158 South of 624-3 Res/Olympic Vaughan 50 850 816 96% 34 reimbursed.

Two separate projects within this
CIP. One project is complete and

PL - 20-Inch, 980 Zone, EastLake ParklNay accepted, the second project is
W164 P2164 OlvmDic/Birch Vauahan 42-5 425 0 0 0/0 425 750/0 comDlete.

PS - Rolling HillS Hydro Pump Station Complete, accepted, and
W205 P2205 [fi 400 GPM) VauDhan 1540 1600 1617 1010/0 -17 reimbursed.

PL - 12-Inch, 711 Zone"Olay Lakes and Complete, accepted, and
W300 P2300 EastLake Vistas Roads - Hunte/Olympic Vauahan 300 900 376 420 /0 524 reimbursed..

This project is operationally
complete. Waiting for

PL - 10" to 12" Oyersize, 1296 Zone, PB reimbursement req-uest from the
W325 P2325 Road - Rollino Hills .Hvciro PS/PB Bndv VauDhan 30 30 0 0 0/0 30 deyeloDer.

PL - 16-Inch, 980 Zone, Olympic ParklNay - Complete, accepted, and
W367 P2367 East Palomar/EastLake VauDhan 365 1 100 235 21 0/0 865 reimbursed ..

PL - 12" to 16"OYersize, 9$0 Zone,
EastLake Woods - Otay Lakes/Proctor Complete, accepted, and

W381 P2381 Valle . Vauohan 50 350 217 62% 133 reimbursed.

PL - 36~Inch, 980 Zone, EastLake ParklNay Complete, accepted, and
W396 P2396 Trinidad/South of 6'24-3 Reservoir Vaughan 300 300 0 0 0/0 300 reimbursed.

PL - 12-Inch, 624 Zone, La Media Road -
W402 P2402 Villaae 7/0tay Valley Vaughan 100· 400 0 0 0/0 400 This proiect has not yet started.

This·pr.oject is complete and
PL - 1~" to 16" Oyersize, 803 Zone, accepted. Possible claim from

W414 P2414 'Dehesa Road - Dehesa Meadovv/OWD Bndy Vauahan 80 200 142 71% 58 contractor.
Total Deyeloper Reimbursement Projects, Total: 5897 24105 8609 36% 15496

GRAND TOTAL $39280 $187792 $85451 46% $102341



AGENDA ITEM 8b

STAFF REPORT

TYPE MEETING: Regular Board MEETING DATE:

SUBMITTED BY: Patrick VaUghan~~ W.O.lG.F. NO:

Senior Civil Engineer

APPROVED BY: Rod Posada, ~~~o",)~
(Chief)

September 6, 2006

aaOOO DIV. NO. 1

1d1000

APPROVED BY:
(Asst. 8M):

SUBJECT:

Chief, Development Services

Manny Magafia~~

Assistant General M~~~~~, Engineering and Operations

Request to Approve Agreement with Cricket Communications,
Inc., a Delaware Corporation, for the installation of a
Communications Facility at the 485-1 Reservoir Site

GENERAL MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute an
agreement with Cricket Communications, Inc., a Delaware
Corporation (Cricket) for the installation of a communications
facility (Attachment 1), at the 485-1 Reservoir Site.

See attached Exhibit A for project location.

COMMITTEE ACTION:

See Attachment A.

PURPOSE:

To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to execute
an agreement with Cricket that allows the installation of a
communications facility at the 485-1 Reservoir Site. The
agreement will grant Cricket 45 square feet of leased area and
trench easements of right-of-way for access, power, and a
communications facility.

ANALYSIS:

Cricket will be the fourth cellular provider locating its
facilities on the 485-1 Reservoir Site. Currently Nextel and T
Mobile are the two cellular providers at this location. The
proposed wireless communication facility consists of the
construction of an unmanned communications equipment, cabinets,
three 14-foot antenna support poles, and the installation of
underground coaxial cable. The equipment and antenna's will be
located within an area totaling 45 square feet of leased space.



The District will receive copies of construction drawings, all
permits, and approvals by local regulatory agencies prior to
granting permission to start construction. Staff agrees with
the design concept for the proposed facility construction .

....-~~~~::;..>FISCAL IMPACT: , -/
~

The District will receive $2,266 per month in rent effective
upon execution of the lease agreement for a period of five
years, subject to an annual inflation adjustment of 3 percent.
The tenant will have the option to extend the term for three
additional five-year periods. Two additional five-year
extensions may be granted at the District's discretion.

An initial $2,000 payment toward the District's non-refundable
administrative fee of $6,500 has been paid to reimburse the
District for staff time to supervise and assist the tenant
during the licensing and permitting phases; this fee is separate
from rent. The remaining balance of $4,500 will be due and
payable upon execution of this agreement by both parties to
reimburse the District for costs to assist the tenant with
planning, design, and construction phases of the project,
including legal expenses.

LEGAL IMPACT:

The District's Lease Agreement has been reviewed by our legal
counsel. District Counsel has been an integral part in the
negotiations and construction of this agreement.

STRATEGIC GOAL:

This item is in line with the District's Strategic Focus Areas:
Community and Governance, and Financial Health.

General Manager

Attachments

C,\Outlook Temp\Cricket @ 485-1 Staff Report BD 9-6-06.doc

2



ATTACHMENT A

Request to Approve Agreement with Cricket communications,
Inc., a Delaware Corporation, for the Installation of a

SUBJECT/PROJECT: Communications Facility at the 485-1 Reservoir Stie

COMMITTEE ACTION:

The Finance and Administration Committee reviewed this item
at a meeting held on August 21, 2006. The following
comments were made:

• This is a standard agreement for new cellular agreements
and it has been reviewed by legal counsel;

• The monthly rental per the agreement is $2,266/month
along with an up-front administration fee of $6,500.
The administration fee covers staff time to supervise
and assist the tenant during the licensing and
permitting phases;

• The agreement is for 5 years and is subject to an annual
inflation adjustment of 3%. If Cricket terminates the
agreement prior to the end of the 5-year term, it must
buyout the contract. The agreement can also be renewed
by the tenant for 3 additional 5-year terms, and at
Otay's option for 2 more additional 5-year terms;

• There was discussion of leaving the annual inflation
adjustment open and negotiating this rate each year. It
was noted that cellular companies were not open to doing
so and that they insist on a fixed increase of 3%. This
allows them to anticipate exact cost increases within
their budgets;

• It was noted that this was a co-location agreement
(there are four vendors on this site) and it is the
obligation of the cellular companies to do their own
research with regard to interference with existing
vendors;

• It was discussed that the District does not seek
cellular agreements and that the companies approach the
District on locations they have an interest in locating
antennas;

• Cricket Communications provides service within a small
local area with unlimited minutes for a flat fee each
month. They hope to essentially replace your home
phone;

• After the committee meeting, the leased space on the
attached agreement was corrected from 45 square feet to
147 square feet.



IMPERIAL
BEACH

GTAY WATER DISTRICT
CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS AT

OTAY WATER DISTRICT'S 485-1 RESERVOIR SITE
~'- --L -="":,:",,,,:,-:-=-:-=-~ -.:::LO~C::.:A~T.:.:IO~N~MA~P:J

EXHIBIT A



ATTACHMENT 1

AGREEMENT BETWEEN CRICKET
COMMUNICATIONS, INC., A DELAWARE
CORPORATION AND OTAY WATER DISTRICT TO
LOCATE A COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY AT
OTAY'S 485-1 RESERVOIR SITE

This Agreement ("Lease") is entered into and effective on the date specified in the

signature page (the "Commencement Date"), by and between the Otay Water District, a

municipal water district organized and operated pursuant to the Water Code Section 71000, et

seq. ("Otay"), and Cricket Communications, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("Tenant"). Any

special terms or conditions agreed to by Otay and Tenant will be set forth on Exhibit A.

A. Otay owns a site on which it has constructed water facilities known its the "485-1

Reservoir Site," as depicted on Attachment A to Exhibit B (the "Reservoir Site").

B. Tenant has requested Otay to allow it to locate a communications facility and

transmitting and receiving antennas at the Reservoir Site.

For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby

acknowledged, Otay and Tenant agree as follows:

1. Premises. Otay owns the real property described in Attachment B to Exhibit B

(the "Property"). Otay agrees to lease to Tenant, for the installation of antennas and related

telecommunications equipment, approximately 147 square feet of real property within the

Property, as more particularly described on Attachment C to Exhibit B (the "Premises"). A

depiction of the Property and the Premises is attached hereto as Attachment D to Exhibit B.

2. Grant of Non-Exclusive Trench Easement(s). Otay has also agreed to grant a

temporary non-exclusive easement to Tenant for certain portions of the Property, as legally

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:081706 Page 1 ofl9



described in Exhibit C to this Lease (the "Easement"), for the purpose of trenching and

installation of the necessary utilities to operate Tenant's equipment. It is expressly agreed that

any such Easement shall run concurrent with this Lease. Tenant agrees and understands that if

the Lease is terminated or ceases to exist for any reason, the Easement shall not have any force

or effect. Tenant agrees to return and maintain all portions ofland subject to the Easement that

are disturbed in connection with the installation, connection, maintenance, repair, access or any

other Tenant activity, to their original condition at Tenant's sole cost and expense.

This easement shall be non-exclusive. Otay, or any other tenant of Otay may utilize the

easement area for similar purposes or for any other purpose which does not interfere with

Tenant's uses. Otay shall provide Tenant with advance notice of any intention to use the

temporary easement area by Otay or any current or future tenant of Otay.

3. Use of the Premises. The Premises may be used by Tenant only for the purpose

of installing, constructing, housing, operating, maintaining and repairing approved

telecommunication equipment, including appurtenant antennae and electronic equipment, as

further described and conditioned in this Agreement (collectively, the "Facilities"), for the lawful

provision of communication services. Tenant may not sublease or sublicense any use or space of

the Premises or the Facilities thereon except as otherwise provided in Paragraph 12, below.

4. Access. Otay shall provide access to Tenant, Tenant's employees, agents,

contractors and subcontractors to the Premises 24 hours a day, seven days a week, at no charge

to Tenant. Otay hereby grants to Tenant such rights of ingress and egress over the Property as

may be necessary and consistent with the authorized use of the Premises as outlined by Otay

Operations. Subject to Otay's reasonable rules, Otay shall permit Tenant's employees, agents,

contractors, subcontractors and invitees to park vehicles on the Property as necessary and

consistent with the authorized use of the Premises. Otay shall, at its expense, maintain all access

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:081706 Page 2 of 19



roadways or driveways from the nearest public roadway to the Premises in a manner reasonably

sufficient to allow access. In addition, Tenant shall obtain such permits, licenses or easements,

from the owners of property adjoining the leased premises, as may be necessary for Tenant to

have access to and from the leased Premises and also for access to' utilities. Tenant shall provide

copies of these documents to Otay prior to the start of construction.

5. Term. The term of this Lease shall be five (5) years (the "Initial Term"),

commencing on the Commencement Date. Tenant shall have the right to extend the term of the

Lease for three (3) additional terms of five (5) years each by giving Otay written notice of its

intention to do so at least 120 days prior to the date that the then current term would otherwise

end (each, an "Extension Term"). In addition, Tenant may request, in writing, two additional

extensions of five (5) years each, which Otay may grant or deny at its sole discretion (each, an

"Additional Term" and together with the Initial Term and Extension Term, or individually, as the

context requires, the "Term"). Each such request shall be made in writing no less than 120 days

prior to the expiration of the then current Extension Term or Additional Term, as applicable.

6. Administrative Fee. Tenant, prior to entering on Otay Property to conduct its

investigation of the Premises, shall provide Otay with a non-refundable administrative fee in the

amount of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS AND NO CENTS ($2,000.00). This fee will defray

Otay's costs associated with the supervision of and assistance with the Tenant's investigation

and planning phases of the site selection.

Additionally, upon final execution of the Agreement by both parties, Tenant shall provide

Otay with a non-refundable administrative fee in the amount of FOUR THOUSAND FIVE

HUNDRED DOLLARS AND NO CENTS ($4,500.00). This amount shall be in addition to the

administrative fee described above for entering on Otay Property to conduct investigation of the

proposed Premises. This second administrative fee shall be used to defray Otay's administrative

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:081706 Page 3 of 19



expenses and costs related to Otay's supervlSlon and assistance with planning, design, and

construction phases of the project, including legal expenses. These administrative fees shall not

be considered rent or part of the rental installment.

7. Rent. Beginning on the earlier of (1) six months from the Commencement Date;

or (2) the date on which a local building permit is issued allowing Tenant to construct the

Facilities (or any portion thereof) on the Premises (the "First Rent Payment Date"), Tenant shall

pay Otay as rent the sum of $2,266 per month payable on the first day of each month in advance.

However, at Tenant's election, Tenant may pay rent annually, in advance, if, at least 60 days

prior to the Initial Term or an Extension Term, Tenant notifies the District, in writing, of its

intent to pay its rent in annual payments during each year of the upcoming Extension Term or

Additional Term. If the First Rent Payment Date is other than the first day of the calendar

month, the rate shall be prorated for the first month ofthe Initial Term.

The rent shall be increased on each calendar anniversary of the Commencement

Date at a rate of three percent (3%) per annum. However, at the beginning of each Extension

Term or Additional Term, if any, Otay may, at its sole and absolute discretion, choose to adjust

the annual rent, effective on the first year of said Extension Term or Additional Term, by an

amount equal to the greater of: (i) three percent (3%); or (ii) the amount necessary to ensure that

the rent equals the amount it would have been if each annual increase during the previous Term

had been calculated based on the average percentage increases in the consumer price index

published by the United States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics (1982-1984 =

100) (the "CPI") for "All Items - All Urban Consumers" for the San Diego Metropolitan

Statistical Area for the immediately preceding 5 year period. If the publication of the Consumer

Price Index is discontinued, or if the Consumer Price Index is altered in some material manner,

including changing the name of the index, the geographic area covered, the consumers or

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:08l706 Page 4 of19



workers so included, or the base year, the Parties must use their reasonable best efforts to agree

on a substitute index or procedure that reasonably reflects and monitors consumer prices. After

such an adjustment, the rent shall increase at a rate of three percent (3%) per annum for the rest

of the applicable Extension Term or Additional Term, if any. Otay shall also have the discretion

to adjust the base rent to then current market rent in the Additional Term if said market rent is

greater than the CPI increase provided for in the above formula. The "then current market rent"

shall be defined as the most recent rent transaction entered into by Otay with other similar

tenants for the same or similar purposes.

8. Environmental. Otay represents that to the best of its knowledge the Premises

have not been used for the generation, storage, treatment or disposal ofhazardous materials other

than those materials normally used by Otay for the treatment of water and that there is no

hazardous waste on the Premises. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Lease, Tenant

relies upon the representations stated herein as a material inducement for entering into this

Lease. Tenant shall not bring any hazardous materials onto the Premises except for those

contained in its back-up power facilities (e.g. lead-acid batteries and diesel fuel) and properly

stored, reasonable quantities of common materials used in telecommunications operations (e.g.

cleaning solvents). Tenant shall handle, store and dispose of all hazardous materials it brings

onto the Premises in accordance with all federal, state and local laws and regulations ("Laws").

"Hazardous materials" means any substance, chemical, pollutant or waste that is presently

identified as hazardous, toxic or dangerous under any applicable federal, state or local law or

regulation and specifically includes, but is not limited to asbestos and asbestos containing

materials, polychlorinated biphenyl's (PCBs) and petroleum or other fuels (including crude oil or

any fraction or derivative thereof).

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:081706 Page 5 of 19



9. Installation and Maintenance of Facilities. Tenant is authorized to install,

maintain and operate on the Premises only the Facilities described and depicted on Attachment A

to Exhibit D; provided that all permits and zoning approvals shall have been obtained by Tenant.

a. Installation o/the Facilities. Tenant's design and installation of all portions

of the Facilities shall be done according to plans approved by Otay, and such approval shall not

be unreasonably withheld. The Tenant shall be responsible for painting its antennae and/or

equipment to match Otay's facility. Otay will provide Tenant with specifications regarding paint

type, color and application method to accomplish this requirement. Painting/coating submittals

shall be provided to Otay by the Tenant prior to receiving permission to begin painting. Otay

may specify a camouflage design if appropriate. These camouflage designs may include but are

not limited to palm trees, pine trees and flag poles.

b. Record Drawings. Within thirty (30) days after completion of the Facilities,

Tenant shall provide Otay with "record" drawings of Facilities showing and identifying all the

equipment and improvements installed on the Premises. Said drawings shall be accompanied by

a complete and detailed inventory of all equipment, personal property and antennae located on

the Premises and any such property of Tenant located in the Easement. No property of Tenant

other than such identified property shall be located on the Premises or the Property at any time.

Upon delivery of Tenant's record drawings, in form and content satisfactory to Otay, such

drawings shall replace and supersede any similar drawings contained in any exhibit attached

hereto.

c. Alterations. Tenant shall not alter or change its Facilities in a material

manner without the prior approval of Otay, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld.

"Material" refers to any physical change that could affect the building or its appearance or any

change that could disrupt Otay's workplace or communications. All of Tenant's construction

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:081706 Page 6 of 19



and installation work shall be perfonned at Tenant's sole cost and expense in a good and

workmanlike manner. Tenant shall have the right to remove all facilities it installs at its sole

expense on or before the expiration or tennination of this Lease.

d. Improvements to Facilities / Additional Space. If, at any time during the

Tenn, Tenant requests pennission from Otay to add improvements requiring construction to its

then existing Facilities, the then current Administrative Fees shall be payable to Otay for

reimbursement for staff time to process the new request, construction inspection and monitoring

during construction. If the requested Tenant improvements include additional lease space, a new

lease agreement for the additional lease space must be executed prior to start of construction and

Tenant shall pay the Administrative Fees then in effect, and shall comply with Otay's

requirements then in effect. The administrative fees for the additional lease space shall be in

addition to, and shall not replace the administrative fees for improvements requiring construction

to the Facilities.

e. Permits and Compliance with Applicable Laws. Prior to commencing any

construction or improvements, and from time to time, as applicable, Tenant agrees to obtain all

necessary approvals for its communications operations and for the Facilities and to operate and

maintain the same, at all times in accordance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations.

1. Prior to commencing construction, Tenant shall deliver to Otay

copies of all executed licenses, approvals and pennits required by local, state or

federal agency in connection with the Facilities, which pennits shall be attached

hereto as Attachment B to Exhibit D.

11. From time to time, as required by law or regulation in connection

with the nonnal operation of the Facilities or as needed due to improvements or

alterations to the same, Tenant shall provide Otay with copies of updated pennits,

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:08l706 Page 7 of 19



licenses and/or approvals. Tenant shall provide written evidence, satisfactory to

Otay of all FCC approvals and other governmental permits and approvals,

including but not limited to compliance with FCC Electromagnetic Radiation

Guidelines.

111. Otay agrees, at no expense to Otay, to cooperate with Tenant in

making application for and obtaining all licenses, permits and any and all

necessary approvals that may be required for Tenant's intended use of the

Premises.

f. Utilities. Tenant shall be authorized to install utilities for the Premises and

the Facilities at Tenant's expense and to improve the present utilities on or near the Premises

(including, but not limited to the installation of an emergency back-up power) subject to Otay's

approval of the location, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. Tenant shall fully

and promptly pay for all utilities furnished to the Premises for the use, operation and

maintenance of Tenant's facilities.

g. Repair ofOtay 's Improvements. Any damage done to Otay's improvement

on the property during installation and/or during operations caused by Tenant or in connection

with installation operation shall be repaired or replaced immediately at Tenant's expense and to

Otay's reasonable satisfaction. In connection with the installation and operation of the antennae

facilities, Tenant shall not locate or attach any antennae or other equipment to Otay's facilities

without the prior written approval of Otay. Tenant shall pay all costs and expenses in relation to

maintaining the integrity of Otay's facilities in connection with Tenant's installation and

operation of the antennae facilities.

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:081706 Page 8 of 19



h. Maintenance and Repair. At all time during the Term, Tenant shall

maintain the Premises and the Facilities in a manner acceptable to Otay. Tenants use of its

facilities shall not interfere with Otay's operation of its improvements.

1. Liens. Tenant shall not encumber or allow the Premises or the Property to

be encumbered in any manner other than as expressly authorized herein.

J. Security. Tenant recognizes and agrees that the Premises and the Reservoir

Site are a sensitive area. Tenant agrees to provide for the proper supervision of all Tenant

personnel assigned to enter and do work at the Premises. Tenant also agrees to, at its own cost

and expense, comply with any and all security measures instituted by Otay from time to time.

10. Maintenance and Repair of Otay's Improvements. At any time during the Term,

or while this Lease remains in effect, Otay may, at its option and upon One Hundred Twenty

(120) days prior written notice to Tenant, remove or cause Tenant to remove all or any portion of

its Facilities at Tenant's expense, in order for Otay to paint, repair, or make replacements to its

improvements on the Premises (the "Maintenance Work"), as deemed necessary by Otay in its

sole discretion. Tenant agrees to fully cooperate with Otay's efforts in connection with any

Maintenance Work, including removing and re-installing any portion of the Facilities identified

by Otay to be removed.

a. Temporary Facilities. During the course of the Maintenance Work, Tenant

may install temporary antennae, at Tenant's expense, on the leased Premises subject to Otay's

approval of the location. Once the Maintenance Work is completed by Otay, Tenant agrees to

promptly dismantle any temporary facilities and to relocate the facilities to their original location

or to any other location approved by Otay, as appropriate. All work related to the removal of any

portion of the Facilities, installation of temporary facilities, dismantling, relocation to their

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:08l706 Page 9 of 19



original location and any related work, shall be done at Tenant's sole cost and expense and in

good and workmanlike manner.

b. Repair of damage. Tenant shall repair any damage caused by Tenant in

connection with the installation, maintenance, operation or removal of any temporary facilities or

the Facilities.

c. Dtay's option to remove temporary facilities. If any temporary antennae is

not removed within thirty (30) days from the date the Maintenance Work is completed, Otay will

have the right to remove the temporary antennae and charge Tenant for such costs.

d. Painting a/the Facilities. If the Maintenance Work includes the painting of

Otay's improvements, the Tenant shall be responsible for repainting its antennas and/or

equipment to match Otay's facility. Otay will provide specifications regarding paint type, color

and application method to the Tenant to accomplish this requirement. The Tenant will be

required to provide painting/coating submittals to Otay prior to receiving permission to begin

painting. Subject to Otay's prior written consent, Tenant may substitute an alternate paint type

and application method if it reasonably determines that Otay's selection will adversely affect or

otherwise degrade Tenant's wireless signal from the Reservoir Site.

11. Co-Location. Tenant agrees that Otay may enter into leases with other

communication carners, wireless communications carriers and other utilities for use of any

portion of the "Reservoir Site" as long as said leases do not result in unreasonable interference

with Tenant's use of or access to the Premises. Tenant will reasonably cooperate with Otay's

efforts in this regard including, at Otay's request, the relocation of, or changes to, the Facilities;

provided that any alterations or relocation needed to accommodate the new lessee shall be

performed at the expense of Otay or the new lessee.

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:08l706 Page 10 of 19



12. Subleasing/Encumbrance. Tenant may not sub-lease or sub-license or otherwise

encumber the Premises or any portion of the Facilities without Otay's prior written consent,

which may be granted or denied at Otay's sole discretion. Any sub-lease or other encumbrance

will require an amendment to this Lease and shall specify the terms and conditions for the sub-

lease or other encumbrance.

13. Condition of the Property at Expiration or Termination. Upon the expiration or

termination of this Lease as herein provided, Tenant shall surrender the Premises, and any

-

Easements granted by Otay in connection with this Lease, to Otay in good and broom-clean

condition, with all portions of the Facilities, including but not limited to equipment, supplies,

buried conduits, and structures removed along with subterranean foundations to a depth of three

feet below grade; or as otherwise agreed to by Otay in writing.

14. Interference. Tenant shall not use, nor shall Tenant permit its agents or invitees to

use any portion of the Premises in a manner which interferes with Otay's use of the Reservoir

Site for it's intended purpose including communications facilities relating to Otay's operation

such as telemetry/radio communications or any other pre-existing communications facilities.

This would not apply to interference with a tenant of Otay whose use did not "pre-exist" this

lease; except as agreed to by Tenant in connection with the co-location of any subsequent

tenant's facilities. If Tenant's operation in any way interferes with Otay's telemetry/radio

facilities, Tenant will have five (5) business days to correct the problem after notice from Otay.

Tenant acknowledges that continuing interference will cause irreparable injury to Otay and,

therefore, Otay will have the right to terminate the Lease immediately upon notice to Tenant.

15. Taxes. During the term of this Lease, Tenant shall pay before delinquency all

taxes, assessments, license fees, and any other charge of any type whatsoever that are levied,

(,

i
i,

!l
t

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:081706 Page 11 of 19



assessed, charged, or imposed on or against Tenant's personal property installed or located in or

on the leased premises and that become payable during the term of this Lease.

16. Termination.

(a) This Lease may be terminated by Tenant without further liability if:

(i) Tenant delivers to Otay 30-day written notice at any time prior to the

Commencement Date, for any reason or no reason;

(ii) Tenant gives Otay six months notice when Tenant determines at any time

after the Commencement Date that any governmental or non-governmental license, permit,

consent, approval, easement or restriction waiver that is necessary to enable Tenant to install or

operate Tenant's facility cannot be obtained or renewed at reasonable expense or in reasonable

time period.

(iii) Tenant determines at any time after the Commencement Date that the

Premises are not appropriate or suitable for its operations for economic, environmental or

technological reasons, including without limitation, any ruling or directive of the FCC or other

governmental or regulatory agency, or problems with signal strength or interference not

encompassed by subsection (iv) below; provided that the right to terminate under this subsection

(iii) is exercisable only if Tenant pays Otay, as a termination fee, the lesser of twelve monthly

installments of annual rent or the balance of the rent due for the remaining term of this Lease;

(iv) Otay commits a default under this Lease and fails to cure such default

within a 30-day notice period, provided that if the period to diligently cure takes longer than 30

days and Otay commences to cure the default within the 30-day notice period, then Otay shall

have such additional time as shall be reasonably necessary to diligently effect a complete cure;

(v) The Premises are totally or partially destroyed by fire or other casualty so

as to hinder Tenant's normal operations and Otay does not provide to Tenant within ten (10)

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:081706 Page 12 of 19



days after the casualty occurs a suitable temporary relocation site for Tenant's facility pending

repair and restoration of the Premises.

(b) This Lease may be terminated by Otay without further liability if:

(i) Tenant commits a default under this Lease and fails to cure such default as

provided under paragraph 17, below.

17. Default.

a. Event ofDefault. The parties covenant and agree that a default or breach of

this Lease (an "Event of Default") shall occur and be deemed to exist if, after notice and

opportunity to cure as provided below:

(i) Tenant shall default in the payment of rent or other payments hereunder and

said default shall continue for ten (10) days after Otay provides written notice of the same; or

(ii) Either party shall default in the performance or observance of any other

covenant or condition of this Lease to be performed or observed if such failure persists for a

period of thirty (30) days after the non-defaulting party provides written notice of the default to

the defaulting party.

b. Rights upon Default. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, in

addition to any other rights or remedies available to the non-defaulting party under any law, the

non-defaulting party shall have the right to terminate the Lease.

c. Cure Rights. An Event of Default shall not exist unless written notice has

been given in accordance with this Lease, and the defaulting party has had the opportunity to

cure as provided herein. The defaulting party shall cure the alleged default within the manner

provided herein; provided however, that if the nature of an alleged default is such that it can not

reasonably be cured within such thirty (30) day period, the defaulting party shall not be in breach

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:08l706 Page 13 of 19



of this Lease if it commences a cure within such period, and thereafter diligently proceeds with

the actions necessary to complete such cure.

18. Destruction of Premises. If the Premises or the Facilities are destroyed or

damaged, Tenant may elect to terminate this Lease as of the date of the damage or destruction by

so notifying Otay no more than thirty (30) days following the date of damage or destruction,

provided Otay does not provide to Tenant, within ten (10) days after the casualty occurs, a

suitable temporary relocation site for Tenant's facility pending repair and restoration of the

Premises.

19. Condemnation. If the condemning authority takes all the Property or a portion

which in Tenant's opinion is sufficient to render the Premises unsuitable for Tenant's use, then

this Lease shall terminate as of the date when possession is delivered to the condemning

authority. In the event of any taking under the power of eminent domain, Tenant shall not be

entitled to any portion of the award paid for the taking and Otay shall receive the full amount of

such award except as provided herein. Tenant hereby expressly waives any right or claim to any

portion of a condemnation award, except for relocation benefits and goodwill. All other

damages, whether awarded as compensation for diminution in value of the leasehold or to the fee

of the Premises, shall belong to Otay.

20. Insurance. Tenant shall maintain the following insurance:

a. Commercial general liability with limits of$5,000,000 per occurrence which

may be satisfied by a primary policy with a limit of no less than $2,000,000 and

an umbrella policy of excess liability in the amount ofno less than $5,000,000;

b. Automobile liability with the combined single limit of $1,000,000 per

accident;

c. Worker's compensation, as required by law;

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:081706 Page 14 of 19



d. Employer's liability with limits of $1 ,000,000 per occurrence.

Tenant shall include Otay as an additional insured on each of the aforementioned

insurance policies and the policies shall state that they are primary and that any policies Otay

maintains shall be noncontributory. Tenant shall provide Otay with written certificates of

insurance evidencing such coverage. Said policies shall expressly provide that the policies shall

not be canceled or altered without at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Otay. Said

policies shall be with insurance companies with an A.M. Best rating ofAVII or better.

Otay takes no responsibility for the protection of Tenant's property from acts of

vandalism by third parties. The insurance requirements may be changed by Otay upon giving of

notice to Tenant; provided that the requirements set forth above shall be the minimum insurance

requirements during the Term.

21. Indemnity. Tenant shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend Otay and each of

Otay's directors, officers, managers, employees, agents and successors and assigns, from any and

all claims, suits or actions of any kind and description brought forth on account of injuries to or

death to any person or damage to any property, including damage to the Premises arising out of

or related to its use of the Premises, except to the extent that such claims, suits or actions arise

out of the sole negligence or willful misconduct of Otay.

22. Estoppel Certificate. Tenant shall, at any time and from time to time upon not

less than thirty (30) days prior request by Otay, deliver to Otay a statement in writing certifying

that (a) the Lease is unmodified and in full force (or if there have been modifications, that the

Lease is in full force as modified and identifying the modifications; (b) the dates to which rent

and other charges have been paid; (c) as far as the person making the certificate knows, Otay is

or is not in default under any provisions of the Lease; and (d) such other matters as Otay may

reasonably request.

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:081706 Page 15 ofl9



23. Assignment. Tenant shall not assign this Lease except to an affiliated parent

entity, subsidiary, purchaser of assets, or holder of its FCC license, without Otay's prior written

consent. If, during the term of this Lease, Tenant requests the written consent of Otay to any

assignment, Otay's consent thereto shall not unreasonably be withheld. Consent to one

assignment shall not be deemed to be a consent to any subsequent assignment, and any

subsequent assignment without Otay's consent shall be void and shall, at Otay's option,

terminate this Lease.

24. Memorandum of Lease. If requested by Tenant, Otay agrees to promptly execute

and deliver to Tenant a recordable Memorandum of Lease substantially in the form ofExhibit E.

25. Resolution of Disputes. All controversies or claims arising out of or relating to

this Lease shall be resolved by submission to final and binding arbitration at the offices of the

American Arbitration Association ("AAA") located in San Diego, California. Such arbitration

shall be conducted in accordance with the most recent version of the AAA commercial

arbitration rules.

26. Choice of Law and Venue. This Lease shall be interpreted in accordance with the

laws of the State of California, and any disputes shall be heard in a court of competent

jurisdiction in the State of California.

27. Attorney's Fees. In the event that either party commences any legal action or

proceeding, including an action for declaratory relief, against the other by reason of the alleged

failure of the other to perform or keep any term, covenant, or condition of this Lease, the party

prevailing in said action or proceeding shall be entitled to recover, in addition to court costs,

reasonable attorneys' fees to be fixed by the court, and such recovery shall include court costs

and attorneys' fees on appeal.

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:081706 Page 16 of 19



28. Entire Agreement. This Lease contains all agreements, promIses and

understandings between Otay and Tenant and no verbal or oral agreements, promises or

understandings shall or will be binding upon either Otay or Tenant and any addition, variation or

modification to this Lease shall be in effect unless made in writing and signed by the parties

hereto.

29. Incorporation of Exhibits and Recitals. All exhibits and attachments attached to

this Lease and all Recitals above are incorporated and made a part hereof as if fully set forth

herein.

30. Severability. If any term or condition of this Agreement is found unenforceable,

the remaining terms and conditions will remain binding upon the parties as though said

unenforceable prOVISIOn were not contained herein. However, if the invalid, illegal or

unenforceable provIsIOn materially affects this Agreement then the Agreement may be

terminated by either party on ten (10) days prior written notice to the other party hereto.

31. Waiver. Waiver of any provision or term of this Agreement, or of any breach or

default hereunder, shall not constitute a waiver of any other term, condition, breach or default, or

of a subsequent applicability of a term or condition, or a waiver of a subsequent breach or

default, nor shall it constitute an amendment to the term, condition or provision that is waived.

32. Notice. All notices, requests, demands and communications hereunder will be

given by first class certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, or by a nationally

recognized overnight courier, postage prepaid, to be effective when properly sent and received,

refused or returned undelivered. Notices may be given by facsimile if proof of transmission is

retained. Notices shall be sent to the addresses set forth below:

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:081706 Page 17 of 19



OTAY:

TENANT:

With a copy to:

Otay Water District
Attn: General Manager
2554 Sweetwater Springs Boulevard
Spring Valley, CA 91978-2096
Phone: (619) 670-2210
Fax: (619) 660-0829

Cricket Communications, Inc.
Attn: Property Manager
10307 Pacific Center Court
San Diego, CA 92121
Phone: (858) 882-6306
Fax: (858) 622-0107

Cricket Communications, Inc.
Attn: Legal Department
10307 Pacific Center Court
San Diego, CA 92121
Phone: (858) 882-6288
Fax: (858) 882-6080

33. Corporate Authority. The persons executing this Agreement on behalf of the

parties hereto warrant that (i) such party is duly organized and existing, (ii) they are duly

authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement on behalf of said party, (iii) by so executing

this Agreement, such party is formally bound to the provisions of this Agreement, and (iv) the

entering into this Agreement does not violate any provision of any other Agreement to which

said party is bound.

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. THE SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS.]

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:081706 Page 18 of 19



";11'
IN \VITNESS\VHER.EOF, the patties have executed this Lease as of the .~ day of

,2006. This date is referredto as the COlUmencenlent Datein the Lease.

CRICKET COMlvlUNICATrONS, INC.,
A Delaware cQrporatiQl1

By: ~~..~~_a_> _
Name: Anthonv G.Benyola

Its: Regionat Network Director, \\7e8to1'n Region

OTAY WATER DISTRICT
2554 Sweetwater Springs 13:1vd.
Spring VaUcY,CA 91979

By: ._.----~._. - ..."._--------
Mark Watton

Its: General Manager

Approved tlS to Form:

Aerobel Banuelos
Assistant General Counsel

Lease tor Telecommunication Fad lities D:081706 Ptlge 19 of 19



ADDED TO
CRICKET

DELAWARE
TO LOCATE

OTAY'S 485-1
___ (THE

A

EXHIBIT A
SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
AGREEMENT BETWEEN
COMMUNICATIONS, INC.,
CORPORATION AND OTAY
COMMUNICATION FACILITIES AT
RESERVOIR SITE, DATED :
"LEASE")

If any terms or conditions set forth herein contradict terms or conditions of the
Lease to which this Exhibit is attached, as described above, the terms and
conditions of this Exhibit shall control.

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Landscaping and Maintenance. The installation, permitting, maintenance and upkeep,
and all expenses or other obligations related thereto, in connection with any and all landscaping
and irrigation systems mandated by the permitting agencies will be the sole responsibility of the
Tenant. Otay Water District makes no commitment for delivery of water for said landscaping,
except if Tenant obtains a water meter for the site and pays for water use.

2. Rent. At Tenant's election, subject to prior written notice as set forth in the Lease,
Tenant may pay rent annually, in advance during each of the five-years of the Initial Term or
during each of the five years in any Extension Term. Once the Initial Term or Extension Term,
as applicable, has commenced, Tenant may not alter its election to pay monthly or annually.

3. Tenant's Financing. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Lease,
Tenant may assign, mortgage, pledge, hypothecate or otherwise transfer without prior notice or
consent its interest in this Lease to any financing entity, or agent on behalf of any financing
entity to whom Tenant (i) has obligations for borrowed money or in respect of guaranties thereof,
(ii) has obligations evidenced by bonds, debentures, notes or similar instruments, or (iii) has
obligations under or with respect to letters of credit, bankers acceptances and similar facilities or
in respect of guaranties thereof; provided that no such assignment shall become binding on Otay
until written notification is given by Tenant to Otay as provided in the Lease. A "financing
entity" as used herein, does not include any entity which primary business is not that of banking,
finance, lending or investing funds and does not include any entity whose primary business is
telecommunications.

a. Waiver of Otay's Lien. With respect to any such financing entity, Otay waives
any lien rights it may have concerning the Facilities, which is deemed Tenant's
personal property and not fixtures attached to the Property and Tenant or, if
appropriate, the financing entity has the right to remove the same at any time
without Otay's consent. The financing entity shall not have the right to operate
the Facilities without Otay's prior written consent, which may be denied if the
financing entity does not meet the definition of financing entity above.

Lease for Teleconnnunication Facilities Exhibit A - page 1



b. Collateral. Tenant may enter into a financing arrangement including promissory
notes and financial and security agreements for the financing of the Facilities
("Collateral") with a third party financing entity (and may in the future enter into
additional financing arrangements with other financing entities). In connection
therewith, Otay (i) consents to the installation of the Collateral; (ii) disclaims any
interest in the Collateral, as fixtures or otherwise; and (iii) agrees that the
Collateral shall be exempt from execution, foreclosure, sale, levy, attachment, or
distress for any Rent due or to become due and that such Collateral may be
removed at any time without recourse to legal proceedings.

c. Disposition of Collateral. Notwithstanding paragraphs a. and b., above, if
Tenant fails to remove the Collateral, or any component thereof, within five (5)
days of the termination of this Lease, said failure shall constitute an abandonment.
If thereafter, Tenant or any holder of Collateral, lender or assignee, whether or not
notification was provided to Otay, fails to claim and remove the same, within
thirty (30) calendar days of the date of termination of this Lease, Otay is hereby
specifically authorized to remove and dispose of the Collateral, or any component
thereof, so abandoned at Tenant's sole cost and expense and without incurring
any liability to Tenant, or any lender with any interest in all or any part of the
Collateral, or any assignee of this Lease.

d. No privity or obligation. Otay does not have privity with any financing entity
and specifically disclaims any obligation to any such entity, including any
obligation to provide copies of any notices of default or right to cure under the
Lease.

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities Exhibit A - page 2



EXHIBITB

CRICKET
DELAWARE

TO LOCATE
AT OTAY'S 485-1

___ (THE

TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN
COMMUNICATIONS, INC. A
CORPORATION AND OTAY
COMMUNICATION FACILITIES
RESERVOIR SITE, DATED _
"LEASE")

List of Attachments to Exhibit B:

ATTACHMENT A. DEPICTION OF RESERVOIR FACILITIES

ATTACMENT B. LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY

ATTACHMENT C. LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PREMISES

ATTACHMENT D. DEPICTION OF THE PROPERTY AND PREMISES

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities Exhibit B - page 1



."

t
;..

""
..., ELCAJON....

<:>

""
'";..
~

IMPERIAL
BEACH

OTAy WATER DISTRICT
CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS AT

OTAY WATER DISTRICT'S 485-1 RESERVOIR SITE
LOCATION MAP

lL"- -=- __.-----------------"
ATTACHMENT A



EXHIBITB
ATTACHMENT B

SITE LEGAL DESCRIPTION
OTAY WATER DISTRICT #485-1

CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS SAN-733-A
996 EAST "H" STREET

CHULA VISTA, CA 91910

THE LAND REFERRED TO HEREIN IS SITUATED IN THE STATE OF
CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

LOT 16 OF CHULA VISTA TRACT NO. 90-02, RANCHO DEL REY SPA III,
MASTER FINAL MAP, IN THE CITY OF CHULA VISTA, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO,
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ACCORDING TO THE MAP THEREOF NO. 13176, FILED
IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAN DIEGO COUNTY,
DECEMBER 14,1994.

Charles W. Christensen, RCE 8195

IN 2006-76

08118/06
Date



EXHIBITB
ATTACHMENT C

PROPOSED EQUIPMENT/ANTENNA EASEMENT
OTAY WATER DISTRICT #485-1

CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS SAN-733-A
996 EAST "H" STREET

CHULA VISTA, CA 91910

EQUIPMENT EASEMENT

A PROPOSED EQUIPMENT EASEMENT LYING WITHIN A PORTION OF LOT 16
OF CHULA VISTA TRACT NO. 90-02, RANCHO DEL REY SPA ill, MASTER FINAL
MAP, IN THE CITY OF CHULA VISTA, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, STATE OF
CALIFORNIA, ACCORDING TO THE MAP THEREOF NO. 13176, FILED IN THE
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAN DIEGO COUNTY, DECEMBER 14,
1994, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE MOST EASTERLY CORNER OF SAID LOT 16; THENCE
SOUTH 77°28'50" WEST, 228.16 FEET TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING;
THENCE SOUTH 11°47'23" EAST, 12.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 78°12'37" WEST,
10.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 11°47'23" WEST, 12.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH
78°12'37" EAST, 10.00 FEET TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING.

SAID PROPOSED EASEMENT CONTAINING APPROXIMATELY 120 SQUARE
FEET, MORE ORR LESS.

A1~TEt'll..JA EASEMENT

PROPOSED ANTENNA EASEMENTS LYING WITHIN A PORTION OF LOT 16 OF
CHULA VISTA TRACT NO. 90-02, RANCHO DEL REY SPA III, MASTER FINAL
MAP, IN THE CITY OF CHULA VISTA, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, STATE OF
CALIFORNIA, ACCORDING TO THE MAP THEREOF NO. 13176, FILED IN THE
OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAN DIEGO COUNTY, DECEMBER 14,
1994, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

PROPOSED ANTENNA EASEMENT A:
BEGINNING AT THE MOST EASTERLY CORNER OF SAID LOT 16; THENCE
NORTH 85°39'59" WEST, 242.91 FEET TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING;
THENCE SOUTH 00°00'00" WEST, 3.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 90°00'00" WEST,
3.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00°00'00" EAST, 3.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH
90°00'00" EAST, 3.00 FEET TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING. SAID
PROPOSED EASEMENT CONTAINING APPROXIMATELY 9 SQUARE FEET,
MORE OR LESS.

PROPOSED ANTENNA EASEMENT B:
BEGINNING AT THE MOST EASTERLY CORNER OF SAID LOT 16; THENCE
SOUTH 41°32'28" WEST, 112.17 FEET TO THE TRUE A POINT OF BEGINNING;
THENCE SOUTH 00°00'00" WEST, 3.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 90°00'00" WEST,
3.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00°00'00" EAST, 3.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH
90°00'00" EAST, 3.00 FEET TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING. SAID



PROPOSED EASEMENT CONTAINING APPROXIMATELY 9 SQUARE FEET,
MORE OR LESS.

PROPOSED ANTENNA EASEMENT C:
BEGINNING AT THE MOST EASTERLY CORNER OF SAID LOT 16; THENCE
SOUTH 71°04'15" WEST, 240.88 FEET TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING;
THENCE SOUTH 00°00'00" WEST, 3.00 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 90°00'00" WEST,
3.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH 00°00'00" EAST, 3.00 FEET; THENCE NORTH
90°00'00" EAST, 3.00 FEET TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING. SAID
PROPOSED EASEMENT CONTAINING APPROXIMATELY 9 SQUARE FEET,
MORE OR LESS.

Charles W. Christensen, RCE 8195

IN 2006-76

08/18/06
Date



SCALE 1·=40'

LOT J

LOT JDISTA/'ICE
12.00'
10.00'
12.00'
10.00'

LOT J

EXHIBIT B
ATTAQ-tvENT D

PROPOSED EQUIRJENT I ANT'EI\NA EASBvENT
OTAY WATER DISTRICT #485-1

0110<8 COvM.J\IICATICX\IS SITE SAN-733-A
,,,"

/ "
, ", ,

• ,/ '" '1t'{l> , LOT Je ~;, 'l(Qo

#/ CHULA VJSTA ~~~~
•~,' T~ACT NO. a0"" 02 ~, .~

.~/~ANCHO DEL BEY SPA J J J ~).-)'-l~
~tfJ,' MASTE~ r JNAL MAP ~,~.
~/ MAP NO. JO J7e ~.I",
, , EEGI/'INII'G

{C' PRCPOSED ANT'EI\NA "h EASEtvENT •A·',

" ------------- ~~0~'S9" W2A~ 91' "
./ , T - - - - - '"I'C;. ,T ' IE LII\E eN..yo - - - - - - - - - - - _ _ _ _ _ _ '

z , ----~
o~ , ---:":-7
~\ ~ PROPOSED EQUIPMENT _-----::::-" /
~ , EASEtvENT 1.6' _ - - - - , - ' "'//
~I' :rR.E POINT " 'II ~'- - - , - - ly
"I ~ t B::GII\NII'G 5 p.~~~Ef~<iL'l f'jlf):.~'--'" . ly1-\., LOT J

=t \ ' _.;.. - ,tEo \... ,,~. 'il!'- ~ ~ QJ'
~, - - - - - '.' ooA'~"':c: ~' ..ib.fv/
o I:rA _ - - - a 1~, -:r~ \,..\\- .'v.'\."'il :,,:
~I ~ WI,' 1'~~ j)~ ~ \)I"

N L - - "" ~ ti ' o'~~/. ~~. I
•.1. I..- t.i. ' ~ly .<..~ t!$" iLl I

~ ~2 - ' , - to /i~~ 1R..E POINT .:f./~
" 1', ,,-,- PRCPOSED~~ i~ CF EEGII'NIJW~'R
'1t~'....... , EASEtvB\IT B ~..Q (TYPICAL) ~/R

, ~o'V iE
'l(Qo , .. - - fJ N 9Qooo'oo"E I
~.' ,PROPOSED ANT'EI\NA ".. ~ • -- - --, - --
~~ ',EASEtvENT ·C· ...., WI 3.00 I

~ , , .... , " I ~I
,0.' , .. / 8, 81
"\ll.l '- ' .. • • I•.~~ ' .... -----------, 818 '818

, , 0 I . I •
, J 81M 0 M
,. -----. I 81
_.---- 71' IN 850 29'54" E 70. ZI C/3I

•1 _~ ~~Q.O':0.9:W_ .L
3.00' ~

ANT'EI\NA EASEtvENT
DETAIL (TYPICAL)

NOT TO SCALE

DIFECTIa-I
S 11°47'23" E
S 78°12'37" W
N 11°47'23" W
N 78°12' 37" E

LOT J

T lID.
1
2
3
4

DATA TABLE

08-18-06
~_---, Q-lARLES W. Q-RIST8'JSEN. R. C, E. 8195 DateICEI CHRISTENSEN ENGINEERING & SURVEYING

CIVIL ENGINEERS LAND SURVEYORS PLANNERS&5 7888 SILVERTON AVENUE. SUITE' J" • SAN DIEGO. CALIFORNIA 92126
~~~ TELEPHONE' (858)271-9901 FAX' (858)271-8912

II\.I ~nnR-7R



EXHIBITC

CRICKET
DELAWARE

TO LOCATE
OTAY'S 485-1
___ (THE

TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN
COMMUNICATIONS, INC., A
CORPORATION AND OTAY
COMMUNICATION FACILITIES AT
RESERVOIR SITE, DATED _
"LEASE")

DEPICTION AND LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF
TEMPORARY TRENCH EASEMENT

Easement Requested?

Easement Granted?

DYes

DYes

D No

D No

If Easement granted, complete the following information:

For good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the Otay

Water District, as Grantor, hereby grants to Cricket Communications, Inc., a Delaware

corporation, as Tenant, a temporary Easement to excavate, remove dirt and do any act necessary

to install, operate and maintain power lines and connection lines as required in connection with

the communications facilities and the antenna to be located on the Premises. The legal

description of the land subject to the Easement is as follows:

A drawing depicting the Easement is attached hereto. Tenant may not sell, transfer or

assign the Easement herein granted to Tenant. Tenant's rights under the Easement are

specifically limited to the installation of such power lines, transmission lines and other

communications lines and accessories as required to efficiently operate Tenant's communication

facilities on the Premises.

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities Exhibit C - page 1



The Easement shall automatically terminate on the day that is thirty (30) years from the

date of the Lease. However, if the Lease is terminated earlier for any reason, the Easement will

become unenforceable and, for all purposes, terminate on the date the Lease is terminated.

Grantor reserves the right to use the lands that are subject to the Easement in a manner

such that it will not interfere with Tenant's use thereof.

Grantor retains the right to remove, at Tenant's expense, from the surface of the

Easement any item, structure improvement or portion thereof that interferes or conflicts with

Otay's use of the Property.

Tenant agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Grantor for any damage to

property or person (including death) and any, claim, suit, action, cost or expense arising in

connection with the Easement or Tenant's use or installation of any item, line, facility or other

thing in connection therewith.

Tenant agrees to maintain the portion of the Property subject to the Easement in

substantially the condition it is on the date the Lease is executed, excepting only such changes as

are accepted by Otay in writing.

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities Exhibit C - page 2



EXHIBIT C

PROPOSED UTILITY/COAXIAL CABLE EASEMENT
OTAY WATER DISTRICT #485-1

CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS SAN-733-A
996 EAST "H" STREET

CHULA VISTA, CA 91910

PROPOSED UTILITY EASEMENT

A PROPOSED 5.00' FOOT UTILITY EASEMENT LYING WITHIN A PORTION OF
LOT 16 OF CHULA VISTA TRACT NO. 90-02, RANCHO DEL REY SPA ill,
MASTER FINAL MAP, IN THE CITY OF CHULA VISTA, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO,
STATE OF CALIFORNIA, ACCORDING TO THE MAP THEREOF NO. 13176, FILED
IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAN DIEGO COUNTY,
DECEMBER 14,1994, THE CENTERLINE OF SAID 5.00 FOOT EASEMENT BEING
MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE MOST EASTERLY CORNER OF SAID LOT 16; THENCE
SOUTH 77°20'38" WEST, 238.17 FEET TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING;
THENCE SOUTH 78°12'37" WEST, 20.62 FEET TO A POINT ON THE WESTERLY
LINE OF SAID LOT 16. THE SIDELINES OF SAID 5.00 FOOT EASEMENT TO BE
LENGTHENED OR SHORTENED SO AS TO TERMINATE AT THE BEGINNING OF
SAID EASEMENT ON A LINE WHICH BEARS NORTH 11°47'23" WEST, AND AT
THE END OF SAID EASEMENT ON THE WESTERLY LINE OF SAID LOT 16.

PROPOSED COAXIAL EASEMENT

A PROPOSED 5.00 FOOT COAXIAL CABLE EASEMENT LYING WITHIN A
PORTION OF LOT 16 OF CHULA VISTA TRACT NO. 90-02, RANCHO DEL REY
SPA ill, MASTER FINAL MAP, IN THE CITY OF CHULA VISTA, COUNTY OF SAN
DIEGO, STATE OF CALIFORINA, ACCORDING TO THE MAP THEREOF NO.
13176, FILED IN THE OFFICE OF THE COUNTY RECORDER OF SAN DIEGO
COUNTY, DECEMBER 14, 1994, THE CENTERLINE OF SAID 5.00 FOOT
EASEMENT BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE MOST EASTERLY CORNER OF SAID LOT 16; THENCE
SOUTH 75°54'50" WEST, 238.34 FEET TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING;
THENCE SOUTH 78°12'37" WEST, 6.21 FEET TO A POINT HEREINAFTER
REFERRED TO AS POINT "A"; THENCE NORTH 4°54'13" WEST, 74.91 FEET. THE
SIDELINES OF SAID 5.00 FOOT EASEMENT TO BE LENGTHENED OR
SHORTENED SO AS TO TERMINATE AT THE BEGINNING OF SAID EASEMENT
ON A LINE BEARING SOUTH 11 °47'23" EAST AND AT THE END OF SAID
EASEMENT ON A LINE WHICH BEARS NORTH 90°00'00" EAST.

BEGINNING AT AFOREMENTIONED POINT "A"; THENCE SOUTH 47°31'12"
EAST, 13.33 FEET TO A POINT HEREINAFTER REFERRED TO AS POINT "B";
THENCE SOUTH 5°58'00" WEST, 9.92 FEET. THE SIDELINES OF SAID 5.00 FOOT
EASEMENT TO BE LENGTHENED OR SHORTENED SO AS TO TERMINATE AT
THE BEGINNING OF SAID EASEMENT ON A LINE WHICH BEARS NORTH



42°28'48" EAST AND AT THE END OF SAID EASEMENT ON A LINE WHICH
BEARS NORTH 90°00'00" EAST.

BEGINNING AT AFOREMENTIONED POINT "B"; THENCE SOUTH 47°31'12"
EAST, 68.45 FEET; THENCE NORTH 85°48'18" EAST, 55.11 FEET; THENCE
NORTH 53°09'29" EAST, 45.31 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 77°25'53" EAST, 8.53. THE
SIDELINES OF SAID 5.00 FOOT EASEMENT TO BE LENGTHENED OR
SHORTENED SO AS TO TERMINATE AT THE BEGINNING OF SAID EASEMENT
ON A LINE WHICH BEARS NORTH 42°28'48" EAST AND AT THE END OF SAID
EASEMENT ON A LINE WHICH BEARS NORTH 0°00'00" EAST.

Charles W. Christensen, RCE 8195

IN 2006-76

08/16/06
Date



EXHIBIT C
PROPOSED UTILITY I COAXIAL CABLE EASEJvENT

OTAY WATER DISTRICT #485-1
CRIO<ET COvM...NICATIQ\JS SITE SAN-733-A

SCALE 1·=40 '

DETAIL
N)T TO SCALE

LOT J

08-18-06

LOT J

LOT J

"/ ....
, "-, ..

/ ..
• , "- 1-

f1'~' \\';i~~.
~, LOT J6 ~~~~•

•~, CHULA VJSTA -~,~
Af/ TAACT NO • .90.... 02 .I'~~~

o~, -~ .. :>
~ , AANCHO DEL AEY SPA J J J ~~,

~/ MASTEA r JNAL MAP .I .... ~~~
" MAP NO. J0 J76 "-

/ ....
,'1' "-

( ~z PROPOSED CENTEALIf\E 5' ....~
Z 1 I i UTILITY EASB£NT _ "" ........ _ -/-
i ' ~o _~~- /
~ \ ~I~ - :::: :::: :::: - ,o COl • ......,~) - - ::: ::: ~) ,

• po ~ :rR.E FlOINT \..t~ ~=--:::: -;i. O'l-" /
tXi 1 .\" CF EEGlf'-NIN3 1.1' ~1"}~ -: -: -l,.te. \..1:
"I ~~ " ~ ~;.. - - _ ~ 34' ,

~\ s 1tJ~t~':1;;04'eo·-~ . ~'
o /' --- --- 5 -., ,
. ~/1"1. ,-- _ --- ~

~J.--:r - 'r'" - PROPOSED CENTEALIf\E 5' fJ/' LOT
LOT J :~~ - FlOINT "B" COAXIAL CABLE EASEfvENT ,~~

"";!'I &FlOINT "A 1- '" 'j '> ,\\' ,..t:!J
" ....~..... " '''''>0 • .,.., ,0'V'

SEE [E'TAIL~.. ~,~. /' -Z~
~~ .~=-~. ~~ ... '" , ~

~ .. ,~ ... ,
~.. , ... /
.~~ "._---32-- -..... ,.. ,

", __ --fI
_.---- 7071'

T "11"\ DlFECTI()I.I DIO"t"A""'~ N 86°29'54" E· CENTEFLllIE 5'
''''''i S 78°12'37" W ...~~, UTILI1l' EASeeIT

2 S 78°12'37" W 6.21'
3 S 47°31'12" E 13.33'
4 S 05°58'00" W 9.92'
5 N 85°48'18" E 55.11'
6 N 53°09'29" E 45.31'
7 S 77°25'53" E 8.53'

t!kk 1./. d t:-

DATA TABLE

Q-lARLES W. a-AIST8'JSEN, R.C.E. 8195 DateICEI CHRISTENSEN ENGINEERING &SURVEYING
CIVIL ENGINEERS LAND SURVEYORS PLANNERS&5 7888 SILVERTON AVENUE. SUITE' J" • SAN DIEGO. CALIFORNIA 92126
TELEPHONE' (858)271-9901 FAX' (858)271-8912

.IN ?nnA-7A



EXHIBITD

CRICKET
DELAWARE

TO LOCATE
AT OTAY'S 485-1

___ (THE

TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN
COMMUNICATIONS, INC., A
CORPORATION AND OTAY
COMMUNICATION FACILITIES
RESERVOIR SITE, DATED _
"LEASE")

List of Attachments to Exhibit D:

Attachment A. Depiction of the Telecommunication Facilities

Attachment B. Permits

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities Exhibit D - page 1



EXHIBITE

TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN CRICKET
COMMUNICATIONS, INC., A DELAWARE
CORPORATION AND OTAY TO LOCATE
COMMUNICATION FACILITIES AT OTAY'S 485-1
RESERVOIR SITE, DATED (THE
"LEASE")

Memorandum of Lease

Check one option.

o None.

o See Attached.

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities Exhibit E - page I



.,

PREPARED FOR

IH\CHIHCTUI\E r: Plll NNIN Ci

\oIllllAI"I 1'1 D001~ AlICHrlU:1 floaUl I SUAMI ~l\CHI1(CT

rO UOI: ~6SI CIlIHSDIlD CA. 9~OI~ (140) 4J"'B"~

========

EXHIBIT D

ATTACHMENT A

•

OTAY WATER DISTRICT 485-1 RESERVOIR

996 EAST H STREET
RECEIVED CHULA VISTA, CA 91910

. ,
MAR 1 {} ZOOS SAN-733-A

SITE cricket"
6160 CORNERSTONE COURT, SUITE 150

SAN OIEGO. CA 92121

====".====
APPROVALS

tWHlf @~ ~~~~ \~~11'~

OO~W]~@. ~ ~@OO~IM@ ~[?l'iF,

f~,C'-00-00g

R.F".

ZONING

CQNSTRUCTION

SITE ACQUISITION

DATE

DATE

DATE

DATE

OWNER APPROVAL OATE

CONSULTANT TEAM PROJECT SUMMARY

PROJECT DESCRiPtiON:

• IHSTAUATION of Io'SiNGLE TEl£CONNUNICATlONS CABINET
ON " NEW RAISED STEEl PlATfORW ON GRADE

• INSTALlATION Of TIlRa: IoHTENNA SECTORS Of ONE IoHTENN~
~,,<r~~"i\" ~Ip~HAS) llOUHTED ON 6" DIAllE1£R x

• INSTALlATION Of 10 ~ 200 IollP ELECTRICAL SERVICE fROll
A NEW ELECTRICAl TllAHSfDRllER TO REPlACE AN EX1STING
TRAHSfORwER "

• INSTALlATION Of A HEW mco SERVICE CONNECTION FROIl
EXISTING 1ElCO PEDE5TAl' '

• NO lANDSCAPE OR IRRI~TION IS PlANNED' fOR THIS PROJECT

996 EAST H STREET
CHULA VISTA, CA 91910

SAN DIEGO COUNTY

DRAWING OATES

12/14/05 PRELIM ZD REVIEW (AO)
01/05/06 ' FINAL 20 REVIEW (M)
01/27/06 SUBMITTAL SET (r.w)
OJ/07/06 OWNER COMMENTS (r.w)
OJ/OB/06 OWNER COMMENTS Gab)

PROJECT NUMBER

SAN-733-A

PROJECT NAME

OTAY WATER
DISTRICT @ 971

================

==========

SHEET SCHEDULE
T-1 TITL£ SHEET I: PROJECT DATA

A-O SITE PLAN a: GENERAl SPECIfiCATIONS

A-1 EQUIPWEHT PlAN a: ELEVATION

A-2 EX1£RIOR ELEVATIONS

A-3 EX1£RIOR ELEVATIOHS

CRICKET CONllUNICATlONS
61SO CORNERSTONE COURT, STE. ISO
SAN OIEGO. CA 92121
cONTACT: DAVID PIITNAN
(9:15) 32...5360

OT~Y WATER OISTRICT
.2554 SWEETW~1£R SPRINGS BOULEVARD
SPRING VAlLEY. CA 91978
COirrACT: DAN KJOHEGAARD
{s.iil) 670-2269

APPUCANT:

OWNER:

.

STRUCTURAL CONSULTAN~

AlEX BROWN ENGINEERING
935 OLDHA14 COURT
ENCINITAS, CA 92024
(760) U3-7B66
(760) B43-7866 (fAX)

ELECTRICAL CONSULTANT:

WAl1£R D. CAllP. ElECTRiCAl ENGINEER, PE
1880 SHEEP RANCH LOOP
CHULA VIST.... CA 91913
(619) 934-1815

ARCHITECT:

WlUJAII BOOTH a: R09ERT SUAREZ
ARCHITECTURE a: PLANNING
P.O. BOX 4651
CARl.s9AD. CA 92018
(760) 434-8474
(760) 434-8596 (fAX)

VIA. WAR
AZUL

PASEO RANCHERO
VIA. TERACIN~

VICINITY MAP

NOTE:
THERE ARE CURRENTlY THREE EXISTING TELECOllNUHICATIONS
f AClUTlES ON THE SITE. (NEXTEl., T-W09ILE I: VERlZOH)

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

LOT 16 Of CHULA VlST~ TRACT NO. 90-02, RANCHO OEl REY
SPA III, MASTER ,fiNAl NAP, IN THE CITY Of CHULA VlST....
COUNTY Of SAN DIEGO; ST~TE or CAUfORNIA, ACCORDING TO
ll~ THEREOf NO. 13176, flL£Q IN THE ornCE Of THE COUNTY
RECORDER Of SAN DIEGO COUNTY. DECEN9ER 14. 1994

PROJECT ADDRESS: 996 EAST H STREET
CHULA VISTA, CA 91910

ASSESSORS PARCEL NUMBER: 640-050-33

EXISTING ZONING: PC PlANNED CDllIlUNITY

TOTAL SITE AREA: 39,9BO.9 Sf
= 0,91 ACRES

THOMAS GUIDE PAGE: 1310-J6

ADDRESS:
996 EAST HSTREET
CHULA VIST.... CA 91910

COORDINATES (NAD 83):
LAnTUDE: 32" 38' 6.536" NORTH
LONGITUDE. 117" 01' 8.936" WEST

ACCESSIBILITY DISCLAIMER
THIS PROJECT IS AN UNOCCUPIED WIRELESS Pes
TEL£COllIlUNIC~TlONS f~CILllY AND. ~CCORDING TO WRITTEN
INTERPRETATION FROIl THE CAUfORNIA DEPAATIlENT or THE ST~TE
ARCHITECT, IS EXEllPT FROIl D~LED ACCESS REQUIREllEHTS.

SITE ACQUISITION:

llERIDIAH 1£L£COIl. INC.
6160 CORNERSTONE COURT, SUITE ISO
SAN DIEGO, CA 92121
CONTACT: SUZANNE IlARTlKAS
(sss) 521-0240
(858) m-3518 (fAX)

LAND USE PLANNER:

llERlDIAH 1£L£COll. INC.
6160 CORNERSTONE GOURT. SUITE ISO
SAN DIEGO. CA 92121
CONTACT: FRAHKUN OROZCO
(619) 6J2-2569
(858) m-3518 (fAX) PROPOSED PROJECT AREA:

TYPE OF" CONSTRUCTION:

PROPOSED OCCUPANCY:

70 Sf

TYPE V, NON-RIoTEO
UNSPRINKlERED

NONE

APPLICABLE CODES
~Ll WORK SHALL COIlPLY WITH THE fOlLOWING IoPPUCABLE CODES:

CAUfORNIA STATE BUIlIlING CODE, 2001 EDmON, mLE 24
UNlfORW BUILDING CODE, 200 f EDmON
UNlfORIl PLUIlBING CODE, 2001 EDmON
UNlfORIl llECHAHICAl CODE, 2001 EDInON
NATIONAl ELECTRiCAl CODE. 2001 EDmON

IN THE EVENT Of CONruCT. THE 1l0ST RESTRICTIVE CODE
SHALL, PREVAiL

==========
SHEET TITLE

TITLE SHEET
&

PROJECT DATA

========
PROJECTS\cricket\SAN733zd\ SAN73321 1.dwg

==========

T-1



GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

1, THE LATEST EDmON OF M N.lERICAH INSITT\1TE Of~
DOCUWOlT oUQl "CENEIW. COHOmONS Of THE CONTAACT FOR
COHSTRUCI1CI~· Mt IHCWDED IN TJiESE: SPEClACAT10NS IS IF
COWPlETEL.Y REFRODIJcED HEREIN.

z. THIS FJCIL1TY IS AN UNOCCUPIED PCS TEl.£COWIoIUHICATlONS SITE
NIO IS EXDlPT fROt.l DlSA8LED H:CDS REQUlRalENTS.

DATE

DATE

DATE

OATE

DATE

PLANNING....Ar~CHITECTUI\E

PROJECTS\crickel\SAN733zd\SAN7332AO,dwg

A-O

PROJECT NAME

SITE ACQUISITiON

cricketo

DRAWING DATES
12/14/05 PRELIM ZO REVIEW (AO)
01/05/06 FINAL ZO REVIEW (AA)
01/27/06 SUBMITIAL SET (,ew)
03/07/06 OWNER COMMENTS (rew)
03/08/06 OWNER COMMENTS Gab)

6160 CORNERSTONE COURT, SUITE 150
SAN DIEGO, CA 92121

SHEET TITLE

APPROVALS

R.F.

Wllll~1'I I"l OOOT~ ~nCHIIEcr nOD(nT J SUA.n(1 A.nCHIHCr

PROJECT NUMBER

SAN-733-A

DTAY WATER
DISTRICT @ 971

OWNER APPROVAL

CONSTRUCTION

996 EAST H STREET
CHULA VISTA, CA 91910

SAN DIEGO COUNTY

PREPARED FOR

ZONING

SITE PLAN
&

GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

===::===

====..====

===::===

===::===

====::====

===::===

===::===

16.

12. WCIfItCYAHStIp 1tRlUCfIOU1' SKW. BE OF 1)£ BEST QUllU1Y OF
tHE 1WDE' Ift'OI...W:D. AND &wJ.. IiEEt' OR EXCEm 11£ RIUDMNC
UMIlIU RERREHCE STAtIWlDS FOR QLWJIY NfD~--tItCo\ NAlJOtoW. ROOf1NC COfrm'W:TORS ASSOC:KTlOH

ow.RE 1fTE1S\11OtW.. CENTER
102S5 W. tIGCtNS RO.toO. surtE 100
ROSDICINT. L lSOQ18

~ SHEEr WEW. 11m All cotI)(l'J()frfi COHI1UICnJRS
NA1IOtW.~'I1ON

4201 1NA'l'ETTE CEHTIR DRI"£
GWfTI.I.Y. VA ZOUi1-1201

R.P Nl'ERflW1OMlIL fISTTlVI'E FOR. I.A1lt NI) PLASTER
12l>1IWISfER ""'"sr. PAU.. IIof ~114-14OI

13. IIST#U. Nt EQUIIWENT 1M) "''TERW.S PER '1l£ lAJ'EST EDmON
OF 11£ WHUF1CT1JRER'S MTALlA1IOH SPEt':fJCIJIONS IH.£SS
SPS:IF1CI.I.1.y NOrED 10 1H£ CONTRAR'l". OR M*RE LOCAL CODES
OR REW.A11ONS TAKE PIEmEHCE.

14. THE CONT'MCrDR StWJ. YEJIFY. COORDINATE, NCl fIRCM)E AU.
NEaSSAR'l' Bt.DCI<JtQ, EW:KIt2. f7WM.1C. WHQERS OR aI1£R
!U'PORtS ftlR ALL rrEWS Fl!QLIfIING TI£ SM£

15. StWJ. GM AU.
LOCI<.CllDES,

WEU. IJ!S STATE_ DMSIIlN OF

PRQPRlETARY IHFORMA11ON

17.

5. THE CONTRACtDR StWJ. IiCUJDE IN tIS DR HER BID All.
UAlERWS. EQU;?iI£NT,~ AND lABOR NECGSARY 10
COMPL£l"E 11£ WORK ItS ItIDIC:AlED OR "P\JED B'r 1H£SE
DflAWlHGS.

e. CON1'RICTOR SWJ..
CONSTIWCIIOIl
ARCHllEJ:T FNff

~_....,
AIlE """"'"IIDOIFIO\TJOHS.........

2J. 1H£ CONJIW:TOR sw.u. REaIIM AU. RlBISH JHJ WASTE
MA.'TIMALS ON A DlI..'1' BASIS. EXCEPT FOR TKf;T SF'ECInn 15
~ 1H£ PROPERTY Of lI£~ DR PROP£R'IY ottER
NfO SKtU. EXDD5£ SIRICT D:»f1ROl
1HAlXJGOlOlJr_1NCIJ.<lIIG
COWF'I.£tal:ClfWOftl(. ALLMfASM£lO
a.£NI COfIliI'TDl AT 1l£ END Of EACH MY
COt«X11ON, F1l£E F'ROW PMlT SPOlS. DUST
~'MIE AT CClWt.DlOH Of WORI(.

z.... THE caoAL CONlRACTtlR WST PERfORW WORt( DlRNQ
PROPERTY ~ER'S PREFtRR£D ttClUtS Ttl A'tOO DISRlPTlOH or
........ 1CIMlY.

:a. ALL DlPOSm WETAI. stWJ. 8£ HOT-DI"f'£D~

2G. SfAL AU. PEl£TRAroHS 1HROUCH FR:-RAmI ASSBIlUES MTH
UL USTm OR FR" WMSHAL APPRCMD "'1ERW.S Of n£
~TE AATINC FOR 1t£~y wt£RE PO£1RATIONS
OCCUR.

21.

10. THE Cl:JNTRACItIR SHW. OBTAIN NI) PAY FOR P£RWS, UCEHSfS
AND IiSP£CTIOHS HEJ::ESSARY FUR f'ERftJRWNIeE OF nu:: WORK
IH) INCU.OE tHOSE IH Tt£ COST OF 1HE WORK 10 CHCK£r
~

11. CONTRACrOR

,.

3.

...

..

..

..

TElCO SERVICE CONNEC11ON AT EXISTING
TElCO PEDESTAL

POWER SERVICE CONNECTION AT EXISTING
ELECTRICAL TRANSFORMER

PROPOSED 3-GANG METER PEDESTAl.

EXISTING FACADE MOUNTED \lERlZON
ANTENNAS

EXISTING FACADE MOUNTED NEXTD..
ANTENNAS

EXISTING FACADE MOUNTED CINGULAR
ANTENNAS

EXISTING VERIZON WIRElESS CONCRETE
BLOCK EQUIPMENT ENClOSURE

EXISTING NEXTEl EQUIPMENT SHELTER

EXISTING ClNGULAR WIRELESS EQUIPMENT
SHELTER

EXISTING CONTOUR UNE SHOWN AT "-0"
1!'ITER\IAl.S

EXISTING COAXIAl. CABLE TRAYS ON ROOF
OF TANK (TYPICAL)

PROPOSED JOI~ lfTlUlY TRENCH TO
POWER AND TELCO SERVICE CONNECTIONS
ON ADJACENT PROPERTY

EXISTING ASPHALT PAVED AREA

EXISTING CHAlNUNK FENCE (TYPICAL)

EXISTING ASPHALTIC CONCRETE PAVED
ACCESS ROAD

PROPERlY UNE (TYPICAL)

EXISTING TREES AND BUSHES TO REMAIN

EXISTING CONCRETE DRAINAGE SWAl.E

EXISTING SIDEWAll<

EXISTING CHAlNUNK GATE

EXISTING UNDERGROUND WATER UNE (VERIFY)

PROPOSED COAXIAl. CABLE TRENCH

EXISTING RESIDEN11Al HOMES (TYPICAL)

KEYED NOTES:
o
~

~o
~

~

¢

*~~
~

{}
(P
~

~

I
EASElot~,

NO EASEt.t~ ARE SHOWN WHiCH REfLECTS PREUMINARY
RECORDS RESEARCH OF RECOROED PARCEL 1oIAPS.
EASEt.t~ ARE SUBJECT TO REVIEW OF FINAL 11TlE REPORT

,

\

CRICKET CQMMUNlCA110NS TElECOMMUNICATIONS TRANSMITTER
FREQUENCIES AND POWER LEVElS'

1850-1990 t.4Hz BAND WIDTH
200 WATTS ERP PER SECTOR

I
I

/~

PROPOSED CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS ANTENNA MOUNTED
TO A PROPOSED 6" DIAMETER x 14'-0" HIGH STEEL POLE.
POLE, ANTENNA, MOUtfllNG BRACKET AND AI.J. EXPOSED
COAXIAl. CABLE SHAll. BE PAINTED BROWN. SEE SHEETS
A-2 & A-3 FOR EXTERIOR ElEVATIONS

PROPOSED CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT
CABINET ON RAISED STEEL PLATFORM ON GRADE
(SHOWN SHADED). SEE SHEET A-l FOR
EQUIPMENT PLAN

PROPOSED CRICKET COMMUNlCA11ONS ANTENNA MOUNTED
TO A PROPOSED 6" DIAMETER x '4'-0" HIGH STEEL POLE.
POLE, ANTENNA, MOUNTING BRACKET ANO AI.J. EXPOSED
COAXIAl. CABLE SHAll. BE PAINTED BROWN. SEE SHEETS
A-2 & A-3 FOR EXTERIOR ElEVATIONS

SITE PLAN
IICAIE:1" -111'4'

\

\



ANTENNA AND COAXIAL CABLE SCHEDULE
SECTOR DIRECTION AZllJurn ANTENNA. MODE!. NUUBER DOWNTILT SERIAL NUMBER NUMBER COAX. CASU JUIAP£R COAX SIZE

ANID<Ii'. OF CABlES lfNGTH LENGTH
PER SECTOR (+ / - 5') (+ / - J')

A' NORTH 0' CSA PCSX065-18-o2 0' 2 80' 6'-0' 7/S·

Bl SOUTH '00' ~ PCSX065-1B-02 0" 2 55' 6'-0" 7/S"

c, WEST 240" CSt\. PCSX065-18-02 0' 2 185' 6' 0" 1 5/S" .'lRCHlTECTU£\E ""
PlANNING

Wllll~l'1 rl OOOIH IIIICKlltCI ~OQ(nl J ~U~I\~l AlleNIHCl

DATE

DATE

DATE

DATE

DATE

SAN-733-A

OTAY WATER
DISTRICT @ 971

PROJECT NUMBER

cric~t

PREPARED FOR

OWNER APPROVAL

996 EAST H STREET
CHULA VISTA, CA 91910

SAN DIEGO COUNTY

6160 CORNERSTONE COURT, SUITE 150
SAN DIEGO, CA 92121

PROJECT NAME

APPROVALS

CONSTRUCTION

ZONING

SITE ACQUISITION

R.F.

======= =: =======

==="===

=======:: =======

======= :: =======

In
on

I.,

2

EQUIPMENT ELEVATION
lIlWJ;:.... I·4'

-I-

/
-I-

/
-I-

o

/
J

o

/

EQUIPMENT PLAN
llCloIlE:.... I·4'

/

6" DIAMETER x 14'-0
HIGH srm POLE. PAINT
POLE BROWN,

-'!r--mTTV

DRAWING DATES
12/14/05 PRELIM ZD REVIEW (AO)
01/05/06 FINAL ZD REVIEW (AA)
O'/27/D6 SUBMITTAL SET (row)
03/07/06 OWNER C::OM~ENTS (rew)
03/08/06 OWNER COMMENTS (Job)

""-PROPOSED ANTENNA
MOUNTING BRACKET

=======::=======

PROPOSED RAISED STEEL PLATFORM

EXlsnNG CHAINUNK FENCE

EXlsnNG LANOSCAPING

EXlsnNG TREES TO REMAIN

PROPOSEO JOINT UTIl1TY TRENCH TO POWER AND TELCO
SERVICE CONNECTIONS ON ADJACENT PROPER1Y

PRCPOSED GPS ANTENNA MOUNml TO EQUIPMENT CABINET

PROPOSED TELCO CABINET

PROPOSED PPC CABINET

PROPOSED UNOERGRCUNO COAXIAL CABLE TRENCH

EQUIPMENT PLAN
&

ELEVATION

SHEET TITLE

PROJECTS\cricke.I\SAN7J3zd\SAN733zA1.dwg

=======:: =======

=======:: =======
'"... '"b ~

I'"

10 '"0-

~ PROPOSED PANEL ANTENNA
6,6" WIDE x 72,4- LONG x
J.S" DEEP

ilil
!lll
iiil I
;:F,~
til'
ill I

!!i\~ PROPOSED COAXIAL CABLE
!i, i ON UNISTRUT SUPPORTS
~ i BANDED TO NEW POLE

KEYED NOTES:
<3> PROPOSED CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS CMO EQUIPMENT r.ABINET.

52" WIOE x 30" DEEP x 55" HIGH. WEIGIfT: 2600 LSS.

~
~
<9o
o
~o
~

Nore

1, POLE, AIflENNA, COAXIAL CABLE. SUPPORT FRAME AND BRACKETS
SHALL BE PAlNml BROWN

2. ALl ELEMENTS OF ANTENNA MOUNT SHALL BE GALVANIZED
A-1



.4 RCH I TEe lURE .... Pl.4 NNING

l.'IlIl~P1 I'l gOOID ,HCH'HCT 1I0DEIII J SU~tlfl_ AlltHIUCl

~o_oo, AilS1 C.04f1ISDADC~ 9Q0\6 n60I11~'&O~

DATE

DATE

DATE

DATE

OATE

APPROVALS

ZONING

R.F.

CONSTRUCTION

PROJECT NAME

PREPARED FOR

criclteto
6160 CORNERSTONE COURT, SUITE 150

SAN DIEGO, CA 92121

SITE ACQUISITION

OWNER APPROVAL

=======:: =======::

===..===

=========

PROPOSEO CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS ANTENNA
MOUNTED TO A PROPOSED 6' DIAMETER x
14'-0' HIGH STEEL POLE. POLE, ANTENNA,
MOUNTiNG BRACKET AND AI.l. EXPOSED CO/IXw.
CABLE SHAIJ. BE PAINTED BROWN

r:.t\:'
~~~

i2:~~
."..5"y>

?~

- ~EXISTING FENCE IN
FOREGROUND NOT
SHOWN FOR CLARITY

TOP OF CRICKET\

.

CO.MMUNICATIONS
POLE (TYPICAL)

t!;/i~~. ~!.:~+.:
~><'ij!.;~

0"

EXIS11NG T-MOBILE
ANTENN/>S

EXIS11NG ASPHALT
PAVED !<REA

EXIS11NG WATER
TANK

EXISllNG NEXTtL
EQUIPMENT SHELTER

EXISTING AIR VENT\(TYPICAL OF 2)

EXISTING NEXTtL~
ANTENNAS

EXISllNG VERI20N WIRELESS
CONCRETE BLOCK EQUIPMENT
ENCLOSURE

EXISTING T-MOBILE
" • EQUIPMENT SHELTER

:(Il~
;;:~

SOUTH ELEVATION
ICN.E: W-"4'

PROPOSED CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT
CABINET' ON RAISED STEEL PLATFORM ON GRAIOE
(SHOWN SHAIlED)

PROPOSED CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS~~
MOUNTED TO PROPOSED 6' DIAMETER K 14-0
HIGH STEEL POLE

OTAY WATER
DISTRICT @ 971

PROJECT NUMBER

SAN-733-A
996 EAST H STREET

CHULA VISTA, CA 91910

SAN DIEGO COUNTY
EXISllNG AIR VENT
(n'PICAL OF 2) ======= II =======::

PROPOSED CRICKET COIoIMUt-lICATIONS ANTENNA
MOUNTED TO A PROPOSED 6' DIAMETER x
14'-0' HIGH STEEL POLE. POLE. ANTENNA,
MOUNTiNG BRACKET AND AI.l. EXPOSED CO.IXw.
CABLE SHAIJ. BE PAINTED BROWN

EXISllNG VERIZON WIRELESS
COt-lCRETE BLOCK EQUIPMENT
Et-lCLOSURE

EXIS11NG T-MOBILE
ANTENNAS

EXISTlNG VERIZON
ANTENt-l\S

EXISTING NEXTEL
ANTENNAS

DRAWING DATES

12/12/05 PREUM ZO REVIEW (AO)
01/05/06 FINAL ZO REVIEW (AA)
01/27/06 SUBMITTAL SET (rew)
03/07/06 OWNER COMMENTS (rew)
03/08/06 OWNER COMMENTS (jab)

===.. ====
SHEET TITLE

EXTERIOR ELEVATION

====:=====
PROJECTS\ cricket\ SAN] 3 3 zd\ SAN7 33zA2 .dwg

WEST ELEVATION
\ PROPOSED CRICKET COMMUNICATIOt-lS EQUIPMENT

CABINET ON RAISED STEEL PLATFORM ON GRAIOE
(SHOWN SHAIlED) PROPOSED CRICKET COMMUt-lICATIONS ANTENNA

MOUNTED TO A PROPOSED 6' DIAMETER x
14'-0' HIGH STEEL POLE. POLE. ANTENNA,
MOUNTiNG BRACKET ANa AI.l. EXPOSED CQ,fJ(w.
CABLE SHAIJ. BE PAINTED BROWN

====.. ====

A-2



ARCHITECTURE .... PLANNING

I.'llll~l'l M OOOIH HICHIHCI flaUE1\1 I su~nE2 ~1\.(K1HCI

r a,BOX 4651 CMHSDAD. C~ <;01018 (760) C1(-&~7(

DATE

DATE

DATE

ZONING

6160 CORNERSTONE COURT, SUITE 150
SAN DIEGO, CA 92121

PREPARED FOR

APPROVALS

R.F.

CONSTRUCTION

===..===

===..===

TOP OF CRICKET
COMMUNICATIONS
POLE (TYPICAL)

PROPOSED CRICKET COt.CMUNICATIONS AIlTENNA
MOUt-ITED TO A PROPOSED 6" DIAMETER x
14'-0" HIGH STEEL POLE. POLE. AIlTENNA
MOUNTING BRACKET AND ALL EXPOSED COAXIAl.
CABLE SHALL BE PAINTED BROWN

EXISTlNG T-MOBILE
EQUIPMENT SHELTER

EXISTING T-MOBILE
ANTENNAS

EXISTlNG NEXlEL
ANTENNAS

EXISTlNG AIR VENT
/ (1'YPICAL OF 2)

/ r EXISTlNG VERIZON
/ / AIlTENNAS

EXISTlNG FENCE IN
FOREGROUND NOT
SHOWN FOR ClARITY

ExiSTING WATER \TANK

EXISTlNG NEXlEL~
ANTENNAS \

\EXISTlNG T-MOBILE
ANTENNAS

,~j_LLU~L
W-U-~__ +--+---+-ll--I--+--i---+-+---__- r---r--tliti~_i_itttll------~ -------- I :

b
I

~ '0
.'
;;

PROPOSED CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS AIlTENNA
MOUt-ITED TO A PROPOSED 6" DIAMETER x
14'-0· HIGH STEEL POLE. POLE. AIlTENNA
MOUNTING BRACKET AND ALL EXPOSED COAXIAL
CABLE SHALL BE PAit-ITED BROWN

PROPOSED CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT
CABINET ON RAISED STEEL PLATFORM ON GRADE
(SHOWN SHADED)

SITE ACQUISITION DATE

OWNER APPROVAL DATE

NORTH ELEVATION
~W'.I'O"

======= II ========
PROJECT NAME

OTAY WATER
DISTRICT @ 971

PROJECT NUMBER

SAN-733-A
996 EAST H STREET

CHULA VISTA, CA 91910

SAN DIEGO COUNTY

==========

EAST ELEVATION
~W'.I'oO'

DRAWING DATES
PREUM ZO REVIEw (AO)
FINAL ZO REVIEW (AA)
SUBMITTAL SET (rew)
OWNER COMMENTS (rew)
OWNER COMMENTS Gob)

12/101/05
01/05/06
01/27/06
03/07/06
03/0B/06

SHEET TITLE

A-3

PROJECTS\cricket\SAN7332d\SAN733zA3.dwg

EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS

======= II ========

==== .. ====

========

PROPOSED CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT
CABINET ON RAlSEO STEEL PLATFORM ON GRADE
(SHOWN SHADEO)

EXISTlNG WATER TANK IN FOREGROUND

_ .= r (SHOWN DASHED FOR ClARITY)

5.=-B---L-El J
------------------ -----------~\

/ I
I I
I I
I I
I I
I I

PROPOSED CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS AIlTENNA I,
MOUt-ITED TO A PROPOSED 6" DIAMETER x
14'-0" HIGH STEEL POLE. POLE. AIlTENNA I

EXISllNG T-MOBILE MOUNTING BRACKET AND ALL EXPOSED COAXIAl. I

EXISTlNG NEXlEL WlRELELESS EQUIPMENT CABLE SHALL BE PAit-ITED BROWN I EXISTlNG VERIZON WIRELESS

m,~~_:~:\"=! i .Y'~'~'~'-

~ ~ iiii':i'f:.:'-:~-'·~~~~-·-r------~ ~ -,~1~,~ ~T +-~~ ';--~-~ ~ ~ ~ ~ ~--~ l.c_!_.~~I:~I;,!.~l,,I'i,i-~_i,~l:'!;.i7,i~!i~.!>:lI. ~!~.i~!:_;II~i:~~!.Til:l.
," L EXISllNG FENCE IN

FOREGROUND NOT
SHOWN FOR ClARITY



AGENDA ITEM 8e

STAFF REPORT

TYPE MEETING: Regular Board MEETING DATE:

SUBMITTED BY: Patrick VaUghan~~~ W.O.lG.F. NO:

Senior Civil Engineer

APPROVED BY: Rod Posada, ~~~..,s-)..
(Chief)

September 6, 2006

aaOOO DIV. NO. 1

1d1000

APPROVED BY:
(Ass!. GM):

SUBJECT:

Chief, Development Services

Manny Magafi~

Assistant General JJnager, Engineering and Operations

Request to Approve Agreement with Cricket Communications,
Inc., a Delaware Corporation, for the installation of a
Communications Facility at the 458-1&2 Reservoir Site

\
\

GENERAL MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board authorize the General Manager to execute an
agreement with Cricket Communications, Inc., a Delaware
Corporation (Cricket) for the installation of a communications
facility (Attachment 1), at the 458-1&2 Reservoir Site.

See attached Exhibit A for project location.

COMMITTEE ACTION:

See Attachment A

PURPOSE:

To obtain Board authorization for the General Manager to execute
an agreement with Cricket that allows the installation of a
communications facility at the 458-1&2 Reservoir Site. The
agreement will grant Cricket 88 square feet of leased area and
trench easements of right-of-way for access, power, and a
communications facility.

ANALYSIS:

Cricket will be the fourth cellular provider locating its
facilities on the 458-1&2 Reservoir Site. Currently, Sprint, T
Mobile, and Crown Castle are the three cellular providers at
this location. The proposed wireless communication facility
consists of the construction of an unmanned communications
equipment cabinets with the incorporated, one 14-foot antenna
support pole. The equipment will be located within an area
totaling 88 square feet of leased space.



FISCAL IMPACT:

The District will receive copies of construction drawings, all
permits, and approvals by local regulatory agencies prior to
granting permission to start construction. Staff agrees with
the design concept for the proposed facility construction.

/~-~
~-"77--=-::~-~

~
The District will~receive $2,266 per month in rent effective
upon execution of the lease agreement for a period of five
years, subject to an annual inflation adjustment of 3 percent
The tenant will have the option to extend the term for three
additional five-year periods. Two additional five-year
extensions may be granted at the District's discretion.

An initial $2,000 payment toward the District's non-refundable
administrative fee of $6,500 has been paid to reimburse the
District for staff time to supervise and assist the tenant
during the licensing and permitting phases; this fee is separate
from rent. The remaining balance of $4,500 will be due and
payable upon execution of this agreement by both parties to
reimburse the District for costs to assist the tenant with
planning, design, and construction phases of the project,
including legal expenses.

LEGAL IMPACT:

The District's Lease Agreement has been reviewed by our legal
counsel District Counsel has been an integral part in the
negotiations and construction of this agreement.

STRATEGIC GOAL:

This item is in line with the District's Strategic Focus Areas:
Community and Governance, and Financial Health.

Attachments

C,\Out1ook Temp\Cricket @ 458-12 Staff Report BD 9-6-06.doc

2



ATTACHMENT A

Request to Approve Agreement with Cricket communications,
Inc., a Delaware Corporation, for the Installation of a

SUBJECT/PROJECT: Communications Facility at the 458-:-1&2 Reservoir Stie

COMMITTEE ACTION:

The Finance and Administration Committee reviewed this item
at a meeting held on August 21, 2006. The following
comments were made:

• This is a standard agreement for new cellular agreements
and it has been reviewed by legal counsel;

• The monthly rental per the agreement is $2,266/month
along with an up-front administration fee of $6,500.
The administration fee covers staff time to supervise
and assist the tenant during the licensing and
permitting phases;

• The agreement is for 5 years and is subject to an annual
inflation adjustment of 3%. If Cricket terminates the
agreement prior to the end of the 5-year term, it must
buyout the contract. The agreement can also be renewed
by the tenant for 3 additional 5-year terms, and at
Otay's option for 2 more additional 5-year terms;

• There was discussion of leaving the annual inflation
adjustment open and negotiating this rate each year. It
was noted that cellular companies were not open to doing
so and that they insist on a fixed increase of 3%. This
allows them to anticipate exact cost increases within
their budgets;

• It was noted that this was a co-location agreement
(there are four vendors on this site) and it is the
obligation of the cellular companies to do their own
research with regard to interference with existing
vendors;

• It was discussed that the District does not seek
cellular agreements and that the companies approach the
District on locations they have an interest in locating
antennas;

• Cricket Communications provides service within a small
local area with unlimited minutes for a flat fee each
month. They hope to essentially replace your home
phone;

• After the committee meeting, the leased space on the
attached agreement was corrected from 88 square feet to
177 square feet.



PROJECT
SITE

." PARKWAY,-"-'--

GTAY WATER DISTRICT
CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS AT

OTAY WATER DISTRICT'S 458-1 & 458-2 RESERVOIR SITE
LOCATION MAP

'"''" "i... \
:c: "'\

IMPERIAL
BEACH

......
L
o
Q)

0::

CD
o
o
N

;;:
"0
ui......

;Q
.s::.x
w

I
(f)
0..

~
0..

--o......
(f)

Vl
C
o
:;:;
o
u
c
:]

E
E
o

~J-- ...._~lli~~::c:l1==~::1.t==::J::::::I:::J::J::.:J=±::::::i..:_::;;;;;;"-;;,;;-,·';;,;;'~-;L;' ;",,;,,;;;;r;;;;;;;;;;.;;;;;;;;;;;.;;~
~

u
';::
U

EXHIBIT A



ATTACHMENT 1

AGREEMENT BETWEEN CRICKET
COMMUNICATIONS, INC., A DELAWARE
CORPORATION AND OTAY WATER DISTRICT TO
LOCATE A COMMUNICATIONS FACILITY AT
OTAY'S 458-1&2 RESERVOIR SITE

This Agreement ("Lease") is· entered into and effective on the date specified in the

signature page (the "Commencement Date"), by and between the Otay Water District, a

municipal water district organized and operated pursuant to the Water Code Section 71000, et

seq. ("Otay"), and Cricket Communications, Inc., a Delaware corporation ("Tenant"). Any

special terms or conditions agreed to by Otay and Tenant will be set forth on Exhibit A.

A. Otayowns a site on which it has constructed water facilities known as the "458-

1&~ Reservoir Site," as depicted on Attachment A to Exhibit B (the "Reservoir Site").

B. Tenant has requested Otay to allow it to locate a communications facility and

transmitting and receiving antennas at the Reservoir Site.

For good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby

acknowledged, Otay and Tenant agree as follows:

1. Premises. Otay owns the real property described in Attachment B to Exhibit B

(the "Property"). Otay agrees to lease to Tenant, for the installation of antennas and related

telecommunications equipment, approximately 177 square feet of real property within the

Property, as more particularly described on Attachment C to Exhibit B (the "Premises"). A

depiction of the Property and the Premises is attached hereto as Attachment D to Exhibit B.

2. Grant of Non-Exclusive Trench Easement(s). Otay has also agreed to grant a

temporary non-exclusive easement to Tenant for certain portions of the Property, as legally

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:081706 Page 1 of 19



described in Exhibit C to this Lease (the "Easement"), for the purpose of trenching and

installation of the necessary utilities to operate Tenant's equipment. It is expressly agreed that

any such Easement shall run concurrent with this Lease. Tenant agrees and understands that if

the Lease is terminated or ceases to exist for any reason, the Easement shall not have any force

or effect. Tenant agrees to return and maintain all portions of land subject to the Easement that

are disturbed in connection with the installation, connection, maintenance, repair, access or any

other Tenant activity, to their original condition at Tenant's sole cost and expense.

This easement shall be non-exclusive. Otay, or any other tenant of Otay may utilize the

easement area for similar purposes or for any other purpose which does not interfere with

Tenant's uses. Otay shall provide Tenant with advance notice of any intention to use the

temporary easement area by Otay or any current or future tenant ofOtay.

3. Use of the Premises. The Premises may be used by Tenant only for the purpose

of installing, constructing, housing, operating, maintaining and repairing approved

telecommunication equipment, including appurtenant antennae and electronic equipment, as

further described and conditioned in this Agreement (collectively, the "Facilities"), for the lawful

provision of communication services. Tenant may not sublease or sublicense any use or space of

the Premises or the Facilities thereon except as otherwise provided in Paragraph 12, below.

4. Access. Otay shall provide access to Tenant, Tenant's employees, agents,

contractors and subcontractors to the Premises 24 hours a day, seven days a week, at no charge

to Tenant. Otay hereby grants to Tenant such rights of ingress and egress over the Property as

may be necessary and consistent with the authorized use of the Premises as outlined by Otay

Operations. Subject to Otay's reasonable rules, Otay shall permit Tenant's employees, agents,

contractors, subcontractors and invitees to park vehicles on the Property as necessary and

consistent with the authorized use of the Premises. Otay shall, at its expense, maintain all access

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:081706 Page 2 ofl9



roadways or driveways from the nearest public roadway to the Premises in a manner reasonably

sufficient to allow access. In addition, Tenant shall obtain such permits, licenses or easements,

from the owners of property adjoining the leased premises, as may be necessary for Tenant to

have access to and from the leased Premises and also for access to utilities. Tenant shall provide

copies of these documents to Otay prior to the start of construction.

5. Term. The term of this Lease shall be five (5) years (the "Initial Term"),

commencing on the Commencement Date. Tenant shall have the right to extend the term of the

Lease for three (3) additional terms of five (5) years each by giving Otay written notice of its

intention to do so at least 120 days prior to the date that the then current term would otherwise

end (each, an "Extension Term"). In addition, Tenant may request, in writing, two additional

extensions of five (5) years each, which Otay may grant or deny at its sole discretion (each, an

"Additional Term" and together with the Initial Term and Extension Term, or individually, as the

context requires, the "Term"). Each such request shall be made in writing no less than 120 days

prior to the expiration of the then current Extension Term or Additional Term, as applicable.

6. Administrative Fee. Tenant, prior to entering on Otay Property to conduct its

investigation of the Premises, shall provide Otay with a non-refundable administrative fee in the

amount of TWO THOUSAND DOLLARS AND NO CENTS ($2,000.00). This fee will defray

Otay's costs associated with the supervision of and assistance with the Tenant's investigation

and planning phases of the site selection.

Additionally, upon final execution of the Agreement by both parties, Tenant shall provide

Otay with a non-refundable administrative fee in the amount of FOUR THOUSAND FIVE

HUNDRED DOLLARS AND NO CENTS ($4,500.00). This amount shall be in addition to the

administrative fee described above for entering on Otay Property to conduct investigation of the

proposed Premises. This second administrative fee shall be used to defray Otay's administrative

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:081706 Page 3 of 19



expenses and costs related to Otay's supervision and assistance with planning, design, and

construction phases of the project, including legal expenses. These administrative fees shall not

be considered rent or part of the rental installment.

7. Rent. Beginning on the earlier of (1) six months from the Commencement Date;

or (2) the date on which a local building permit is issued allowing Tenant to construct the

Facilities (or any portion thereof) on the Premises (the "First Rent Payment Date"), Tenant shall

pay Otay as rent the sum of $2,266 per month payable on the first day of each month in advance.

However, at Tenant's election, Tenant may pay rent annually, in advance, if, at least 60 days

prior to the Initial Term or an Extension Term, Tenant notifies the District, in writing, of its

intent to pay its rent in annual payments during each year of the upcoming Extension Term or

Additional Term. If the First Rent Payment Date is other than the first day of the calendar

month, the rate shall be prorated for the first month of the Initial Term.

The rent shall be increased on each calendar anniversary of the Commencement

Date at a rate of three percent (3%) per annum. However, at the beginning of each Extension

Term or Additional Term, if any, Otay may, at its sole and absolute discretion, choose to adjust

the annual rent, effective on the first year of said Extension Term or Additional Term, by an

amount equal to the greater of: (i) three percent (3%); or (ii) the amount necessary to ensure that

the rent equals the amount it would have been if each annual increase during the previous Term

had been calculated based on the average percentage increases in the consumer price index

published by the United States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor Statistics (1982-1984 =

100) (the "CPI") for "All Items - All Urban Consumers" for the San Diego Metropolitan

Statistical Area for the immediately preceding 5 year period. If the publication of the Consumer

Price Index is discontinued, or if the Consumer Price Index is altered in some material manner,

including changing the name of the index, the geographic area covered, the consumers or

f
I

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:081706 Page 4 of 19



workers so included, or the base year, the Parties must use their reasonable best efforts to agree

on a substitute index or procedure that reasonably reflects and monitors consumer prices. After

such an adjustment, the rent shall increase at a rate of three percent (3%) per annum for the rest

of the applicable Extension Term or Additional Term, if any. Otay shall also have the discretion

to adjust the base rent to then current market rent in the Additional Term if said market rent is

greater than the CPI increase provided for in the above formula. The "then current market rent"

shall be defined as the most recent rent transaction entered into by Otay with other similar

tenants for the same or similar purposes.

8. Environmental. Otay represents that to the best of its knowledge the Premises

have not been used for the generation, storage, treatment or disposal of hazardous materials other

than those materials normally used by Otay for the treatment of water and that there is no

hazardous waste on the Premises. Notwithstanding any other provision of this Lease, Tenant

relies upon the representations stated herein as a material inducement for entering into this

Lease. Tenant shall not bring any hazardous materials onto the Premises except for those

contained in its back-up power facilities (e.g. lead-acid batteries and diesel fuel) and properly

stored, reasonable quantities of common materials used in telecommunications operations (e.g.

cleaning solvents). Tenant shall handle, store and dispose of all hazardous materials it brings

onto the Premises in accordance with all federal, state and local laws and regulations ("Laws").

"Hazardous materials" means any substance, chemical, pollutant or waste that is presently

identified as hazardous, toxic or dangerous under any applicable federal, state or local law or

regulation and specifically includes, but is not limited to asbestos and asbestos containing

materials, polychlorinated biphenyl's (PCBs) and petroleum or other fuels (including crude oil or

any fraction or derivative thereot).

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:081706 Page 5 of 19



9. Installation and Maintenance of Facilities. Tenant is authorized to install,

maintain and operate on the Premises only the Facilities described and depicted on Attachment A

to Exhibit D; provided that all permits and zoning approvals shall have been obtained by Tenant.

a. Installation ofthe Facilities. Tenant's design and installation of all portions

of the Facilities shall be done according to plans approved by Otay, and such approval shall not

be unreasonably withheld. The Tenant shall be responsible for painting its antennae and/or

equipment to match Otay's facility. Otay will provide Tenant with specifications regarding paint

type, color and application method to accomplish this requirement. Painting/coating submittals

shall be provided to Otay by the Tenant prior to receiving permission to begin painting. Otay

may specify a camouflage design if appropriate. These camouflage designs may include but are

not limited to palm trees, pine trees and flag poles.

b. Record Drawings. Within thirty (30) days after completion of the Facilities,

Tenant shall provide Otay with "record" drawings of Facilities showing and identifying all the

equipment and improvements installed on the Premises. Said drawings shall be accompanied by

a complete and detailed inventory of all equipment, personal property and antennae located on

the Premises and any such property of Tenant located in the Easement. No property of Tenant

other than such identified property shall be located on the Premises or the Property at any time.

Upon delivery of Tenant's record drawings, in form and content satisfactory to Otay, such

drawings shall replace and supersede any similar drawings contained in any exhibit attached

hereto.

c. Alterations. Tenant shall not alter or change its Facilities in a material

manner without the prior approval of Otay, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld.

"Material" refers to any physical change that could affect the building or its appearance or any

change that could disrupt Otay's workplace or communications. All of Tenant's construction

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:081706 Page 6 of 19



and installation work shall be performed at Tenant's sole cost and expense in a good and

workmanlike manner. Tenant shall have the right to remove all facilities it installs at its sole

expense on or before the expiration or termination of this Lease.

d. Improvements to Facilities / Additional Space. If, at any time during the

Term, Tenant requests permission from Otay to add improvements requiring construction to its

then existing Facilities, the then current Administrative Fees shall be payable to Otay for

reimbursement for staff time to process the new request, construction inspection and monitoring

during construction. If the requested Tenant improvements include additional lease space, a new

lease agreement for the additional lease space must be executed prior to start of construction and

Tenant shall pay the Administrative Fees then in effect, and shall comply with Otay's

requirements then in effect. The administrative fees for the additional lease space shall be in

addition to, and shall not replace the administrative fees for improvements requiring construction

to the Facilities.

e. Permits and Compliance with Applicable Laws. Prior to commencing any

construction or improvements, and from time to time, as applicable, Tenant agrees to obtain all

necessary approvals for its communications operations and for the Facilities and to operate and

maintain the same, at all times in accordance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations.

1. Prior to commencing construction, Tenant shall deliver to Otay

copies of all executed licenses, approvals and permits required by local, state or

federal agency in connection with the Facilities, which permits shall be attached

hereto as Attachment B to Exhibit D.

11. From time to time, as required by law or regulation in connection

with the normal operation of the Facilities or as needed due to improvements or

alterations to the same, Tenant shall provide Otay with copies of updated permits,

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:081706 Page 7 of 19



licenses and/or approvals. Tenant shall provide written evidence, satisfactory to

Otay of all FCC approvals and other governmental permits and approvals,

including but not limited to compliance with FCC Electromagnetic Radiation

Guidelines.

111. Otay agrees, at no expense to Otay, to cooperate with Tenant in

making application for and obtaining all licenses, permits and any and all

necessary approvals that may be required for Tenant's intended use of the

Premises.

f. Utilities. Tenant shall be authorized to install utilities for the Premises and

the Facilities at Tenant's expense and to improve the present utilities on or near the Premises

(including, but not limited to the installation of an emergency back-up power) subject to Otay's

approval of the location, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. Tenant shall fully

and promptly pay for all utilities furnished to the Premises for the use, operation and

maintenance of Tenant's facilities.

g. Repair ofOtay's Improvements. Any damage done to Otay's improvement

on the property during installation and/or during operations caused by Tenant or in connection

with installation operation shall be repaired or replaced immediately at Tenant's expense and to

Otay's reasonable satisfaction. In connection with the installation and operation of the antennae

facilities, Tenant shall not locate or attach any antennae or other equipment to Otay's facilities

without the prior written approval of Otay. Tenant shall pay all costs and expenses in relation to

maintaining the integrity of Otay's facilities in connection with Tenant's installation and

operation of the antennae facilities.

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:08l706 Page 8 of 19



h. Maintenance and Repair. At all time during the Term, Tenant shall

maintain the Premises and the Facilities in a manner acceptable to Otay. Tenants use of its

facilities shall not interfere with Otay's operation of its improvements.

i. Liens. Tenant shall not encumber or allow the Premises or the Property to

be encumbered in any manner other than as expressly authorized herein.

J. Security. Tenant recognizes and agrees that the Premises and the Reservoir

Site are a sensitive area. Tenant agrees to provide for the proper supervision of all Tenant

personnel assigned to enter and do work at the Premises. Tenant also agrees to, at its own cost

and expense, comply with any and all security measures instituted by Otay from time to time.

10. Maintenance and Repair of Otay's Improvements. At any time during the Term,

or while this Lease remains in effect, Otay may, at its option and upon One Hundred Twenty

(120) days prior written notice to Tenant, remove or cause Tenant to remove all or any portion of

its Facilities at Tenant's expense, in order for Otay to paint, repair, or make replacements to its

improvements on the Premises (the "Maintenance Work"), as deemed necessary by Otay in its

sole discretion. Tenant agrees to fully cooperate with Otay's efforts in connection with any

Maintenance Work, including removing and re-installing any portion of the Facilities identified

by Otay to be removed.

a. Temporary Facilities. During the course of the Maintenance Work, Tenant

may install temporary antennae, at Tenant's expense, on the leased Premises subject to Otay's

approval of the location. Once the Maintenance Work is completed by Otay, Tenant agrees to

promptly dismantle any temporary facilities and to relocate the facilities to their original location

or to any other location approved by Otay, as appropriate. All work related to the removal of any

portion of the Facilities, installation of temporary facilities, dismantling, relocation to their

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:081706 Page 9 of 19



original location and any related work, shall be done at Tenant's sole cost and expense and in

good and workmanlike manner.

b. Repair of damage. Tenant shall repair any damage caused by Tenant in

connection with the installation, maintenance, operation or removal of any temporary facilities or

the Facilities.

c. Otay's option to remove temporary facilities. If any temporary antennae is

not removed within thirty (30) days from the date the Maintenance Work is completed, Otay will

have the right to remove the temporary antennae and charge Tenant for such costs.

d. Painting ofthe Facilities. If the Maintenance Work includes the painting of

Otay's improvements, the Tenant shall be responsible for repainting its antennas and/or

equipment to match Otay's facility. Otay will provide specifications regarding paint type, color

and application method to the Tenant to accomplish this requirement. The Tenant will be

required to provide painting/coating submittals to Otay prior to receiving permission to begin

painting. Subject to Otay's prior written consent, Tenant may substitute an alternate paint type

and application method if it reasonably determines that Otay's selection will adversely affect or

otherwise degrade Tenant's wireless signal from the Reservoir Site.

11. Co-Location. Tenant agrees that Otay may enter into leases with other

communication carriers, wireless communications carriers and other utilities for use of any

portion of the "Reservoir Site" as long as said leases do not result in unreasonable interference

with Tenant's use of or access to the Premises. Tenant will reasonably cooperate with Otay's

efforts in this regard including, at Otay's request, the relocation of, or changes to, the Facilities;

provided that any alterations or relocation needed to accommodate the new lessee shall be

performed at the expense of Otay or the new lessee.

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:08l706 Page 10 of 19



12. Subleasing/Encumbrance. Tenant may not sub-lease or sub-license or otherwise

encumber the Premises or any portion of the Facilities without Otay's prior written consent,

which may be granted or denied at Otay's sole discretion. Any sub-lease or other encumbrance

will require an amendment to this Lease and shall specify the terms and conditions for the sub

lease or other encumbrance.

13. Condition of the Property at Expiration or Termination. Upon the expiration or

termination of this Lease as herein provided, Tenant shall surrender the Premises, and any

Easements granted by Otay in connection with this Lease, to Otay in good and broom-clean

condition, with all portions of the Facilities, including but not limited to equipment, supplies,

buried conduits, and structures removed along with subterranean foundations to a depth of three

feet below grade; or as otherwise agreed to by Otay in writing.

14. Interference. Tenant shall not use, nor shall Tenant permit its agents or invitees to

use any portion of the Premises in a manner which interferes with Otay's use of the Reservoir

Site for it's intended purpose including communications facilities relating to Otay's operation

such as telemetry/radio communications or any other pre-existing communications facilities.

This would not apply to interference with a tenant of Otay whose use did not "pre-exist" this

lease; except as agreed to by Tenant in connection with the co-location of any subsequent

tenant's facilities. If Tenant's operation in any way interferes with Otay's telemetry/radio

facilities, Tenant will have five (5) business days to correct the problem after notice from Otay.

Tenant acknowledges that continuing interference will cause irreparable injury to Otay and,

therefore, Otay will have the right to terminate the Lease immediately upon notice to Tenant.

15. Taxes. During the term of this Lease, Tenant shall pay before delinquency all

taxes, assessments, license fees, and any other charge of any type whatsoever that are levied,

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:081706 Page 11 of 19



assessed, charged, or imposed on or against Tenant's personal property installed or located in or

on the leased premises and that become payable during the term of this Lease.

16. Termination.

(a) This Lease may be terminated by Tenant without further liability if:

(i) Tenant delivers to Otay 3D-day written notice at any time prior to the

Commencement Date, for any reason or no reason;

(ii) Tenant gives Otay six months notice when Tenant determines at any time

after the Commencement Date that any governmental or non-governmental license, permit,

consent, approval, easement or restriction waiver that is necessary to enable Tenant to install or

operate Tenant's facility cannot be obtained or renewed at reasonable expense or in reasonable

time period.

(iii) Tenant determines at any time after the Commencement Date that the

Premises are not appropriate or suitable for its operations for economic, environmental or

technological reasons, including without limitation, any ruling or directive of the FCC or other

governmental or regulatory agency, or problems with signal strength or interference not

encompassed by subsection (iv) below; provided that the right to terminate under this subsection

(iii) is exercisable only if Tenant pays Otay, as a termination fee, the lesser of twelve monthly

installments of annual rent or the balance of the rent due for the remaining term of this Lease;

(iv) Otay commits a default under this Lease and fails to cure such default

within a 3D-day notice period, provided that if the period to diligently cure takes longer than 3D

days and Otay commences to cure the default within the 3D-day notice period, then Otay shall

have such additional time as shall be reasonably necessary to diligently effect a complete cure;

(v) The Premises are totally or partially destroyed by fire or other casualty so

as to hinder Tenant's normal operations and Otay does not provide to Tenant within ten (10)

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:081706 Page 12 of 19



days after the casualty occurs a suitable temporary relocation site for Tenant's facility pending

repair and restoration of the Premises.

(b) This Lease may be terminated by Otay without further liability if:

(i) Tenant commits a default under this Lease and fails to cure such default as

provided under paragraph 17, below.

17. Default.

a. Event ofDefault. The parties covenant and agree that a default or breach of

this Lease (an "Event of Default") shall occur and be deemed to exist if, after notice and

opportunity to cure as provided below:

(i) Tenant shall default in the payment of rent or other payments hereunder and

said default shall continue for ten (10) days after Otay provides written notice ofthe same; or

(ii) Either party shall default in the performance or observance of any other

covenant or condition of this Lease to be performed or observed if such failure persists for a

period of thirty (30) days after the non-defaulting party provides written notice of the default to

the defaulting party.

b. Rights upon Default. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, in

addition to any other rights or remedies available to the non-defaulting party under any law, the

non-defaulting party shall have the right to terminate the Lease.

c. Cure Rights. An Event of Default shall not exist unless written notice has

been given in accordance with this Lease, and the defaulting party has had the opportunity to

cure as provided herein. The defaulting party shall cure the alleged default within the manner

provided herein; provided however, that if the nature of an alleged default is such that it can not

reasonably be cured within such thirty (30) day period, the defaulting party shall not be in breach

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:081706 Page 13 of19



of this Lease if it commences a cure within such period, and thereafter diligently proceeds with

the actions necessary to complete such cure.

18. Destruction of Premises. If the Premises or the Facilities are destroyed or

damaged, Tenant may elect to terminate this Lease as ofthe date of the damage or destruction by

so notifying Otay no more than thirty (30) days following the date of damage or destruction,

provided Otay does not provide to Tenant, within ten (10) days after the casualty occurs, a

suitable temporary relocation site for Tenant's facility pending repair and restoration of the

Premises.

19. Condemnation. If the condemning authority takes all the Property or a portion

which in Tenant's opinion is sufficient to render the Premises unsuitable for Tenant's use, then

this Lease shall terminate as of the date when possession is delivered to the condemning

authority. In the event of any taking under the power of eminent domain, Tenant shall not be

entitled to any portion of the award paid for the taking and Otay shall receive the full amount of

such award except as provided herein. Tenant hereby expressly waives any right or claim to any

portion of a condemnation award, except for relocation benefits and goodwill. All other

damages, whether awarded as compensation for diminution in value of the leasehold or to the fee

ofthe Premises, shall belong to Otay.

20. Insurance. Tenant shall maintain the following insurance:

a. Commercial general liability with limits of $5,000,000 per occurrence which

may be satisfied by a primary policy with a limit of no less than $2,000,000 and

an umbrella policy of excess liability in the amount of no less than $5,000,000;

b. Automobile liability with the combined single limit of $1,000,000 per

accident;

c. Worker's compensation, as required by law;

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:08l706 Page 14 of 19



d. Employer's liability with limits of$l,OOO,OOO per occurrence.

Tenant shall include Otay as an additional insured on each of the aforementioned

insurance policies and the policies shall state that they are primary and that any policies atay

maintains shall be noncontributory. Tenant shall provide Otay with written certificates of

insurance evidencing such coverage.. Said policies shall expressly provide that the policies shall

not be canceled or altered without at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to Otay. Said

policies shall be with insurance companies with an A.M. Best rating of AVII or better.

Otay takes no responsibility for the protection of Tenant's property from acts of

vandalism by third parties. The insurance requirements may be changed by Otay upon giving of

notice to Tenant; provided that the requirements set forth above shall be the minimum insurance

requirements during the Term.

21. Indemnity. Tenant shall hold harmless, indemnify and defend Otay and each of

atay's directors, officers, managers, employees, agents and successors and assigns, from any and

all claims, suits or actions of any kind and description brought forth on account of injuries to or

death to any person or damage to any property, including damage to the Premises arising out of

or related to its use of the Premises, except to the extent that such claims, suits or actions arise

out of the sole negligence or willful misconduct ofOtay.

22. Estoppel Certificate. Tenant shall, at any time and from time to time upon not

less than thirty (30) days prior request by atay, deliver to atay a statement in writing certifying

that (a) the Lease is unmodified and in full force (or if there have been modifications, that the

Lease is in full force as modified and identifying the modifications; (b) the dates to which rent

and other charges have been paid; (c) as far as the person making the certificate knows, Otay is

or is not in default under any provisions of the Lease; and (d) such other matters as Otay may

reasonably request.

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:08l706 Page 15 of 19



23. Assignment. Tenant shall not assign this Lease except to an affiliated parent

entity, subsidiary, purchaser of assets, or holder of its FCC license, without Otay's prior written

consent. If, during the term of this Lease, Tenant requests the written consent of Otay to any

assignment, Otay's consent thereto shall not unreasonably be withheld. Consent to one

assignment shall not be deemed to be a consent to any subsequent assignment, and any

subsequent assignment without Otay's consent shall be void and shall, at Otay's option,

terminate this Lease.

24. Memorandum of Lease. If requested by Tenant, Otay agrees to promptly execute

and deliver to Tenant a recordable Memorandum of Lease substantially in the form of Exhibit E.

25. Resolution of Disputes. All controversies or claims arising out of or relating to

this Lease shall be resolved by submission to final and binding arbitration at the offices of the

American Arbitration Association ("AAA") located in San Diego, California. Such arbitration

shall be conducted in accordance with the most recent version of the AAA commercial

arbitration rules.

26. Choice of Law and Venue. This Lease shall be interpreted in accordance with the

laws of the State of California, and any disputes shall be heard in a court of competent

jurisdiction in the State of California.

27. Attorney's Fees. In the event that either party commences any legal action or

proceeding, including an action for declaratory relief, against the other by reason of the alleged

failure of the other to perform or keep any term, covenant, or condition of this Lease, the party

prevailing in said action or proceeding shall be entitled to recover, in addition to court costs,

reasonable attorneys' fees to be fixed by the court, and such recovery shall include court costs

and attorneys' fees on appeal.

I
1
i
I

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:081706 Page 16 of 19



28. Entire Agreement. This Lease contains all agreements, promIses and

understandings between Otay and Tenant and no verbal or oral agreements, promises or

understandings shall or will be binding upon either Otay or Tenant and any addition, variation or

modification to this Lease shall be in effect unless made in writing and signed by the parties

hereto.

29. Incorporation of Exhibits and Recitals. All exhibits and attachments attached to

this Lease and all Recitals above are incorporated and made a part hereof as if fully set forth

herein.

30. Severability. If any term or condition of this Agreement is found unenforceable,

the remaining terms and conditions will remain binding upon the parties as though said

unenforceable prOVlSlon were not contained herein. However, if the invalid, illegal or

unenforceable provIsIon materially affects this Agreement then the Agreement may be

terminated by either party on ten (10) days prior written notice to the other party hereto.

31. Waiver. Waiver of any provision or term of this Agreement, or of any breach or

default hereunder, shall not constitute a waiver of any other term, condition, breach or default, or

of a subsequent applicability of a term or condition, or a waiver of a subsequent breach or

default, nor shall it constitute an amendment to the term, condition or provision that is waived.

32. Notice. All notices, requests, demands and communications hereunder will be

given by first class certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, or by a nationally

recognized overnight courier, postage prepaid, to be effective when properly sent and received,

refused or returned undelivered. Notices may be given by facsimile if proof of transmission is

retained. Notices shall be sent to the addresses set forth below:

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:081706 Page 17 of 19



OTAY:

TENANT:

With a copy to:

Otay Water District
Attn: General Manager
2554 Sweetwater Springs Boulevard
Spring Valley, CA 91978-2096
Phone: (619) 670-2210
Fax: (619) 660-0829

Cricket Communications, Inc.
Attn: Property Manager
10307 Pacific Center Court
San Diego, CA 92121
Phone: (858) 882-6306
Fax: (858) 622-0107

Cricket Communications, Inc.
Attn: Legal Department
10307 Pacific Center Court
San Diego, CA 92121
Phone: (858) 882-6288
Fax: (858) 882-6080

33. Corporate Authority. The persons executing this Agreement on behalf of the

parties hereto warrant that (i) such party is duly organized and existing, (ii) they are duly

authorized to execute and deliver this Agreement on behalf of said party, (iii) by so executing

this Agreement, such party is formally bound to the provisions of this Agreement, and (iv) the

entering into this Agreement does not violate any provision of any other Agreement to which

said party is bound.

[THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK. THE SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS.]

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities D:08l706 Page 18 of 19



Its:

'. ~rll'

IN \VITNESS WHEft.EOF, the parties have executed this Lease as of the~ day of

~::::"l!J.t:::i!.-4--_' 2006. This date is reforred to as the Commencement Date in the Lease.

CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS, INC.,
A Delaware corporation

By:

NanIa: Anthony G. •.• enyohl

Its: Regjonal Network Director, Western Rouion

OTAY WATER DISTRICT
2554 Sweetwater Springs Blvd.
Spring Valley, CA 91979

By:

Name: --"M.:;;<·••·z:ar:.:;k"'-·.:..;W~a""'tt"""oe:.:;n:-....,------ .................;,

General Manager

Approved as to Form:

tte.lrOlJ'OI Banuelos
Assistant General Counsel

Lease fbI' TelectJilummicalion Faa! lilies D;08 J706 Page JI) of J9



ADDED TO
CRICKET

DELAWARE
TO LOCATE

OTAY'S 458-1&2
___ (THE

A

EXHIBIT A
SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS
AGREEMENT BETWEEN
COMMUNICATIONS, INC.,
CORPORATION AND OTAY
COMMUNICATION FACILITIES AT
RESERVOIR SITE, DATED _
"LEASE")

If any terms or conditions set forth herein contradict terms or conditions of the
Lease to which this Exhibit is attached, as described above, the terms and
conditions of this Exhibit shall control.

SPECIAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Landscaping and Maintenance. The installation, permitting, maintenance and upkeep,
and all expenses or other obligations related thereto, in connection with any and all landscaping
and irrigation systems mandated by the permitting agencies will be the sole responsibility of the
Tenant. Otay Water District makes no commitment for delivery of water for said landscaping,
except if Tenant obtains a water meter for the site and pays for water use.

2. Rent. At Tenant's election, subject to prior written notice as set forth in the Lease,
Tenant may pay rent annually, in advance during each of the five-years of the Initial Term or
during each of the five years in any Extension Term. Once the Initial Term or Extension Term,
as applicable, has commenced, Tenant may not alter its election to pay monthly or annually.

3. Tenant's Financing. Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contained in this Lease,
Tenant may assign, mortgage, pledge, hypothecate or otherwise transfer without prior notice or
consent its interest in this Lease to any financing entity, or agent on behalf of any financing
entity to whom Tenant (i) has obligations for borrowed money or in respect of guaranties thereof,
(ii) has obligations evidenced by bonds, debentures, notes or similar instruments, or (iii) has
obligations under or with respect to letters of credit, bankers acceptances and similar facilities or
in respect of guaranties thereof; provided that no such assignment shall become binding on Otay
until written notification is given by Tenant to Otay as provided in the Lease. A "financing
entity" as used herein, does not include any entity which primary business is not that of banking,
finance, lending or investing funds and does not include any entity whose primary business is
telecommunications.

a. Waiver of Otay's Lien. With respect to any such financing entity, Otay waives
any lien rights it may have concerning the Facilities, which is deemed Tenant's
personal property and not fixtures attached to the Property and Tenant or, if
appropriate, the financing entity has the right to remove the same at any time
without Otay's consent. The financing entity shall not have the right to operate
the Facilities without Otay's prior written consent, which may be denied if the
financing entity does not meet the definition of financing entity above.

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities Exhibit A - page I



b. Collateral. Tenant may enter into a financing arrangement including promissory
notes and financial and security agreements for the financing of the Facilities
("Collateral") with a third party financing entity (and may in the future enter into
additional financing arrangements with other financing entities). In connection
therewith, Otay (i) consents to the installation of the Collateral; (ii) disclaims any
interest in the Collateral, as fixtures or otherwise; and (iii) agrees that the
Collateral shall be exempt from execution, foreclosure, sale, levy, attachment, or
distress for any Rent due or to become due and that such Collateral may be
removedat any time without recourse to legal proceedings.

c. Disposition of Collateral. Notwithstanding paragraphs a. and b., above, if
Tenant fails to remove the Collateral, or any component thereof, within five (5)
days of the termination of this Lease, said failure shall constitute an abandonment.
Ifthereafter, Tenant or any holder of Collateral, lender or assignee, whether or not
notification was provided to Otay, fails to claim and remove the same, within
thirty (30) calendar days of the date of termination of this Lease, Otay is hereby
specifically authorized to remove and dispose of the Collateral, or any component
thereof, so abandoned at Tenant's sole cost and expense and without incurring
any liability to Tenant, or any lender with any interest in all or any part of the
Collateral, or any assignee of this Lease.

d. No privity or obligation. Otay does not have privity with any financing entity
and specifically disclaims any obligation to any such entity, including any
obligation to provide copies of any notices of default or right to cure under the
Lease.

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities Exhibit A - page 2



EXHIBITB

CRICKET
DELAWARE

TO LOCATE
OTAY'S 458-1&2

___ (THE

TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN
COMMUNICATIONS, INC. A
CORPORATION AND OTAY
COMMUNICATION FACILITIES AT
RESERVOIR SITE, DATED _
"LEASE")

List of Attachments to Exhibit B:

ATTACHMENT A. DEPICTION OF RESERVOIR FACILITIES

ATTACMENT B. LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PROPERTY

ATTACHMENT C. LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF THE PREMISES

ATTACHMENT D. DEPICTION OF THE PROPERTY AND PREMISES

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities Exhibit B - page 1



PROJECT
SITE

."
I...

~'" I,... I!.., " I'II ,I... 1"
i
I~
I
I

'<: I
I

OTAY WATER DISTRICT
CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS AT

OTAY WATER DISTRICT'S 458-1 & 458-2 RESERVOIR SITE
LOCATION MAPO':"- ~ ----------------J

t
o

IMPERIAL
BEACH

If)

C
o
:;;
o
.2
c
::J

E
Eo
u

<0
oo
N

t
V)
Cl...

::::;E
Cl...

ATTACHMENT A



EXHIBITB
ATTACHMENT B

SITE LEGAL DESCRIPTION
OTAY WATER DISTRICT #458-1 &2

CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS SAN-757
651 POINT BARROW DRNE

CHULA VISTA, CA 91911

THE LAND REFERRED TO HEREIN IS SITUATED IN THE STATE OF
CALIFORNIA, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

THAT PORTION OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF THE FRACTIONAL
SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 1, WEST, SAN BERNARDINO
MERIDIAN, IN THE CITY OF CHULA VISTA, COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, STATE
OF CALIFORINA, ACCORDING TO U.S. GOVERNMENT SURVEY DESCRIBED
AS FOLLOWS:

THE NORTHERLY 180.00 FEET OF THE EASTERLY 965.00 FEET, EXCEPTING
THE EASTERLY 725.00 FEET THEREOF.

EXCEPTING THEREFROM ALL GAS, OIL AND MINERAL RIGHTS, WITHOUT
THE RIGHT OF SURFACE ENTRY, AS RESERVED IN THAT CERTAIN GRANT
DEED RECORDED SEPTEMBER 15, 1964 AS FILE/PAGE NO. 168308 OF
OFFICIAL RECORDS.

Charles W. Christensen, RCE 8195

IN 2006-73

08/18/06
Date



EXHIBITB
ATTACHMENT C

PROPOSED EQUIPMENT/ANTENNA EASEMENT
OTAY WATER DISTRICT #458-1&2

CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS SAN-757
651 POINT BARROW DRIVE

CHULA VISTA, CA 91911

A PROPOSED EQUIPMENT AND ANTENNA EASEMENT LYING WITHIN A
PORTION OF THE NORTHERLY 180.00 FEET, OF THE EASTERLY 965.00 FEET,
EXCEPTING THE EASTERLY 725.00 FEET THEREOF, IN THE SOUTHWEST
QUARTER OF FRACTIONAL SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 1,
WEST, SAN BERNARDINO MERIDIAN, IN THE CITY OF CHULA VISTA,
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, STATE OF CALIFORINA, ACCORDING TO U.S.
GOVERNMENT SURVEY. THE PROPOSED EASEMENT BEING MORE
PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHEASTERLY CORNER OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED
PARCEL; THENCE LEAVING SAID SOUTHEASTERLY CORNER, NORTH
46°48'31" WEST, 226.12 FEET TO THE TRUE POINT OF BEGINNING; THENCE
NORTH 87°55'52" WEST, 12.67 FEET; THENCE NORTH 2°04'08" EAST, 14.00
FEET; THENCE SOUTH 87°55'52" EAST, 12.67 FEET; THENCE SOUTH 2°04'08"
WEST; 14.00 FEET TO THE TRlJE POINT OF BEGINNING.

SAID PROPOSED EASEMENT CONTAINS APPROXIMATELY 177 SQUARE
FEET, MORE OR LESS.

Charles W. Christensen, RCE 8195

IN 2006-73

08/18/06
Date



EXHIBIT B
ATTAO+ENT D

PROPOSED EQUIAvENT I ANTB\NA EASEtvENT
OTAY WATER DISTRICT #458-182

rnIO<ET CCMvLNICATI()\J8 SITE SAN-757
SCALE 1·=40'

FRAC.
T J88, R

,
I
I

I

N 88°52'22" W 239 99'e--------______ .
I ---------- ,

I
I ~ EQlJIAvENTI

.. - ANTB\NA .EASEJv9IT
~I " I

I 4t-: ~, I

I Tr~~, ,
I " ',,S' , , r PFKPCS:D UTILITYI

, ' '~' OOAX EASBvENT I
1R.E POINT ' "
CF EEGINNIN3 " ",::, , ,I, ..................................., ' ,,,

, ,,1"8
" 1- ":::--'........ I.

POR 8W J J4''''~~. "<\'~
,,<~. I I ILl

SEC J8 ,,(~ ~ : I~

JW 8.S.M. ",~~. : I~
, I 1..-1

, I 10

" I

" :I
" I

, I

" I
, 1

',I
'I. I
I, I

I I 1 ,

~--------~!E_~~:~ l!l.."
N 88°52'22" W 240.05' - - - -

POINT CF
EEGINNIN3

UNJT NO. 4
MAP NO. 8832

a-iAA...ES W. a-RISTENSEN. R. C. E. 8195 DateICEI CHRISTENSEN ENGINEERING &SURVEYING
CIVIL ENGINEERS LAND SURVEYORS PLANNERS&5 7888 SILVERTON AVENUE. SUITE' J" • SAN DIEGO. CALIFORNIA 92126
TELEPHONE' (858)271-9901 FAX' (858)271-8912

DATA TABLE
TN). DIFECTICN

1 N 87°55'52" W
2 N 02°04'08" E
3 S 87°55'52" E
4 S 02°04'08" W

DISTAN:E
12.67'
14.00'
12.67'
14.00'

08-18-06



EXHIBITC

CRICKET
DELAWARE

TO LOCATE
OTAY'S 458-1&2

___ (THE

TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN
COMMUNICATIONS, INC., A
CORPORATION AND OTAY
COMMUNICATION FACILITIES AT
RESERVOIR SITE, DATED _
"LEASE") .

DEPICTION AND LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF
TEMPORARY TRENCH EASEMENT

Easement Requested?

Easement Granted?

DYes

DYes

D No

D No

If Easement granted, complete the following information:

For good and valuable consideration, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, the Otay

Water District, as Grantor, hereby grants to Cricket Communications, Inc., a Delaware

corporation, as Tenant, a temporary Easement to excavate, remove dirt and do any act necessary

to install, operate and maintain power lines and connection lines as required in connection with

the communications facilities and the antenna to be located on the Premises. The legal

description of the land subject to the Easement is as follows:

A drawing depicting the Easement is attached hereto. Tenant may not sell, transfer or

assign the Easement herein granted to Tenant. Tenant's rights under the Easement are

specifically limited to the installation of such power lines, transmission lines and other

communications lines and accessories as required to efficiently operate Tenant's communication

facilities on the Premises.

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities Exhibit C - page 1



The Easement shall automatically terminate on the day that is thirty (30) years from the

date of the Lease. However, if the Lease is terminated earlier for any reason, the Easement will

become unenforceable and, for all purposes, terminate on the date the Lease is terminated.

Grantor reserves the right to use the lands that are subject to the Easement in a manner

such that it will not interfere with Tenant's use thereof.

Grantor retains the right to remove, at Tenant's expense, from the surface of the

Easement any item, structure improvement or portion thereof that interferes or conflicts with

Otay's use ofthe Property.

Tenant agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the Grantor for any damage to

property or person (including death) and any, claim, suit, action, cost or expense arising in

connection with the Easement or Tenant's use or installation of any item, line, facility or other

thing in connection therewith.

Tenant agrees to maintain the portion of the Property subject to the Easement in

substantially the condition it is on the date the Lease is executed, excepting only such changes as

are accepted by Otay in writing.

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities Exhibit C - page 2



EXHIBIT C

PROPOSED UTILITY/COAX EASEMENT
OTAY WATER DISTRICT #458-1&2

CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS SAN-757
651 POINT BARROW DRNE

CHULA VISTA, CA 91911

A PROPOSED 5.00 FOOT UTILITY/COAX EASEMENT LYING WITHIN A
PORTION OF THE NORTHERLY 180.00 FEET, OF THE EASTERLY 965.00 FEET,
EXCEPTING THE EASTERLY 725.00 FEET THEREOF, IN THE SOUTHWEST
QUARTER OF FRACTIONAL SECTION 18 TOWNSHIP 18 SOUTH, RANGE 1,
WEST, SAN BERNARDINO MERIDIAN, IN THE CITY OF CHULA VISTA,
COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO, STATE OF CALIFORINA, ACCORDING TO U.S.
GOVERNMENT SURVEY. THE CENTERLINE OF SAID PROPOSED 5.00 FOOT
EASEMENT BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:

BEGINNING AT THE SOUTHEASTERLY CORNER OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED
PARCEL; THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE SOUTHERLY LINE OF SAID
PARCEL, NORTH 88°52'22" WEST, 20.00 FEET TO THE TRUE POINT OF
BEGINNING; THENCE LEAVING SAID SOUTHERLY LINE NORTH 1°07'38"
EAST, 93.45 FEET TO THE BEGINNING OF A TANGENT 15.25 FOOT RADIUS
CURVE CONCAVE SOUTHWESTERLY; THENCE NORTHWESTERLY ALONG
SAID ClJRVE THROUGH A CENTRAL ANGLE OF 69°58'21", 18.62 FEET;
THENCE TANGENT TO SAw CURVE NORTH 68°50'43 11 WEST, 146.60 FEET.

THE SIDELINES OF SAID EASEMENT TO BE EXTENDED OR SHORTENED SO
AS TO TERMINATE AT THE BEGINNING OF SAID EASEMENT ON THE
SOUTHERLY LINE OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED PARCEL AND AT THE END OF
SAID EASEMENT ON A LINE WHICH BEARS NORTH 2°04'08" EAST.

SAID EASEMENT CONTAINS APPROXIMATELY 1,293 SQUARE FEET, MORE
OR LESS.

Charles W. Christensen, RCE 8195

IN 2006-73

08/18/06
Date



EXHIBIT C
PRCPOSED UTILITY / aJAX EASBvENT

OTAY WATER DISTRICT #458-182
ffiIO<ET CQMvt..NICATIONS SITE SAN-757

SCALE 1·=40 '

POINT (F
EEGII'NII'IG

•••B
I~
.w

TR.E POINTY
(F EEGII\NII'IGROBJNHOOD POJNT

UNJT NO. 4
MAP NO. 8832

N 88°52'22" W 239 99'-.- - - - - - - -- - - - - - - - -:-.-· EQJI~~-----------'

I --... ANT"EJIN6. EASEtvENT I
I •

• I j I ·
• ,- - J ... II\E PF10P0SEDI1A S'" ... ... 5' UTILITY IaJAX

io .r. tv............... EASEJvENT •
li? to ~°So ......... •

C'\foi '~' , ..........Ir ... ...J.'46 .....
.~' .....~I

~I,.,.

"o
WI POR SW J J4

R=15.25'

:". PRAC. SEC J8 ~;:a~~"
8· :° I T J8S_ R JW S.B.M. .
B :~
Z. :s· ,z
I

I' W
I "
I tij •

• I • •

• I ~ II °
I I B

I I Z

• I II I__ - -!I~~~~~2.- I

N 88°52'22" W 240.05'

08-18-06
r===> Q-lARL£S W. a-RISTB\JSB\I, R.C.E. 8195 Date

ICEI ~~L~2SEN ENGI~EE~v!v~: & SURVEY~
&5 7888 SILVERTON AVENUE. SUITE' J' . SAN DIEGO. CALIFORNIA 92126

TELEPHONE' (858)271-9901 FAX' (858)271-8912



EXHIBITD

TO AGREEMENT BETWEEN CRICKET
COMMUNICATIONS, INC., A DELAWARE
CORPORATION AND OTAY TO LOCATE
COMMUNICATION FACILITIES AT OTAY'S 458-1&2
RESERVOIR SITE, DATED : (THE
"LEASE")

List of Attachments to Exhibit D:

Attachment A. Depiction ofthe Telecommunication Facilities

Attachment B. Permits

Lease for Telecommunication Facilities Exhibit D - page I



"0"••...•

PREPARED FOR

===::====

ATTACHMENT A

EXHIBIT 0•

6160 CORNERSTONE COURT, SUITE 150
SAN DIEGO. CA 92121

===::===

DATE

DATE

DATE

DATE

CONSTRUCTION

ZONING

R.f.

APPROVALS

. SITE ACQUISITION

OTAY WATER DISTRICT 458 1 &2 RESERVOIR SITE

651 POINT BARROW DRIVE
CHULA VISTA, CA $1911

SAN-757

===::===VICINITY MAP CONSULTANT TEAM PROJECT SUMMARY SHEET SCHEDULE
OWNER APPROVAL DATE

NOTE: -ntrLee..
THERE ARE CURRENTLY_ EXISTING ltLECOlIlIUNICATIONS
FAClUTIES ON 11IE SIT£, (SPRINT, ...... T-MOBILE I:.~

LEGAL DESCRIPTION:

A PORTIQH OF THE £AST HAlF OF THE SOUTHWEST QUARTER OF
SECTION 18, TOWNSHIP. 18 SOUTH, RANGE 1 WEST. SAN
IIERHARDlNO MERIDIAN, IN THE CITY OF CHULA VISTA, COUNTY OF
SAN DIEGO, STATE OF CAUFORNIA, ACCORDING TO THE omClAl
PLAT THEREOF.

PRELIM 20 REVIEW (AD)
FINAL 20 PREVIEW (AD)
SUBMITTAL SET (M)
OWNER COM~EN1S (rew)
ANTENNA REVISION (...w)
ANTENNA il~VISION 2 (jab)

'2/"/05
01/05/06
01/27/0.
03/08/06
03/10/06
03/21/06

T-1

OTAY WATER
DISTRICT @ 651

SAN-757
651 POINT BARROW DRIVE
CHULA VISTA, CA 91911

SAN DIEGO COUNTY

PROJECT NAME

PROJECTS\ cricket\ SAN75Tz.d\ SAN757zT 1.owe

PROJECT NUMBER

SHEET TITLE

ORAWING DATES

TITLE SHEET
&

PROJECT DATA

===::===

===::===

===::===

===::===

TITLE SHEET I: PROJECT DATA

SITE PlAN I: GENERAl SPECIFICATIONS
SITE unuv.TlOH PlAN

EQUIPMENT PlAN I: ElEVATlOH
EXTERIOR ElEVATIONS

EXTERIOR ElEVATIONS

APPLICABLE CODES
AlL WORK SHAll COllPLY WITH THE FOUDWING APPUCABLE CODES:

CAUFQRNIA STATE BUILDING CODE, 2001 i:omoN, TITLE 24
UNIFORM BUILDING CODE, 2001 EDmON
UNIFORlI PWlIBING CODE, 2001 EDmON
UNIFORM MECHANiCAl CODE, 2001 EDITION
NATIONAl ELECTRiCAl C·OD£, 2001 EDITION

IN THE EVENT or CONFI,ICT, THE MOST RESTRICTIVE CODE
SHALL PREVAIL .

T-l
A-O
A-O.l
A-I
A-2
A-3

651 POINT BARROW DRIVE
CHULA VISTA, CA 91911

_221-"60 I: 68

R-l, PUNNED COllllUNITY

0.99 ACRES
= ~,l:U SF

70 SQ. fT.

TtPE V, NON-RATED
(UNSPRINKLERED)

NONE (OUTDOOR RADIO
EQUIPlIENT CABINETS ONLy)

APPUCANT:

OWNER:

ASSESSORS PARCEL NUMBER:

EXISTING ZONING,

TOTAL SITE AREA:

PROJECT ADDRESS:

PROPOSED ·PROJECT AREA:

TYPE or CONSTRUCTION:

PROPOSED OCCUPANCY:

CRlCK£T COIoIlIUNICATIOHS
6160 CORHERSTOHE COURT, S'l£. 150
SAil DIEGO, CA 92121
CONTACT: DAVID PUTHAlI
(925) 324-5360

OTAY WATER DlS1RICT
255.4 SWE£lWATER SPRINGS BOUlEVARD
SPRlHG VALlEY. CA 91978
CONTACT: DAN KJON£GAARD
(619) 670-2269

PROJECT bESCRIPTION:
• INSTAlLA110N or QH£ TnECOllllUNlCAllONS CABINET ON

:'=~~~~~~JRADE L£VEL

• INSTAlLATION OLTHRtE ANTENNA SECTORS OF ONE ANTENNA
~~JT~~~4NAS) MOUNTED ON A 8' DIAMETER x

• INSTAlLA110N OF' ANEW 200 AIM' ELECTIIICAl SERVICE FROM
A NEW !J.ECTRICAl YRANSFORllER TO REPLACE .AN EXIS11NG
11Io\HSF!lRlIER

• ·INSTAlLATlOH or A NEW TElCO SERVICE CONNECTION FROM
EXlST1llG T£I.CO PEDESTAl

• NO LANDSCAPE OR IlIR1GATION IS PWUtto FOR THIS PROJECT

ARCHITECT:

WlWAIoI BOOTH I: ROBERT SUAREZ
ARCIflTECTURE I: PlANNING
P.O. BOX ~651

CARlSBAD, CA 92018
(760) ~4-1U7~

(760) 434-8596 (FAX)

STRUCTURAL CONSULTANT:

ALEX BROWN £NG4N££RING
935 OI.DNAII COURT
ENCINITAS, CA 9202~

(760) 943-7866
(760) 9~-7B66 (FAX)

ELECTRICAL CONSULTANT:

WAlTER D. CAIolP, ELECTRICAl ENGINEER, P£
1880 SHEEP RANCH LOOP
ClfULA VISTA, CA 91913
(619) 934-1815 .. 0<, ,.

SITE ACQUISITION:

MERIDIAN TELECOM. INC.
.160 CORNERSTONE COURT, SUITE 150
SAN DIEGO, CA 92121
CONTACT: FRANKUN OROZCO
(619) 632-2569
(858) 777-3518 (FAX)

THOMAS GUIDE PAGE: 1330-J4

ADDRESS:
651 POINT BARROW DIiM:
CHULA VISTA. CA 81911

COORDINATES (NAD 83):
LATITUDE: 32" 36' 20.603' NORTH
LONGITUOEt 117" 01' 33.179' WtST

ACCESSIBILITY DISCLAIMER
THIS PROJECT IS AN UNOCCUPIED WIRELESS PCS
TELECOlU,IUNICATIONS FAClUTY AND, ACCORDING TO WRITTEN
INTERPRETATION FROM THE CAUFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF THE STATE
ARCHITECT, IS EXEMPT FROM DISABLED ACCESS REQUIREMENTS,



..
,', GENERAL SPECIFICATIONS

I. THEI.A1CSTEDIT1ONOf'THENolE:RIC.AH1NSTTTUTEOf~
OOCUYEHT A201 ·GENERAL COf.lOI1lOHS Of" n1£ CONf'R.Ia FOR
CONSTRUC1lOH" ME IHClUDED IN niES£ SPEl:lFlCAllONS ~ IF"
~y R£PRODU:CD H£REIH.

2. llil$ F'JrCU.nY IS N4 UHOceuP!ED PCS TEl..ttOI.IWHlC'ATlONS SfI'E
AND 15 EXEWf'T FROW Dl!WIl£D JCCE5S REOOIRflID(TS.

3. PRIOAttllHESU9WISS1OH COfml.ICI'ORS

DATE

DAlE

DATE

DATE

DATE

PRELIM ZO REviEW (AO)
FINAL ZO PREVIEW (M)
SUBMITTAL SET (AA)
OWNER COMMENTS (rew)
ANTENNA REVISION (rew)
ANTENNA REViSiON 2 (jab)

12/14/05
0'/05/06
01/27/06
03/0B/06
03/10/06
03/21/06

A-O

PROJECTS\crickei\$AN757zd\ SAN 7ShAD. DWe

OTAY WATER
DISTRICT @ 651

SITE PLAN

SITE ACQUISITION

PREPARED FOR

SHEET TITLE

6160 CORNERSTONE COURT. SUITE 150
SAN DIEGO, CA 92121

APPROVALS

R.f.

SAN-757

DRAWING DATES

ZONING

651 POINT BARROW DRIVE
CHULA VISTA, CA 91911

SAN DIEGO COUNTY

PROJECT NAME

PROJECT NU MBER

OWNER APPROVAL

CONSTRUCTION

======= II ========

========

=======:: =======

=======:: ========

======= It =======

==== .. ====

======= I: =======

4. DRAWINGS SKolU HOT BE SCAUD. nt£SE' DfWII'IIte:S 1tM. tfTD«lfD
TO BE Dl1ICIWIUAlJC <N.Y, ItJIm 0I0IENSI0NS Kt.VE Pfl£CEDENCE
OVER DfWIjIHG SCAl£ NIl D£T1ot. DfIAlImQS' HA,'f'E P'R£CEDEHCE
tMJIS/.WJ..SCAL.E:DRMtINl:S. ~SIW.l.01EC:1<
ACOJRJCt OF AU. oo.tENSIOHS IN THE F1E1.D. IN.ESS
SPECIFlC:ALl.Y NCITED, 00 NOT FABRII.:1iTE Nf'( W!tERW.S. OR IlEGIH
Nff CONSTRUC11OH LMI. 1l£ K::CURJC( OF DAAWNi~
I-W; ElEEN \£RFlm ACAIHST ACTlW. FElD 0lWENSI0HS.

So ntE CONT1W:lOR SfWl. IICWDE IN. HIS OR HER BID AU.
"'l'tfIlALS,.EQUI>iIEHl',N"f'l.lRTEMlHCaAHOI.AEIOfl'NECESSIrR'l'TO
COUPlETE M WORK AS II:IICA1'm OR IIFU£D BY THES£............

.. CO!I1llACIOIl
""""'UCI1OJIARCHITtCT IF N«.............

2.3. ..., WAm:_IS
OR I'AllI'fJl1Y OWNER
JOll ..........

ClEAII-UP UPON
MfJS Nf£ lO BE t.EFr .. A BROOW

OF F/ICH ~y AND V10ClJUW ct.VH
SPOTS. DUST OR SUUEIlOES OF'Nl'r

"""'"24. mE GEHEIW. OCIHTRACTOR YJST PERf'OR:I,l WORK DlJRINQ
PftOPERlY OWNEJrS PREFERRm HOURS TO AYOIO DISRUPTION OF
........ ""MIY.

2$. AU. EXPOSED NttAL stW.L B£ HOT-DIPf'ED GALVNIZED.

2&. S£AL AlL PEHEmAnoHs niROUGH FIl:E-RATED ASSEJaJES 'MTH
VoL usrm OR FIRE IWtSIW.. N'PROYm ""TERIAL.S Of THE
~TE RAllHQ FOR Tl£ ASSOELY~ PENETRATIONS

10. THE CONTRACTOR stWJ. O8TAIN NCI PAY FOR PERWlTS, I.ICa/:S6
NlJINSPEt:T1CINSNEJ::ES!Wn"FORPERF1lftSoWtCE~1HE'MJRI(
NIJ IfCLlJDE 1MJSE .. 11£ casr OF 1HE WORK TO CHCI<ET'-11. THE-

1.

•.

PROPRIETARY INFORMAllON

11, 1HE CClNTIWm:II: SIW.L BE RESPONSB.E FDft 1tJE c:cuuTE
SECUlI1Y OF' lHI I'ROJECr mE YfIoU THE JOB 1$ IN PROGRESS
AHD lM1'I. 1HE .lOll IS aJWPl£tED III) ACCEPTED BY' CIlICICEI'-20. THE: CDIIIW:rOR SfW.L PRlMDE 1EIFORM't WA.lER, POWBt N«J
10LET FN:I.nD IS REQURED EJ'I' 11£ PROPERTY OWNER, aICICEr
0CMIUtICtI110HS AID 'DIE art OR GlMRHWG: AGENC'r'.

21. NI)
IE

tz. WI:IRICWHStW' llRXlGHOUt' SKlU BE OF THE BEST QlWIf'( OF"
1)£ lRM:lE IIrNOUtD. AND stW.L lET OR EXCEED 1tE FOI..1.O'lWfQ
WIUJW REftREHCE srAtIWIDS FOR QlWJIY AHD PRCIFESSIOtW..
CONSlftUCI1ON~

PK'A IW1OtW. R:JQFI«; CClfrfIRACtORS IiSSOCWION
................... CEN1ER
10Z55 w. tIGl;fG RtWJ. SUTE SUO
ROSEMClHT. L eoDl8

~ stEEl'MEW.NlDAIl:CONDIT1CltfiJCXlN'IRotoCTORS

IlA__

42Ql I.NA'tEn'E CEHTER DflNE
a-wn'I.U". VA 201SI-l2Oi

U IfTERtW1OIW. tmtME FOR: l.AlH NfD PL.ASmI

020__

ST. PNA., WI !l5114-to4Oe

13. 1NStAU.,ttL~ HI) IMTERW.S PER 11£ lATEST EDmON
Of'THEIMI«IFHmIRER'S~~noNSlJNlfSS
SPECFICAlLY NaTm 'TO TH£ CONTRAR'f. OR wtERE l.QC,t,l COOES
OR RmWJ10HS TAKE PREX:rDEHCE.

14. 1IfE OONIRACTDR 9W.1. 't'EJIFY, COORDfi\TE. NIl! PftOYI)£ AlL
NECESSM'r' BlDCI(H;"~ AWIHa, tMGERS Oft on£R
SI.FPORJS FOR AU. fInIS AEQt.IIlMG THE SQIE,

15. SKILL GM: ALL.

"""'-"""'"IS srATE
..., lIMSION llI'

..

11.

,..

,..

n£ INF'ORlUlTION CONTAINED IN nilS SET OF DESIGN DOCUYENTS IS
PROPRIETARY BY NA.lURE. NN US£ OR DISClOSURE OTHER 1HoIrH ll-L'T
WHICH RElATES 10 CRICKEr COY/r,(UNlCAnoNS IS STRICTlY PROHIBrTID.

EXISTING CONCRETE
HEADWA/lL TO REWJN

EXISTING NEXTEL
EQUIPMENT ENCLOSURE

EXISTING T-MOBILE
EQUIPMENT ENCLOSURE

PROPOSED UTIUTY PULL
BOX (TYPICAL OF 3)

EXISTING 20'-0' WIDE
ACCESS EASEMENT,,

I,,
I

2.3'..1.J-

;0 {---_

~ ! --~ ADJACENT PROPERTY

o , UNE (TYPICAL)., I

l ,---- EXISTING UNDERGROUNO OVERFLOW DRAIN PIPES.
FIELD VERIFY LOCATIONS

Y,\'h::--- TOP OF SLOPED
EMBANKMENT

EXISTING LANDSCAPE
TREES TO REMAIN

r---r~-j---- EXISTING T-MOBILE ANTENNAS
MOUf>/TED TO WATER TANK

r
l:i:~~ISTINGROLUNG CAnE

~: EXISTING STRUcnJRE

33'-1 ,,

,I REPLACE EXISTING SQG&:E nRANSFORMER
, (POWER SRVICE CONNECTION)

;;
l/I

EXISTING STRUcnJRE

If
SECTOR A

AZIMlffii 70-

-- - - --,----- -----,
L ADJACENT PROPERTY :

UNE (TYPICAL) I
,,
I

239,99'

PROPOSED CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT CABINET
ON RAISED Sffi:L PLATFORM INSIDE A PROPOSED
CONCRETE BLOCK ENCLOSURE ON GRADE (SHOWN
SHADED), SEE SHEET A-1 FOR EOUIPMENT PLAN

~ EXISTING STRUcnJRE

---------_____ J----,-----::

!
I
,i
'j

"'i
~.

;;
z

r--------~
,
I
I
I

lS'-O·
REAR YARD

. ~Dir----<';>r'S".ET8A=",C."Ktr="""'~=====~P==;f,==~N~B~8'~S~2'~2;;:2;"''';W!:b
0)'<

~ "'~.... ~(I)'+----li---

• fih"iT-----r.---'--
9~~

2~i1t;H<-----<r,,·-;;;.·"'-;;;.·"'-"'·"'-"'·.;;-"".::-'"'·.::-..''f'''·.::-N:';·--;88";;·-~52;;:·;.;;·Z2~·;:;-;;W::=-"'·"'-"".;;-"'·"'-;;,:·.;;-'"".::-'"'·.::-'"".::- ...'--';-'-=·-":2t'.;o~.';;'0-;;S.;.;;'-=:·F==='"---------..,."----<l!-II--~_Q-
REPLACE EXISTING 2-GANG METER 1
PEDESTAL WITH NEW METERGROUP 1

I
I

" 1
:jl
:!II
~I

I
I
I
I
1

.1
'/

EXISTING SPRINT ----*---1-------_ _.
AlNTENNAS MOUNTED
TO WATER TANK

EXISTING B'-0' HIGH
CHAINUNK F£NCE

EXISTING COAXJ.4.l. CA8LE ----t!---f----II------
TR/IY ROUnE ON TOP OF
WAnEil TANK

SITE PLAN
~1"1lI'-G"

CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS nEl£COMMUNICATJONS nRANSMITTER
FREQUENCIES ANO POWER LEVElS:

1650-1990 104Hz BAND WIDTH
200 WATTS ERP PER SECTOR

PROPERTY UNE (TYPICAL)

EASEMENTS:
NO EASEMENTS ARE SHOWN WHiCH REFLECTS PREUMINAAY
RECOROS RESEARCH OF RECORDED PARca t.W's.
EASEMENTS ARE SUBJECT TO REVIEW OF FINAL TITLE REPORT

EXISTING SPRINT ----1!--~--/
AlNTENNAS MOUNTED
TO WATER TANK

EXISTING T-MOBILE ----fj----;--------./
AlNTENNAS MOUNTED
TO WATER TANK

PROPERTY UNE
(TYPICAL)

PROPOSED CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS ANTENNAS MOUf>/TED
TO A PROPOSED 6" DIIIMETER , 14'-0' HIGH STEEL POLE.
POLE, ANTENNA. MOUNTING BRACKET AND ALL EXPOSED
COAXIAL CABLE SHAll BE PAINTED BROWN. SEE SHEETS
A-2 &: A-3 FOR EXTERIOR ELEVATIONS



..
""

/

~EXISTING UNDEVELOPED PROPERlY
/-- ZONING: PlANNED COMMERC~U~O~~~RCIAL

./ S.P-A.. OPEN SPACE WITH U~
/ AND INDUSTRIAL

•
SECTOR C

AZIMUTH 340" ====::====

DATE

OAT£

DATE

DATE

DATE

PRELlM ZO REVIEW (AO)
r1NAL ZD PREVIEW (AO)
SUBMITTAL SET (AA)
OWNER COMMENTS (rew)
ANTENNA REVISION (rew)
ANTENNA REVISION 2 (jab)

12/14/05
01/05/06
01/27/06
03/08/06
03/10/06
03/21/06

SITE ACQU!SITION

R.F.

APPROVALS

PREPARED FOR

DRAWING DATES

PROJECT NAME

OTAY WATER
DISTRICT @ 651

PROJECT NUMBER

SAN-757

OWNER APPROVAL

ZONING

CONSTRUCTION

6160 CORNERSTONE COURT, SUITE 150
SAN DIEGO, CA 92121

=======::=======

651 POINT BARROW DRIVE
CHULA VISTA, CA 91911

SAN DIEGO COUNTY

===::===

===::====

EXISTING SINGLE-F~ILY

HOMES_ PLANNED RESIDENTIAL
DEVELOPMENT

41'-0"

SECTOR A
AZI~UTH 7fT

.,~-------

PCINT DRIVE~ORRO

EXISTING CROWN CASTlE
EQUIPMENT BUILDING

EXISTING T-MOBILE EQUIPMENT
BUILDING

EXISTING 6B' DIMIETER x 32'-0"
HIGH WATER TANK

EXISTING NEXTa EQUIPMENTr ENCLOSURE

UNDEVELOPED
OPEN SPACE

EXISTING CROWN CASTlE-\
73'-0· HIGH MONOPOLE \

g:~~,JP~~tgLOSURE \ \

\

EXISTING • "\100' DIMIETER x 32--{)
HIGH WATER TANK

PROPCSED CRICKET COM~UN!?T10NS ANTENNAS
~OUNTED TO A PROPOSED 6 DIMIETER x
14'--()" HIGH STEEL PCLE

PROPOSED CRICKET C~~UNICAT10NS EQUIPMENT
CABINET ON RAISED STEEL PLATfORM INSIDE A
PROPOSED CONCRETE BLOCK ENCLOSURE ON GRADE
(SHOWN SHADED)_

SECTOR B
AZIMUTH 27fT..

===::===

SHEET TITLE

SITE UTILIZATION PLAN
llCoIlE: 1" 10l1'-G'

SITE UTILIZATION
PLAN

====::====

PROJECTS\cricket\SAN751zd\SAN757zAO-l .DWG

=======:: =======

A-O.1



ANTENNA AND COAXIAL CABLE SCHEDULE
SECTOR DIRECTION AZI"lm AN'ITNNA MOOEL NUI.4BER OOWWllT SERIAl. NUJ.lBER NUJ.4BER ~~Lf JUI.IPER COAX SIZE

AllTENW. OF CABLES lENGll<
pER SECTOR (+ / - 5') (+ / - 3')

~, fAST 70' cs-. PCSX03J-18-02 C1 2 20' 6'-O~ 7/8"
8' WEST 27C1 ~ PCSX06S-I:l-02 C1 2 20' 6'-0· 7/8"
e1 NORlH 340' CSA P<SX065-13-<l2 C1 2 20' 6'-0· 7/8"

==== .. ====

DATE

DATE

DATE

DATE

DATE

PRELIM ZD REVIEW (AO)
FINAL ZD PREVIEW (AO)
SUBMITTAL SET (AA)
OWNER COMMENTS (rew)
ANTENNA REVISION (rew)
ANTENN~ REVISION 2 (jab)

12/14/05
01/05/06
01/27/06
03/08/06
03/'0/06
03/21/06

DRAWING DATES

PREPARED FOR

SAN-757

PROJECT NUMBER

651 POINT BARROW DRIVE
CHULA VISTA, CA91911

SAN DIEGO COUNTY

OTAY WATER
DISTRICT @ 651

PROJECT NAME

SITE ACQUISITION

ZONING

APPROVALS

6160 CORNERSTONE COURT, SUITE ,50
SAN DIEGO, CA 92121

CONSTRUCTION

OWNER APPROVAL

R,f".

=======:: =======

================

================

L:
6 DIAMETER x 14-0
HIGH STn:L POLE. PAINT
POLE BROWN.

-T--m'T'lV

~\

EQUIPMENT ELEVATION
llCALE:"'1'G'

i

I
I"
;\

/\
j \

-------..... -.....-................ ..... ..........-"- ---.......... .....,-- ...----,

x -- X -- X -- X -- ,X -- X
i

~\
1

20'-0"

i

I

I SECTOR Aj\ AZIMUTH 7fY

I \ If

/ \
/

10'-B"

~\

SECTOR B
AZIMUTH 27fY. .,.

1--

o

-X--x--X

EQUIPMENT PLAN
OU!:1IfIo 1'0"

SHEET TITLE

EQUIPMENT PLAN
&

ELEVATION

PROJECTS\cricket\SAN757!d\SAN757zA 1.DWG

A-1

=======:1 =======

================

========

PROPOSED PANa ANTENNA
6,8" WIDE x 54" LONG x
3,5" DEEP

""'-PROPOSED ANTENNA •
MOUNTING BRACKET ;1;

i
i

II !
II'

cl1l j'
-,-+_...,...j,'Tj1 VPROPOSED COAXIAL CABLE
-'-1---1- : i II I ON UNISTRIJT SUPPORTS

I
Li~I[ 'i: . BANDED TO NEW POLE

-r I iii!!i

PROPOSED EQUIPMENT
ENCLOSURE WALL

2. ALL aEt.lENTS OF ANTENNA MOUNT SHALL BE GALVANIZED

NOTE:

1. POLE. ANTENNA, COAXIAL CABLE, SUPPORT FRMIE AND BRACKETS
SHALL BE PAINTED BROWN

PROPOSED CIJT IN ASPHALT CURB FOR DRAINAGE

PROPOSED GRAVEL DIVERim

EXISTING B'-0· HIGH CHAINUNK FENCE

EXISTING ASPHALT CURB

EXISTING ASPHALT PAVING

AUGN

EXISTING TREE TO REIoIAIN

EXISTING SPRINT EQUIPMENT ENCLOSURE

PROPERlY UNE

PROPOSED COAXIAL CABLE MOUNTED TO
ENCLOSURE WALL

PROPOSED CRICKET COt.IMUNICATIONS CMO EQUIPMENT CABINET.
52· WlOE x 30" DEEP x 55" HIGH, WEIGHT: 2600 LBS.

PROPOSED CRICKET COt.IMUNICATIONS AlNTENNAS MOUNTED TO A
PROPOSED 6" DIAMETER x 14'-0" HIGH STn:L POLE. POLE,
ANTENNA, MOUNTlNG BRACKET AND ALL EXPOSED COAXIAL
CABLE SHALL BE PAINTED BROWN

PROPOSED TELCO CABINET MOUNTED ON CONCRETE BLOCK WALL

PROPOSED PPC CABINET ON CONCRETE BLOCK WALL

PROPOSED UNDERGROUNO UTIUlY CONDUITS

PROPOSED RAISED STEEL PLATFORM

PROPOSED B'-B" HIGH CONCRETE BLOCK WALL TO MATCH
EXISTING SPRINT ENCLOSURE PAINTED UGHT SAND COLOR

PROPOSED STEEL COUBLE LEAF GATE TO MATCH EXISTING SPRINT
ENCLOSURE WCOD GATE

PROPOSED GPS AlNTENNA MOUNTED TO CONCRETE BLOCK
WALL

KEYED NOTES:

<9
~

1



DATE

DATE

DATE

DATE

DATE

CONSTRUCTION

OWNER APPROVAL

6160 CORNERSTONE COURT. SUITE 150
SAN DIEGO, CA 92121

PREPARED FOR

....

APPROVALS

ZONING

SITE ACQUISITION

R.F.

====.. ====

==== .. ====

EXISTING NEXTEL
EQUIPMENT SHELlER

EXISTING AT&T ANTENNAS

73'-0· HIGH MONOPOLE

,-- EXJSTING T-MOBILE ANTENNAS

Ii

/ /~~~_~ /-~~,oo.~_'~'

~~IT~rT~--- I~---r------r------'--'-'---'~'-----'--'------~-----I~~··~IT1-l··-r[j]-rr111
III I I I I I I I I I II II

PROPOSEO CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT I I II
CABINET ON RAISED SlEEL PLATFORM INSIDE A NEW
CONCRETE BLOCK ENCLOSURE ON GRADE TO MATCH I

---~ I I

EXISl1NG GRADE (427. t' AMSL)

.
?

..r

EXISTING TREES TO REMAlN~, .~'
(TYPICAL) "-..(__

TOP OF CRICKET
COMMUNICATIONS
ANTENNAS

~- EXISTING VERIZON ANTENNAS

PROPOSED CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS ANlENNAS
MOUNJED TO A PROPOSED 6" DIAMETER x
14'-0" HIGH S1EEL POLE. POLE, ANTENNA,
MOUNTING BRACKET AND ALL EXPOSED COAXIAl.
CABLE SHALL BE PAiNJED BROWN

NORTH ELEVATION
8CALE: 1....1·4'

PRELIM ZO REVIEW (AO)
FINAL ZO PREVIEW (AO)
SUBMiTTAL SET (AA)
OWNER COMMENTS (rew)
ANTENNA REVISION (rew)
ANTENNA REVISION 2 (job)

12/14/05
01/05/06
01/27/06
03/08/06
03/10/06
03/21/06

PROJECT NAME

A-2

OTAY WATER
DISTRICT @ 651

PROJECT NUMBER

===::===

PROJECTS\cricket\ SAN7 5 7zd\ SAN757zA2. owe

651 POINT BARROW DRIVE
CHULA VISTA, CA 91911

SAN DIEGO COUNTY

EXTERIOR ELEVATION

SHEET TITLE

DRAWING DATES

SAN-757

====::====

===::===

===::===

===::====

EXISTING 100' DIAMETER
WAlER TANK

EXISTING GRADE (427.1' AMSL)

PROPOSED CRICKET COIlMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT
CABINET ON RAISED SlEEL PLATFORM INSIDE A NEW
CONCRETE BLOGK ENCLOSURE ON GRADE TO MATCH
SPRINT ENCLOSURE (SHOWN SHADED)

EXIST1NG SPRINT
ANTENNAS

PROPOSED CRICKET ~~UNICATIONS ANTENNAS
MOUNJED TO A PROPOSED 6" DIAMETER x
14'-0" HIGH STEEL POLE. POLE, ANTENNA,
MOUNTING BRACKET AND AlL EXPOSED COAXIAl.
CABLE SHALL BE PAiNJED BROWN

EXIST1NG T-MOBILE
ANTENNAS

EXISTING AT&T ANTENNAS

EXISTING VERIZON ANTENNAS

EXISTING 73'-0· HIGH MONOPOLE

EXISl1NG NEXTEL
ANTENNAS

WEST ELEVATION
8CALE:W'ooI'4'

EXISTING T-MOBILE
EQUIPMENT SHELlER

~

~
EXIST1NG 6B'-0" DIAMETER x ~

~
=II~!r-MOBILE 32'-0" HIGH WAlER TANK ~

,-,---,----,---------------1l11l1b~<--_.--___r___r___r.,----~f<_ ?

I ~ I( 1~
I I I' It ,-.~ I'rtT+-t---f----lI-----l----r= ra~~~~~~~'c:':±l!If----+---+-+-+H I 'r' ~

!,

I, i [ II 1'1 I~ c'. i

[,k ", J, ;."..' " ,_'_'_~~LL , ,I ~ III II II' IlL,] (~ I ~l0:;JRlCKET CO~MUNICATIONS
.,'.', ,; I .: ..;;, 1." I, I r \ ' ,~

b22,;... ' "'. ',:?§jJ,,', '.: ,'. ,.;.=1 ilt .:
I:'Ii!'~'__ ':,' ~n','. !r-,:::,~,.,c-.,.=',~,',,:'~...:.', '.',.~,'",','.'.,.,...',"'~'',', ',.' ,••'.",:.:L:i:;:=:X:r!"'"','.,."•...: .,.', ,.'•.,:'.'1' ,!i'I,,1

111I II ~i~\P:?J~:,::I: ,"',': .~~ '~; ~ ~~ ;··'·;lli:_LJLIf2~~"lr[
EXISTING-N-EX1EL--J~'~·f~2.,--.,~.g,--.......=iJ;i~i~ll~~~::~:~::~I~::~:~'71~~j<;i3I:~tI~5:c~,I~::~~~.~..:::j2i'~!s':~;-=;:.-;;---=-..;;=~~===~==;;;;!;;~~2:..-----4-.o!.--d~=:h;:.EXJ:bSTI=NG;:.;;dSPRINT
EQUIPMENT SHELlER' '.!.';',',' :1~,·,L,.l.:"~:~ ,b:::,:l. p __c, , EQUIPMENT ENCLOSURE

____-'-p:::;::r:::r...' ....c~~I/ I~V'~



PREPARED FOR

cric~to
6160 CORNERSTONE COURT, SUITE 150

SAN OIEGO, CA 9Z 121

===..===
PROPOSED CRICKET CO~~UNICATIONS ANTENNAS ~OUNTED
TO A PROPOSED 6' D~ETER x 14'-D" HIGH srm POL£.
POLE, ANTENNA, ~OUNTING BRACKET AND ALL EXPOSED
COAXIAL CABLE SHALL BE PAINTED BROWN

r TOP OF CRICKET CO~~UNICATIONS

ANTENNAS

'FIl--Cr----c-c-':--------''T

~' EXISTING T-~OBILE

/" ANTENNAS

/

:~

EXISTING 100' DIA~ETER WATER TANK,.---- EXISTING SPRINT
/ ANTENNAS

~U(I

I.,
°1
~!

NOTE: EXISTING 68'-0" D~ETER WATER
TANK AND EQUIPMENT ENCLOSURES IN
FOREGROUND NOT SHOWN FDR ClARITY

PROPOSED CRICK~T ~MUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT
CABINET ON RAISED srm PLATFORM INSIDE A NEW
CONCRETE BLOCK ENCLOSURE ON GRADE TO MATCH
SPRINT ENCLOSURE (SHOWN SHADED) ===::===

APPROVALS

EAST ELEVATION
IICAU!: W'ool'-G"

R.f, DATE

ZONING DATE

CONSTRUCTION DATE

SITE ACQUISITION DATE

PROJECT NUMBER

PROJECT NAME

===::===
DATE

OTAY WATER
DISTRICT @ 651

OWNER APPROVAL

EXISTING AT&T ANTENNAS

EXISTING VERIZON ANTENNAS

SAN-757
EXISTING 73'-0' HIGH MONOPOLE

651 POINT BARROW DRIVE
CHULA VISTA, CA 91911

SAN DIEGO COUNTY

PRELI~ 2D REVIEW (AO)
FINAL 20 PREVIEW (AO)
SU8~ITTAL SET (AA)
OWNER COMMENTS (rew)
ANTENNA REVISiON (rew)
ANTENNA REVISION 2 (jab)

12/14/05
01/05/06
01/27/06
03/08/06
03/10/06
03/21/06

PROJECTS\ crick et\SAN?57zd\ SAN 75hA3.DWG

EXTERIOR ELEVATION

SHEET TITLE

DRAWING DATES

===::===

===::===

===::===

==== .. ====

',',""
i , ,

EXISTING CROWN CASTLE
EDUIP~ENT SHELTER

EXISTING 100' D~ETER WATER TANK

/

IN FOREGROUND (SHOWN DASHED FOR
CLARITY)

-----------~ -----------------l
,
I

EXIS'IlNG NEXTa
ANTENNAS

r------------

PROPOSED CRICKET COMMUNICATIONS EQUIPMENT
CABINET ON RAISED SlEEL PLATFORM INSIDE A NEW
CONCRETE BLOCK ENCLOSURE ON GRADE TO MATCH
SPRINT ENCLDSURE (SHOWN SHADED)

/

EXISTING 100' D~ETER WATER TANK
IN FOREGROUND (SHOWN DASHED FOR
CLARflY)

~ ~
i~---~---------------------------------- ------- ?~__k~----~

i 7 'l J I
(, I I EXISTING TREES T04

rp::R::D:::PO::S::ED::-:C:::R::IC:::KET~C::O::'M::M:::UN:::'CA=TIONS:::::~ANTEN=:::NAS=-:M:::O::U::NTED="" REMAIN (TYPICAL) '7
TO A PROPOSED 6' O~ETER x 14'-0' HIGH srm POL£. '--.. '1
POLE, ANTENNA, MOUNTING BRACKET ANO ALL EXPOSED ;J ?
COAXIAL CABLE SHALL BE PAiNTEO ~~OWN t~'t.,., (,)

TOP OF CRICKET ~MUNICATIONS ~ ) I ) I;
ANTENNAS r l j

',' PROPOSED STEEL -, 1 ~ I')

~ ~ ~TO_ ~ I 1111111'--..I:j:\:~ l l Jt::~]llilll~ll~tl .1",,',

?I.;",",-,Ij';-~'il",~\j SPRINT ENCLOSURE ) J ?:t
L

" ;'IP'" i~,
I, _J ""1":' ~, ~"'_, _,'_'~" , """"':',:'I,:::""f,:.::>-·

, " " .. '' " :'(,' ',; :' :,: "')(',:1,' I
I ,I :t. c' ,~!r'U , ,
I II 'f '<l~' ~ ;; .• '.'.

I !\ ., 1\ ' 1\ - ~::;;;;;U i:i::;':;;;:~'~::';:5'':2''Ii':

EXISTING T-MOBILE~
EQUIP~ENT SHELTER

SOUTH ELEVATION
SCALE: 1W.1'..Q" A-3



STAFF REPORT

AGENDA ITEM 9a

TYPE MEETING: Regular Board Meeting

SUBMITTED BY: Mark Watton,

General Manager

MEETING DATE:

W.O.lG.F. NO:

September 6, 2006

DIV. NO.

SUBJECT: Board of Directors 2006 Calendar of Meetings

GENERAL MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION:

At the request of the Board, the attached Board of Director's
meeting calendar for 2006 is being presented for discussion.

PURPOSE:

This staff report is being presented to provide the Board the
opportunity to review the 2006 Board of Director's meeting
calendars and amend the schedules as needed.

COMMITTEE ACTION:

N/A

ANALYSIS:

The Board requested that this item be presented at each meeting
so they may have an opportunity to review the Board meeting
calendar schedule and amend it as needed.

STRATEGIC GOAL:

N/A

FISCAL IMPACT:

None.



LEGAL IMPACT:

None.

Attachments: Calendar of Meetings for 2006

G:IUserDatalDistSeclWINWORDISTAFRPTSIBoard Meeting Calendar 8-3-05.doc



Regular Board Meetings:

January 4, 2006
February 1,2006
March 13,2006
AprilS, 2006
May 3, 2006
June 7, 2006
July 5, 2006
August 2, 2006
September 6, 2006
October 4, 2006
November 1, 2006
December 6, 2006

Board Workshops:

Board of Directors, Workshops
and Committee Meetings

2006

Special Board or Committee Meetings (3rd

Wednesday of Each Month or as Noted)
January 18,2006
February 15,2006
March 15,2006
April 19,2006
May 17,2006
June 21, 2006
July 19,2006
August 16,2006
September 20, 2006
October 18, 2006
November 15,2006
December 20, 2006

Tuesday, May 30, 2006, Budget Workshop
Monday, August 7,2006, Integrated Resources Plan Workshop
Monday, September 25, 2006, Board Retreat Workshop

Committee Meetings:
CWA/Water Resources and Security Committee (Tuesday before the CWA board
meeting):

Water Resource and Security Committee Chair
Gary Croucher
Mark Watton, CWA Board Representative

January 24, 2006
February 21, 2006
March 21,2006 (Canceled)
April 25, 2006
May 23,2006
June 20, 2006
July 25,2006
August 22, 2006
September 26, 2006
October 24, 2006
November 28, 2006
December - No meeting

G:\UserData\DistSec\WINWORD\STAFRPTS\Board Meeting Calendar Attach A for 2006 9-6-06.doc

Page 1 of 1



AGENDA ITEM 9b

TYPE MEETING: Regular Board

SUBMITTED BY: Mark Watton,
General Manager

APPROVED BY:

STAFF REPORT

MEETING DATE:

W.O./G.F. NO:

September 6, 2006

DIV. NO. All

SUBJECT: California Special Districts Association (CSDA) Region 6
Board Election

GENERAL MANAGER'S RECOMMENDATION:

That the Board consider casting a vote to elect a representative
to the California Special Districts Association (CSDA) Board of
Directors, Region 6, Seat A.

PURPOSE:

To present for the board's consideration the ballot to elect a
representative to Region 6, Seat A, of CSDA's Board of
Directors.

COMMITTEE ACTION:

N/A.

ANALYSIS:

CSDA is holding an election to fill Seat A of Region 6 on its
Board of Directors. Ms. Jo MacKenzie, Vista Irrigation
District, is the incumbent and is seeking re-election. Mr.
James Doud, South Bay Irrigation District, is also seeking
election to the seat. Each regular member (district) is
entitled to one. (1) vote for each seat to represent its region.
There are a total of six [6] regions with each region having
three seats on the Board.

Attached is a copy of the mail-in ballot and the candidates'
Statement of Qualifications. The ballot must be mailed and
received by CSDA by 5:00 p.m. on Thursday, September 21, 2006.

FISCAL IMPACT:

None.



STRATEGIC GOAL

Participating would support the strategic goal of maintaining
effective communications with other cities, special districts,
State and Federal governments, community organizations and
Mexico.

LEGAL IMPACT:



Jo MacKenzie"
Vlsla Jrr/ga00ll D1s11fcl

OFFICIAL BALLOT

REGION SIX

•
Seat A - term

ends 2009

CSDA BOARD OF DIRECTORS
ELECTION 2006

ALL FIELDS MUST SE COMPLETED FOR BAUOT TO BE COUNTED.

(Please vote lor one.)

D James F. Ooud, Sr.
SooftI Bay /mgaoon DIsItIc:/

o

• incumbent

Signature: ~D~.nle~; _

Member Distnc!: _

Must be received by 5pm,Saptemoor 21.2006 CS)A ;1'2 I5""": S":~ 2X S,cartH':: CA 9:S1~



CANDIDATE STATEMENT
JO MacKENZIE, REGION 6 DIRECTOR

I have served as the Region 6 Director to the CSDA Board since 2003. I have actively served on
numerous committees and been Vice-Chair of the Legislative Committee and Chair of Elections/By
Laws Committee.

During the last three years, Special Districts have become recognized as the third leg of local
government gaining that recognition after CSDA's negotiations with the Governor's Office on
Proposition 1A. CSDA is the recognized voice of Special Districts. As your representative, I have
strived to maintain the effectiveness of CSDA for the benefit of all Special Districts.

I was elected to the Vista Irrigation District Board in 1992; President 1993, 1994 and 1999. I have
chaired the Fiscal Policy and Public Relations Committees, besides serving on numerous Ad Hoc
committees. I have been actively involved in CSDA, LAFCO Special District Advisory Committee
(SDAC), and the Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA).

I have served as Vice-President and President of the local CSDA Chapter. I have been a member of
SD LAFCO SDAC since 1994; Vice-Chair 2003 and Chair, 2004-present.

I have served on the ACWA Membership Committee, 1997-present and Region 10 Director, 1994
to present.

These positions have provided an opportunity to develop the necessary knowledge and skill to
represent the needs of special districts. I believe this involvement demonstrates my commitment.

Community Service Activities:
~ City of San Marcos Planning Commission, 1979-1986.
~ Traffic/Safety Commissioner, 1999-2003; Vice-Chair 2000-2003.
~ Budget Review Committee, 1981-1984 and 1995-2006; Chairman 1999-2006.
~ Affordable Housing Task Force, 1994-1997; Vice-Chair
~ San Marcos Chamber of Commerce, 1983-present; past Treasurer; Ambassador Life

Member since 1986.

I have the experience, expertise, desire and time commitment to serve each of your interests.

Your vote will sustain the direction your present Board of Directors is charting.



STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS
Jim Doud

Director, South Bay Irrigation District and Sweetwater Authority
San Diego County

Jim Doud has represented Region 6 as President of CSDA, San Diego Chapter, from 2005
to present. As President, Jim attends all San Diego Local Agency Formation Commission,
Special Advisory Committee meetings to report on the ongoing discussions on the draft
LAFCO publication, Profiles of Special Districts in San Diego County.

Jim has represented Division 2 of South Bay Irrigation District and Sweetwater Authority
since 1995. He has served two terms as President for South Bay Irrigation District and two
terms as Chair for Sweetwater Authority, and currently serves and chairs numerous
committees.

Jim is an active and voting delegate to the National Water Resources Association (NWRA)
and the Western Coalition of Arid States (WESTCAS).

Jim is active in the Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA) serving on the
Federal Affairs Subcommittee, and ACWA's Outreach Program.

Jim is active on the Chula Vista Interagency Water Task Force, executed by the Mayor of
Chula Vista in 1990, and served as Chairfrom 2004 to 2006.

Jim is active in the Chula Vista Chamber of Commerce, representing South Bay Irrigation
District and Sweetwater Authority.

Jim is a graduate of the Special District Institute in Leadership and Management.

Jim is a retired Senior Engineer, Rohr Industries.

Jim is a member of the Retired National Management Association - Rohr Chapter.

Jim is a Korean and Cold War veteran.

CSDA has had an eventful active year so far in 2006, and we look forward to continuing
the tradition of speaking out and acting on behalf of all special districts in 2006! Special
districts are the most popular - but unfamiliar - form of government. We must reverse this
lack of familiarity.



SOUTH BAY~TION DISTRICT
DIRIC'TORDMSION 2
SWEETWATERAUTHORITY

CAtaoJooAsl'BClAii:,lSri«ers ASSOCIA110N BOARD OP DIRBCinilS
RBGION'6, SlAT A '

--

ELECT JIM ~
DOUD

,,,. . ; -

•d

.............

.....e-,QIIpIIr
P'O.8ax2J21
C2Rda~C\11'12-2321
..... (61').......
Fa: (61') 425.3US........-...-....

,

~
II
II
IiI:
I
I

I:
I
I:
I]
I
,'J
I

I

JlMDOUD IS COMMITIED TO:

• HONESTY

• INTEGRITY

• CONSISTENCY

• A SENSE OF PURPOSE &, RESPONSmn..ITY

• LEADERSHW

• HARD WORK AND PREPARATION

• THE UNDERSTANDING OF TIlE DISTRICT AND THE ISSUES

DOUD,JIm



AGENDA ITEM 10

STAFF REPORT

TYPE MEETING: Regular Board Meeting

SUBMITTED BY: Mark Watton,
General Manager

MEETING DATE: September 6, 2006

W.O.lG.F. NO: N/A DIV. NO. N/A

SUBJECT: General Manager's Report

GENERAL MANAGER:

• Update on
Reservoir,

the 30-inch Recycled Water
and 680-1 Pump Station Projects:

Pipeline, 450-1

~ As of August 15, 2006, Ortiz Construction has installed
28,500 l.f. of pipeline out of a total of 31,419 l.f.

~ The access road to the reservoir and pump station has
been paved.

~ The reservoir floor and shell rings have been welded,
and the roof is 90% complete.

~ The walls of the pump station are 90% complete.

• Met with the Jamul Indian Village Chairman, Lee Acebedo, to
receive an update on their casino development. The Jamul
tribe has submitted a sub-area master plan for water for
the casino and it indicates that Otay should be able to
serve the facility with existing infrastructure.

ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES AND FINANCE:

Administrative Services:

• Three new hires started employment in the month
of August: HR Technician, Executive Secretary
(Engineering Dept.), Customer Service Field
Representative I.

• The District hosted its annual Employee Information
Meeting and Luncheon in July. Employees provided updates



on projects in their departments and updates on
activities from the Otay Activities Committee.

• The District has selected a consultant to conduct a
District-wide Compensation Study in the upcoming months.
The District requested quotes from four providers and
conducted a thorough review of all the consultants, which
included a screening of the quotes, interviews and
references. Johnson and Associates was selected to
conduct the study and will be working with Human
Resources, Management, and the Employee Association to
conduct a thorough study. Johnson and Associates
specializes in human resources management studies.
Consultants who will be managing the project have many
years of dedicated experience with similar studies.

• The District has made significant progress in training
emergency response personnel in the necessary FEMA
courses.

• The District staffed a booth at Chula Vista's 10 th Annual
Lemon Festival on August 13th

• Hundreds of people came by
to test their water knowledge, learn about the District
and its job offerings, and pick up information on the
District's water conservation programs.

• Letters were mailed to the District's 1600+ landscape
only customers promoting the "Smart" landscape programs
including the "smart" controller incentive program, the
$5,000 per site mini-grant program to replace inefficient
sprinkler equipment, the large landscape audit program,
and the District's "Cash for Plants" turfgrass
replacement program.

• Planning continues for the upcoming Water Conservation
Summit on September 29th at the Joan Kroc Center at the
University of San Diego. The focus of this first-ever
summit will be landscape water conservation and how the
region can increase its water conservation efforts to
reach its 110,000 acre-feet savings target by 2030.

• Residential Smart Controller Program: The District has a
waitlist for the next distribution event tentatively
planned for October and staff is working with the Water
Authority and its contractor to verify the installation
of all 100+ smart controllers distributed to Otay
customers to date.

2



• In the month of August there were 200 purchase orders
issued for a total of $559,506.39.

Infor.mation Techno~ogy and Strategic P~anning:

• The Interactive Voice Response (IVR) system is now
operational. Phase 2 will implement the ability to pay
bills over the phone using a credit card. We expect to
have this feature on line in 60 days (November 1, 2006).

• The computer data center upgrade project is proceeding.
Currently, the new racks are installed, the UPS equipment
is being installed, and new servers are being configured.
Completion is scheduled for late September.

• Staff has completed a review of the year-end FY06
Strategic Plan objectives and performance measures.
These items will be coming to the Board next month. We
are also planning additional strategic plan workshops in
the fall to provide fine tuning of plan objectives and to
update performance measures.

• Staff is working with the MASS group a consultant to
improve gathering SCADA operational data for management
reporting.

• Staff held a week-long workshop with Eden, our primary
vendor for customer information and financial software
systems. The workshop goal was to discuss ways in which
Otay could obtain increased performance from the software
products more effectively. In particular, the functions
of Parcel Manager, Parcel Refresh, and correcting
inaccurate mailing addresses were improvements in the
system that were identified.

• Staff has been invited to make a presentation at the
upcoming Business Process Management Conference held at
the Hotel Del in October. Otay has been requested to
present how it is using its strategic plan and
performance measures to advance business process
improvement at the District. Staff will also be making
presentations at the upcoming user conferences for EDEN
and GBA, our major software vendors.

• The first fully configured field laptop have been
received. Once final testing is complete, these units
will be assigned to key operations staff. This is the

3



first step in enhancing field use of automated systems in
the "field" environment.

FINANCE:

• Optional Customer Payment Methods - With the newIVR
system successfully in place, staff is now in the process
of automating credit card payments using IVR technology.
This option will seamlessly allow customers to move into
a third party's automated payment system to pay their
bill. Because of the greater efficiency and security of
large specialized credit card processing firms, it has
become industry standard to use these third party
vendors. Sweetwater, Helix, Padre and even large
utilities such as SDG&E currently offer this option which
includes a nominal fee charged by the third party vendor
to the customers for the added convenience and security
of this payment method. Otay customers choosing this
option will pay a nominal fee of $2.40 for check payments
or $3.60 for credit card payments. Otay's fee will be
significantly less than the $4.95 charged by our
neighboring agencies. Each of the local utilities listed
above requires that the customer end the call and dial a
separate toll free number to process their credit card
payment, or check by phone. With Otay's IVR solution, it
is much more convenient because our customers will be
automatically transferred to the third party vendor.
Staff is looking forward to the implementation of this
part of the IVR strategic plan objective to replace the
cumbersome in-house process. The new system has many
benefits and will allow us to better manage the increased
costs and workload associated with this process. As this
method of payment is implemented and matures, the
benefits will include the elimination of one temporary
position, redirecting remaining staff to improving
customer service processes, reducing the overall call
wait time, and mitigating the need to add customer
service staff to handle the large increases in these
types of calls. In the last 3 years, these calls have
increased by 112%, from 800 to 1700. Other services
offered for customer convenience include: Web Payments,
Postal Annex, Drop Box, ACH Payments (automated checking
account deductions), and the old fashioned walk in
payments or check by mail.

• OPEB Liability - Staff has received four proposals from
actuaries to evaluate and determine the liability of the

4



other Post Employment Benefits. Staff has evaluated the
proposals and is finalizing the selection process. Staff
will work with the selected actuary over the next 5 to 7
weeks to finalize the OPEB evaluation. The new
accounting requirements, GASB 45, will not take affect
for two more years, so there is time to see how these
requirements play out for the larger governments who must
implement next year. The actuary will also provide
costing scenarios for various collective bargaining
options. There is a reserve account funded specifically
for this purpose and the contract will provide for an
update and evaluation of our current situation.

• Financial Statement Audit - The auditors have completed
their field work at the District and are now preparing
the statements. At this time, the auditors have not
identified any issues or management letter comments. The
audit process was completed very smoothly, to the credit
of the quality preparation by staff. The financial
statements should be ready for review by the Finance and
Administration Committee for the September meeting.
Staff will then prepare the CAFR (Comprehensive Annual
Financial Report) and plan to publish the document by the
end of October.

• Financial Advisor - In preparation for the pending Bond
Sale, staff is hiring a financial advisor to help the
District through the bond sale process. On August loth
eleven RFPs were sent out to solicit services. The
deadline for the response is September 1st

. After the
selection process is complete, staff will present the
recommended financial advisor to the Board for approval.

• Budget Policy - Staff is currently reviewing numerous
budget policies and looking to incorporate those "Best
Practices" that best fit the Districts preferred form of
operations. There will be numerous meetings to review
this with staff prior to the presentation to the Board.
Staff plans to present this to the Finance and
Administration Committee in early 2007.

• Debt Policy - The debt policy is being revised and will
be submitted to GFOA for "Certification". This will then
be brought to the December Finance and Administration
Committee for review. The changes will add many of the
existing practices to the Policy making it more robust
and adding transparency to the District's financial
matters.

5



The financial reporting for June 2006 is as follows:

• For the twelve months ended June 30, 2006, there are
total revenues of $53,484,231 and total expenses of
$53,546,089. The expenses exceeded revenues by
$61,858.

The financial reporting for July 2006 is as follows:

• For the twelve months ended July 31, 2006, there are
total revenues of $5,389,797 and total expenses of
$5,530,318. The expenses exceeded revenues by
$39,479.

The financial reporting for investments for July 31, 2006
is as follows:

• The market value of the Portfolio Master Summary and
the Investment Portfolio Details as of July 31, 2006
total $71,688,513.99 with an average yield to maturity
of 4.501%. The total earnings year to date are
$277,970.32. The effective duration is .353 of a
year.

ENGINEERING, DEVELOPMENT SERVICES AND WATER OPERATIONS:

Engineering:

• Staff received 8 new improvement plans from developers
for potable/recycled plan checks.

• The preliminary design report for the 12-inch pipelines
in Jamacha Road, Hidden Mesa Road, and Chase Avenue
(P2038), Jamul Road (P2356), and Steele Canyon Road
(P2387) is completed. The report recommended replacing
all 12-inch pipelines with Chase Avenue as the highest
priority. It also recommended using PVC as the material
type. Jamacha Road will be planned, designed, and
constructed with the 36" pipeline project (P2009).

• The 1485-1 Pump Station Replacement project awarded the
appraisal services contract to Randall H. Blaesi, Real
Estate Appraiser & Valuation Consultant, on July 31,

6



2006. The geotechnical services consultant contract was
awarded to Geotechnics, Inc. on August 10, 2006.

• The City of San Diego and the United States Bureau of
Reclamation (USBR) have executed the Title XVI
Cooperative Agreement for grant awards for our recycled
projects.

• The preliminary design report for the 1296-3 2.0 MG
Reservoir is completed. The report recommends building a
2.0 MG welded steel reservoir south of the existing
reservoirs on Bear Mountain Way.

• A Board of Directors workshop on the Integrated Water
Resources Plan was held on August 7, 2006. The
consultant, COM, and Staff will continue working toward
completion of the IWRP, scheduled for completion in March
2007

• The East County Regional Treated Water Improvement
Program Agreement requires an agreement between the SDCWA
and Otay WD for the Otay Flow Control Facility (FCF) No.
14 capacity increase to 16 MGD. The EXRTWIP Agreement
established cost sharing at 50% each. SDCWA has begun
preparing the first draft of the FCF No. 14 Agreement.

• Staff sent the required disbursement forms related to the
$4,000,000 Proposition 50 grant to the State Water
Resources Control Board. This grant is in association
with our recycled water pipeline, pump station, and tank
currently under construction.

• 23 meters were sold as of August 10, 2006, generating
$468,538 in revenue. Total meters sold for FY06-07 were
23, which generated $468,538 for the District.

• The Construction Division received 3 new projects to be
constructed by developers and performed 10 pre
construction meetings. In addition, 2 projects were
completed and 1 project was released from warranty.

• Approximately 8,000 linear feet of both CIP and developer
project pipelines were installed since July, 2006. The
Construction Division performed quality assurance for
these pipelines.

7



• The Sweetwater
95% complete.
7, 2006.

Springs Agency Interconnection project is
The contract completion date is December

• 182 underground facilities were located, 9 hydrostatic
pressure tests, 21 wet taps and tie-ins, 70 meter set
inspections, and 7 project walk-throughs were performed
during the month.

• The following table summarizes purchase and change orders
issued during the month of August, 2006, that are within
staff signatory authority:

Contractor/
Date Action Amount Consultant Project

07/26/06 P.o. $9,500 Randall H. Blaesi
1485-1 Pump Station
Replacement Project

08/04/06 P.O. $18,000 Clarkson Lab & Supply Co. Bac-T Sampling/Testing

08/21/06 P.o. $9,684 Geotechnics, Inc.
1485-1 Pump Station
Replacement Project

Water qperations:

• Water purchased for the month of June was 4,228.6
acre-feet. From the period July 1, 2005 to June 30,
2006 there was 41,426.60 acre-feet of water purchased.
This is an 8.9 percent increase from the same period
last year.

• Water purchased for the month of July was 4912.1 acre
feet. Beginning FY 06/07 to date, July 1, 2006 to July
31, 2006 there has been 4912.1 acre-feet of water
purchased. This is a 5.8 percent increase from the
same period last year, July 1, 2005 to July 31, 2005.

• The AMR change-out program is progressing. The
District's contractor, Underground Utility, Inc.
(UUI), has replaced 3,138 RAMAR/Badger units as of
July 31, 2006, leaving 3,873 RAMAR units still in use.

• There were 79 new Automated Meter Reading (AMR) meters
installed, 443 meters were replaced with new AMR
meters and zero meters were retrofitted to AMR meters
for the month of July for a total of 11,840 AMR
meters.

8



Total number of potable water accounts is 47,078.00.

• Recycled water consumption for the month of July is as
follows:

Total flow was 620 2 acre-feet or 202,007,872
gallons and the average daily flow was 6,516,383
gallons per day.

Total number of recycled water accounts is 558.

• Wastewater flows for the month of July were as
follows:

Total basin flow, gallons per day: 2,164,000.
Total Otay flow, gallons per day: 1,445,000.
Flow Processed at the Ralph W. Chapman Water
Recycling Facility, gallons per day: 1,272,000.
Flow to Metro from Otay Water District, gallons per
day: 190,000.

Total number of sewer connections is 6,057.

General Manager

G:\UserOata\OistSec\WINWORO\STAFRPTS\GM Report 9-6-06.doc

9



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
COMPARATIVE BUDGET SUMMARY

FOR TWELVE MONTHS ENDED JUNE 30, 2006

Exhibit A

Annual YTD YTD YTD
Budget Actual Budget Variance Var%

REVENUE:
Water Sales $ 27,933,200 $ 27,975,777 $ 27,933,200 $ 42,577 0.2%
Energy Charges 1,640,000 1,696,492 1,640,000 56,492 3.4%
System Charges 7,993,300 8,056,340 7,993,300 63,040 0.8%
Penalties 488,800 688,374 488,800 199,574 40.8%
MWD & CWA Fixed Charges 1,766,300 1,775,186 1,766,300 8,886 0.5%

Total Water Sales 39,821,600 40,192,169 39,821,600 370,569 0.9%
Reclamation Sales 3,559,900 3,563,441 3,559,900 3,541 0.1%
Sewer Charges 2,296,400 2,296,856 2,296,400 456 0.0%
Meter Fees 416,800 270,167 416,800 (146,633) (35.2%)
Capacity Fee Revenues 1,222,200 1,356,611 1,222,200 134,411 11.0%
Non-Operating Revenues 1,163,400 1,205,854 1,163,400 42,453 3.6%
Tax Revenues 2,814,600 3,388,734 2,814,600 574,134 20.4%
State Tax Shift 1,210,400 1,210,400 1,210,400 0.0%

Total Revenue $ 52,505,300 $ 53,484,231 $ 52,505,300 $ 978,931 1.9%

EXPENSES:
Water Purchases $ 20,713,400 $ 21,814,854 $ 20,713,400 $ (1,101,454) (5.3%)
CWA-Infrastructure Access Charge 772,700 844,855 772,700 (72,155) (9.3%)
CWA-Customer Service Charge 745,400 771,760 745,400 (26,360) (3.5%)
CWA-Emergency Storage Charge 958,500 1,047,601 958,500 (89,101) (9.3%)
MWD-Capacity Res Charge 502,300 508,756 502,300 (6,456) (1.3%)
MWD-Readiness to Serve Charge 414,400 460,717 414,400 (46,317) (11.2%)

Subtotal Water Purchases 24,106,700 25,448,543 24,106,700 (1,341,843) (5.6%)
Power Charges 2,327,100 2,113,787 2,327,100 213,313 9:2%
Payroll & Related Costs 13,457,300 14,431,296 13,457,300 (973,996) (7.2%)
Material & Maintenance 4,239,300 3,885,976 4,239,300 353,324 8.3%
Administrative Expenses 3,919,300 3,393,770 3,919,300 525,529 13.4%
Legal 525,000 578,116 525,000 (53,116) (10.1%)
Expansion Reserve 1,001,300 1,001,300 1,001,300 0 0.0%
Debt Service 2,709,300 2,693,301 2,709,300 15,999 0.6%

Total Expenses $ 52,285,300 $ 53,546,089 $ 52,285,300 $ (1,260,790) (2.4%)

Excess Revenue (Expense) $ 220,000 $ (61,858) $ 220,000 $ (281,859)

F:/MORPT/FS2006-0606Final 9/1/2006 10:30 AM



OTAy WATER DISTRICT
COMPARATIVE BUDGET SUMMARY

FOR ONE MONTH ENDED JULY 31, 2006

Exhibit A

Annual YTD YTD YTD
Budget Actual Budget Variance Var%

REVENUE:
Water Sales $ 29,866,000 $ 2,987,886 $ 2,971,700 $ 16,186 0.5%
Energy Charges 1,853,000 187,773 181,900 5,873 3.2%
System Charges 8,529,300 680,119 678,300 1,819 0.3%
Penalties 704,500 49,649 47,900 1,749 3.7%
MWD & CWA Fixed Charges 2,178,000 158,923 158,400 523 0.3%

Total Water Sales 43,130,800 4,064,351 4,038,200 26,150 0.6%
Reclamation Sales 4,485,400 490,642 489,900 742 0.2%
Sewer Charges 2,568,100 208,089 209,200 (1,111) (0.5%)
Meter Fees 278,500 24,081 23,200 881 3.8%
Capacity Fee Revenues 1,000,200 86,214 83,400 2,814 3.4%
Annexation Fees 1,216,900 201,075 101,400 99,675 98.3%
Non-Operating Revenues 1,674,100 132,144 98,700 33,444 33.9%
Tax Revenues 3,427,400 30,963 31,700 (737) (2.3%)
Interest 1,005,600 128,639 83,800 44,839 53.5%
General Fund Draw Down 283,600 23,600 23,600 0.0%

Total Revenue $ 59,070,600 $ 5,389,797 $ 5,183,100 $ 206,696 4.0%

EXPENSES:
Water Purchases $ 22,954,900 $ 2,572,092 $ 2,545,500 $ (26,592) (1.0%)
CWA-Infrastructure Access Charge 1,003,900 81,396 81,400 4 0.0%
CWA-Customer Service Charge 846,800 67,730 67,700 (30) (0.0%)
CWA-Emergency Storage Charge 1,230,600 98,532 98,500 (32) (0.0%)
MWD-Capacity Res Charge 514,800 42,932 42,900 (32) (0.1%)
MWD-Readiness to Serve Charge 512,200 42,684 42,600 (84) (0.2%)

Subtotal Water Purchases 27,063,200 2,905,366 2,878,600 (26,766) (0.9%)
Power Charges 2,677,800 270,869 263,575 (7,294) (2.8%)
Payroll & Related Costs 14,606,300 1,131,834 1,154,020 22,186 1.9%
Material & Maintenance 4,623,700 275,506 376,242 100,737 26.8%
Administrative Expenses 5,559,600 388,444 453,583 65,140 14.4%
Replacement Reserve 4,540,000 378,300 378,300 0.0%

Total Expenses $ 59,070,600 $ 5,350,318 $ 5,504,321 $ 154,003 2.8%

Excess Revenue (Expense) $ $ 39,479 $ (321,221) $ 360,699

F:/MORPT/FS2007-0706 8/30/2006 3:51 PM



OTAY
Portfolio Management

Portfolio Summary
July 31, 2006

Investments

Federal Agency Issues- Callable

Treasury Securities - Coupon

Certificates of Deposit - Bank

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

San Diego County Pool

Investments

Par Market Book %of Days to YTM YTM

Value Value Value Portfolio Tenn Maturity 360 Equiv. 365 Equiv.

54,000,000.00 53,751,036.99 53,941,786.94 76.59 541 270 4.471 4.533

9,000,000.00 8,950,312.50 8,977,863.67 12.75 351 166 4.460 4.522

79,108.00 79,108.00 79,108.00 0.11 730 539 3.880 3.934

7,327,443.44 7,314,150.15 7,327,443.44 10.40 1 1 4.783 4.849

99,091.73 98,617.16 99,091.73 0.14 1 1 4.212 4.271

70,505,643.17 70,193,224.80 70,425,293.78 100.00% 460 229 4.501 4.563

Cash

Passbook/Checking
(not included in yield calculations)

Total Cash and Investments

Total Earnings

Current Year

Average Daily Balance

Effective Rate of Return

1,495,289.19

72,000,932.36

July 31 Month Ending

277,970.32

75,210,445.54

4.35%

1,495,289.19

71,688,513.99

Fiscal Year To Date

277,970.32

75,210,445.54

4.35%

1,495,289.19

71,920,582.97 460 229

0.257

4.501

0.260

4.563

I hereby certify that the investments contained in this report are made in accordance with the District Investment Policy Number 27 adopted by the Board of Directors on January 19, 2000. The market
value information provided by Interactive Data Corporation. The investments provide sufficient liquidity to meet the cash flow requirements of the District for the next six months of expenditures.

~ 9"-/b-(J2G~

Run Date: 08/1612006 - 09:15

Portfolio OTAY

AP
PM (PRF_PM1) SymRept 6.41.200

Report Ver. 5.00



OTAY
Portfolio Management

Portfolio Details - Investments
July 31, 2006

Page 2

Average Purchase
CUSIP Investment # Issuer Balance Date

Federal Agency Issues- Callable

3133X6LN4 1980 Federal Home Loan Bank 05/10/2004
3133X8KE1 1988 Federal Home Loan Bank 09/29/2004
3133X8KC5 1989 Federal Home Loan Bank 09/29/2004
3133XARM1 1990 Federal Home Loan Bank 03/08/2005
3133XASF5 1991 Federal Home Loan Bank 03/08/2005

3133XARK5 1992 Federal Home Loan Bank 03/08/2005

3133XEMS5 1998 Federal Home Loan Bank 02128/2006

3133XEP45 1999 Federal Home Loan Bank 03/0212006

3133XETX7 2001 Federal Home Loan Bank 03/14/2006

3133XF2C9 2002 Federal Home Loan Bank 04/25/2006

3133XFBX3 2003 Federal Home Loan Bank 05/04/2006

3133XFS72 2007 Federal Home Loan Bank 06/28/2006

3133XGCU6 2008 Federal Home Loan Bank 07/28/2006
3128X4K67 2000 Federal Home Loan Mortgage 03/07/2006

3128X4DY4 2004 Federal Home Loan Mortgage 05/18/2006

3128X4CE9 2005 Federal Home Loan Mortgage 05/18/2006

3128X5CCO 2006 Federal Home Loan Mortgage 06/01/2006

31359MG31 1997 Federal National Mortage Assoc 02124/2006

Subtotal and Average 53,938,606.71

Treasury Securities - Coupon

912828DJ6 1993 US TREASURY 01/26/2006

912828000 1994 US TREASURY 01/26/2006

912827Z62 1995 US TREASURY 0210212006

Subtotal and Average 8,977,647.38

Certificates of Deposit - Bank

2050003183R 1996 California Bank & Trust 01/2212006,..
Subtotal and Average 79,108.00

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

LAIF 9001 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 07/01/2004

Subtotal and Average 11,031,346.66

Run Dale: 08/1612006 - 09:15

Stated YTM Days to Maturity
Par Value Market Value Book Value Rate Moody's 360 Maturity Date

3,000,000.00 2,998,125.00 3,000,000.00 2.650 2.614 9 08/10/2006

3,000,000.00 2,970,000.00 3,000,000.00 3.025 2.982 150 12129/2006

3,000,000.00 2,987,812.50 3,000,000.00 3.000 2.959 58 09/28/2006

3,000,000.00 2,993,437.50 3,000,000.00 3.470 3.422 38 09/08/2006

3,000,000.00 2,979,375.00 3,000,000.00 3.500 3.450 129 12/08/2006

3,000,000.00 2,978,437.50 3,000,000.00 3.510 3.460 129 .12108/2006

3,000,000.00 2,984,062.50 3,000,000.00 5.000 4.943 484 11/28/2007

3,000,000.00 2,989,687.50 3,000,000.00 5.000 4.932 213 03/0212007

3,000,000.00 2,988,750.00 3,000,000.00 5.125 5.055 409 09/14/2007

3,000,000.00 2,994,375.00 3,000,000.00 5.250 5.175 428 10/03/2007

3,000,000.00 2,994,375.00 3,000,000.00 5.250 5.178 276 05/04/2007

3,000,000.00 2,995,312.50 3,000,000.00 5.350 5.277 514 1212812007

3,000,000.00 2,999,062.50 3,000,000.00 5.450 5.375 181 01/29/2007

3,000,000.00 2,983,478.85 3,000,000.00 5.250 5.178 584 03/07/2008

3,000,000.00 2,961,302.95 2,967,081.47 4.000 5.129 346 07/13/2007

3,000,000.00 2,970,716.86 2,974,705.47 3.625 5.161 198 02115/2007

3,000,000.00 2,995,850.83 3,000,000.00 5.340 5.263' 330 06/27/2007

3,000,000.00 2,986,875.00 3,000,000.00 5.000 4.932 388 08/24/2007

54,000,000.00 53,751,036.99 53,941,786.94 4.471 270

3,000,000.00 2,970,000.00 2,980,710.81 3.125 4.376 183 01/31/2007

3,000,000.00 2,972,812.50 2,985,985.58 3.750 4.431 242 03/31/2007

3,000,000.00 3,007,500.00 3,011,167.28 6.500 4.571 75 10/15/2006

9,000,000.00 8,950,312.50 8,977,863.67 4.460 166

79,108.00 79,108.00 79,108.00 3.880 3.880 539 01/2212008

79,108.00 79,108.00 79,108.00 3.880 539

7,327,443.44 7,314,150.15 7,327,443.44 4.849 4.783

7,327,443.44 7,314,150.15 7,327,443.44 4.783

Portfolio OTAY

AP
PM (PRF_PM2) SymRepI6.41.200

Report Ver. 5.00

-----~. ----~---~._---_ •.~--~



OTAY
Portfolio Management

Portfolio Details - Investments
July 31, 2006

Page 3

Average Purchase Stated YTM Days to Maturity
CUSIP Investment # Issuer Balance Date Par Value Market Value Book Value Rate Moody's 360 Maturity Date

5an Diego County Pool

SO COUNTY POOL 9007 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 07/01/2004 99,091.73 98,617.16 99,091.73 4.271 4.212

Subtotal and Average 99,091.73 99,091.73 98,617.16 99,091.73 4.212

Total and Average 75,210,445.54 70,505,643.17 70,193,224.80 70,425,293.78 4.501 229

Run Date: 0811612006 - 09:15

Portfolio OTAY

AP
PM (PRF_PM2) SymRept 6.41.200



,
i'

OTAY
Portfolio Management
Portfolio Details - Cash

July 31, 2006

Page 4

Average Purchase
CUSIP Investment # Issuer Balance Date Par Value

Union Bank

UNION BANK 9002 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 07/0112004 179,955.69
PETTY CASH 9003 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 07/01/2004 2,800.00
CALIF BANK & TR 9004 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 07/01/2004 1,229,954.29
PAYROLL 9005 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 07/01/2004 51,823.75
UNION IOC 9008 STATE OF CALIFORNIA 05/01/2006 30,755.46

Average Balance 0.00

Total Cash and Investmentss 75,210,445.54 72,000,932.36

Market Value

179,955.69

2,800.00

1,229,954.29

51,823.75

30,755.46

71,688,513.99

Stated YTM Days to
Book Value Rate Moody's 360 Maturity

179,955.69 1.400 1.381

2,800.00 0.000

1,229,954.29 0.000

51,823.75 0.000

30,755.46 4.460 4.399

71,920,582.97 4.501 229

Run Dale: 08/1612006 - 09:15

-------- ------------------ ---- -- ---•• -.-.-~--. -.-.-----~.~~-~-----.---.- ..... -.-.--------.----- --.-- "•• - -'- ··_--~--:·_':-.·.·c.-.-'"'-c.-,,~ ,·.__..:~.c;cc=~-----·--- - ----

Portfolio OTAY

AP
PM (PRF_PM2) SymRepI6.41_200



CUSIP Investment # Issuer
Percent

of Portfolio

OTAY
Activity Report
Sorted By Issuer

July 1, 2006 - July 31, 2006

Par Value--_.._-----"-_._---

Beginning Current Transaction
Balance Rate Date

... . ParV..!!~ . .._

Purchases or Redemptions or Ending
Deposits Withdrawals Balance

Issuer: STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Subtotal and Balance

Subtotal and Balance

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)

LAIF 9001 STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Union Bank

UNION BANK

CALIF BANK & TR

PAYROLL

UNION IOC

9002

9004

9005

9008

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

1.400

4.460

1,033,493.75

4.849

12,567,520.35

3,125,812.41 3,000,875.00

333,870.72 0.00

2,924.82 0.00

117.49 55.00

3,462,725.44 3,000,930.00

1,359,923.09 6,600,000.00

1,359,923.09 6,600,000.00

1,495,289.19

7,327,443.44

5an Diego County Pool

Subtotal and Balance

Issuer Subtotal 12.391%

Issuer: California Bank & Trust

Certificates of Deposit - Bank

Subtotal and Balance

99,091.73

13,700,105.83

79,108.00

4,822,648.53 9,600,930.00

99,091.73

8,921,824.36

79,108.00

Issuer Subtotal

Issuer: Federal Home Loan Bank

0.110% 79,108.00 0.00 0.00 79,108.00

Federal Agency Issues- Callable

31-.33X5ZG6 1977

3133XGCU6 2008
Federal Home Loan Bank

Federal Home Loan Bank
2.510

5.450

07/28/2006

07/28/2006

0.00

3,000,000.00

3,000,000.00

0.00

Subtotal and Balance

Issuer Subtotal 54.166%

Run Dale: 08/16/2006 - 09:16

39,000,000.00

·39,000,000.00

3,000,000.00

3,000,000.00

3,000,000.00

3,000,000.00

39,000,000.00

39,000,000.00

Portfolio OTAY
AP

DA (PRF_DA) SymRepI6.41.200
Report Ver. 5.00

--- - --------- ---------..__._-------------------~~.,--~.~-~-~~~------------



I

~'

OTAY
Activity Report

July 1, 2006 - July 31, 2006

Page 2

Purchases or
DepositsCUSIP Investment # Issuer

Percent
of Portfolio

______~ Par _'!.i1II,l~_

Beginning
Balance

Current
Rate

Transaction
Date

.. ._. ..._._..._...__. .._....__....__..__.._...?-.il.~ Vil.l.IJ~ ._.__.._._.... .._._._._.__...._.__._. .__

Redemptions or Ending
Withdrawals Balance

Issuer: Federal Home Loan Mortgage

Federal Agency Issues- Callable

Subtotal and Balance

Issuer Subtotal 16.666%

Issuer: Federal National Mortage Assoc

Federal Agency Issues- Callable

Subtotal and Balance

12,000,000.00

12,000,000.00

3,000,000.00

0.00 0.00

12,000,000.00

12,000,000.00

3,000,000.00

Issuer Subtotal

Issuer: US TREASURY

Treasury Securities - Coupon

Subtotal and Balance

4.167% 3,000,000.00

9,000,000.00

0.00 0.00 3,000,000.00

9,000,000.00

Issuer Subtotal 12.500%

Total 100.000%

Run Date: 08116/2006 - 09:16

9,000,000.00

76,779,213.83

0.00

7,822,648.53

0.00

12,600,930.00

9,000,000.00

72,000,932.36

Portfolio OTAY
AP

DA (PRF_DA) SymRept 6.41.200
Report Ver. 5.00



OTAY
Duration Report

Sorted by Investment Type - Investment Type
Through 07/31/2006

Investment Book Par Market Current YTM Current Maturityl Effective
SecuritylD Investment # Fund Issuer Class Value Value Value Rate 365 Yield Call Date Duration

3133XETX7 2001 99 Federal Home Loan Bank Fair 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,988,750.00 5.125 5.125 5.480 09/14/2007 1.053

3133XFS72 2007 99 Federal Home Loan Bank Fair 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,995,312.50 5.350 5.350 5.671 c 12128/2006 0.408

3133XASF5 1991 99 Federal Home Loan Bank Fair 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,979,375.00 3.500 3.498 5.509 1210812006 0.339

3133X6LN4 1980 99 Federal Home Loan Bank Fair 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,998,125.00 2.650 2.650 2.777 0811012006 0.024

3133XARK5 1992 99 Federal Home Loan Bank Fair 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,978,437.50 3.510 3.508 4.983c 09/08/2006 0.000

3133XEP45 1999 99 Federal Home Loan Bank Fair 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,989,687.50 5.000 5.000 5.613 0310212007 0.557

3133XEMS5 1998 99 Federal Home Loan Bank Fair 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,984,062.50 5.000 5.012 6.095c 08/2812006 0.073

3128X4DY4 2004 99 Federal Home Loan Mortgage Fair 2,967,081.47 3,000,000.00 2,961,302.95 4.000 5.200 6.666c 0111312007 0.452

3133XGCU6 2008 99 Federal Home Loan Bank Fair 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,999,062.50 5.450 5.450 5.516 0112912007 0.481

3133X8KC5 1989 99 Federal Home Loan Bank Fair 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,987,812.50 3.000 3.000 3.828c 08128/2006 0.000

3128X4CE9 2005 99 Federal Home Loan Mortgage Fair 2,974,705.47 3,000,000.00 2,970,716.86 3.625 5.232 5.491 02115/2007 0.515

3128X5CCO 2006 99 Federal Home Loan Mortgage Fair 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 •2,995,850.83 . 5.340 5.336 5.624c 12101/2006 0.334

3133X8KE1 1988 99 Federal Home Loan Bank Fair 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,970,000.00 3.025 3.024 5.076c 09/29/2006 0.000

3128X4K67 2000 99 Federal Home Loan Mortgage Fair 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,983,478.85 5.250 5.250 5.618 03/07/2008 1.482

31359MG31 1997 99 Federal National Mortage Assoc Fair 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,986,875.00 5.000 5.000 5.901 c 08/2412006 0.063

3133XFBX3 2003 99 Federal Home Loan Bank Fair 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,994,375.00 5.250 5.250 5.636c 08/04/2006 0.000

3133XARM1 1990 99 Federal Home Loan Bank Fair 3,000,000.00 3;000,000.00 2,993,437.50 3.470 3.470 3.916 09/0812006 0.104

3133XF2C9 2002 99 Federal Home Loan Bank Fair 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 2,994,375.00 5.250 5.247 5.636c 10/0312006 0.172

912827Z62 1995 99 US TREASURY Fair 3,011,167.28 3,000,000.00 3,007,500.00 6.500 4.634 5.985 10/1512006 0.205

912828DJ6 1993 99 US TREASURY Fair 2,980,710.81 3,000,000.00 2,970,000.00 3.125 4.437 5.177 01/31/2007 0.501

912828DOO 1994 99 US TREASURY Fair 2,985,985.58 3,000,000.00 2,972,812.50 3.750 4.492 5.158 03131/2007 0.638

2050003183R 1996 99 California Bank & Trust Amort 79,108.00 79,108.00 79,108.00 3.880 3.934 3.880 01/2212008 1.427 t

r Report Total 62,998,758.61 63,079,108.00 62,780,457.49 5.300 0.353t

t =Duration can not be calculated on these investments due to incomplete Market price data.

Run Date: 0811612006 - 09:17 Page 1

Portfolio OTAY

AP
DU (PRF_DU) SymRept 6.41.200

Report Ver. 5.00



AGENDA ITEM 10

W.O.lG.F. NO:

MEETING DATE:

STAFF REPORT

TYPE MEETING: Regular Board

SUBMITTED BY: Sean Prendergast, Principal

Accountant

APPROVED BY: Joseph Beachem, Chief Financial Officer
(Chief)

APPROVED BY: German Alvarez, Assistant General Manager
(Ass!. GM):

SUBJECT: Accounts Payable Demand List

PURPOSE:

September 6, 2006

DIV. NO.

Attached is the list of demands for the Board's information.

FISCAL IMPACT:

SUMMARY

CHECKS (2001876-2002403)

WIRE TO:

JP MORGAN SECURITIES - REMARKETING FEE

LANDESBANK - CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION

PLAN HANDLERS - MEDICAL CLAIMS

SAN DIEGO COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY - CAP FEES
SAN DIEGO COUNTY WATER AUTHORITY - JUNE

UNION BANK - ID 81 BOND

UNION BANK - PAYROLL TAXES

TOTAL CASH DISBURSEMENTS

RECOMMENDED ACTION:

That the Board receive the attached list of demands.

jb

Attachment

NET DEMANDS
$6,518,567.05

$2,939.42

$37,385.81

$336,407.92

$1,353,681.00
$2,628,794.40

$717,650.02

$275,987.08

$11,871,412.70



OTAYWATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

2001877 08/02/06 06200 AARON ZUNIGA Ref002366082 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000069354 23.09 23.09

2001878 08/02/06 01910 ABCANA INDUSTRIES 775891 07/12/06 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 632.82
775984 07/12/06 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 904.91 1,537.73

2002051 08/09106 01910 ABCANA INDUSTRIES 776023 07/14/06 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 1,963.70
776208 07/17/06 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 1,605.44
776512 07/10106 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 1,583.27
776447 07/20106 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 1,174.53
776666 07/17/06 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 418.02
776209 07/17/06 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 411.21 7,156.17

2002129 08/16/06 01910 ABCANA INDUSTRIES 776714 07/24/06 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 1,466.31
777143 07/27106 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 1,218.85
776983 07/26/06 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 954.15 3,639.31

2002221 08/23/06 01910 ABCANA INDUSTRIES 777559 08/01/06 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 1,440.46
777268 07/31/06 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 608.19
777560 08/01/06 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 464.14
777675 08/03/06 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 417.37 2,930.16

2002325 08/30106 01910 ABCANA INDUSTRIES 778096 08/10106 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 1,494.63
777803 08/07/06 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 1,169.60
777878 08/08/06 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 984.93
777804 08/07/06 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 672.21
777453 07/17106 SODIUM HYPOCHLORITE 61.84 4,383.21

2002052 08/09/06 04069 ABTECH SYSTEMS M2880041N 07/18/06 SERVER POST WARRANTY SUPPORT 3,780.00 3,780.00

2001879 08/02/06 02071 ACCOUNTEMPS 16323802 07/17/06 TEMPORARY SERVICES - CUSTOMER SERVICE 846.23 846.23

2001880 08/02106 06239 ADRIAN CLARK Ref002366121 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000082659 8.74 8.74

2001881 08/02/06 06257 AHRENS CORPORATION Ref002366139 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000087645 718.37 718.37

2002326 08/30106 00132 AIRGAS WEST 103152876 07/31/06 BREATHING AIR 21.08 21.08

2002053 08/09/06 01128 ALCEM FENCE COMPANY INC 18733 07/20106 GATE REPAIR 820.00
18732 07/20106 GATE REPAIR 765.00 1,585.00

2001882 08/02/06 06173 ALFONSO TOJINO Ref002366055 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000025012 8.19 8.19

2001883 08/02/06 06203 ALLAN ALEXANDER Ref002366085 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000070024 17.53 17.53

2002054 08/09/06 02934 ALLEN INSTRUMENTS & SUPPLIES 00592541N 07/18/06 GPS MAPPING EQUIPMENT 1,566.69 1,566.69

Page 1 of 32

_~__~_~~~.~-~- ~··-_·'·"-~~_~~~~"r



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

2002055 08/09/06 01463 ALLIED ELECTRONICS INC 15651201 07/18/06 HOUR METERS 347.75 347.75

2002222 08/23/06 03787 ALLIED TRENCH SHORING SERVICE 708456 08/01/06 STEEL PLATE RENTALS 511.25
702468 07/03106 STEEL PLATE RENTALS 390.00
708978 08/01/06 STEEL PLATE RENTALS 55.00 956.25

2002130 08/16/06 02362 ALLIED WASTE SERVICES 0509002428914 07/25/06 TRASH REMOVAL SERVICES 598.47
0509002430516 07/25/06 ASBESTOS DISPOSAL CONTAINER RENTAL 173.02
0509002431754 07/25/06 TRASH REMOVAL SERVICES 52.74 824.23

2002223 08/23/06 02966 AMERICAN INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY INC 76372 08/02/06 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 246.74 246.74

2002056 08/09/06 06166 AMERICAN MESSAGING L1109570GH 08/01/06 PAGER SERVICES 545.19
L1204693GH 08/01/06 PAGER SERVICES 55.71
L1204693GG 07/01/06 PAGER SERVICES 55.71 656.61

2002224 08/23/06 06166 AMERICAN MESSAGING L1034315GH 08/01/06 PAGER SERVICES 36.64 36.64

2001884 08/02/06 02730 AMERICAN PAYROLL ASSOCIATION 50888 05/31/06 MEMBERSHIP DUES 165.00 165.00

2002131 08/16/06 06152 AMERICAN PEST CONTROL 176641 07/05/06 PEST CONTROL SERVICE 595.00 595.00

2001885 08/02/06 00107 AMERICAN WATER WORKS 1000306920 03/27/06 REFERENCE BOOK 63.00
015171 OS/23/06 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL 213.00
2000493507 OS/23/06 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL 150.00 426.00

2002057 08/09/06 00107 AMERICAN WATER WORKS 2000492938 OS/23/06 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL 25.00 25.00

2002327 08/30/06 00107 AMERICAN WATER WORKS 1000323099 07/26/06 MANUALS 266.00
2000498177 06/05/06 ANNUAL MEMBERSHIP 153.00 419.00

2002328 08/30/06 06279 AMIRAH HALL 015230 08/28/06 REFUND OF OVERPAYMENT 8,432.51 8,432.51

2001886 08/02/06 06205 ANALEA BORJA Ref002366087 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000071029 9.50 9.50

2002329 08/30/06 00155 ANDREW A SMITH COMPANY 18106 08/04/06 APPRAISAL SERVICES 500.00 500.00

2002132 08/16/06 06165 ANITA FIRE HOSE COMPANY, ETC. 01600 07/26/06 FIRE EXTINGUISHER SERVICE 762.22 762.22

2002133 08/16/06 00002 ANSWER INC 015160 07/22/06 ANSWERING SERVICE 1,498.60 1,498.60

2001887 08/02/06 01509 ARC ERGONOMICS 17389 07/13/06 ERGONOMIC KEYBOARD 199.28 199.28

2001888 08/02106 06191 ARLINE MARCHER Ref002366073 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000062202 21.92 21.92

2001889 08/02/06 06188 ARMANDO PAEZ Ref002366070 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000054932 44.94 44.94

Page 2 of 32

"-'"--~----~---~'-'------~''''-'-~~'---'-'.-',----



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

2002134 08/16/06 05753 ARRIETA CONSTRUCTION INC 2 07/27/06 SWEETWATER SPRINGS INTERCONNECTION 17,430.90 17,430.90

2001890 08/02/06 03582 ASI STERLING SECURITY 096985 06/11/06 AFTER HOURS SECURITY SVCS 110.00 110.00

2002058 08/09/06 03582 ASI STERLING SECURITY 97681 07/18/06 AFTER HOURS SECURITY SVCS 1,624.55 1,624.55

2002225 08/23/06 05758 AT&T 015209 08/07/06 PHONE SERVICE 33.33 33.33

2002135 08/16/06 06272 AT&T/MCI T5368764 08/02/06 PHONE SERVICE 499.05 499.05

2002226 08/23/06 06272 AT&T/MCI T5372975 08/03/06 PHONE SERVICE 7,851.49 7,851.49

2002227 08/23/06 03407 ATKINS, SUSAN 1603414 08/18/06 REIMBURSE SOFTWARE PURCHASE 188.02 188.02

2002059 08/09/06 05503 AUTOSALON 20993 07/19/06 AUTO DETAILING SERVICES 1,550.00 1,550.00

2002330 08/30106 05503 AUTOSALON 21125 08/10106 DETAIL SERVICE 975.00 975.00

2002228 08/23106 01583 AZTEC IMAGING 9D2781 08/01/06 TONERS 711.15 711.15

2002229 08/23106 00145 BARRETT ENGINEERED PUMPS 050255 05/23/06 1/2 HP SHALLOW WELL PUMP 359.89
051380 08/02/06 REPAIR SERVICE 75.00
051382 08/02/06 PARTS 74.35
050253 05/23/06 CREDIT MEMO (359.89) 149.35

2002060 08/09/06 01794 BEACHEM, JOSEPH R 015191 08/07/06 REIMB CONF TRVL EXPENSES 68.00 68.00

2002331 08/30106 01630 BEARCOM 3557256RI 08/01/06 SERVICE FOR DISTRICT'S MOBILE RADIOS 598.00 598.00

2002136 08/16/06 06270 BELA FAINSILBER RF255009714 08/11/06 CUSTOMER REFUND 1,738.66 1,738.66

2002230 08/23/06 03763 BERGE'S GOVERNOR SERVICE 6932 08/03/06 PART 327.51 327.51

2002231 08/23/06 01940 BERRYMAN & HENIGAR INC WEST 61558A 07/17/06 PLANCHECK & INSPECTION SERVICES 18,496.83
61558B 07/17/06 PLANCHECK & INSPECTION SERVICES 9,467.85 27,964.68

2002061 08/09/06 02570 BEST LIFE & HEALTH INSURANCE 015194 08/01/06 VOLUNTARY LIFE INSURANCE 307.15 307.15

2002137 08/16/06 02787 BEST RENTALS INC 30336 07/27/06 CONCRETE 188.56
30339 07/27/06 CONCRETE 150.85 339.41

2002232 08/23/06 02787 BEST RENTALS INC 30373 08/02/06 CONCRETE 75.43 75.43

2002332 08/30106 02787 BEST RENTALS INC 30412 08/07/06 CONCRETE 263.99 263.99

Page 3 of 32

----------_.



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

2001891 08/02/06 04806 BJ'S RENTALS 62129 07111/06 CONCRETE 94.82 94.82

2002138 08/16/06 04806 BJ'S RENTALS 64475 07/25/06 CONCRETE 94.82 94.82

2002333 08/30/06 04806 BJ'S RENTALS 66147 08/04/06 CONCRETE 143.31

66698 08/08/06 CONCRETE 140.08 283.39

2001892 08/02/06 02197 BLUE CROSS OF CALIFORNIA 40436 08/01/06 EMPLOYEE ASSISTANCE PROGRAM 603.63 603.63

2001893 08/02/06 06253 BONNIE OLHAUSEN Ref002366135 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000086448 42.92 42.92

2002062 08/09/06 02342 BOOT WORLD INC 10296871N 07/16/06 SAFETY BOOTS 126.63 126.63

2002139 08/16/06 02342 BOOT WORLD INC 10297511N 07/22/06 SAFETY BOOTS 2,530.62 2,530.62

2002140 08/16/06 05529 BOWEN & ASSOCIATES 06109 07/21/06 APPRAISAL & CONSULTING SERVICES 6,500.00 6,500.00

2002141 08/16/06 00559 BOYLE ENGINEERING CORPORATION 034471 07/14/06 PLANCHECK & INSPECTION SERVICES 6,566.36

32836 05/12/06 PLANCHECK & INSPECTION SERVICES 6,539.78 13,106.14

2002142 08/16106 03458 BREITFELDER, LARRY 70130706 07/31/06 REIMBURSE MILEAGE EXPENSE 55.18 55.18

2002143 08/16/06 03679 BRG CONSULTING INC 06060311 06/30106 1296-3 RESERVOIR 3,269.75 3,269.75

2002334 08/30106 03679 BRG CONSULTING INC 06070412 07/31/06 1296-3 RESERVOIR 4,848.28 4,848.28

2001894 08/02/06 01232 BRODING'S BATTERY WAREHOUSE 30312 07/11/06 BATTERY 65.67 65.67

2002063 08/09/06 01232 BRODING'S BATTERY WAREHOUSE 35209 07/18/06 BATTERIES 65.67 65.67

2002144 08/16/06 01232 BRODING'S BATTERY WAREHOUSE 34580 06/27/06 AUTOMOTIVE BATTERY 65.67 65.67

2002233 08/23/06 01232 BRODING'S BATTERY WAREHOUSE 35651 07/31/06 AUTOMOBILE BATTERIES 646.28

35722 08/01/06 AUTOMOTIVE BATTERIES 323.14
35624 07/31/06 AUTOMOBILE BATTERIES 242.28
35788 08/03/06 ALTERNATOR 144.33 1,356.03

2001895 08/02/06 04836 BROWN FIELD BUSINESS PARK LP APN64622128 07/21/06 EASEMENT PURCHASE 5,825.00 5,825.00

2001896 08/02/06 06244 BUCK ENROTH Ref002366126 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000084578 47.76 47.76

2002145 08/16/06 03721 BULLET LOGISTICS INC 07150603350 07/15/06 COURIER SERVICES 227.70 227.70

2001876 07/28/06 03005 BURKE, WILLIAMS & SORENSEN LLP 116909 07/27/06 LEGAL SERVICES JUNE 2006 2,255.19

116913 07/27/06 LEGAL SERVICES JUNE 2006 20,949.33 23,204.52

Page 4 of 32

.-,-,~..._~- ..~._- W.>'.<"""., ... .~~-'- ,.".~ .., _,-, c.':.it 3"_ ~(c,



OTAYWATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

2002335 08/30/06 03005 BURKE, WILLIAMS & SORENSEN LLP 117192 08/23/06 LEGAL SERVICES JULY 2006 8,529.80
117191 08/23/06 LEGAL SERVICES JULY 2006 1,817.85 10,347.65

2002234 08/23/06 00462 BUSINESSWEEK 015220 08/01/06 SUBSCRIPTION RENEWAL 129.97 129.97

2001897 08/02/06 06227 BYCOR GENERAL CONTRACTORS Ref002366109 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000080194 577.80 577.80

2001898 08/02/06 00223 C W MCGRATH INC 20995 07/13/06 CRUSHED ROCK 306.70 306.70

2002064 08/09/06 00223 C W MCGRATH INC 21034 07/17/06 CRUSHED AGGREGATE & ROCK 294.76
21061 07/19/06 CRUSHED AGGREGATE & ROCK 99.99 394.75

2002146 08/16/06 00223 C W MCGRATH INC 21113 07/24/06 CRUSHED ROCK 385.57
21178 07/27/06 CRUSHED ROCK 72.93 458.50

2002235 08/23/06 00223 C W MCGRATH INC 21199 07/28/06 CRUSHED ROCK 450.22 450.22

2002336 08/30/06 00223 C W MCGRATH INC 21306 08/07/06 CRUSHED ROCK 202.05 202.05

2002065 08/09/06 00698 CALIF DEPT OF HEALTH SERVICES 39522 03/27/06 LICENSE FEE RENEWAL 1,390.00 1,390.00

2002066 08/09/06 02920 CALIFORNIA COMMERCIAL 56578 07/17/06 ASPHALT 1,072.38 1,072.38

2002236 08/23/06 06275 CALIFORNIA DEBT & INVESTMENT 015222 08/21/06 SEMINAR REGISTRATIONS 725.00 725.00

2001899 08/02/06 04401 CALIFORNIA ELECTRIC SUPPLY 1955490805 07/12/06 SPRING NUTS AND FENDER WASHERS 452.36
1955490804 07/12/06 CONDUIT AND FITTINGS 805.66
1955490694 07/12/06 CONDUIT 237.48 1,495.50

2002067 08/09/06 04401 CALIFORNIA ELECTRIC SUPPLY 1955490940 07/14/06 PULL BOXES 188.61
1955490942 07/14/06 PULL BOXES 103.83 292.44

2002147 08/16/06 04401 CALIFORNIA ELECTRIC SUPPLY 1955490943 07/27/06 SUPPLIES 175.43 175.43

2002337 08/30/06 04401 CALIFORNIA ELECTRIC SUPPLY 1955492091 08/08/06 PARTS 161.67 161.67

2002148 08/16/06 05211 CALIFORNIA FOUNDATION OF THE 015195 08/03/06 DISTRICT MEMBERSHIP 15,000.00 15,000.00

2002068 08/09/06 01243 CALIFORNIA NEVADA SECTION 015144 07/20/06 CERTIFICATION RENEWAL 65.00 65.00

2002149 08/16/06 01243 CALIFORNIA NEVADA SECTION 015202 08/14/06 CONFERENCE REGISTRATION 300.00
00249421N 08/08/06 SEMINAR REGISTRATION 90.00 390.00

2002150 08/16/06 00693 CALIFORNIA SPECIAL DIST ASSOC 015198 08/10/06 MEETING RESERVATIONS 96.00 96.00

2002069 08/09106 00245 CALIFORNIA STAMP CO 684955 07/17106 STAMP 57.74 57.74

Page 5 of 32



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

2002338 08/30/06 00192 CALIFORNIA WATER ENVIRONMENT 015234 08/30/06 CERTIFICATION RENEWAL 53.00 53.00

2002070 08/09/06 02972 CALIFORNIA WATER ENVIRONMENTAL 1191 08/09/06 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL 100.00 100.00

2002151 08/16/06 01004 CALOLYMPIC SAFETY 003763 07/24/06 EYE-WASH STATION 315.97 315.97

2002237 08/23/06 03503 CAMERON. KEVIN 15640806 08/18/06 REIMBURSE CONF EXPENSES 172.85 172.85

2001900 08/02/06 06247 CAMILLA COLEMAN Ref002366129 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000085387 47.42 47.42

2001901 08/02/06 03684 CANON BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 3520858 07/07/06 COPIER SERVICE 311.47
3521539 07/08/06 COPIER SERVICE 209.07 520.54

2002339 08/30/06 03684 CANON BUSINESS SOLUTIONS 3543123 08/09/06 COPIER MAINTENANCE 1,316.70
3542007 08/06/06 COPIER MAINTENANCE 286.47
3542670 08/09/06 COPIER MAINTENANCE 147.18 1.750.35

2002340 08/30106 03572 CARLTON. DISANTE & 42211 08/23/06 LEGAL SERVICES JUNE 2006 11.299.34 11,299.34

2002238 08/23/06 02758 CARMEL BUSINESS SYSTEMS INC 6295 08/01/06 STORAGE & DESTRUCTION OF DOCUMENTS 2.773.99 2,773.99

2002239 08/23/06 06159 CART-AWAY CONCRETE SYSTEMS INC 607145 08/03/06 CONCRETE TRAILER 17.149.10 17,149.10

2002240 08/23/06 03491 CASA DE ORO CARWASH 297 08/01/06 CAR WASH SERVICES 1.906.99 1,906.99

2002241 08/23/06 03742 CB & I CONSTRUCTORS INC 14622722 05/30/06 RETENTION PAYMENT 172,424.76 172,424.76

2001902 08/02/06 06171 CELSO JAMITO Ref002366053 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000016784 12.88 12.88

2001903 08/02106 06259 CEMENT CUTTING INC Ref002366141 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000088895 526.87 526.87

2001904 08/02106 06184 CENTEX HOMES Ref002366066 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000052646 279.06 279.06

2001905 08/02/06 06242 CHRIS WHITE Ref002366124 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000083789 763.08 763.08

2001906 08/02/06 06217 CHRISTINE SILVA Ref002366099 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000075397 35.14 35.14

2001907 08/02/06 06252 CHULA VISTA SCHOOL DISTRICT Ref002366134 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000086419 772.73 772.73

2002071 08/09/06 05008 CINGULAR WIRELESS 015181 07/29/06 WIRELESS PHONE SERVICE 11.50 11.50

2002152 08/16/06 00234 CITY TREASURER 446597 07/19/06 METROPOLITAN SEWERAGE SYSTEM 153.037.00 153,037.00

2002341 08/30/06 00234 CITY TREASURER C448334 08/30/06 WATER DELIVERIES 18.915.96 18,915.96

Page 6 of 32



OTAYWATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

2001908 08/02106 04119 CLARKSON LAB & SUPPLY INC 30092 07/10106 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 510.00
30090 07/10106 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 188.00
30091 07/10106 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 188.00 886.00

2002072 08/09/06 04119 CLARKSON LAB & SUPPLY INC 30213 07/17/06 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 460.00
30208 07/17/06 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 418.00
30211 07/17/06 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 326.00
30210 07/17/06 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 280.00
30209 07/17/06 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 234.00
30212 07/17/06 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 234.00
30214 07/17/06 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 188.00 2,140.00

2002242 08/23/06 04119 CLARKSON LAB & SUPPLY INC 30429 07/31/06 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 514.00
30434 07/31/06 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 510.00
30431 07/31/06 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 380.00
30432 07/31/06 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 380.00
30430 07/31/06 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 328.00
30435 07/31/06 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 326.00
30436 07/31/06 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 306.00
30428 07/31/06 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 282.00
30433 07/31/06 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 280.00 3,306.00

2002342 08/30106 04119 CLARKSON LAB & SUPPLY INC 30494 08/05/06 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 652.00
30499 08/05/06 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 372.00
30497 08/05/06 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 352.00
30495 08/05/06 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 282.00
30498 08/05/06 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 280.00
30496 08/05/06 BACTERIOLOGICAL ANALYSIS 142.00 2,080.00

2002073 08/09/06 03334 COMPUTER MASTERS 65149 07/20106 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE SERVICE 3,458.78 3,458.78

2002153 08/16/06 03334 COMPUTER MASTERS 65098 06/30106 SAMSUNG 46" LCD HDTV'S 12,260.29 12,260.29

2002243 08/23/06 03774 CONSTRUCTION RESIDUE RECYCLING 974077 07/31/06 DUMPING SERVICES 320.00 320.00

2002154 08/16/06 03706 CONSUMERS PIPE & SUPPLY CO 622578 07/27/06 WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES 449.60 449.60

2002244 08/23/06 03706 CONSUMERS PIPE & SUPPLY CO 622781 07/28/06 WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES 156.88 156.88

2001909 08/02/06 00099 COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 657 07/26/06 SEWER CHARGES 3,827.61
661 07/26/06 SEWER CHARGES 144.99 3,972.60

2001910 08/02/06 00134 COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 2006013 07/07/06 COUNTY ASSESSOR DATA 1,500.00 1,500.00

2002343 08/30106 00184 COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO EH6244 08/09/06 RECLAMATION PLAN CHECK 115.00 115.00

Page 7 of 32

_=-'~_·"o~_____
'-~"""',.-",...,....-""'''' -"..,...~,~.~.~~-_ J_._~. -_·.:"'?:·:~":':'~7··~??:"-"·._" "c.-";.-:,-,:,,,--d;jii



OTAYWATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

2002344 08/30/06 00433 COUNTY OF SAN DIEGO 97090349 08/21/06 PERMIT FEES 278.00

97089622 08/16/06 PERMIT FEES 259.00 537.00

2002074 08/09/06 05125 CUDLlP, JAMES 015183 08/07/06 REIMBURSE CONF TRVL EXPENSES 208.37 208.37

2001911 08/02/06 01280 DALEY & HEFT 27597 07/17/06 LEGAL SERVICES JUNE 2006 2,668.49 2,668.49

2002345 08/30/06 01280 DALEY & HEFT 27789 08/15/06 LEGAL SERVICES JULY 2006 3,650.24 3,650.24

2002245 08/23/06 04511 DANTE CORP APN64619017 08/22/06 TEMP CONSTRUCTION EASEMENT 1,000.00 1,000.00

2001912 08/02/06 00463 DAPPER TIRE CO 230455 07/12/06 TIRES 854.60 854.60

2002246 08/23106 00463 DAPPER TIRE CO 231191 07/31/06 TIRES 673.14 673.14

2002247 08/23/06 03354 DATAPROSE INC 36340 08/03/06 POSTAGE FOR CUST. BILLINGS 14,526.57
36339 08/03/06 BILLING PRINT SERVICES 9,041.12 23,567.69

2002248 08/23/06 04550 DATATREE 90034076 07/31/06 MAP PURCHASING SERVICE 110.00 110.00

2001913 08/02/06 06233 DAWN NORDIN Ref002366115 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000081460 27.03 27.03

2001914 08/02/06 06248 DC XCAVATION Ref002366130 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000085389 363.79 363.79

2002249 08/23/06 03606 DCSE INC 107544315 08/02106 ANNUAL MAINTENANCE 2,004.79 2,004.79

2001915 08/02/06 06258 DCX Ref002366140 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000088282 379.18 379.18

2001916 08/02/06 06186 DEBRA BROWN Ref002366068 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000054334 23.49 23.49

2002250 08/23/06 00852 DEC CONSULTANTS INC U071890 07/31/06 2002-2003 CP PROGRAM 6,458.72
U071917 07/31/06 2005-2007 CP PROGRAM 4,724.26 11,182.98

2002155 08/16/06 01797 DELL ENTERPRISES 180736 07/21/06 SIGN 15.47 15.47

2002075 08/09/06 02603 DELL MARKETING LP N97912116 07/18/06 LAPTOP 1,681.51
N93347708 07/14/06 PRINTER 322.19

N95160788 07/17/06 KEYBOARD 29.76 2,033.46

2002156 08/16/06 02603 DELL MARKETING LP P03053099 07/21/06 FLAT MONITORS 3,149.47 3,149.47

2002251 08/23/06 02603 DELL MARKETING LP P06378371 07/24/06 COMPUTER HARDWARE 144.75
20237720 08/01/06 COMPUTER PART 94.91
P15013550 07/28/06 COMPUTER MODULE 67.85 307.51

2002346 08/30/06 02603 DELL MARKETING LP P27829518 08/06/06 DELL 51 OOMP DLP PROJECTOR 2,737.72

Page 8 of 32



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

P26440684 08/04/06 PROJECTOR LAMPS 496.30
P35588346 08/10/06 GB MODULE, HARD DRIVE 387.31 3,621.33

2001917 08/02/06 06228 DENNIS RAGLIN Ref002366110 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000080239 35.64 35.64

2002039 08/09/06 04558 DEPARTMENT OF CHILD Ben2366394 08/08/06 PAYROLL DEDUCTION 342.92 342.92

2002209 08/23/06 04558 DEPARTMENT OF CHILD Ben2366901 08/22106 PAYROLL DEDUCTION 342.92 342.92

2001918 08/02/06 03744 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 580192 06/30/06 FINGERPRINTING SERVICES 192.00 192.00

2002157 08/16/06 03744 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 581489 07/27106 FINGERPRINTING SERVICES 32.00 32.00

2002347 08/30/06 03744 DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE 584645 08/08/06 FINGERPRINT ANALYSIS SERVICES 224.00 224.00

2001919 08/02/06 06207 DEREK DENARO Ref002366089 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000071890 39.59 39.59

2001920 08/02/06 06224 DESHAWN REILLY Ref002366106 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000076092 15.64 15.64

2002076 08/09/06 03504 DIABATE, KOMAN S 015188 08/07/06 TUITION REIMBURSEMENT 695.00 695.00

2002252 08/23/06 03504 DIABATE, KOMAN S 15960806 08/17/06 REIMBURSE CONF EXPENSES 154.85 154.85

2002077 08/09/06 02965 DIPIETRO, BRANDON D 015187 08/07/06 BOOKISUPPLY REIMBURSEMENT 36.00 36.00

2002348 08/30/06 03417 DIRECTV 398959946 08/05/06 SATELLITE TV SERVICE 46.96 46.96

2002158 08/16/06 02366 DLT SOLUTIONS INC S1007118 07/21/06 AUTOCAD SOFTWARE SUPPORT 10,339.69 10,339.69

2001921 08/02/06 06218 DON PERRY REALTY Ref002366100 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000075485 46.24 46.24

2001922 08/02/06 06168 DORNOCH RANCI-j Ref002366050 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000008974 21.20 21.20

2002078 08/09/06 01926 EAST COUNTY URGENT CARE 1005980706 07/18/06 HEALTH EXAMS 82.00 82.00

2002253 08/23/06 02447 EDCO DISPOSAL CORPORATION 015170 07/31/06 RECYCLING SERVICES 47.19 47.19

2002079 08/09/06 03261 EDEN SYSTEMS INC INV0094820 07/19/06 SUPPORT PLUS AGREEMENT 13,200.00 13,200.00

2002159 08/16/06 03261 EDEN SYSTEMS INC INV0093676 06/25/06 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 4,800.00 4,800.00

2002254 08/23/06 00230 EDP PRODUCTS INC 804496 07/31/06 CARTRIDGE STORAGE/RETRIEVAL 209.20 209.20

2002160 08/16/06 01015 EL DORADO COATINGS INC 52673 07/26/06 SANDBLASTING 225.00 225.00

2001923 08/02/06 06199 ELENA T FLORES Ref002366081 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000069193 22.13 22.13

Page 9 of 32



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

2002080 08/09/06 01314 EMEDCO CO., INC 55318200 07/18/06 NUMBER CARDS 110.55 110.55

2002349 08/30/06 05128 EMPIRE ELECTRICAL SUPPLY 105150011 08/10/06 MATERIAL FOR DATA CENTER 422.82
105039001 08/04/06 SUPPLY 244.24 667.06

2001924 08/02/06 06195 . ERIC TALAMAYAN Ref002366077 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000067062 53.76 53.76

2002255 08/23/06 03725 ESRI,INC 91362138 08/02/06 PROFESSIONAL GIS DATABASE SUPPORT 15,812.22 15,812.22

2002161 08/16/06 02639 EW TRUCK & EQUIPMENT 164593 06/05/06 FILTERS 117.12
164759 06/06/06 FUEL SWITCH 60.70
165382 07/01/06 FILTERS 46.88
164156 OS/26/06 REPAIR PARTS 44.72
165907 07/22/06 FILTERS 40.22
164360 05/31/06 REPAIR PARTS 23.26
164656 06/05/06 FILTERS 16.62
164735 06/06/06 FILTER 10.74
161871 04/24/06 CREDIT MEMO (353.89) 6.37

2002350 08/30/06 02639 EW TRUCK & EQUIPMENT 168953 08/04/06 PARTS 76.70
169323 08/10/06 PARTS 11.64 88.34

2002256 08/23/06 03757 FANDEL ENTERPRISES 1207 07/27/06 TELECOMMUNICATIONS CONSULTING SERVICE 9,240.00 9,240.00

2001925 08/02/06 04986 FARR, STEVEN 015162 07/26/06 TUITION REIMBURSEMENT 235.77 235.77

2002257 08/23/06 00338 FEDEX FREIGHT WEST INC 0980361384 07/29/06 FREIGHT SERVICE 75.53 75.53

2002081 08/09/06 04947 FEDEX KINKO'S 270300000595 05/30/06 PRINTING & COPYING SERVICES 243.24
270300000471 04/11/06 PRINTING & COPYING SERVICE 173.21 416.45

2002082 08/09/06 03546 FERGUSON WATERWORKS 0161818 07/12106 INVENTORY 5,483.88
0161799 07/14/06 INVENTORY 5,432.16
0162147 07/17/06 WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES 4,711.58

01618201 07/18/06 INVENTORY 3,612.92
0161820 07/12106 INVENTORY 1,019.66 20,260.20

2002162 08/16/06 03546 FERGUSON WATERWORKS 01358292 02/01/06 WAREHOUSE SUPPLY 451.62 451.62

2002258 08/23/06 03546 FERGUSON WATERWORKS 0162617 08/02/06 INVENTORY 5,714.39
0163257 07/28/06 INVENTORY 1,237.54
01621431 08/02/06 GATE CAPS 674.95 7,626.88

2002351 08/30106 03546 FERGUSON WATERWORKS 0165977 08/04/06 INVENTORY 7,951.95
0164472 08/07/06 WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES 3,866.22

Page 10 of 32



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

0165979 08/04/06 INVENTORY 3,612.92
0165978 08/04/06 INVENTORY 1,784.47
0164697 08/07/06 WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES 1,075.83
0165990 08/04/06 INVENTORY 1,047.40
01659781 08/08/06 INVENTORY 962.33
0164476 08/07106 WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES 317.05 20,618.17

2001926 08/02/06 03546 FERGUSON WATERWORKS #1083 0161816 07/12/06 INVENTORY 5,172.17

0161823 07/12/06 INVENTORY 6,017.97 11,190.14

2002259 08/23/06 02470 FIRST BANKCARD 015214 08/09/06 DISTRICT EXPENSES 157.86
015203 08/09/06 DISTRICT EXPENSES 124.49
015213 08/09/06 DISTRICT EXPENSES 117.36 399.71

2002083 08/09/06 00035 FISHER SCIENTIFIC 4248621 07/19/06 LABORATORY SUPPLIES 2,561.27 2,561.27

2002260 08/23/06 00035 FISHER SCIENTIFIC 4574880 08/02/06 LABORATORY SUPPLIES 78.06 78.06

2002261 08/23/06 02591 FITNESS TECH INC 3452 08/01/06 MAINTENANCE FOR FITNESS EQUIPMENT 100.00 100.00

2001927 08/02/06 03109 FOLEY & LARDNER 27061293 07/21/06 LEGAL SERVICES JUNE 2006 870.25 870.25

2002262 08/23/06 03109 FOLEY & LARDNER 27069619 08/14/06 LEGAL SERVICES JULY 2006 662.50
27054977 07/10106 LEGAL SERVICES JULY 2006 131.66 794.16

2001928 08/02/06 06216 FRANCES LOMELY Ref002366098 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000075117 120.69 120.69

2002163 08/16/06 01327 FRANK & SON PAVING INC 0307 07/24/06 PAVING SERVICES 3,902.70 3,902.70

2001929 08/02/06 06180 FRANK LOPEZ Ref002366062 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000044577 20.24 20.24

2002263 08/23/06 02028 FT INTERACTIVE DATA CORP 05700076 07/31/06 DIAL-UP SERVICE FOR INVESTMENTS 85.00 85.00

2002264 08/23/06 03094 FULLCOURT PRESS 15432 07111/06 PIPLINE NEWSLETTER 4,433.69 4,433.69

2002164 08/16/06 05626 GAME 7 CONSULTING 1408 07/25/06 TEMPORARY SERVICE SYSTEMS ANALYST 3,002.00 3,002.00

2002265 08/23/06 05626 GAME 7 CONSULTING 1420 08/22/06 TEMPORARY SERVICES - IT/GIS 8,969.75
1411 08/01/06 TEMPORARY SERVICES - ITIGIS 3,238.00 12,207.75

2002352 08/30106 05626 GAME 7 CONSULTING 1414 08/08/06 TEMPORARY SERVICES - ITIGIS 5,834.50 5,834.50

2001930 08/02106 03609 GBA MASTER SERIES INC 015178 08/01/06 CONFERENCE REGISTRATION 500.00
015179 08/01/06 CONFERENCE REGISTRATION 2,000.00 2,500.00

2001931 08/02/06 06232 GEORGE DOWNING Ref002366114 07/28106 UB Refund Cst #0000081118 14.77 14.77

Page 11 of 32



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

2001932 08/02/06 06206 GERALD MENEZES Ref002366088 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000071808 56.09 56.09

2001933 08/02/06 03537 GHA TECHNOLOGIES INC 380400 07/10106 CARTRIDGES 818.29 818.29

2002084 08/09/06 03537 GHA TECHNOLOGIES INC 381783 07/19/06 EXTERNAL HARD DISK DRIVE 382.51 382.51

2002353 08/30106 03537 GHA TECHNOLOGIES INC 385226 08/08/06 COLOR TONER 1,546.99 1,546.99

2002165 08/16/06 06271 GLENN ABBATE RF041 007436 08/11/06 CUSTOMER REFUND 152.23 152.23

2001934 08/02/06 06151 GPSCITY.COM 247895 07111/06 VOICE GUIDANCE GPS 1,992.90 1,992.90

2002266 08/23/06 05515 GREENTREE APPLIED SYSTEMS INC 015186 08/01/06 ANNUAL TELEPHONE SUPPORT 900.00 900.00

2002267 08/23/06 03773 GTC SYSTEMS INC 25282 07/31/06 TECHNICAL SUPPORT SERVICE 2,399.76 2,399.76

2001935 08/02106 06250 GUADALUPE HERNANDEZ Ref002366132 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000085889 126.00 126.00

2002166 08/16/06 02630 HAAKER EQUIPMENT COMPANY C48698 07/24/06 SCREEN 55.99 55.99

2002085 08/09/06 00174 HACH COMPANY 4031063 08/09/06 TRAINING CLASS REGISTRATION 1,080.00 1,080.00

2002086 08/09/06 02629 HANSON AGGREGATES PACIFIC 471276 07/17/06 CRUSHED AGGREGATES & ROCK 339.98
471774 07/19/06 CRUSHED AGGREGATES & ROCK 284.38 624.36

2002268 ·08/23/06 02629 HANSON AGGREGATES PACIFIC 474535 08/03/06 CRUSHED AGGREGATES & ROCK 769.16
474536 08/03/06 CRUSHED AGGREGATES & ROCK 233.39 1,002.55

2001936 08/02/06 04217 HATCH & PARENT 04217 07/21/06 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 3,071.08 3,071.08

2002087 08/09/06 00150 HAWTHORNE MACHINERY CO PS10205806 04/28/06 REPAIR PART 35.27
PS010205807 04/28/06 REPAIR PARTS 16.57 51.84

2002167 08/16106 00169 HAWTHORNE POWER SYSTEMS PS100013767 06/16/06 APCD RETRO FIT PARTS 2,149.75
PS100013765 06/16/06 APCD RETRO FIT PARTS 1,497.42
PS100013764 06/16/06 APCD RETRO FIT PARTS 366.07
PS100012640 05/30106 SERVICE MANUAL 340.76
PS100012637 05/30106 THERMOSTAT, GAGE 211.37
PS100013762 06/16/06 APCD RETRO FIT PARTS 210.82
PS100012636 05/30106 WRENCH 88.79
PS100013766 06/16/06 APCD RETRO FIT PARTS 38.19
PS100013763 06/16/06 APCD RETRO FIT PARTS 10.47 4,913.64

2002354 08/30106 00169 HAWTHORNE POWER SYSTEMS 1217790 07/27/06 REPAIR SERVICE 8,667.28 8,667.28

Page 12 of 32



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

2002168 08/16/06 04472 HECTOR I MARES-COSSIO 16 07/01/06 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 3,000.00 3,000.00

2002169 08/16/06 00062 HELIX WATER DISTRICT 178540010806 08/07/06 WATER BILL - AVOCADO BLVD 29.65
174639860806 08/07/06 WATER BILL - RUSSELL SQ 29.65 59.30

2002269 08/23/06 02096 HELIX WATER DISTRICT 015215 08/14/06 LOAN OF WATER TRUCK 100.00 100.00

2002355 08/30/06 05969 HERSEY METERS 1256089 08/10/06 SOFTWARE & SUPPLIES 23,714.92 23,714.92

2001937 08/02/06 06245 HERZOG CONTRACTING CORPORATIDr Ref002366127 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000084780 701.91 701.91

2002170 08/16/06 01799 HIRSCH & COMPANY 9327 06/10106 30" RECYCLED WATER PIPELINE 45,629.00 45,629.00

2002356 08/30/06 01853 HOFFMEYER CO 207145401 08/04/06 FIRE HOSE 915.88
207145301 08/04/06 FIRE HOSE 915.88
207154501 08/10/06 FIRE HOSE 588.42 2,420.18

2001938 08/02/06 01109 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 3196868 07/07/06 BUILDING MAINT SUPPLIES 47.08
34059764 07/12/06 BUILDING MAINT SUPPLIES 126.56
7077146 06/23/06 BUILDING MAINT SUPPLIES 174.63
34059816 07/12/06 BUILDING MAINT SUPPLIES 40.52
5568693 06/25/06 BUILDING MAINT SUPPLIES 29.03
5010488 06/25/06 BUILDING MAlNT SUPPLIES 70.31 488.13

2002270 08/23/06 01033 HOMESTEAD TREE SERVICE 4934 07/31/06 TREE TRIMMING SERVICE 1,600.00 1,600.00

2002271 08/23/06 00066 HUGHES SUPPLY INC S124389515001 08/01/06 NO OXIDE GREASE 518.23 518.23

2002088 08/09/06 06265 HUNT, JASON 015182 08/07/06 CLASS A DRIVER'S LICENSE REIMB 64.00 64.00

2001939 08/02106 03743 HYDROTEX 520825 07/12/06 OIL 1,154.47 1,154.47

2002089 08/09/06 03615 I.M.PAC. GOVERNMENT SERVICES 015193 07/21/06 DISTRICT EXPENSES 2,228.18 2,228.18

2002171 08/16/06 03615 I.M.PAC. GOVERNMENT SERVICES 015199 07/21/06 DISTRICT EXPENSES 2,119.65 2,119.65

2002272 08/23/06 03615 I.M.PAC. GOVERNMENT SERVICES 015218 07/21/06 DISTRICT EXPENSES 123.42 123.42

2002357 08/30/06 06266 IDEAL WIPING RAG COMPANY 037252 08/10/06 RAGS 237.05 237.05

2002090 08/09/06 02943 INDUSTRIAL METAL SUPPLY CO 583109 07/19/06 MATERIALS 723.00 723.00

2002172 08/16/06 02943 INDUSTRIAL METAL SUPPLY CO 585460 07/21/06 MATERIALS 782.03 782.03

2002273 08/23/06 04220 INDUSTRIAL SUPPLY DISTRIBUTORS 027134 08/01/06 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 197.88 197.88

Page 13 of 32



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

2002173 08/16/06 00597 INGERSOLL-RAND EQUIPMENT 50677754 07/18/06 L1GHTSOURCE 9,158.75
50650358 07/18/06 COMPACTOR 5,323.84

50666232 04/18/06 CREDIT MEMO (458.72) 14,023.87

2002174 08/16/06 01982 INTEGRATED OFFICE SYSTEMS 19979 07/13/06 TONER CARTRIDGE 72.41 72.41

2002274 08/23/06 02372 INTERIOR PLANT SERVICE INC 22011 07/31/06 PLANT LEASE & SERVICE 181.00 181.00

2002040 08/09/06 02267 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE Ben2366388 08/08/06 PAYROLL DEDUCTION 50.00 50.00

2002041 08/09/06 04077 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE Ben2366398 08/08/06 PAYROLL DEDUCTION 64.00 64.00

2002210 08/23/06 02267 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE Ben2366893 08/22/06 PAYROLL DEDUCTION 50.00 50.00

2002211 08/23/06 04077 INTERNAL REVENUE SERVICE Ben2366905 08/22/06 PAYROLL DEDUCTION 64.00 64.00

2001940 08/02/06 03250 INTERNATIONAL PERSONNEL 015163 07/28/06 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL 40.00 40.00

2002091 08/09/06 03539 INTERNATIONAL PUBLIC 24119192 07/28/06 MEMBERSHIP DUES 145.00 145.00

2002275 08/23/06 01591 IRON MOUNTAIN RECORDS EZ34531 07/31/06 OFF SITE RECORDS STORAGE 256.30
EZ34530 07/31/06 OFF SITE RECORDS STORAGE 0.60 256.90

2001941 08/02/06 05836 JACOBS INC. W9X9540105 06/20106 450-1 RESERVOIR & 680-1 PUMP STATION 29,116.46 29,116.46

2002092 08/09/06 05836 JACOBS INC. W9X9540106 07/18/06 450-1 RESERVOIR & 680-1 PUMP STATION 40,786.13 40,786.13

2001942 08/02/06 06210 JAMES CLIFFORD Ref002366092 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000072973 43.17 43.17

2002175 08/16/06 03077 JANI KING OF CALIFORNIA INC SD007061 062 07/13/06 JANITORIAL SERVICE 525.00 525.00

2002276 08/23/06 03077 JANI KING OF CALIFORNIA INC SD008060447 08/01/06 JANITORIAL SERVICES 3,905.00

SD008060457 08/01/06 JANITORIAL SERVICES 990.00 4,895.00

2001943 08/02/06 03345 JENKINS, WILLIAM L 015165 07/26/06 REIMBURSE SUBSCRIPTION RENEWAL 125.00

8803641 08/01/06 SEMINAR REGISTRATION REIMB 597.00 722.00

2001944 08/02/06 06202 JENNIFER RIOS Ref002366084 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000069909 6.93 6.93

2002093 08/09/06 06263 JERRY LINTNER 015164 07/26/06 ADVANCEMENT REQUEST 209.47 209.47

2001945 08/02/06 06189 JESSIEAMIS Ref002366071 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000058175 42.10 42.10

2001946 08/02/06 06175 JESUS MEZA Ref002366057 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000028723 10.13 10.13

2002358 08/30106 00260 JOHNSTONE SUPPLY - SAN DIEGO S1346800001 08/10/06 EXHAUST FANS 799.59 799.59

Page 14 of 32

._-~.--



OTAYWATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

2001947 08/02/06 06193 JOSE A MARTINEZ Ref002366075 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000064655 85.40 85.40

2001948 08/02/06 06243 JOSE HERNANDEZ Ref002366125 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000083851 43.97 43.97

2001949 08/02/06 06197 JOSE RODRIGUEZ Ref002366079 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000068713 12.60 12.60

2002094 08/09/06 03291 JP MORGAN CHASE BANK NA 20060600604 07/14/06 ADMINISTRATION FEE 3,890.20 3,890.20

2001950 08/02/06 06183 JUHEE LEE Ref002366065 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000051693 83.96 83.96

2001951 08/02/06 00056 KAMAN INDUSTRIAL TECHNOLOGIES X444991 07/12/06 MOTOREDUCER PART 2,041.74 2,041.74

2001952 08/02/06 06209 KARLTON TERRELL Ref002366091 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000072652 35.25 35.25

2001953 08/02/06 06240 KELLY RANDALL Ref002366122 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000083241 76.51 76.51

2002359 08/30/06 05126 KEN DAROIS 015233 08/29/06 REPLACE CHECK 1,848.92 1,848.92

2001954 08/02/06 06213 KENNETH REED Ref002366095 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000074533 75.32 75.32

2001955 08/02/06 06198 KERICARTER Ref002366080 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000069138 47.39 47.39

2002095 08/09/06 04670 KETIV TECHNOLOGIES INC COO012712 07/17/06 TELEPHONE & EMAIL SUPPORT 1,195.00
014895 01/18/06 CREDIT MEMO (5.38)
012430 12/28/05 CREDIT MEMO (24.23) 1,165.39

2001956 08/02/06 05405 KIM BAXTER 015161 07/27/06 CLAIM REIMBURSEMENT 185.00 185.00

2001957 08/02/06 05840 KIRK PAVING INC 3103 06/16/06 PAVING SERVICES 27,905.00 27,905.00

2001958 08/02/06 06260 KIRK PAVING INC Ref002366142 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000088913 675.53 675.53

2002096 08/09/06 03007 KLAAHSEN,RANDY 015189 08/08/06 TUITION REIMBURSEMENT 223.26 223.26

2002176 08/16/06 04996 KNOX ATTORNEY SERVICE INC 188359 07/21/06 COURIER SERVICE 25.00
188358 07/21/06 COURIER SERVICE 25.00
188360 07/21/06 COURIER SERVICE 25.00 75.00

2002277 08/23/06 04996 KNOX ATTORNEY SERVICE INC 190350 08/02/06 COURIER SERVICE 25.00 25.00

2002360 08/30/06 04996 KNOX ATTORNEY SERVICE INC 191181 08/08/06 COURIER SERVICE 25.00
191180 08/08/06 COURIER SERVICE 25.00 50.00

2001959 08/02/06 06172 KYUNGAE LEE PARK Ref002366054 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000020376 124.13 124.13

Page 15 of 32

-_ ....._-----~~---_. __._-.-._."._- ~~~.......,...~-~-:--,-_.



OTAYWATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

2002097 08/09/06 01859 LA PRENSA SAN DIEGO 20690 07/17/06 JOB POSTING 53.01 53.01

2002278 08/23/06 01859 LA PRENSA SAN DIEGO 20722 08/01/06 JOB POSTING 39.33 39.33

2001960 08/02106 06225 LEVI GOIN Ref0023661 07 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000080079 12.25 12.25

2001961 08/02/06 06256 L1BIA ROJERO Ref002366138 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000087531 64.21 64.21

2002279 08/23/06 06263 LINTNER, JERRY 015223 08/18/06 REIMBURSE SEMINAR TRVL EXP 63.03 63.03

2002098 08/09/06 03784 LIVESCAN SAN DIEGO 06100411 07/18/06 FINGERPRINTING SERVICES 40.00 40.00

2002280 08/23/06 03784 L1VESCAN SAN DIEGO 06100439 08/01/06 FINGERPRINTING SERVICES 100.00 100.00

2002281 08/23/06 05220 LOGICALIS INTEGRATION SOLUTION 01078291N 07/28/06 DATA CENTER UPGRADE PROJECT 280,843.73 280,843.73

2001962 08/02/06 06231 LUANN GOULD Ref002366113 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000080989 40.43 40.43

2001963 08/02/06 06237 LUIS ALVARADO Ref002366119 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000082188 30.68 30.68

2002282 08/23/06 01211 MAJOR IRRIGATION SUPPLY INC 603065 07/31/06 HAND PUMPS 1,021.47 1,021.47

2002283 08/23/06 00628 MANHATTAN NAT'L LIFE INS CO 015216 08/01/06 VOLUNTARY LIFE INSURANCE 505.20 505.20

2002099 08/09/06 06160 MANNY RAMIREZ 5336 07/18/06 PHOTOS 150.00 150.00

2001964 08/02/06 06214 MARCO A ESPINOSA Ref002366096 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000074873 32.08 32.08

2002042 08/09/06 03277 MARGARITA MUNIZ Ben2366392 08/08/06 PAYROLL DEDUCTION 294.46 294.46

2002212 08/23/06 03277 MARGARITA MUNIZ Ben2366899 08/22/06 PAYROLL DEDUCTION 294.46 294.46

2001965 08/02/06 06226 MARIADIAZ Ref0023661 08 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000080152 19.33 19.33

2001966 08/02/06 06236 MARIA DOUBRAVA Ref002366118 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000082169 50.17 50.17

2001967 08/02106 06221 MARK BRUSALIS Ref002366103 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000075771 50.21 50.21

2001968 08/02/06 06182 MARK ESTES Ref002366064 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000048974 106.34 106.34

2002100 08/09/06 02902 MARSTON & MARSTON INC 1001 08/01/06 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 2,568.75 2,568.75

2001969 08/02/06 06219 MARY STRAIN Ref002366101 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000075520 33.45 33.45

2002361 08/30106 04268 MASS GROUP INC 321262 06/30106 SERVER DATABASE CONSOLIDATION 18,500.00 18,500.00

Page 16 of 32



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

2002284 08/23/06 05329 MASTER METER INC 01101391N 06/30/06 METERS 1,123.53 1,123.53

2002362 08/30/06 05329 MASTER METER INC 01118201N 08/07/06 INVENTORY 33,659.51 33,659.51

2002285 08/23/06 03750 MATTHEW BENDER & CO INC 015204 07/31/06 CA PUBLIC LABOR RELATIONS UPDATE 156.25 156.25

2002177 08/16/06 01183 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO 47872496 07/27/06 PARTS 615.47
47627451 07/24/06 PARTS 201.19
47801691 07/26/06 PARTS 104.71 921.37

2002286 08/23/06 01183 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO 48094157 07/31/06 PARTS 283.37
48143413 08/01/06 PARTS 127.93 411.30

2002363 08/30/06 01183 MCMASTER-CARR SUPPLY CO 48702005 08/10/06 PARTS 895.18
48497933 08/08/06 PARTS 163.06
48522478 08/08/06 PARTS 137.84 1,196.08

2002178 08/16/06 03764 MCPHILLIPS, KEVIN P 49009 08/09/06 SAFETY BOOTS REIMBURSEMENT 126.63 126.63

2001970 08/02106 06251 MELISSA GUILLIANI Ref002366133 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000085902 30.45 30.45

2001971 08/02106 06187 MERIDIAN EASTLAKE LP Ref002366069 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000054928 808.15 808.15

2001972 08/02106 06169 MICAH WHITLEY Ref002366051 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000009198 42.29 42.29

2001973 08/02/06 00887 MIRAMAR TRUCK CENTER-SAN DIEGO CM194907 07/13/06 CREDIT MEMO (195.76)
194686 07/06/06 BRAKE PARTS 37.71
194980 07/12/06 BRAKE PARTS 146.48
194907 07111/06 BRAKE PARTS 195.76
194912 07111/06 BRAKE PART 30.84 215.03

2002364 08/30/06 00887 MIRAMAR TRUCK CENTER-SAN DIEGO 194388 07/05/06 REPAIR PARTS 1,556.15
194338A 07/05/06 BRAKE PARTS 407.77
196430 08/08/06 BRAKE PARTS 115.51
196358 08/07/06 BRAKE PARTS 104.12
CM194388 07/06/06 CREDIT MEMO (102.68) 2,080.87

2001974 08/02106 01363 MISSION LINEN & UNIFORM 18020456 07/01/06 UNIFORMS, TOWELSISUPPLIES 568.25
18022150 07/01/06 TOWELSISUPPLIES 46.61
18019597 07/01/06 MATS, TOWELSISUPPLIES 130.52
18020455 07/01/06 TOWELSISUPPLIES 46.61
18020457 07/01/06 MATS, TOWELSISUPPLIES 130.52
18021300 07/01/06 UNIFORMS, MATS, TOWELSISUPPLIES 243.08
18021303 07/01/06 MATS, TOWELSISUPPLIES 130.52
18022149 07/01106 UNIFORMS, MATS, TOWELSISUPPLIES 197.52
18022151 07/01/06 UNIFORMS, TOWELSISUPPLIES 541.22

Page 17 of 32

----------,-_._"--~-~----~~~---_.~~
- _.-._--~..



OTAYWATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

18022152 07/01/06 MATS, TOWELS/SUPPLIES 130.52
S61848 07/01/06 UNIFORM REPLACEMENT 14.15
S57064 07/01/06 UNIFORM REPLACEMENT 67.65
S57065 07/01/06 UNIFORM REPLACEMENT 8.00

S57066 07/01/06 UNIFORM REPLACEMENT 125.68
18020454 07/01/06 UNIFORMS, MATS, TOWELS/SUPPLIES 197.79
18019594 07/01/06 UNIFORMS, MATS, TOWELS/ SUPPLIES 204.00

18019595 07/01/06 TOWELS/SUPPLIES 46.61
18021301 07/01/06 TOWELS/SUPPLIES 46.61
18019596 07/01/06 UNIFORMS, TOWELS/SUPPLIES 552.44
18021302 07/01/06 UNIFORMS, TOWELS/SUPPLIES 567.43
S57067 07/01/06 UNIFORM REPLACEMENT 132.00 4,127.73

2002365 08/30/06 01363 MISSION LINEN & UNIFORM 18023851 08/01/06 UNIFORMS, TOWELS & SUPPLIES 631.80
18026457 08/01/06 UNIFORMS, TOWELS & SUPPLIES 562.53
18024711 08/01/06 UNIFORMS, TOWELS & SUPPLIES 557.57
18022995 08/01/06 UNIFORMS, TOWELS & SUPPLIES 545.63
18025587 08/01/06 UNIFORMS, TOWELS & SUPPLIES 545.09
18023849 08/01/06 UNIFORMS, MATS, TOWELS & SUPPLIES 240.08
S57369 08/01/06 UNIFORM REPLACEMENT 233.68
18024709 08/01/06 UNIFORMS, MATS, TOWELS & SUPPLIES 232.44
18022993 08/01/06 UNIFORMS, MATS, TOWELS & SUPPLIES 224.53
18026455 08/01/06 UNIFORMS, MATS, TOWELS & SUPPLIES 199.15
18025585 08/01/06 UNIFORMS, MATS, TOWELS & SUPPLIES 198.06
18022996 08/01/06 MATS, TOWELS & SUPPLIES 130.52

18023852 08/01/06 MATS, TOWELS & SUPPLIES 130.52
18024712 08/01/06 MATS, TOWELS & SUPPLIES 130.52

18025588 08/01/06 MATS, TOWELS & SUPPLIES 130.52

18026458 08/01/06 MATS, TOWELS & SUPPLIES 130.52

S57396 08/01/06 UNIFORM REPLACEMENT 121.64

18022994 08/01/06 TOWELS & SUPPLIES 78.26

18023850 08/01/06 TOWELS & SUPPLIES 78.26

S57636 08/01/06 UNIFORM REPLACEMENT 60.75
S40538 08/01/06 UNIFORM REPLACEMENT 49.86
18024710 08/01/06 TOWELS & SUPPLIES 46.61
18025586 08/01/06 TOWELS & SUPPLIES 46.61
18026456 08/01/06 TOWELS & SUPPLIES 46.61

S61251 08/01/06 UNIFORM REPLACEMENT 39.71
S57395 08/01/06 UNIFORM REPLACEMENT 24.30

S57359 08/01/06 UNIFORM REPLACEMENT 19.50
S57616 08/01/06 UNIFORM REPLACEMENT 10.00
S40539 08/01/06 UNIFORM REPLACEMENT 4.16 5,449.43

2001975 08/02/06 06222 MITCH MOSHTAGHI Ref002366104 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000075801 620.20 620.20

2002101 08/09/06 03393 MOBILE MINI LLC - CA 90415152 07/17/06 40' STORAGE RENTAL SERVICE 164.90 164.90

Page 18 of 32



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403

RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

2002179 08/16/06 03393 MOBILE MINI LLC - CA 90412021 07/23/06 STORAGE RENTAL SERVICE 170.88

90416485 07/21/06 RENTAL STORAGE 170.88 341.76

2002366 08/30106 03393 MOBILE MINI LLC - CA 90420424 08/10106 40' STORAGE RENTAL 164.90 164.90

2002287 08/23/06 03401 MODULAR MERCHANTS INC 1657 08/03/06 WORKSTATION SET-UP 492.50 492.50

2001976 08/02106 06234 MONICA JANCO Ref002366116 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000081531 28.18 28.18

2001977 08/02/06 06235 MONICA MOORE Ref002366117 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000081670 33.80 33.80

2001978 08/02/06 03172 MOONEY, JONES AND STOKES 00033990 06/16/06 SAN MIGUEL HABITAT & MITIGATION PROJECTS 3,033.64 3,033.64

2002180 08/16106 03172 MOONEY, JONES AND STOKES 0034550 07/20106 REVEGETATION MONITORING 1002-4 RESV 405.15 405.15

2002288 08/23/06 03172 MOONEY, JONES AND STOKES 0034707 07/21/06 SAN MIGUEL HABITAT 3,481.10 3,481.10

2002367 08/30106 03172 MOONEY, J()NES AND STOKES 0034546 07/20106 LA PRESA PIPELINE WETLAND PERMITTING 2,212.53

0034545 07/20106 FORCE MAIN AIR REPLACEMENT 795.00 3,007.53

2002181 08/16/06 03623 MWH AMERICAS INC 990185 07/02/06 450-1 RESERVOIR & 680-1 PUMP STATION 4,569.85 4,569.85

2002368 08/30106 03623 MWH AMERICAS INC 1048965 07/30106 450-1 RESERVOIR & 680-1 PUMP STATION 4,293.44 4,293.44

2001979 08/02/06 02293 MWHSOFT INC 000928 07/10106 SUBSCRIPTION PROGRAM RENEWAL 3,600.00 3,600.00

2002182 08/16/06 04676 NAPA AUTO PARTS 037509 07/17/06 REPAIR PARTS 687.45

037511 07/17/06 REPAIR PARTS 440.70

036135 07/05/06 REPAIR PARTS 68.94

037902 07/20106 REPAIR PARTS 48.14

036906 07/12/06 REPAIR PARTS 40.93

038220 07/24/06 REPAIR PARTS 39.37

038222 07/24/06 REPAIR PARTS 39.37

036653 07/10106 REPAIR PARTS 37.32

037124 07/13/06 REPAIR PARTS 37.02

038561 07/26/06 REPAIR PARTS 36.24

037063 07/13/06 REPAIR PARTS 33.98

037718 07/19/06 REPAIR PARTS 32.30

036223 07/06/06 REPAIR PARTS 23.69

036141 07/05/06 REPAIR PARTS 22.29

038093 07/21/06 REPAIR PARTS 19.55

037191 07/14/06 REPAIR PARTS 16.65

037553 07/18/06 REPAIR PARTS 12.91

036621 07/10106 REPAIR PARTS 11.44

037401 07/17/06 REPAIR PARTS 10.76

Page 19 of 32



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

038071 07/21/06 REPAIR PARTS 10.76
036791 07/11/06 REPAIR PARTS 9.83
038540 07/26/06 REPAIR PARTS 8.62
036646 07/10/06 REPAIR PARTS 7.75
037536 07/18/06 REPAIR PARTS 7.29
037463 07/17/06 REPAIR PARTS 6.47
037017 07/13/06 REPAIR PARTS 6.34
038314 07/24/06 REPAIR PARTS 5.73
038217 07/24/06 REPAIR PARTS 5.22
039959 08/07/06 REPAIR PARTS 2.50
038349 07/25/06 REPAIR PARTS 1.79 1,731.35

2002289 08/23/06 04676 NAPA AUTO PARTS 039540 08/02/06 REPAIR PARTS 94.79
039357 08/01/06 REPAIR PARTS 49.42
039676 08/03/06 REPAIR PARTS 40.93
039677 08/03/06 REPAIR PARTS 25.60
039681 08/03/06 REPAIR PARTS 21.51
038816 07/28/06 REPAIR PARTS 19.03
039648 08/03/06 REPAIR PARTS 16.03
038814 07/28/06 REPAIR PARTS 12.71
039192 07/31/06 CREDIT MEMO (7.29)
039189 07/31/06 CREDIT MEMO (19.03)
039190 07/31/06 CREDIT MEMO (22.29)
039188 07/31/06 CREDIT MEMO (36.24)
039191 07/31/06 CREDIT MEMO (70.06) 125.11

2002369 08/30/06 04676 NAPA AUTO PARTS 040634 08/10/06 REPAIR PARTS 98.75
040175 08/08/06 REPAIR PART 90.32
040635 08/10/06 REPAIR PART 88.34
039754 08/04/06 REPAIR PARTS 83.76
040603 08/10/06 REPAIR PART 67.20
040151 08/08/06 REPAIR PART 59.64
040286 08/08/06 REPAIR PART 45.14
040287 08/08106 REPAIR PART 45.14
040078 08/07/06 REPAIR PART 38.52
040436 08/09/06 REPAIR PART 34.90
039705 08/04/06 REPAIR PARTS 14.63
040400 08/09/06 REPAIR PART 14.10
040360 08/09/06 REPAIR PARTS 11.74
040319 08/08/06 REPAIR PARTS 6.47
040352 08/09/06 REPAIR PARTS 4.15
040020 08/07/06 REPAIR PARTS 3.22 706.02

2002043 08/09/06 03523 NATIONAL DEFERRED COMPENSATION Ben2366384 08/08/06 DEFERRED COMP PLAN 10,967.43 10,967.43

2002213 08/23/06 03523 NATIONAL DEFERRED COMPENSATION Ben2366891 08/22/06 DEFERRED COMP PLAN 11,007.42 11,007.42

Page 20 of 32



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

2001980 08/02106 00739 NATIONAL LEAK TEST CENTER 33413 11/16/05 LEAK TEST SERVICES 50.00 50.00

2002102 08/09/06 03733 NEC UNIFIED SOLUTIONS INC VAG10211624 05/09/06 LABOR FOR PHONES SVCS 1,938.00 1,938.00

2002183 08/16/06 03733 NEC UNIFIED SOLUTIONS INC VSH10220787 07/25/06 LABOR FOR PHONES SVCS 437.50 437.50

2002290 08/23/06 03733 NEC UNIFIED SOLUTIONS INC VSH10221171 07/29/06 LABOR FOR PHONES SVCS 169.50 169.50

2002291 08/23/06 05502 NEC UNIFIED SOLUTIONS INC PRJ22421 08/02/06 TELECOM UPGRADE AND IVR 11,666.67 11,666.67

2002103 08/09/06 03487 NETWORK INSIGHT NISD200601866 07/19/06 CISCO SMARTNET 7,707.07 7,707.07

2002292 08/23/06 03487 NETWORK INSIGHT NISD200601877 08/01/06 STAFF SUPPORT 4,840.00 4,840.00

2002370 08/30/06 03467 NIAGARA CONSERVATION CORP INV1001407 08/04/06 DYE TABLETS 403.74 403.74

2001981 08/02106 06223 NICOLA WALKER Ref002366105 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000076004 52.33 52.33

2001982 08/02/06 03517 NOBEL SYSTEMS 9271 05/31106 GIS CONSULTING SVCS 1,000.00 1,000.00

2001983 08/02/06 06229 NOE MAURICIO SALAS GONZALEZ Ref002366111 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000080639 38.68 38.68

2002293 08/23/06 02669 NORTHERN TOOL & EQUIPMENT CO 14466006 08/03/06 TOOLS 2,144.31 2,144.31

2002371 08/30/06 02669 NORTHERN TOOL & EQUIPMENT CO 14488174 08/07/06 TOOLS 2,053.88 2,053.88

2001984 08/02106 00510 OFFICE DEPOT INC 344254200001 07/12/06 OFFICE SUPPLIES 273.06
344041577002 07/12/06 OFFICE SUPPLIES 11.57
343908836001 07/12/06 OFFICE SUPPLIES 12.59 297.22

2002104 08/09/06 00510 OFFICE DEPOT INC 344041577001 07/19/06 OFFICE SUPPLIES 932.50
344751024001 07/19/06 OFFICE SUPPLIES 105.42
344442003001 07/12/06 OFFICE SUPPLIES 94.07
344751024002 07/19/06 OFFICE SUPPLIES 26.36
344752696001 07/19/06 OFFICE SUPPLIES 16.25
344795817001 07/19/06 OFFICE SUPPLIES 7.55 1,182.15

2002184 08/16/06 00510 OFFICE DEPOT INC 344584088001 07/26/06 OFFICE SUPPLIES 98.65
345658850001 07/26/06 OFFICE SUPPLIES 90.11
344445398001 07/26/06 OFFICE SUPPLIES 79.36
346038243001 07/26/06 OFFICE SUPPLIES 61.08
345388243001 07/26/06 OFFICE SUPPLY 53.86
345238765001 07/26/06 OFFICE SUPPLIES 28.98
344585021001 07/26/06 OFFICE SUPPLIES 18.41 430.45

Page 21 of 32

- -----_._._--- ~_,."."..=_e_==_..,... _



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

2002294 08/23/06 00510 OFFICE DEPOT INC 347234204001 08/02/06 OFFICE SUPPLIES 239.37
347048663001 08/02/06 OFFICE SUPPLIES 170.58
346247239001 08/02106 OFFICE SUPPLIES 82.39
347047116001 08/02106 OFFICE SUPPLY 9.69
347302088001 08/02/06 CREDIT MEMO (9.69) 492.34

2002372 08/30106 00510 OFFICE DEPOT INC 347418965001 08/09/06 OFFICE SUPPLIES 178.11
347288063001 08/09/06 OFFICE SUPPLIES 143.24
347414737001 08/09/06 OFFICE SUPPLIES 82.87
347485221001 08/09/06 OFFICE SUPPLIES 26.16
347302089001 08/09/06 OFFICE SUPPLY 9.69
348114158001 08/09/06 OFFICE SUPPLIES 7.55 447.62

2001985 08/02/06 01837 OFFICE TEAM 16300562 07/25/06 TEMPORARY SERVICES DEV. SVC. CHIEF 959.68 959.68

2002105 08/09/06 01837 OFFICE TEAM 16350441 07/24/06 TEMPORARY SERVICES ENG. 1,154.62
16368123 07/24/06 TEMPORARY SERVICES METER SHOP 750.82
16300561 07/17/06 TEMPORARY SERVICES METER SHOP 605.50 2,510.94

2002295 08/23/06 01837 OFFICE TEAM 16453372 08/07/06 TEMPORARY SERVICES - ENGG DEPT 1,094.64
16503760 08/14/06 TEMPORARY SERVICES - ENGG DEPT 914.70
16401757 07/31/06 TEMPORARY SERVICES - METER DEPT 750.82
16417596 07/31/06 TEMPORARY SERVICES - ENGG DEPT 539.82 3,299.98

2002373 08/30106 01837 OFFICE TEAM 16519439 08/14/06 TEMPORARY SERVICES - METER DEPT 678.16 678.16

2001986 08/02/06 03149 ON SITE LASER 37580 07/12/06 REPAIR SERVICE 365.31 365.31

2002296 08/23/06 03149 ON SITE LASER 37649 07/24/06 REPAIR SERVICE 125.03 125.03

2002374 08/30/06 03149 ON SITE LASER 37746 08/10106 REPAIR SERVICE 69.00 69.00

2001987 08/02/06 02721 ORTIZ CORPORATION 14 07/12/06 30" PIPLINE & 450-1 RESERVOIR 812,675.75 812,675.75

2002297 08/23/06 02721 ORTIZ CORPORATION 07/28/06 30" PIPLINE PROJECT 452,534.85 452,534.85

2002375 08/30106 02721 ORTIZ CORPORATION 15 08/09/06 30" RECYCLED PIPLlNE& 450-1 RESERVOIR 628,402.96 628,402.96

2002044 08/09/06 03101 OTAY WATER DISTRICT Ben2366386 08/08/06 PAYROLL DEDUCTION - ASSN DUES 826.00 826.00

2002214 08/23/06 03101 OTAYWATER DISTRICT Ben2366885 08/22106 PAYROLL DEDUCTION - ASSN DUES 826.00 826.00

2001988 08/02106 06179 PAC COAST COMMUNITIES Ref002366061 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000042575 729.24 729.24

2002106 08/09/06 04463 PACIFIC GREEN LANDSCAPE INC 00401611N 07/15/06 LANDSCAPING SERVICES 7,850.00 7,850.00

Page 22 of 32

._~~._~.--"~_._-----.



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

2002185 08/16/06 03017 PACIFIC SAFETY COUNCIL 62778 07/25/06 SAFETY TRAINING 95.00 95.00

2001989 08/02106 06176 PAMELA CONNER Ref002366058 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000031008 16.33 16.33

2001990 08/02/06 06211 PATTY ROSALES Ref002366093 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000073446 78.70 78.70

2002298 08/23/06 05497 PAYPALINC 2236680 07/31/06 ON-LINE PAYMENT SERVICES 295.30 295.30

2002299 08/23/06 00227 PELL MELL SUPPLY 43089000 08/02/06 WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES 581.38 581.38

2002107 08/09/06 03790 PENHALL COMPANY 2949 07/20/06 FLAT SAW CUTTING SERVICES 787.50
2950 07/20/06 FLAT SAW CUTTING SERVICES 212.50 1,000.00

2002186 08/16/06 03790 PENHALL COMPANY 3024 07/27/06 FLAT SAW CUTTING SERVICES 592.50
2890 07/12/06 FLAT SAW CUTTING SERVICES 316.25
2951 07/20/06 FLAT SAW CUTTING SERVICES 185.00 1,093.75

2002300 08/23/06 03790 PENHALL COMPANY 3054 07/28/06 FLAT SAW CUTTING SERVICES 410.00
3161 07/28/06 FLAT SAW CUTTING SERVICES 185.00 595.00

2002376 08/30/06 03790 PENHALL COMPANY 3228 08/09/06 FLAT SAW CUTTING SERVICES 278.75
3227 08/09/06 FLAT SAW CUTTING SERVICES 185.00
3187 08/08/06 FLAT SAW CUTTING SERVICES 185.00 648.75

2002187 08/16/06 00593 PEPPER OIL COMPANY INC 598530 07/18/06 UNLEADED FUEL 15,771.94
598867 08/07/06 DIESEL FUEL 15,293.67
598631 07/25/06 DIESEL FUEL 5,756.86
598569 07/21/06 DIESEL FUEL 5,545.35 42,367.82

2002377 08/30106 00593 PEPPER OIL COMPANY INC 598777 08/01/06 FUEL 5,601.28 5,601.28

2002378 08/30106 03180 PERFORMANCE METER INC 00112051N 08/09/06 TEMP CONSTRUCTION METERS 3,636.57 3,636.57

2002045 08/09/06 00137 PETTY CASH CUSTODIAN 015192 08/08/06 PETTY CASH - REIMBURSEMENT 1,175.47 1,175.47

2002301 08/23/06 00137 PETTY CASH CUSTODIAN 015224 08/22/06 PETTY CASH REIMBURSEMENT 1,089.56 1,089.56

2002302 08/23/06 01744 PHILLIPS, MICHAEL B 015225 08/22/06 REIMBURSEMENT 90.00 90.00

2002303 08/23/06 02786 PIONEER AMERICAS LLC 5538736154 07/19/06 CHLORINE 1,923.91 1,923.91

2002379 08/30106 02786 PIONEER AMERICAS LLC 5538741107 08/09/06 CHLORINE 1,923.91 1,923.91

2001991 08/02/06 03253 PIPEHORN 34347B 07/07/06 EQUIPMENT 308.00 308.00

2001992 08/02/06 05499 PRAXAIR DISTRIBUTION INC 632004 07/07/06 WELDING SUPPLIES 196.51 196.51

Page 23 of 32

_ _ ·~';.""C~":!':':='"li''''''''··''T'!- ==-



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

2002108 08/09/06 05499 PRAXAIR DISTRIBUTION INC 717375 07/20/06 WELDING SUPPLIES & EQUIPMENT 365.50 365.50

2002188 08/16/06 05499 PRAXAIR DISTRIBUTION INC 786299 07/26/06 WELDING SUPPLY 10,763.15 10,763.15

2002380 08/30/06 05499 PRAXAIR DISTRIBUTION INC 632043 08/06/06 WELDING SUPPLIES 192.02
881561 08/07/06 WELDING SUPPLIES 171.41 363.43

2001993 08/02/06 00078 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT Ben2365906 07/25/06 PERS CONTRIBUTION 111,189.15 111,189.15

2002189 08/16/06 00078 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT Ben2366380 08/08/06 PERS CONTRIBUTION 111,181.57 111,181.57

2002381 08/30/06 00078 PUBLIC EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT Ben2366887 08/22/06 PERS CONTRIBUTION 111,483.85 111,483.85

2001994 08/02/06 01342 R J SAFETY SUPPLY CO INC 22635000 07/12/06 WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES 383.81
22504800 06/06/06 SAFETY SUPPLIES 242.79 626.60

2002109 08/09/06 01342 R J SAFETY SUPPLY CO INC 22635001 07/19/06 WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES 115.24 115.24

2001995 08/02/06 06254 RANCHO COASTAL LLC Ref002366136 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000086538 850.00 850.00

2002190 08/16/06 00766 RANROY PRINTING COMPANY 085405 07/21/06 PRINTING SERVICE 665.90 665.90

2001996 08/02/06 06238 RAQUEL HERNANDEZ Ref002366120 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000082267 49.80 49.80

2002191 08/16/06 03669 RCL & ASSOCIATES INC 00006803 07/26/06 SOOTFILTER & MONITOR 18,303.72 18,303.72

2002110 08/09/06 00021 RCP BLOCK & BRICK INC 4304998 07/06/06 CONCRETE 759.64 759.64

2002192 08/16/06 00021 RCP BLOCK & BRICK INC 4305805 07/27/06 CONCRETE 835.60 835.60

2002304 08/23/06 00021 RCP BLOCK & BRICK INC 4306110 08/03/06 CONCRETE 683.67 683.67

2002111 ·08/09/06 01916 RED WING SHOE STORE 82900000004881 07/17/06 SAFETY BOOTS 150.00
829000000488 07/17/06 SAFETY BOOTS 150.00 300.00

2002193 08/16/06 01916 RED WING SHOE STORE 8290000000509 08/11/06 SAFETY BOOTS 138.01 138.01

2001997 08/02/06 06181 RICK LANDESMAN Ref002366063 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000045737 24.81 24.81

2001998 08/02/06 06177 RITACCURRY Ref002366059 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000038208 42.22 42.22

2002382 08/30/06 04542 ROBAK,MARK 70140706 07/31106 REIMBURSE MILEAGE EXPENSE 46.28 46.28

2001999 08/02/06 06201 ROBBI WEISMAN Ref002366083 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000069546 43.79 43.79

Page 24 of 32

, ,~ • .7;;::,:T!:'-'-.....~<J.......;._,.....:. ~ ~ ;:::"".:"":"'.~··7·...,r~



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

2002000 08/02/06 01471 ROBBINS AUTO GLASS wo38958 07/13/06 WINDSHIELD REPAIRED 241.51 241.51

2002001 08/02/06 06174 ROBERT F PHELPS Ref002366056 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000026537 38.03 38.03

2002002 08/02/06 06204 ROBERT JOHNSON Ref002366086 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000070688 47.64 47.64

2002003 08/02/06 02948 ROCKHURST UNIVERSITY 400725165001 07/27/06 SEMINAR REGISTRATION 119.40 119.40

2002112 08/09/06 02948 ROCKHURST UNIVERSITY 400726072001 07/31/06 SEMINAR REGISTRATIONS 214.80
400726081001 07/31/06 SEMINAR REGISTRATIONS 214.80
400726089001 07/31/06 SEMINAR REGISTRATIONS 136.80 566.40

2002004 08/02/06 06185 ROMEO BAQUIRAN Ref002366067 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000054310 11.35 11.35

2002005 08/02/06 06178 ROMEO DEGUZMAN Ref002366060 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000042233 46.01 46.01

2002006 08/02/06 06249 RUDOLPH & SLETTEN Ref002366131 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000085644 718.61 718.61

2002194 08/16/06 00217 RW LITTLE CO INC 78428 07/21/06 POWDER COATING SERVICES 225.00
78518 07/26/06 POWDER COATING SERVICES 200.00 425.00

2002305 08/23/06 00217 RW LITTLE CO INC 78283 07/12/06 SAND BLAST AND POWDER COAT 200.00 200.00

2002007 08/02/06 05130 SAFARI MICRO INC 148863 07/12/06 ANNUAL SUBSCRIPTION MICROSOFT TECHNET 418.35 418.35

2002113 08/09/06 03803 SAN DIEGO CLIPPING SERVICE INC 439060702 07/02/06 NEWSPAPER CLIPPING SERVICE 97.00 97.00

2002306 08/23/06 03803 SAN DIEGO CLIPPING SERVICE INC 439060801 08/01/06 NEWSPAPER CLIPPING SERVICE 91.00 91.00

2002008 08/02/06 00247 SAN DIEGO DAILY TRANSCRIPT 015177 08/02/06 SO COUNTY ATTORNEY DIRECTORY 24.40 24.40

2002383 08/30/06 00247 SAN DIEGO DAILY TRANSCRIPT 20172 08/23/06 PROFESSIONAL CONSULTANT SVC AD 275.20

20397 08/25/06 CONCRETE PAVING SERVICE BID 116.00 391.20

2002009 08/02/06 00257 SAN DIEGO GALVANIZING INC 87134 07/10/06 METAL 137.70 137.70

2002010 08/02/06 00121 SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC 015169 07/25/06 UTILITY EXPENSES 112,409.26 112,409.26

2002114 08/09/06 00121 SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC 015184 07/31/06 UTILITY EXPENSES 141,335.60 141,335.60

2002307 08/23/06 00121 SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC 015217 08/01/06 UTILITY EXPENSES 18,357.57
015221 08/17/06 UTILITY EXPENSES 3,414.14 21,771.71

2002384 08/30/06 00121 SAN DIEGO GAS & ELECTRIC 015231 08/24/06 UTILITY EXPENSES 96,392.00
015232 08/23/06 UTILITY EXPENSES 16,263.79

015236 08/30/06 UTILITY EXPENSES 4,820.86 117,476.65

Page 25 of 32

,---~_.~-~_.~- .- ''i'F ~",,,,~.,....,



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

2002115 08/09/06 03809 SAN DIEGO NEIGHBORHOOD NEWS 01518674001 07/14/06 JOB POSTING 109.20 109.20

2002011 08/02/06 04345 SAN DIEGO PRECAST CONCRETE INC 01167531N 07/12/06 INVENTORY STOCK 6,596.56 6,596.56

2002012 08/02/06 03273 SAN DIEGO READER 145 07/12106 JOB POSTING 86.85 86.85

2002385 08/30/06 06280 SANCHEZ,OMAR 692471020 08/21/06 REIMBURSEMENT 9.71 9.71

2002013 08/02/06 06208 SANDRA CAVAN Ref002366090 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000072355 61.30 61.30

2002116 08/09/06 03514 SANTOS, MARCIANO 015190 08/08/06 TUITION REIMBURSEMENT 284.00 284.00

2002386 08/30106 03534 SBC LONG DISTANCE 809377995 08/04/06 LONG DISTANCE EXPENSES 104.32 104.32

2002014 08/02/06 06215 SHARON DAVIDSON Ref002366097 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000074891 46.46 46.46

2002117 08/09/06 01651 SHARP REES-STEALY MEDICAL CTRS 178B 07/15/06 HEALTH EXAM 576.00
1781 07/15/06 HEALTH EXAM 292.00
178 07/15/06 HEALTH EXAM 292.00
178G 07/15/06 HEALTH EXAM 247.00
178H 07/15/06 HEALTH EXAM 247.00
178A 07/15/06 HEALTH EXAM 198.00
178C 07/15/06 HEALTH EXAM 88.00
178D 07/15/06 HEALTH EXAM 88.00
178E 07/15/06 HEALTH EXAM 88.00
178F 07/15/06 HEALTH EXAM 88.00
178J 07/15/06 HEALTH EXAM 88.00 2,292.00

2002046 08/09/06 05331 SHARYL A RUBALCAVA Ben2366390 08/08/06 PAYROLL DEDUCTION 237.69 237.69

2002215 08/23/06 05331 SHARYL A RUBALCAVA Ben2366897 08/22106 PAYROLL DEDUCTION 237.69 237.69

2002047 08/09/06 02718 SHERIDA RICHARDSON Ben2366396 08/08/06 PAYROLL DEDUCTION 139.84 139.84

2002216 08/23/06 02718 SHERIDA RICHARDSON Ben2366903 08/22/06 PAYROLL DEDUCTION 139.84 139.84

2002195 08/16/06 05983 SIEMENS WATER 1857854 07/26/06 DEIONIZED PROCESSING TANK 83.26 83.26

2002308 08/23/06 05983 SIEMENS WATER 1861496 07/28/06 PARTS 1,763.94 1,763.94

2002015 08/02/06 05627 SIGNA DIGITAL SOLUTIONS INC AR45612 12/05/06 COPIER SERVICE 95.82 95.82

2002118 08/09/06 05627 SIGNA DIGITAL SOLUTIONS INC ARS02981 07/18/06 COPIER SERVICE 454.88
ARS02958 07/17/06 COPIER SERVICE 101.00
ARS02961 07/17/06 COPIER SERVICE 101.00

Page 26 of 32

-_'__"_~_"~,,-.,'~' , ~'" § ~ .. \J:W_.~ ;w;1i--



OTAYWATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

ARS02982 07/18/06 COPIER SERVICE 100.00

ARS02959 07/17/06 COPIER SERVICE 24.00 780.88

2002196 08/16/06 05627 SIGNA DIGITAL SOLUTIONS INC AR45611 12/05/06 COPIER MAINTENANCE 24.00 24.00

2002309 08/23/06 05627 SIGNA DIGITAL SOLUTIONS INC ARS03257 08/02/06 COPIER MAlNT SERVICE 454.88

ARS03238 08/01/06 COPIER MAINT SERVICE 101.00

ARS03227 08/01/06 COPIER MAINT SERVICE 101.00

ARS03228 08/01/06 COPIER MAINT SERVICE 100.00

ARS03258 08/02106 COPIER SERVICE 24.00 780.88

2002119 08/09/06 00258 SLOAN ELECTRIC CO 0050262 07/17/06 MOBILE POLYREX EM GREASE 164.76 164.76

2002310 08/23/06 00258 SLOAN ELECTRIC CO 0050347 07/31/06 ELECTRICAL TESTING SERVICES 600.00 600.00

2002387 08/30/06 00258 SLOAN ELECTRIC CO 0050387 08/04/06 REPAIR PARTS 990.22 990.22

2002016 08/02/06 03103 SOUTHCOAST HEATING & C29827 07/11/06 AIR CONDITIONING MAINTENANCE 857.00 857.00

2002017 08/02/06 03760 SPANKY'S PORTABLE SERVICES INC 524115 06/21/06 PORTABLE TOILET RENTAL 55.12 55.12

2002120 08/09/06 03760 SPANKY'S PORTABLE SERVICES INC 529785 07/20/06 PORTABLE TOILET RENTAL 84.13

529622 07/19/06 PORTABLE TOILET RENTAL 55.64 139.77

2002197 08/16/06 03760 SPANKY'S PORTABLE SERVICES INC 527425 07/10/06 PORTABLE TOILET RENTAL 134.03

527234 07/07/06 PORTABLE TOILET RENTAL 68.62

527233 07/07/06 PORTABLE TOILET RENTAL 67.02

527235 07/07/06 PORTABLE TOILET RENTAL 67.02

527236 07/07/06 PORTABLE TOILET RENTAL 67.02 403.71

2002388 08/30/06 03760 SPANKY'S PORTABLE SERVICES INC 532511 08/04/06 PORTABLE TOILET RENTAL 68.62

532510 08/04/06 PORTABLE TOILET RENTAL 67.02

532513 08/04/06 PORTABLE TOILET RENTAL 67.02

532512 08/04/06 PORTABLE TOILET RENTAL 67.02

532693 08/07/06 PORTABLE TOILET RENTAL 67.02 336.70

2002018 08/02/06 03516 SPECIAL DISTRICT RISK 0016180lN 07/01/06 WORKER'S COMP PREMIUM 1ST QTR 71,527.00

015176 07/20/06 PROPERTY & LIABILITY PREMIUM 386,545.98 458,072.98

2002389 08/30/06 03600 SPRINT 015207 08/14/06 WIRELESS CARDS SERVICE 393.52 393.52

2002198 08/16/06 02354 STANDARD ELECTRONICS 8174 07/24/06 SECURITY SYSTEM SERVICE 2.12.50 212.50

2002311 08/23/06 02354 STANDARD ELECTRONICS 8187 07/31/06 FOBS/CARDS 1,293.00 1,293.00

2002390 08/30/06 02354 STANDARD ELECTRONICS 8229 08/04/06 UPGRADE FOR SECURITY SYSTEM 8,100.00

Page 27 of 32

...."._-,-_._.--~=.



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

06528 03/17/06 RETENTION PAYMENT 4,702.75 12,802.75

2002048 08/09/06 02261 STATE STREET BANK & TRUST CO Ben2366382 08/08/06 DEFERRED COMP PLAN 2,864.23 2,864.23

2002217 08/23/06 02261 STATE STREET BANK & TRUST CO Ben2366889 08/22/06 DEFERRED COMP PLAN 2,664.23 2,664.23

2002019 08/02/06 06220 STEVEN DUNDEE Ref002366102 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000075542 8.44 8.44

2002199 08/16/06 00408 SWEETWATER AUTHORITY 015200 08/07/06 TEMPO WTR SVC, ANIMAL SHELTER RELOCATI( 982.56 982.56

2002391 08/30/06 00408 SWEETWATER AUTHORITY 015229 08/22/06 TEMPORARY WATER SERVICE 451.23 451.23

2002312 08/23/06 01834 T C CONSTRUCTION INC 17248 07/31/06 450-1 RW RESERVOIR & 680-1 RW P. STATION 1,511,035.56 1,511,035.56

2002020 08/02/06 06246 TACHAYETTAJACKSON Ref002366128 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000085061 6.54 6.54

2002021 08/02/06 02799 TARULLI TIRE INC - SAN DIEGO 20026361 07/13/06 TIRE REPAIR SERVICES 109.79
20026324 07/10/06 TIRE REPAIR SERVICES 20.47 130.26

2002122 08/09/06 02799 TARULLI TIRE INC - SAN DIEGO 20026372 07/18/06 TIRES 167.63
20026391 07/17/06 TIRE REPAIR SERVICES 62.00
20026380 07/14/06 TIRE REPAIR SERVICES 44.00
20026374 07/14/06 TIRE REPAIR SERVICES 32.00 305.63

2002314 08/23/06 02799 TARULLI TIRE INC - SAN DIEGO 20026530 07/28/06 TIRE REPAIR SERVICES 449.83
20026529 07/28/06 TIRE REPAIR SERVICES 339.35
20026587 08/02106 TIRE REPAIR SERVICES 31.09
20026550 07/31/06 TIRE REPAIR SERVICES 20.47 840.74

2002392 08/30/06 02799 TARULLI TIRE INC - SAN DIEGO 20025809 OS/20/06 TIRE REPAIR SERVICE 251.06
20026643 08/08/06 TIRE REPAIR SERVICES 206.23
20025773 05/19/06 TIRE REPAIR SERVICE 157.84
20026629 08/07/06 TIRE REPAIR SERVICES 74.03
20026634 08/07/06 TIRE REPAIR SERVICES 20.31 709.47

2002022 08/02/06 06255 TASHA QUINTERO Ref002366137 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000086944 39.70 39.70

2002023 08/02106 06192 TC CONSTRUCTION CO Ref002366074 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000062386 737.72 737.72

2002315 08/23/06 03770 TEAMAN, RAMIREZ & SMITH INC 206232581 08/03/06 ACWA WORKERS COMP 4,500.00 4,500.00

2002393 08/30/06 02376 TECHKNOWSION INC 1871 08/08/06 SCADA INTEGRATION SERVICES 1,700.00
1869 08/08/06 SCADA INTERGRATION SERVICES 1,095.00
1870 08/08/06 MODEMS 280.15 3,075.15

2002200 08/16/06 03374 TEK-COLLECT INCORPORATED 29423 OS/22/06 COLLECTION SERVICES 7,000.00 7,000.00

Page 28 of 32

-----------



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

2002202 08/16/06 03711 US FILTERIDAVIS PROCESS 7816924 06/27/06 BIOXIDE 1,047.33 1,047.33

2002203 08/16/06 06268 USC-FCCCHR 015196 08/10/06 MEMBERSHIP APPLICATION 500.00 500.00

2002395 08/30/06 03190 VALCO INSTRUMENTS CO INC VICI504505 08/07/06 PARTS 2,215.59
VICI504792 08/09/06 ROTOR 457.09 2,672.68

2002050 08/09/06 01095 VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS Ben2366378 08/08/06 DEFERRED COMP PLAN 15,119.39 15,119.39

2002220 08/23106 01095 VANTAGEPOINT TRANSFER AGENTS Ben2366895 08/22/06 DEFERRED COMP PLAN 6,520.97 6,520.97

2002031 08/02106 06212 VERONICA DE SARACHO Ref002366094 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000074371 6.48 6.48

2002319 08/23/06 01994 VORTEX 13231 08/02/06 USED OIL FILTERS 100.00 100.00

2002396 08/30/06 03335 VORTEX INDUSTRIES INC 112761071 08/07/06 REPAIR SERVICE 214.98 214.98

2002032 08/02/06 06167 W LBAUGHMAN Ref002366049 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000001288 187.98 187.98

2002033 08/02106 00101 W W GRAINGER INC 9142077602 07/13/06 PAINT 83.53
9140246876 07111/06 WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES 647.90
9142570523 07/13/06 WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES 435.24
9141836818 07/13/06 WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES 103.86
9141460650 07/12/06 WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES 545.87 1,816.40

2002126 08/09/06 00101 W W GRAINGER INC 9147954151 07/20/06 ANCHORS 632.36
9145844735 07/18/06 WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES 279.12
9146798591 07/19/06 WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES 69.61
9144278372 07/17/06 CONDUIT FITTINGS 44.34
9146911004 07/19/06 WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES 38.60 1,064.03

2002204 08/16/06 00101 W W GRAINGER INC 9152288628 07/26/06 WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES 778.91
9148187058 07/21/06 WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES 247.35
9150294289 07/24/06 WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES 243.72
9152374113 07/26/06 WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES 110.49
9150316017 07/24/06 WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES 100.37
9148187041 07/21/06 WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES 84.39 1,565.23

2002320 08/23/06 00101 W W GRAINGER INC 9156212921 08/01/06 WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES 834.09
9157372484 08/02/06 WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES 738.71
9156837354 08/02/06 WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES 80.42 1,653.22

2002397 08/30/06 00101 W W GRAINGER INC 9159293159 08/04/06 WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES 301.59
9162042254 08/08/06 WAREHOUSE SUPPLIES 287.16 588.75

2002321 08/23/06 06278 WASHINGTON MARKET 015226 08/23/06 REPLACE PAYROLL CHECK 984.87 984.87

Page 30 of 32

~----~~-,



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

2002322 08/23/06 02700 WATER CONSERVATION GARDEN 010607 07/19/06 OPERATING COSTS 75,000.00 75,000.00

2002398 08/30106 02700 WATER CONSERVATION GARDEN 010607 07/19/06 OPERATING COSTS 18,750.00 18,750.00

2002399 08/30106 03506 WAVE IMAGING CORPORATION 050WDE0919 10/19/05 NETWORK CONFIGURATION 4,375.00
060WDE0331 03/31/06 NETWORK CONFIGURATION 2,800.00 7,175.00

2002205 08/16/06 00014 WAXIE SANITARY SUPPLY 69563362 07/19/06 JANITORIAL SUPPLIES 2,125.45 2,125.45

2002034 08/02/06 01343 WE GOT YA PEST CONTROL 36165 07/10/06 BEE REMOVAL 115.00
35948 07/05/06 BEE REMOVAL 115.00 230.00

2002206 08/16/06 01343 WE GOT YA PEST CONTROL 36577 07/25/06 PEST CONTROL SERVICE 250.00
36575 07/26/06 BEE REMOVAL 115.00 365.00

2002400 08/30/06 01343 WE GOT YA PEST CONTROL 36206 07/19/06 BEE REMOVAL 115.00
34476 05/05/06 BEE REMOVAL 115.00 230.00

2002127 08/09/06 00190 WEST PAYMENT CENTER 811789333 07/20/06 LEGAL LIBRARY UPDATES 267.26 267.26

2002401 08/30/06 00190 WEST PAYMENT CENTER 1000461957 08/20/06 LEGAL LIBRARY UPDATES 550.09 550.09

2002207 08/16/06 00125 WESTERN PUMP 2002830lN 06/20/06 SERVICE CALL FUEL PUMPS 622.00
0052630lN 06/30/06 APCD TESTING 400.00
00530641N 07/27/06 LEAK SENSOR 150.85 1,172.85

2002323 08/23/06 00125 WESTERN PUMP 00527251N 07/12/06 REPAIR SERVICE 7,536.88
2003380 07/31/06 APCD TESTING 400.00
2003356 07/31/06 APCD TESTING 150.00 8,086.88

2002402 08/30/06 00125 WESTERN PUMP 00525321N 06/29/06 FUEL SERVICE 120.50
00525661N 06/30/06 FUEL SERVICE 99.25
2003496 08/10/06 LABOR SERVICE 93.75 313.50

2002324 08/23/06 03692 WESTIN ENGINEERING INC 10 07/17/06 SCADA DOCUMENTATION PROJECT 13,011.25 13,011.25

2002035 08/02106 06170 WILLIAM JORDAN Ref002366052 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000013405 53.47 53.47

2002036 08/02106 02725 WILLIAMS SCOTSMAN 64008554 07/12/06 28' TRAILER RENTAL 287.53 287.53

2002128 08/09/06 02725 WILLIAMS SCOTSMAN 64161735 07/18/06 MOBILE OFFICE RENTAL 310.52 310.52

2002403 08130/06 02725 WILLIAMS SCOTSMAN 64960465 08/08/06 MOBILE OFFICE RENTAL 310.52 310.52

2002037 08/02/06 03283 WILSON BOHANNAN COMPANY 00066191N 07/10/06 SOLID BRASS PADLOCKS 10,500.99 10,500.99

Page 31 of 32

--- -------- .-



OTAY WATER DISTRICT
CHECK REGISTER

FOR CHECKS 2001876 THROUGH 2002403
RUN DATES 7/28/2006 TO 8/30/2006

Check # Date Vendor Vendor name Invoice Inv Date Description Amount Paid Check Total

2002208 08/16/06 03468 WILSON, PETIV, KOSMO & 18927 07/31/06 LEGAL SERVICES JULV 2006 151.00
18833 06/30/06 LEGAL SERVICES JUNE 2006 123.10 274.10

2002038 08/02/06 06196 YEO CHANG YOON Ref002366078 07/28/06 UB Refund Cst #0000068314 86.63 86.63

GRAND TOTAL 6,518,567.05 6,518,567.05

Page 32 of 32

- ----------------------~~~



POPULATION AND HOUSING ESTIMATES (2006)
Dtay Water District

POPULATION (2006)
Jan. 1, 2006

HOUSING (2006)
Jan. 1, 2006

Total Population
Household Population
Group Quarters Population

HOUSING TENURE (2006)

Occupied Housing Units
Single Family
Multiple Family
Mobile Home & Other

Vacancy Rate

Persons per Household

189,623
182,018

7,605

Jan. 1, 2006
57,871

69%
29%
2%

3.6%

3.15

Housing Units
Single Family
Multiple Family
Mobile Home & Other

60,021
40,799
17,994
1,228

GENDER AND AGE (2006) RACE AND ETHNICITY (2006)

oto 17
18 to 34
35 to 64
65 and older
Total Population

Male
14%
12%
20%
4%

51%

Female
13%
11%
20%

5%
49%

Hispanic
Non-Hispanic

White
Black
American Indian
Asian & Pacific Islander
Other

Percent
35%
65%
41%

7%
0%

13%
4%

HOUSEHOLD INCOME DISTRIBUTION (real 1999 dollars, adjusted for inflation)

35%
31%

30%

'" 25%-c
0
.c
Q) 20%
'"::l0
.c 15%....
0

~ 10%

5%

0%

Less than $15,000 $15,000-$29,999 $30,000-$59,999 $60,000-$99,999 $100,000-$149,999

income range (1999 dollars)

$150,000
and over

Median Household Income
Adjusted for inflation (1999 $)
Not adjusted for inflation (current $)

$64,444
$82,271

NOTE: The information on this profile may not match other published data.

Source: SANDAG, Current Estimates (2006)
SANDAG
www.sandag.org

August 2006
Otay Water District Estimates

Page 1 of 1


	Agenda
	Agenda Item 4:  Minutes of the July 5, 2006 Board Meeting
	Agenda Item 4:  Minutes of the June 7, 2006 Board Meeting
	Agenda Item 6a: Adopt Resolution No. 4087 Amending Policy No. 4, Quotations for Fees or Charges, Establishing a Period of Time that Written Quotations are Valid
	Agenda Item 6b: Approve a One-Time Payment of $5,000 to the Water Conservation Garden to Provide Funding for Board Secretary Support
	Agenda Item 6c: Award a Professional Services Contract to Rea & Parker Research and Douglas Coe of the Social Science Research Laboratory to Conduct the 2006 Customer Service, Satisfaction and Awareness Survey for an Amount not to Exceed $27,500
	Agenda Item 7a: Presentation of the Board of Directors 4th Quarter Expenses for Fiscal Year 2006
	Agenda Item 7b: Receive the Investment Policy (Board of Directors Policy No. 27) and Adopt Res. No. 4088 Amending the Policy and Re-Delegating Authority for All Investment Related Activities to the Chief Financial Officer
	Agenda Item 8a: Capital Improvement Program Fiscal Year-end 2006 Update
	Agenda Item 8b: Approve the Execution of an Agreement with Cricket Communications, Inc., A Delaware Corporation, for the Installation of a Communications Facility at the 485-1 Reservoir Site
	Agenda Item 8c: Approve the Execution of an Agreement with Cricket Communications, Inc., A Delaware Corporation, for the Installation of a Communications Facility at the 458-1&2 Reservoir Site
	Agenda Item 9a: Discussion of 2006 Board Meeting Calendar
	Agenda Item 9b: Consideration to Cast a Vote to Elect a Representative to the California Special Districts Association Board of Directors
	Agenda Item 10: General Manager's Report
	Agenda Item 10: Financials
	Agenda Item 10: Demands
	Agenda Item 10: Population and Housing Estimates for 2006 in Otay Water District 

